
HOBBY AREA 
MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

Agenda and Agenda Materials 
Meeting of the Board of Directors 

November 10, 2016 



HOBBY AREA DISTRICT 
HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE MEETING 

TO: THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT AND TO ALL 
OTHER INTERESTED PERSONS: 

Notice is hereby given that a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Hobby Area Management District will be held on Thursday, 
November 10, 2016 at 1:00 PM in the Doubletree Hilton Hobby- 8181 Airport Blvd, Houston, TX 77061, inside the boundaries of the 
District, open to the public, to consider, discuss and adopt such orders, resolutions or motions, and !alee other direct or indirect actions 
as may be necessary, convenient, or desirable with respect to the following matters: 

AGENDA 
1. Determine quorum; call to order. 
2. Receive public comments. 
3. Approve minutes of meeting held October 13, 2016. 
4. Receive Assessments Collection Report. 
5. Receive Bookkeeper's Report and approve invoices for payment. 
6. Receive, Consider and Adopt a Resolution Establishing the Authorized Depository Institutions and Adopting List of 

Qualified Broker/Dealers with Whom the District May Engage in Investment Transactions. 
7. Designate Danny Perkins, Helen Bonsall, Jerry Lowry, and Jack Roland as authorized signers for the new Plus 4 Credit 

Union investment account. 
8. Receive and consider: 

a. Accept Hearing Examiner's Report and Proposal for Decision for public hearing regarding Supplemental Assessment 
Roll 

b. Approve Order Supplementing the Assessment Roll and Levying Assessments Against the Property of the 
Supplemental Assessment Roll 

c. Approve Order Setting the Rate of Assessment for all Properties on the District's Assessment Roll for Year four of 
the District's Service Plan 

9. Receive an npdate and recommendations from the Budget Committee. 
a. Consider and approve the FY2017 Budget 
b. Consider and approve an Employee Handbook and a Staff Organizational Chart 
c. Authorize the Executive Committee (Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary) to finalize all necessary documents to hire staff 

per the Organization Chart and within the approved budget for a January I, 2017 start date 
d. Consider administrative and project manager contract with Hawes Hill Calderon, LLP 
e. Consider and approve a contract with S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC for a start date of January I, 20 I 7 
f. Consider and approve office lease agreement with 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and authorize the Executive Director 

to expend funds for office equipment, furniture, and technology within the approved budget to occupy the office and 
equip staff 

IO. Receive an update and recommendations from Environment, Urban Design, and Mobility Committee. 
a. Consider and approve Broadway Enhancement Project payment applications and/or required change orders 
b. Consider and approve a contract with Clark Condon Associates for detailed design and construction documents for 

METRO bus shelters along and adjacent to Broadway Street 
11. Receive update from the Business & Economic Development Committee. 
12. Receive update from Public Safety Committee. 
13. Receive Executive Director's monthly report in support of the District's Service Plan. 
14. Adjourn. ~,,,,1111111111,,,1. 

~,,~ \fl!l<NAGf,r. 11t~ 
~ ~<t-"r .......... ,&. ~ 
~ ~-··· ... ,yr~ s~· -c~ :::.)...· ~ l.- •%~ 

:: : Y" I ".(J)~ 
Persons with disabilities who plan i ~l!)n t · m g fril'! !<Juld like to request auxiliary aids or services are requested to contact 
the District's Executive Director at~ii:lJ,59 - e~t~e business days prior to the meeting so that the appropriate ,': . . ~ arrangements can be made. ~ •. • • ~ 

~ ·········· ~ ~.,,,, Hem #\I ~,~~ 
'I/J1u111111\\\\\' 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

3. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Approve minutes of the meeting held October 13, 2016. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
{HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUllmER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calder6n LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

October 13, 2016 

DETERMINE QUORUM; CALL TO ORDER. 

The Board of Directors of the Hobby Area Management District held a regular meeting on Thursday, 
October 13, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. in the Doubletree Hilton Hobby, 8181 Airport Blvd., Houston, Texas 77061, 
inside the boundaries of the District, open to the public, and the roll was called of the duly appointed 
members of the Board, to-wit: 

Position 1- Danny Perkins, Chairman Position 7 - Marjorie Evans 
Position 2 - Helen Bonsall, Vice-Chair Position 8 - Joe Edd Nelson 
Position 3 - Todd Szilagyi Position 9 - Darryl Bailey 
Position 4- Jesus H. Saenz, Jr. Position 10 - Vic J. Zachary 
Position 5 - Ann Collum Position 11 - Alberto Cardenas 
Position 6 - Sue De Haven, Secretary 

and all the above were present, with the exception of Directors Perkins, Szilagyi, Evans, Bailey and Zachary, 

thus constituting a quorum. Also present were Jerry Lowry, Tony Allender, Linda Clayton and Elisa 

Rodriguez, all with Hawes Hill Calderon, LLP; Clark Lord, Bracewell LLP; Jack Roland, Governmental 

Financial Reporting, LLC.; and Jeff Sonnheim, Equi-Tax. Others attending the meeting were Eoles 

Whitaker, Office of State Rep. Garnet Coleman; Rhedonda Cox and O'Brien McFadden, both of SEAL 

Security; Sherry Weesner, Scenic Houston; Jason Miller, Clark Condon; Maria Ramirez, Hobby Business 

Ambassador; Amber Ambrose, social media strategist; and Aaron Dominguez, Amegy Bank. Vice-Chair 
Bonsall called the meeting to order at 1:03 p.m. 

RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENTS. 

Aaron Dominguez with Amegy Bank discussed a potentially new Amegy Bank branch being placed in the 

District on the 1-45 corridor. He stated it would probably be a year before opening. 

APPROVE MINUTES OF MEETING HELD SEPTEMBER 8, 2016. 

Upon a motion duly made by Director DeHaven, and being seconded by Director Cardenas, the Board 

voted unanimously to approve the Minutes of the September 8, 2016, Board meeting, as presented. 

1:07 p.m. Director Bailey arrived meeting. 



RECEIVE ASSESSMENTS COLLECTION REPORT. 

Mr. Sonnheim presented the Assessment Collection Report, included in the Board agenda materials. He 

reported a 98% collection rate on the 2015 assessments with no uncertified values. No action from the 

Board was required. 

RECEIVE BOOKKEEPER'S REPORT AND APPROVE INVOICES FOR PAYMENT. 

Mr. Roland presented the Bookkeeper's Report and went over invoices, included in the Board agenda 

materials. Staff answered questions regarding various invoices. Upon a motion duly made by Director 

DeHaven, and being seconded by Director Collum, the Board voted unanimously to accept the 

Bookkeeper's Report and approved payment of invoices, as presented. 

RECEIVE AND CONSIDER FY2016 PROPOSAL FROM BELT HARRIS PECHACEK LLLP FOR CONDUCTING THE 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT AND AUDIT. 

Mr. Lowry reviewed the proposal from Belt Harris Pechacek LLLP to prepare the FY2016 annual financial 

report and audit, and answered questions. He reported the fee estimate for the audit services was 

$3,950.00 which was in line with the fees for the FY2015 audit. Upon a motion duly made by Director 

DeHaven, and being seconded by Director Nelson, the Board voted unanimously to approve the proposal 

from Belt Harris Pechacek LLLP to prepare the FY2016 annual financial report and audit for a fee estimate 

of $3,950.00, as presented. 

RECEIVE AN UPDATE FROM THE HOBBY AREA IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION (HAIC). 

Mr. Lowry reported there were no items to report. 

1:23 p.m. Director Evans arrived meeting. 

RECEIVE AN UPDATE AND RECOMMENDATIONS FROM ENVIRONMENT, URBAN DESIGN, AND MOBILITY 
COMMITTEE. 

Mr. Allender reported the Committee met on September 21, a copy of the Committee Minutes is included 

in the Board agenda materials. 

a. Consider and approve a maintenance agreement with the City of Houston as required for the 

Broadway Enhancement Project. 

Mr. Allender reviewed the Maintenance Agreement, included in the Board agenda materials, and 

answered questions. He reported the agreement outlined what the District is responsible for maintaining 

versus what the City is responsible to maintain. Mr. lord stated the City will not allow anyone to put 

anything in the right of way unless it has the capacity to maintain the improvements. He stated the 

2/Page 



Maintenance Agreement was a standard agreement that the City enters into with Districts for 

maintenance requirements for improvements in the right-of-way. Upon a motion duly made by Director 

Collum, and being seconded by Director DeHaven, the Board voted unanimously to approve the 

Maintenance Agreement, as presented. 

b. Consider and approve Broadway Enhancement Project payment applications and/or required 

change orders. 

Mr. Miller reviewed Pay Applications No. 2 and 3 and Change Orders No. 3, 4 and 5, included in the Board 

agenda materials. He stated Clark Condon has reviewed the pay applications and change orders and 

agrees with the amounts and quantities and recommends approval of the pay applications and change 

orders. Upon a motion duly made by Director DeHaven, and being seconded by Director Saenz, the Board 

voted unanimously to approve Pay Application No. 2 from Jerdon Enterprise in the amount of 

$101,847.60, Pay Application No. 3 from Jerdon Enterprise in the amount of $410,973.75, Change Order 

No. 3 from Jerdon Enterprise in the amount of $20,014.85, Change Order No. 4 in the amount of 

$132,000.00, and Change Order No. 5 in the amount of $-147,965.00, as presented. 

c. Ratify the EUDM Committee's action to proceed with trimming trees for CenterPoint's 

installation of new street light standards. 

Upon a motion duly made by Director Collum, and being seconded by Director Nelson, the Board voted 

unanimously to ratify the Environmental, Urban Design and Mobility Committee's action to authorize 

proceeding with trimming trees for CenterPoint's installation of new street light standards. 

d. Consider and approve a proposal from Clark Condon & Associates to prepare maintenance 

specifications and cost estimates for the Broadway project. 

This item was tabled. 

RECEIVE UPDATE FROM THE BUSINESS & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITIEE. 

Mr. Lowry reported the Committee met on September 21, a copy of the Committee Minutes is included 

in the Board agenda materials. 

a. Consider and approve a contract with Malone Strategies LLC for event management and fund 

development for the 2017 State of the District luncheon and HobbyFest 2017. 

Mr. Lowry reported request for proposals were sent out for event management and fund development 

to secure sponsorships for HobbyFest 2017 and State of the District Luncheon 2017 and three responses 

were received. He reported three contracts are being presented to the Board for consideration (1) from 

Malone Strategies LLC to plan and execute the Hobby Fest 2017 in the amount of $3,200.00; (2) from 

Malone Strategies LLC for event management of the State of the District Luncheon 2017 in the amount of 

3JPage 



$2,000.00; and (3) from Malone Strategies LLC to secure sponsorships for the State of the District 

Luncheon 2017 and Hobby Fest 2017 at a rate of ten percent (10%) of sponsorship funds received. There 

was general discussion regarding the 10% commission rate being a little high for fund raising. There was 

discussion regarding putting a $100,000.00 donation cap per event at the 10% rate and anything after 

that being at a rate of 5%. Upon a motion duly made by Director Collum, and being seconded by Director 

Bailey, the Board voted unanimously to (1) approve the contract with Malone Strategies LLC for event 

management of the Hobby Fest 2017 in the amount of $3,200.00, as presented; (2) approve the contract 

with Malone Strategies LLC for event management of the State of the District Luncheon 2017 in the 

amount of $2,000.00, as presented; and (3) approve a contract with Malone Strategies LLC for fund 

development to secure sponsorships for Hobby Fest 2017 and for the State of the District Luncheon 2017 

with a $100,000.00 donation cap per event at the rate of 10% and funds received for sponsorships over 

$100,000.00 at the rate of 5%. 

RECEIVE UPDATE FROM PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITIEE. 

Mr. Lowry reported the Public Safety Committee met on September 21, a copy of the Committee Minutes 

is included in the Board agenda materials. Officer McFadden presented the SEAL Security Incident Report, 

included in the Board agenda materials, and answered questions. Ms. Cox provided an update on the 

mobile security cameras in and around hotels in the District. No action from the Board was required. 

RECEIVE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S MONTHLY REPORT IN SUPPORT OF THE DISTRICT'S SERVICE PLAN. 

Mr. Lowry reported the Business Ambassador made 60 visits during the month. He stated the final Livable 

Centers Study workshop was conducted last week and the next step is to receive a draft report which is 

expected to be submitted by the end of the year. He stated there will be a comment period and hopefully 

the report will be finalized by January or February. No action from the Board was required. 

ADJOURN. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Vice-Chair Bonsall adjourned the meeting at 
1:56 p.m. 

Secretary 

41Page 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

4. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRJS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Receive the Assessment Collection Report. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calder6n LLP 
P.O. Box22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



YEAR l'<A I C 

2015 U.15000 
;>014 0.10000 
,u13 0.1ouu0 

<.;urrent Montn Act1v1ty 

HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 
ASSESSMENT COLLECTION REPORT 

October 2016 
BILLING AND COLLECTION SUMMARY 

FISCAL YEAR 
01/01/16 -12/31/16 

Tu1.1.1.• 1 r:v1 "Lc.,,luN::; 
1,698,969.74 1,669,442.0~ 
1,524,880.22 1,517,047.23 
1,351l, 15;>.95 1,354,526.66 

Revenue: 
2015 Assessment Collected 
2014 Assessment Collected 
2013 Assessment Collected 
Penalty & Interest 
Overpayments 
CAD Lawsuits 
CAD Corrections 
Collection Fees 
Court Fees 

Total Revenue 

Overpayments Presented for Refund 
Overpayments Applied to Assessment 

Rt:{.;EIVAn, E 
$29,527.65 
$7,832.99 
$3,626.;>9 

Current Month 
2,859.07 

125.59 
9.05 

1,534.64 
0.00 

4,448.14 
0.00 

1,795.31 
000 

10,771.80 

4,448.14 
0.00 

ASSESSED VALUE FOR 2015: 1,146,248,828 
1,029,918,986 
919,950,929 

Uncertified: 
ASSESSED VALUE FOR 2014: Uncertified: 
ASSESSED VALUE FOR 2013: Uncertified: 

Assessment Collection Account: Wells Fargo, Account No. 3402018257 

ASSESSMENT PLAN PROJECTIONS 
CURREN, PROJECTED LEVY \.ULLECTIO,.o v "' "TIVE 

YEAR RATE 2¾ &i5% COLLECTIONS 
LU13 0.1-.111111 1,3-.i '1 \_"i. 1 u,;,4:, ;[,-"i.oq1:-..n,_n1 

2014 0.15000 1,385,316 1,316,050 1,517,047.23 
LU15 U.1o0UO 1,413,022 1,342,:J71 1,669,442.09 
2016 0.15000 1,441,21l3 1,369,219 
2017 0.15U00 1,470,108 1,396,603 
2018 U.15000 1,499,511 1,424,5~5 
2019 0.15000 1,529,501 1,403,026 
2020 0.15000 1,5bll,091 1,482,086 
2 "I 0.1:-.11uu 1,""1,,H3 1,511,7 8 
/ ,,, u.1oOOu 1,,v<,118 1,b41,a, ., 

14,871,396 18,668,, 42 

The Projected Levy is based on the rate remaining at 0.15000 

% 1 - 1111 Ev1ED 
9o,o 
99% 
~9% 

Year to Date 
1,393,348.50 

4,741.12 
4,505.68 

25,906.32 
10,529.80 
31,707.01 

0.00 
11,527.38 

0.00 
1,482,265.81 

0 
0 
0 

40,930.41 
0.00 

10 YEAR 
AVERAGE 

1,487,140 

Prepared by: Equi-Tax Inc. 
Collector for the District 



HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 

October 2016 
TOP TEN ASSESSMENT PAYERS 

PROPERTY OWNER ACCOUNT NOS SITUS PROPERTY TYPE VALUE ASSESSMENT 
ARCP MT HOUSTON TX LLC 1258210010001 0 MELDRUM 77075 WAREHOUSE STORE 34,931,454 52,397.18 
2325 E CAMELBACK RD STE 1100 1260630010001 0 GULF FWY 77075 
PHOENIX AZ 85016-9078 1260630010005 10013 ALMEDA GENOA RD 77075 

1260630010006 10025 ALMEDA GENOA RD 77075 
1260630010010 10009 ALMEDA GENOA RD 77075 
1260630010011 0 MELDRUM 77075 
1260630010012 0 ROWLETT ST 77075 

BROADWAY POST PARTNERS LLC 0402390000108 8750 BROADWAY ST#222 77061 MULTI-FAMILY 31,253,764 46,880.65 
8205 SANTA MONICA BLVD STE 298 1141750000001 8955 BROADWAY ST #208 77061 
WEST HOLLYWOOD CA 90046-5967 0402390000101 8200 BROADWAY ST #224 77061 

1097870000007 8900 GLENCREST ST #208 77061 
1141690000001 8915 BROADWAY ST #200 77061 
0402390000100 8601 BROADWAY ST #380 77061 

ACQUISITION BROADWAY SQUARE LLC 1097860000001 8751 BROADWAY ST#213 77061 MULTI-FAMILY 23,746,236 35,619.35 
500 SKOKIE BLVD STE 200 1097860000002 7900 MORLEY ST #292 77061 
NORTHBROOK IL 60062-2862 1097860000003 8801 GLENCREST ST #322 77061 

1097890000008 8950 GLENCREST ST #200 77061 

CENTER AMERICA PROPERTY TRUST LP 1254930010002 10235 ALMEDA GENOA RD 77034 RETAIL CENTER 20,632,565 30,948.85 
3901 BELLAIRE BLVD 1254930010001 10225 ALMEDA GENOA RD 77034 
HOUSTON TX 77025-1100 

ATRIUM FINANCE II LP 0342030040003 9100 GULF FWY 77061 HOTEL 20,332,000 30,498.00 
MARRIOT HOBBY 0342030020130 9100 GULF FWY 77061 
4243 HUNT RD 0342030020118 9100 GULF FWY #287 77017 
BLUE ASH OH 45242-6645 

1859 HISTORIC HOTELS LTD 0963850000001 8181 AIRPORTBLVD#303 77061 HOTEL 18,329,659 27,494.49 
2302 POST OFFICE ST 0963850000003 0 RUTHBY 77061 
GALVESTON TX 77550-1935 

VIVA PROPERTIES LLC 0971580000001 0 VILLA DR 77061 WAREHOUSE 18,264,385 27,396.58 
PO BOX405 1199160010001 0 NEUHAUS AVE 77061 
LOLITA TX 77971-0405 0971580000002 8300 TEWANTIN DR 



HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 . 

POWELL ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS LLC 
8550 MOSLEY RD 
HOUSTON TX 77075-1116 

CG 7600 LP 
%GARVER 
1901 LEXINGTON ST 
HOUSTON TX 77098-4219 

1193970010001 

0421910000006 
0421910000117 

INLAND DIVERSIFIED HOUSTON OREM LLC 1307400010001 
P O BOX 460069 1296790010001 
ESCONDIDO CA 92046-0069 

October 2016 
TOP TEN ASSESSMENT PAYERS 

7232 AIRPORT BLVD 77061 

7600 S SANTA FE DR 77061 
7600 S SANTA FE DR 77061 

6905 E OREM DR 77075 
6903 E OREM DR 77075 

MANUFACTURING 

WAREHOUSE 

TRUCK TERMINAL 

17,622,467 26,433.70 

16,490,445 24,735.67 

22,614,009 23,098.22 



HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 9 

October 2016 
TOP TEN DELINQUENT ACCOUNTS 

ASSESSMENT 
PROPERTY OWNER ACCOUNT NO SITUS PROPERTY TYPE YEAR(S) ASSESSMENT 
RMF PLANT LLC 91 034 203 002 0081 7922 HANSEN RD 77061 
7922 HANSEN RD 

WAREHOUSE 2015 3,537.91 

HOUSTON TX 77061-3429 

MOTEL 6 NO 1086 91 034 203 001 0083 8800 AIRPORT BLVD #124 77061 
1020 BRAND LN STE 525 

HOTEL/ MOTEL 2015 2,860.94 

STAFFORD TX 77477-5757 

HAMS AVIATION MAINTENANCE SRV INC 91 043 228 000 0031 8703 TELEPHONE RD 77061 STORAGE HANGAR 2013-2015 2,146.33 
7766 BRANIFF ST 
HOUSTON TX 77061-5120 

MERRIKH JAMILEH 91 034 203 003 0126 8342 MOSLEY RD 77075 
8105 HOWARD DR 

WAREHOUSE 2014-2015 1,952.05 

HOUSTON TX 77017-4622 

ALMEDA ROWLETT RETAIL WEST LP 91129 785 001 0005 0 ALMEDA GENOA RD 77075 VACANT 2015 1,803.69 
910 TOWN AND COUNTY BLVD STE 210 
HOUSTON TX 77024 

VALDERRAMA AC & REFRIGERATION INC 91 048 001 000 0190 8412 HANSEN RD 77075 WAREHOUSE 2015 1,715.83 
12002 SAGEDOWNE LN 
HOUSTON TX 77089-4720 

FURNITURE BANK 91 034 203 002 0122 8220 MOSLEY RD 77075 WAREHOUSE 2014 1,484.20 
2100 HUSSION ST 
HOUSTON TX 77003-5629 

ZEENAT FOUNDATION 91123 643 001 0001 0 MONROE RD 77075 
9703 RICHMOND AVE STE 108 

VACANT 2013-2015 1,344.05 

HOUSTON TX 77042-4654 

STMS INC OBA SOUTH TEXAS 91 070 072 027 0017 6011 TELEPHONE RD 77087 
ADULT DAY ACTIVITY CENTER 

DAY CARE CENTER 2013-2015 1,204.42 

2602 GRANITE CT 
PEARLAND TX 77584-9155 

DUFFY GREGORY T 91 069 003 009 0001 8102 BRANIFF ST 77061 
8102 BRANIFF ST 

WAREHOUSE 2013-2015 962.61 

HOUSTON TX 77061-5202 

• Pending HCAD Value Lawsuits 



Summary 

Settled 

Unsettled 

Harris County Improvement District No. 9 / Hobby Area 
Lawsuit and Arbitration Status Summary as of9/16/2016 

1,500,417,278 

486 
217,434,866 

14.49% 

135,087,617 
49 

Original value of Settled accounts as of9/16/2016 
Number of Settled accounts as of9/16/2016 
Reduction in value of Settled accounts 
Average % reduction in value of Settled accounts* 

Original value ofUnsettled accounts as of9/16/2016 
Number ofUnsettled accounts as of9/16/2016 

Jur 943 

................................................................................................................................................................................... 
. 15 Tax rate per $100 valuation 

$29,365 I Estimated* reduction in assessment on 49 Unsettled accounts, 

based on 14.49% average 

• Historical data from Tax Years 2007 through 2012 were used to establish initial statistics for the 

"average % reduction in value of Settled accounts." 

F:\Company Info\Lawsuits\Lawsuit Status\HCID 9_943_LTS-Sep162016 
Revised 27 October 2016 prepared by: Equi-Tax Inc. 

281.444.4866 



PERDUE, BRANDON, FIELDER, COLLINS & MOTT L.L.P. 
DELINQUENT ASSESSMENT REPORT 

HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #9 
November 10, 2016 

Amounts shown are 2015 base assessment amounts unless indicated. 

Suit pending: 
RMF Plant LLC $3,537.91, 7922 Hansen Rd.-0342030020081 

We have intervened in a suit filed by Pasadena ISD; we will monitor the case. 
Jamileh Merrikh 14-15 assessments $1,952.05, 8342 Mosley Rd. -0342030030126 

We have intervened in a suit filed by Harris County; a new trial date is set for I 1/16/16. 
We have also intervened in a suit filed by Pasadena !SD. We will monitor both cases. 

Valderrama AC & Refrigeration Inc. $1,715.83, 8412 Hansen Rd.-0342030010058 
We have intervened in a suit filed by Pasadena !SD; we will monitor the case. 

The Furniture Bank 14 assessments $1,484.20, 8220 Mosley Rd. -0342030020122 
We have intervened in a suit filed by Pasadena !SD; we will monitor the case. HCAD 
has granted a total exemption for 2015 and a partial exemption for 2014. The assessment 
office has received and processed the correction and the 2014 assessment amount due has 
been reduced. 

Zeenat Foundation 13-15 assessments $1,344.05, Reserve A Block I on Monroe Rd. -1236430010001 
We have intervened in a suit filed by Pasadena !SD; we will monitor the case. 

STMS Inc. dba South Texas Adult Day Activity 13-15 assessments $1,204.42, 6011 Telephone Rd.-
0700720270017 

We have intervened in a suit filed by Harris County; we will monitor the case. They recently 
committed to pay in 3 installments; the first payment is due on 11/30. 

Agbolade 0. Odutayo $640.23, 7634 Bell fort St. - 0950630000020 
We have intervened in a suit filed by Harris County; we will monitor the case. 

Marvell Services LLC 14-15 assessments $557.13, West 1/2 ofTract 7 Block 12 on Tavenor Ln.-
0342070120007 
We have intervened in suits filed by Harris County and Pasadena !SD; the account has been paid 
in full. 

McKenzie Heirs Partnership $401.31, Tract 168B on Bryant St.-0342030030221 
We have intervened in a suit filed by Harris County; the account has been paid in full. 

Roy S. Moses 13-15 assessments $235.87, 6818 Westover St. -0741530010001 
We have intervened in a suit filed by Harris County; we will monitor the case. 

Katherine Atwood 13-15 assessments $183.51, 9151 Wingtip Dr. -0690030100027 
We have intervened in a suit filed by Harris County; we will monitor the case. 

Abraham Green 13-14 assessments $142.04, vacant tract on Bellfort St. -0410120010078 
We have intervened in a suit filed by Harris County; judgment was signed on 5/11/15. The 
judgment is final; a judgment letter has been sent but there has been no response. The county has 
not set the property for tax sale because the owner has set up a payment agreement. 

Edwin Meyer 13-15 assessments $98.09, 6614 Heffernan St. -0600770060004 
We have intervened in a suit filed by Harris County; a trial date is set for 12/5/16. 

Isiah Hunt 13-15 assessments $94.50, Lot 18, Block 9 on Northdale St.--0600770090018 
We have intervened in a suit filed by the county. A trial date was set for 10/5 but was 
passed; we will monitor the case. 

Page I of3 



Isiah Hunt 13-14 assessments $63.00, Lot 17, Block 9 on Northdale St.--0600770090017 
We have intervened in a suit filed by Harris County. A judgment that includes the 2013 and 2014 
assessments was signed on 11/17/15. The judgment is final; a judgment letter has been sent but 
there has been no response. The county set the property for tax sale on 4/5/16 but the sale was 
postponed; the county has not set the property for tax sale at this time; we will monitor the case. 

Estate ofKhosrow Abtahi 13-15 assessments $63.00, 6539 Northdale-0600770090024 
We have intervened in a suit filed by Harris County; judgment was signed on 3/29/16 but the 
county filed a motion for a new trial. The motion was granted and a new trial date was set for 
8/31/16 but the trial was passed; we are monitoring the case. 

Paid in full: 
AHR Partners LP $2,812.50, 9517 Almeda Genoa Rd.-0342070 I 00045 
Joel A. Ruth $1,457.31, 6105 Nunn St. and Lot 11 Block 18 on Nunn St.-0620310060006, 
0640650180011 
Ruth Rental Real Estate Ltd. $258.39, 3 lots on La Paseo St.-00620310090001, 0620310090006, 
0620310090007 
Richard Urdiales $112.92, 6618 Heffernan St.-0600770060005 

2015 accounts: 
MP Hotels LLC $2,860.94, 8800 Airport Blvd.-0342030010083 

We spoke to the manager on 8/23 and he said that his brother was sending payment in 
full but the account is still due. We have called back several more times and left 
messages but they have not responded. We called again on 10/6 but there was no answer. 
A statement has been sent to the lienholder, Jai Umiya Mata, LLC, a Texas limited 
liability company and another demand letter has been sent to the property owner. 

Almeda Rowlett Retail West LP $1,803.69, Reserve E Block I on Almeda Genoa Rd.-
1297850010005 

On 8/25, Jeanie Wright of Realm Realty requested an emailed statement, which was sent. 
We spoke to Mr. Braband on 9/15 and he said that he had never received a bill until he 
received our demand letter. He said that the appraisal district has the wrong mailing 
address; we advised him to change his address with HCAD. We spoke to him again on 
9/20 and he said he was going to contact the assessment office to discuss the account. 
We spoke to Braband again on 10/13 and he requested an emailed statement which was 
sent. 

• In addition to the 2015 accounts listed above, there are 34 accounts with 2015 base assessments 
ranging from $10 to $834; 30 of these accounts have base assessments ofless than $400. Demand letters 
have been sent, we are trying to reach each owner by phone and we are contacting lienholders, where 
appropriate. 

Other accounts: 
Ham's Aviation Maintenance Service Inc. 13-15 assessments $2,146.33, improvements only account at 
8703 Telephone Rd. - 0432280000031 

We have spoken to Carla Ham who said they left Houston many years ago and that Million Air is 
now the owner of this location. This is a building on City owned land at Hobby Airport. We 
have told HCAD what we know and we have asked them twice to let us know what they know 
about this account and they have not replied, the County tax office has over $150,000 due on this 
account, it is odd that HCAD is unresponsive and nothing seems to have been done on this. 

Jerry O'Brien 14-15 assessments $1,347.55, 10 real property accounts on Morley St. 
Nine of the accounts are delinquent for 2015 only; the other account is due for 2014 and 2015. In 
May, we spoke to him about the 2014 delinquency and he said it should be paid. He requested an 

Page 2 of3 



emailed statement, which was sent. We sent another demand letter on 7/18 and we left another 
voice mail message on 8/29. Another emailed statement was sent on 9/29. We talked to him 
again on 10/3 and he said he didn't have the money to pay but as soon as he did, he would call the 
assessment office to set up payment arrangements. On 10/17, we spoke to him to see if he had 
contacted the assessment office; he said he would check with his secretary to see if she had called. 
Once again, he stated that he really can't do much of anything until he gets some more money. 
We advised him that he can pay one account at a time ifhe doesn't have the funds to pay all of 
the accounts. 

• In addition to the accounts listed above, there are 9 accounts with base assessments between $400 
and $963 and 20 accounts that have base assessments of less than $400. Demand letters have been sent, 
we are trying to reach each owner by phone and we are contacting lienholders, where appropriate. Due to 
the size of the accounts, further action is not recommended at this time. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Carl O. Sandin 

PerdueBrandonFielderCollins&Mott LLP 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

Email: csandin@pbfcm.com 
Office: 713-802-6965 (Direct Line) 
Mobile: 713-824-1290 
Fax: 713-862-1429 

Page 3 of3 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

5. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARR.Is COUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Receive the bookkeeper's report and approve invoices for payment. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calder6n LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 ,-'. 



HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT 

SEPTEMBER 2016 

Governmental 
Financial 

R eporting, LLC 



Hobby Area Management District 

Balance Sheet 
As of September 2016 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Checking/Savings 
1010 · Amegy Bank 
1020 · Wells Fargo Bank 
1030 · Plains State Bank - CD 
1040 · TexSTAR-Operating 

Total Checking/Savings 

Other Current Assets 
1200 · Assessment Receivable 

Total Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

2000 · Accounts Payable 
Total Accounts Payable 

Other Current Liabilities 
2100 · Assessment Refunds Payable 
2200 · Deferred Assessment Revenue 

Total Other Current Liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 
3000 · Retained Earnings 
Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Sept 16 

18,439.09 
203,003.56 
247,179.45 

1,073,645.27 
1,542,267.37 

48,428.78 
48,428.78 

1,590,696.15 

1,590,696.15 

207,253.91 
207,253.91 

6,546.50 
450,812.90 
457,359.40 

664,613.31 

664,613.31 

645,896.19 
280,186.65 
926,082.84 

1,590,696.15 

Page 1 



Hobby Area Management District 
Statement of Sources & Uses - Budget vs Actual 

September 2016 

Sept 16 Budget Jan -Sept 16 YTD Budget Annual Budget 
MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS FUND 

M&O SOURCES OF FUNDS 
4000 · District Assessments 141,951.49 142,399.00 1,283,278.98 1,281,591.00 1,708,786.00 
4010 · Penalty & Interest Revenue 1,717.90 3,000.00 24,371.68 27,000.00 36,000.00 
4020 · Overpayments 5,299.75 5,500.00 37,788.67 49,500.00 66,000.00 
4030 · Assessment Refunds -5,379.24 -5,541.00 -36,482.27 -49,877.00 -66,500.00 
4050 · Grant and Donations 0.00 5,525.00 0.00 49,725.00 66,300.00 
4060 · Interest Revenue 377.51 41.00 3,336.39 377.00 500.00 

TOTAL M&O SOURCES OF FUNDS 143,967.41 150,924.00 1,312,293.45 1,358,316.00 1,811,086.00 

M&O USES OF FUNDS 

Public Safety 
601 O • Contract Public Safety 15,504.75 16,849.00 141,864.75 151,633.00 202,180.00 
6015 · Apartment Life Initiatives 1,620.00 2,084.00 12,945.00 18,748.00 25,000.00 
6020 · Mobile Cameras 6.600.00 6,400.00 55,900.00 57,600.00 76,800.00 
6025 · Nuisance Abatement Program 4,020.84 4,375.00 36,187.29 39,375.00 52,500.00 
6030 · Street Light Outage Survey 0.00 175.00 1,400.00 1,575.00 2,100.00 
6035 · Graffitti Abatement 2,560.00 3,334.00 24,960.00 29,998.00 40,000.00 
6040 · Project Management 4,875.00 4,875.00 43,875.00 43,875.00 58,502.00 

Total Public Safety 35,180.59 38,092.00 317,132.04 342,804.00 457,082.00 

Mobility, Environmental, Urban Design 
6050 · Porter Service 9,166.67 10,416.00 86,726.03 93,752.00 125,000.00 
6055 · Project Management 1,463.00 1,462.00 13,167.00 13,165.00 17,551.00 

Total Mobility, Environ, Urban Design 10,629.67 11,878.00 99,893.03 106,917.00 142,551.00 

Business & Economic Development 
6060 · Economic Developmt Programs 1,833.02 9,834.00 57,044.93 88,498.00 118,000.00 
6065 · Events, Festivals, Comm. Proj. 0.00 2,250.00 5,303.91 20,250.00 27,000.00 
6070 · Creative ED Support 6,420.00 6,934.00 62,492.50 62,398.00 83,200.00 
6075 · Marketing Mtls & Promo Items 3,970.03 2,334.00 16,520.71 20,998.00 28,000.00 
6080 · Project Management 2,925.00 2,925.00 26,325.00 26,325.00 35,101.00 

Total Business & Economic Development 15,148.05 24,277.00 167,687.05 218,469.00 291,301.00 

Administration 
6110 · Administration & Management 1,463.00 1,462.00 13,167.00 13,165.00 17,551.00 
6115 · Meeting Expense 1,278.41 1,250.00 10,734.93 11,250.00 15,000.00 
6120 · Reimbursable Expenses 1,655.10 500.00 12,551.85 4,500.00 6,000.00 
6125 · Postage 41.34 24.00 369.51 208.00 280.00 
6130 · Office Supplies 2.28 466.00 3,780.88 4,202.00 5,600.00 
6135 · Public Notices, Advertising 18.00 12.00 1,014.00 114.00 150.00 
6140 · Legal Services 4,249.92 3,750.00 33,196.29 33,750.00 45,000.00 
6145 · Audit Services 0.00 541.00 6,550.00 4,877.00 6,500.00 
6150 · Bookkeeping 850.00 600.00 6,150.00 5,400.00 7,200.00 
6155 · Assessment Billing 2,125.71 1,875.00 24,192.79 16,875.00 22,500.00 
6160 · Assessment Database Mgmt 300.00 300.00 2,700.00 2,700.00 3,600.00 
6165 · Office Equipment 0.00 250.00 0.00 2,250.00 3,000.00 
6170 · Insurance 870.24 125.00 3,052.62 1,125.00 1,500.00 
6175 · Other 0.00 21.00 586.39 189.00 250.00 

Total Administration 12,854.00 11,176.00 118,046.26 100,605.00 134,131.00 

Page2 



Hobby Area Management District 
Statement of Sources & Uses - Budget vs Actual 

September 2016 
Sept 16 Budget Jan -Sept 16 YTD Budget Annual Budget 

Community Development Fund 
Hobby Fest 

6205 · Project Management 975.00 975.00 8,775.00 8,775.00 11,700.00 
6210 · Committee Support & Supplies 155.00 334.00 1,718.98 2,998.00 4,000.00 
6220 · Marketing & Promotional Items 0.00 2,666.00 21,414.24 24,002.00 32,000.00 
6230 · Creative Services 0.00 959.00 11,945.00 8,623.00 11,500.00 

Total Hobby Fest 1,130.00 4,934.00 43,853.22 44,398.00 59,200.00 

6250 · Other Community Projects 0.00 1,250.00 0.00 11,250.00 15,000.00 
Total Community Development Fund 1,130.00 6,184.00 43,853.22 55,648.00 74,200.00 

TOTAL M&O USES OF FUNDS 74,942.31 91,607.00 746,611.60 824,443.00 1,099,265.00 

M&O EXCESS SOURCES OVER USES 69,025.10 59,317.00 565,681.85 533,873.00 711,821.00 

BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 
7000 · Prior Year Fund Balance 649,595.00 649,595.00 649,595.00 649,595.00 649,595.00 
7005 · General Fund Planned Reserves 52,099.27 59,319.00 498,276.75 533,863.00 711,820.00 
7010 · Lighting Reimbursement 0.00 11,223.00 0.00 101,007.00 134,678.00 
7015 · Broadway Hardscape Rimbursement 0.00 46,452.00 0.00 418,076.00 557,432.00 

Total Balances 701,694.27 766,589.00 1,147,871.75 1,702,541.00 2,053,525.00 
7020 · Gen Fund Transfer to Capital Budget -86,662.46 -101,739.00 -285,495.20 -915,637.00 -1,220,856.00 

TOTAL BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 615,031.81 664,850.00 862,376.55 786,904.00 832,669.00 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 

CAPITAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 
8001 · Transfer from General Fund 86,662.46 101,739.00 285,495.20 915,637.00 1,220,856.00 

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 86,662.46 101,739.00 285,495.20 915,637.00 1,220,856.00 

CAPITAL USES OF FUNDS 

Design and Engineering Services 
8010 · General Engineering Services 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 45,000.00 60,000.00 
8012 · Esplanade Design 0.00 3,125.00 0.00 28,125.00 37,500.00 
8014 · Metro Engineering Design 0.00 1,875.00 0.00 16,875.00 22,500.00 
8016 · Signage and Identity Design 4,801.46 3,750.00 42,456.07 33,750.00 45,000.00 

Total Design and Engineering Services 4,801.46 13,750.00 42,456.07 123,750.00 165,000.00 

Mobility, Environmental, Urban Design 
8048 · Livable Centers Grant Match 0.00 4,479.00 55,362.50 40,311.00 53,750.00 
8055 · Project Management 12,675.00 12,676.00 114,075.00 114,078.00 152,106.00 
8063 · Esplanada Enhancement 27,186.00 20,834.00 31,601.63 187,498.00 250,000.00 
8065 · METRO Bus Shelter Enhacement 0.00 12,500.00 0.00 112,500.00 150,000.00 
8070 · Signage and Identity Installation 42,000.00 25,000.00 42,000.00 225,000.00 300,000.00 

Total Mobility, Environmental, Urban Design 81,861.00 75,489.00 243,039.13 679,387.00 905,856.00 

8090 · Fund Reserve - District Office 0.00 12,500.00 0.00 112,500.00 150,000.00 

TOTAL CAPITAL USES OF FUNDS 86,662.46 101,739.00 285,495.20 915,637.00 1,220,856.00 

CAPITAL SOURCES NET OF USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 3 



Hobby Area Management District 
Bank Account Registers 

As of November 10, 2016 
Type Date Num Name Memo Amount Balance 

Amegy Bank - 13,474.00 
Bill Pmt -Check 10/14/2016 1699 Bracewell & Giuliani LLP General Counsel (1,467.50) 12,006.50 
Bill Pmt -Check 10/14/2016 1700 Harris County Treasurer-lnterlocal Contr. Community Protection Program (4,020.84) 7,985.66 
Bill Pmt -Check 10/14/2016 1701 SEAL Security Solutions LLC Security (3,969.00) 4,016.66 
Transfer 11/09/2016 Tri TexSTAR Transfer funds from TexSTAR 275,000.00 279,016.66 
Check 11/10/2016 1702 Comerica Bank Refund: 9100 Aiport Blvd. (318.71) 278,697.95 
Check 11/10/2016 1703 Lauren Holdings Refund: 11550 Gulf Freeway (498.71) 278,199.24 
Check 11/10/2016 1704 Preflight Parking Hobby LP Refund: 7901 Airport Blvd (2,159.25) 276,039.99 
Check 11/10/2016 1705 WRI AEW Lone Star Retail Portfolio Refunds: Two Propertuies (1,471.47) 274,568.52 
Bill Pmt -Check 11/10/2016 1706 Amber Ambrose Social Media Management (1,761.92) 272,806.60 
Bill Pm! -Check 11/10/2016 1707 Amegy Visa Credit Card Miscellaneous (2,841.88) 269,964.72 
Bill Pm! -Check 11/10/2016 1708 Chris Labod Website Maintenance (350.00) 269,614.72 
Bill Pmt -Check 11/10/2016 1709 Core Logic Safe Rent Apartment Life Initiatives (4,860.00) 264,754.72 
Bill Pmt -Check 11/10/2016 1710 Costar Realty Information, Inc. Real Estate Information (308.07) 264,446.65 
Bill Pmt -Check 11/10/2016 1711 Cracked Fox Marketing (1,200.00) 263,246.65 
Bill Pm! -Check 11/10/2016 1712 Equi-tax Inc. Monthly Roll Management & Collection (2,425.71) 260,820.94 
Bill Pm! -Check 11/10/2016 1713 Governmental Financial Reporting, LLC Bookkeeping (891.40) 259,929.54 
Bill Pmt -Check 11/10/2016 1714 Greater East End Management District Graffiti Abatement (2,560.00) 257,369.54 
Bill Pmt -Check 11/10/2016 1715 Greater Houston Partnership 2017 Membership Dues (5,000.00) 252,369.54 
Bill Pm! -Check 11/10/2016 1716 Hawes Hill Calderon LLC Administration/Management (28,907.53) 223,462.01 
Bill Pmt -Check 11/10/2016 1717 Malone Strategies, LLC Hobby Fest & State of the District (750.00) 222,712.01 
Bill Pm! -Check 11/10/2016 1718 Mario N. Ramirez Business Ambassador (1,726.50) 220,985.51 
Bill Pmt -Check 11/10/2016 1719 Perdue, Brandon, Fielder, Collins & Mott Delinquent collections (1,864.42) 219,121.09 
Bill Pmt -Check 11/10/2016 1720 Scenic Houston Broadway Redevelopment (150,500.00) 68,621.09 
Bill Pmt -Check 11/10/2016 1721 SEAL Security Solutions LLC Security (24,798.00) 43,823.09 
Bill Pmt -Check 11/10/2016 1722 SMC Logistics Litter Abatement (9,516.67) 34,306.42 
Bill Pm! -Check 11/10/2016 1723 Tolunay-Wong Engineers, Inc. Broadway Redevelopment (3,318.00) 30,988.42 

Total Amegy Bank 
17,514.42 30,988.42 

Wells Fargo Sank 
203,003.56 

Total Wells Fargo Bank 
0.00 203,003.56 

Plains State Bank - CD 
247,179.45 

Total Plains State Bank - CD 
0.00 247,179.45 

TexSTAR-Operatlng 
873,275.02 

Deposit 09/30/2016 Interest Sept. Interest 370.25 873,645.27 
Transfer 10/13/2016 Amegy Bank Transfer to Amegy Operating (275,000.00) 598,645.27 

Total TexSTAR-Operating 
(274,629.75) 598,645.27 

TOTAL 
(257,115.33) 1,079,816.70 

Page4 



BARBARA J. SCHOTT 
BARRIS COUNTV AUDITOR 
1001 Preuo,,,S..it..800 
Houston, Tun 77002 
(713) 7.SS-1160 

INVOICE 

ill\l(N~/SUkmtGtNr,.: AH012709 

Cu$1:o..,erNo.: V00091127 
HOBBY ARRA MANAGEMRN'l' 
ATTN DAVlD HMES &. BILL C 
PO BOX 22167 
HOUSTON, TX 77227-2167 AmoHtllae: __ ,,_,_,_,_.,_,_ 

Anlo11otP~il:I: ____ _ 

10/03/16 NOV'l6: ASST COUNTY ATTY FEE 

The above all\OUnt: is for County iaervices. Amount" are due upon ro:ceipt or the invoice. It you have any questions, conta,:;t Accounto Receivable at 71J.-7SS-ll60. 

REMITPAYMENTTO: HA.RRISCOUNTYTREASURER 
o,,,,,4o-,.,,_ 
JIHJl l'rfflon, Room 651 
I/Ofllli)", lba,s 77001 

Bracewell LLP 
ATIO!l.•<EYSATL\W 

P-.0.8<>;<&44S6t 
Oali...n;T~ 

1\JZ2l-1300 
TAAlDT~·lDl<SV 

4,020.114. 

______________________________ __:;~~I 

!lobby A= Mnruigemetll District 
;n Loui1i•na 
Sulto 2300 
!lo11$10n. TX 77002 

0::tobcr 6, 2016 
lnw,i,e: 21&6!S64 

BIA; 1}1674 

Ow-MaUtr~; 069001.000(){)J for S<:rvicc, ThmughScptt:m!>cr J0,2016 
Gener:,J Counsel 

"-09/D61!6 f'rq:,arccmai! la J Hawes regarding lbc he:irlng Dchorah Russell 0.25 
dlle "" !fie rupplcmenUtl mil 

09i01l/!6 Prepuc for 3nd ~trend Board nittting; C!erl: Srod!cm Lon! 2.SO tdcpbon<: confcn:nw "ith 1 Lowry; tclephon,; 
eonf=n....., withD Ptrl,;lns 

091lWJ6 l'rcpan, follow up cmoi! ta J Jt,,.-.:i reganli,g 
~ timing for sclledullng lhc hearing on zit<, 

D.:bor:i.hRus.<e!! 025 

suppJcmcnUtl ml) 

09!.!7116 Em,iJ =<pondcn;:e 'l'<iL~ l!HC reganling !l,e Dc!xm,.1,Russcl! 0.7S scheduling oflhc he:,rir,g oo the supplemcn!al 
roll; .:m'1il to P Hall n:gsrding s:une; pn:p;rc 
the noticos for mailing .m:i publi,;aiion; em•il 
conespoadcncc from J L,,w,y regarding !he 
notice of the hearing; rc~i,:w =nc, ,u 
n:q~eSlod; dil.cussion wi!hC Lord m~nling 
,.,:nc·, cmoil com:spc,Blcncc: wi!h th~ HIV 
n:gnrding the d=:lline fC<" =ivin& Ille notice 

09/28116 l'rep:i."C em~il to 1he HBJ tr:mmiitiing !he Di:JxnhRu,.1ell 0.25 notice ofhearing for publication: ..,,,.,! to G 
l.:,»~on rcg,,n!Lllg I.he con!immiOII of the 
mc.,tins plocc; .:mail com:spo,,dcmc ,..w, the 
HBJ and HHC rcg:miini; the hilling for d,e 
publir.ation notice 

09f.!9/16 P"'l"lfC email co the TSG Rcportin~ zo rcse,•,e Deborah RusieU 0.1S a court~ fC<" ~ hearing; pn-p,m, !he 
CO'-'tt ,ha::t for the beori,,g nolebook to S<nd 
withihe toql>CSI 

llo.te'Hr Amow,t 

l2S.OO 81.25 

450.00 1,12.l-OO 

325.00 8!.25 

325.00 243.75 

325.00 Hl.25 

325.00 8J.2S 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC Invoice 
152S Bfalock Rood 
Houston. TX 7708(). 731 X 
,...,....SEALS.,ouriey..,o"' 
713-91'1-:IJS! 

tQ/311016 31756 

TX DPS Lic.gCJS'l-12 

llohhy Area !..fan.1J!Cmcnt Di.\tricl 
96101.ongf'oint,.Ste.150 
Houston, TX 77055 

l>at,rip!loll 

Thre<:C<lmmissiontd Officers with Vehicles and Oocasi<lna! K-9 

Patrol Period 09/26120 16 through t 0/0:!/20 l 6 

Patrols = billed c:vonr Monday for !lie ho= p;itrulled the week 
i>=eding the ooo,·e inrni~ dale. 

This invoice is Mondaylhrough Sunday indusi~-

Honn 

1'7 

,_, 
~ .. :Ill 

R.ato/llour Amount 

27.00 l,%9.00 

Sai..T .. (~%) so.oo 
Thank you for allowiqg us to earn your busjaess. Total S3,96!>.0& 

Hohby Arca Mmagoment District 

Cl.ut Stoclion Lord 
DeborahRu=II 

Bracewell LLP 
AlTOll..'<EYSATL\.\\' 

O;:tobcr6.2016 
Invoice, 211i6!6l.i4 

Hou-. 
2.50 
l.75 

T~,-·-·425 

Ralc/Hr Amoun1 
4SO.OO l,12S.OO 
325.00 5605 
~ ~]5 

Pa1N2 

I.es.< Oi,00001 (226.25) 

Tau.IF"'-' ror Prokssioul &ni- $1,467.50 
Foe• for Profr1,;ioni! S=kes ...... ·-·-······S 1.467,50 

Total Carn,ntBllllog for1hi,.Ma!l~r $ J,467.50 



fZl Equi-Tax foe. 
~ Ad Va/orem Tax Assessors I Co/ledor.• 

171J I R.oUicg Creek Drh~. Swte ::?00. Houston. Tcu.s 77090 
P. O. Uox 7J109. JIIXa!QQ, Tex:,., n2,1 

C'u3tomcrSmicc231.44,,&.l~6 (u 281."'IO.IJ°' 

DATB: 10/1B/201G 

COMERICA ILutr. 
% COLLIERS IHT£RNATI0NAL 
2: CORPOAATE DR STE 300 
S011n1FIELD HI 48076-3759 

lll"'1US C0IJNT\' D<P DIST 9 

ACCOONT NOMBER: 91/034/203/003/0123 
YEAR: 2015 

REP No .: 0894933 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

TRS 123 & 123 C 
SOUTH HOOSTON' GAlUlBNS SEC 6 

9100 AIRPORT BLVD 

DATE PROCBSSED : 10/18/2016 
RECEIPT NU'MBER: 91150189 
DEPOSIT BATCH Ho.: RP161018 

NOTJ:CS OP CIANGB ::tH J\SS.RSSMEtft' 

We have: been notified by the Appra i sal District of a change in the 
appraisal. of your p roperty that has resulted in a change in your 
assessment for the 201s year. 

The explanation of the change is : 

{ } Decreaae in l!.ppraiocd Value 
( } Exemption (s) Added 

( J Home6tead 
( I over 65 
( 1 Disabled Person 
( 1 Dioablcd Veteran 

( ) Account Prorated 
( l Account Deleted 
[ J Rendition Penalty Waived ( J Other: _______ __ _ 

{....., Lawsuit Cause Ho. : P:o IS-SS5'IC. 

This action ha& r esulted in a decrease in the .imount you o we. 
Accordingly. we are issuing you a refund in the ilffiOUnt. of 5310. 1 1 ,....,. 

Note: Quest.ions regarding changes i n val\.le should be direc t ed to t h e 
Appraisal Diutrict, 

If you need more information, call Cuato:ner Se rvice at 201.,44 .3946. 

fZl Equi-Tax Inc. 
~ Ad Valort!ln TaxAssessors/Co//eetors 

www.cquituinc.com 171ll Rollirll;Crrdr.:Ori\,:,Su.b:200, IIQl.ll:00. Tc.us 71090 
r. 0. Bo,11; 71109, Jfous.:an., Tc.us 7727) 

C~IGllld' Scn·icr 21J.-M.;,Jl).C6 !a., 2SIA40.Sl<H 

D/\TE: 10/18/2016 LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

PREFLIGHT PARKiz.;:G HOBBY L? RBS Fl 
C/0 PROPERTY TAX DEPT 200 BROADl/A'f SQUARB BUS!lll!SS PARX 
PO BOX 4900 
SCOTTSD.\LB AZ 85261 ·•UOO 

HARJUS C00HTY IMP DIST 9 

I\CCOUNT !IUMDER: '1/l09/7B7/000/0009 
YEAR: 2015 

REP No . : 0894536 

7901 AIRPORT BLVD 

DATE PROCESSED: 10/18/2016 
RECEIPT NtrMBER: 91151.305 
DEPOSIT BATCH No.: RP161018 

NOTICB OP CHANGE IN 1\SSBSSM8NT 

We have been noti f ied by the Appraisal District of a change in t.he 
appraisal of your propcrcy chat has resulted in a change in your 
a.asessincnt for the 2015 year, 

The explanation of the change is: 

( J Dccreaoe in Appraised Value 
( I 2x:e~t ion (s) Added 

( ) Homestead 
( J over 65 
( l Disabled Person 
[ l Dio.ihled Vetcro.n 

Acco~,t ?rorated 
Account Deleted 
Re ndition Penalty Waived 
Qt.her: ____ _ _ ___ _ 

(,1' Lawsuit C~UOQ No . , ,eO l:S"-55?4,).. 
This action haa reeu.1ted in a decreaae io the a.mount you owe. 
Accordingly, we are issuing you a refund in the ainount of S2 , 159.2S . ·..--

Note: Questions regar~ing changes i n value should be directed t o tho 
Appraisal District. 

I f you need more information, ca.11 Custo111er Service at 281.4<.4 ,3946. 

rzl Equi-Taxlnc. 
~ Ad Va/orcm Tax Assessors I Collectors 

17111 Rol.lii:i;;Crnk O.-ivc-,S-.kJ:00, Hou.mm, Tc.u.J 77090 
P. O.Bot7l109. llam10:1,. Tau mn 

DATE: 1 0/21/2016 

~UREN HOLDl ~GS 
4902 PILGRIM HARBOR DR 

FRIENDStiOOO 

lr:NUUS COUHTY IMP DIST 7 

ACCOUNT NlJMBER, 91/123/174/001/000l 
YEAR: 2015 

REP No.: 0894976 

Cu.\:omctSavi:clJl,W.l9-16 rn. ZX IA40.8l0,; 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

RES A BLK 1 
GULF FREEWAY AU1?JIA 

115SO GOLF FWY 

DATE P1l0C£SSJID: 10/21/2016 
RECEIPT ~1rimER : 911Sl367 
DEPOSIT nATOI No,: RF16102l. 

NOTICB OP C::HANCB XN ASSESSKKHT 

We have been notified by t he .Appraisal D1Gtrict of a Cha.."lge in the 
,1,ppr.iisnl of your property th.it h.:as rcoultcd i n .o change in your 
assessment for the 2015 year. 

The explan.itio:i of the chan ge io: 

[ J Decrease in .Appraised Value 
( J Excmption(o) Added 

{ ) Homeetead 
( } over 65 
[ l Dioilblcd Pcrgcn 
[ J Di sabled Veteran 

[ I Account. Prorated 
( J Account Deleted 
( J Rendition Penalty Waived 
[ J O~her: _________ _ 

I .;f"'Lawsuit Cause No.: ..().0 15-( .. qcg/ 

This act.ion has r esulted i n a decrease in the: ar..ocnc you o;,,e . 
Accordingly, we arc issuing you a refund in the a.mount of $498. 71 . ._. 

Note: Oucations regarding changes in value uhou.ld be directed to the 
J\ppraiaa1 District. 

If you need more information, cal l CUsto:ner Service at 281.44.4.39<.6 . 

rzl Equi-Tax Inc. 
~ Ad Va/arm, Tax Assessors I Cnllcctnrs 

17111 Rol l~Cttd:Drh-c.SW1t200. How.ton, Tau 7i090 
P. 0. Bci; 7JIO?, ltoust.)Q,. TCUJ 77.?73 

C'u.slun:i.:tSc:nK.'C211.44-4.3946 r.u 231.440.Sloi 

DATE : 10/18/2016 

WRl·AE\'V lJ:inc 5t:3r ftctilil Portfol;o, UC 
r:/o Wilson & Franco 
11000 RicM'lond Ave Ste 3.50 
Houston, TX n042 

HARJUS COUNTY IMP DIST , 

ACCOUHT NUMBER, 91/041/012/00l /0030 
YEAA: 2015 

RE? No.: 0994.934 

LECAL DESCRIPTION 

TR l 2B-1 
ABST 56 H B PR..ai""I'ISS 

63 00 TELEPHOl'/1! RD l 

DATE PROCl!SSED: 10/18/2016 
RECEIPT NUMBER: 91150377 
DEPOSIT BATCH No.: RP161018 

NOTICB OP CHlWGB IN I\SSBSSMBRT 

We have been notified by t h e Appr ais~.l Diotrict or a change in t.be 
appraisal of your property that has resulted in .i change in your 
aoaeesment f or the :?015 year. 

The explanaci cn or the change ia: 

r l Decre ase in Apprais ed Val.ue 
( J Exemption (s) Added 

[ I Homc:etea.d 
( J over 65 
( J Dioabled Peraon 
[ J Disabled Veteran 

{ J Account Prorated 
[ 1 Account Deleted 
( J Rendition Penalty Waived 
[ J Other: _________ _ 

(.-i Lawsuit cause No.: .:,015-1/IQS(. 

Th.is action has resulted i n a decrease in the air.aunt you owe. 
Accordingly, we o.rc issu ing you a ref u.'ld in the amount of $1,357.05 ."-

Notc : Qucotiooo r egarding ch.u::.ges in value ahould be directed to the 
Appraisal District . 

If you need moro infon:llltion , c.ill customer Service at 281.44.;. l946 , 



fZ'1 Equi-Tax Inc. l.!::::!J Ad Valorc,11 Tax Assessors I Collectors 

1711 1 R.olli.ngCttcl.Ori\~.Suitc200. IIDlmOCl, To:.u i?090 
I'. O. Uo:t 731M, Hcmton. lc:s.u 77273 

Cus1(r.Xl'Scnice2.S l .4+&.J946 Cu 21 l ,41t>.Sl04 

DT;TE, 10/18/2016 

WRl·AEW Lon e Star Reta fl Portfolio, UC 
cJo Wilson & Fr.1r1eo 
11000 Richmond Ave Ste 350 
Houston, lX no42 

BARIUS COOIITY IMP DIST 9 

LEGAL D~CR!PTION 

TR 12Z 
ABST 56 H B PRENTISS 

6348 TBLEPUO?IB RD 

T;CCOCNT llOMBBR, 9l/04l/Ol2/001/0112 
Y'P...AR : 2015 

REP No . : 0894935 

Dl\TS PROCESS&D, 10/18/2016 
RECEIPT NUMBER: 911 50396 
DBPOSIT BATCH Ho.: RP16101B 

NOTICB OP OU\NUB J"N ASS8SSMBNT 

We h.:a.vc been notified by the Appraisal District. of a change in the 
appraisal of your property that has resulted in a change in your 
aai,essment for cbe 2015 year. 

The explanation of the change i s: 

{ ] Decrcaoe in Appr.:iiocd Valu e 
l J P.xemption {s) Added 

1 Account Prorated 
J Account Deleted 

I ) Homestea d 
I I Over 65 

( J Rendition Pc.nalty Waived ( J Other, _________ _ 
t J Di s abled Person 
{ 1 Disabled Veteran t,..,t'Laweuit. Cause. No. : ,.:ip,;s:- 4YD5{. 

This action has resulted in a dccrca&e in the ariount you o.·c, 
Accordingly, we are issuing you a refund in the 4r.'lount of $114 . ;12 . 1/\... 

Note: Questions regarding changes in value should ba directed to t h e 
Appra.lsal Distr ict. 

I f you need r.10re information. call customer Service at 281.444.3946 , 

AmegyyL~ 

........ N ...... 
C:.dirUrM 

A....a.bkCtcJii 
Scaaxn~ CJoJ.c O.cc 
P-,.att D• Da1e ,.._,..,,o.c 
MiaJ>.,_o. 
Cbpt 11'1 l .!litt' Q-ck 

Tr., r..t LkrmccNCUUU - "'" HJ/II IQ/'11 7"761:i;,o.\CEIIKDRT:FTIZ 

TOTAL lOXl "'.)IOU>6l.l Sl .lS4.4J,. 

CR.ETQjO, LARSON 

0"7l o,/JJ J'4Ui4WU2Ul.&EVR 
IOl'IU 10,0) 24194)JM11.QlfX9AX 
ICIU 10/U l4l4760Mf1PSIXQU 

TOTAL XIOOOOCOOOO.XO,so SU41M 

HU 1111 .... 

OONTROLAO.:CUNT VISA HORD'( AAf.A MD 
A«w.: Ntmbtt : 
G:llft;Q::q:a (l(,a} 

A<XX>UNT SUMMARY 

ii;QaDDJ:EQ. D{,I' Pl'n'brs:f\abn« 
SIO,D00.00 ,,.,_ 
S7.IUOO Cm!io 

Ottoba24..10Hi ......... 
N--.r' u ,201, t».uOu.ica ..... ==-

m .oa ....... Ow ... ,, w-n.1.,'" 

TRANSACTIONS 

PAYMENT. THANK YOU 

FEl)f.XOff,Jrn QOW1ffl SUGAR LANO TX 
USST0RAC£.HOUS1'0N 1&6-118-?DJI n 
DOUl'll..f.lllF.ll.HOi\DYHOUSTO:,t TX 

I PAYMENTINFOAMAno1<1 

Jl.lW.O 
Sl..2}4.4J 

14.00 

S1.141.U .... .. .. 
so.oo 

n.141 1• 

Sl.026.21 
$1 ~).JO 

Sl.f.12.17 

"0 1mJNU 
""-"......., IIQ:,l-maoc.tJ 

Ulf Utt Cf'ff IT Mlla• UD 

jM.C.a..I.rrU. .. , 

UNKCAU CENTEI 
PO IOX 3011U 
SAU LAKE ClV UT HUO•OIU 
h•fHfnhfDJlfJ)llfJllflflJ1JJfhH(1ll•lu1(f,f,(o(flfullfr 

l',,-0-Dou .......... 
~ ,,,_..o,._.,_.__ 

""'""""' T-aP'.,._,"- $ . 

CONTROL Ac.COi.WT 
HOUY AlEA HD 
PO IOX 221'7 
HOUSTON TX 712Z7•ZJ'7 

IUl}IU, 

s.uu.a, .,..., .... 

"'"'1"1•11lh11•11ul1•h1111'•1•111~11•1• 11111•11Dnll11••1 

,:sor.r. oooo,:s3qaooooo3ozor.a3., 

INVOICE 

Amber Ambrose 
6431 Fairwood Dr. 
Houston, TX 77088 

amber@amberambrose.com 
361 .813.6681 
amberamb10se.com 

Client: 
Hobby Area Management District 

PO Box 22167 
Houston, TX 77227-2167 
Attn: Gretchen Larson 
Invoice 11273 

Date: 
11/1/16 

Project Description: 
Social Media Management & PR 

Hourly Charges or Project Fee: 
$1700 

Additional Charges or Reimbursements: 
$61.92 (out-of-pocket Facebook promotions) 

Adjustments: 
so 
Total Fee Due: 
$1761.92 

~ E,C'"\o \ _ bC)'"\.S, 
Please send check to addressee/address above OR PayPal funds to 
amber@amberambrose.com. Thank you for your business! 

~Aru t'l&NJ:t'ffl~Ou.:nn 
9'10 Lon, Point AcL, Su. UO 
Hcwuon TX 770$S 

Invoice :-,_,, . 01 . :c" 
i.-,:; :~" ,~t6-1 l-4 l!, 
y,•, - ~I"' -,~: , .. 

..,,,.., 
0000 Sl50 0') 

Chris Labod 
1!iOJDurforcn0r

S;rln.iTXnJ1) 
(l81)-6Sl,0741 

suooo 

Sux:i:::il SlSOOO 

Toal ('l.•brNc"' 1s. z,,1 , SlS0.00 



' Ac:d.1. 
11/112016 T64J2 moo 
ui112016 l64ll , ... , 
II 1/2016 TMU T6AIS2 
II/J/2016 T64U n1s1 
11 1 1016 T64ll Tl29-4 
U/Jf2016 T&-411 "'"°' 1i71no16 T6'1' , .... 
111no1, T64l2 "'" U/12016 16412 , ... , 
tt/1/1016 1641:l Hi461 
1111no16 T64U 1'451 
11 1/2016 16411 T3]76 
IJ IJhOJ6 T64U T16J1 
11/1/2016 l64U rsna 
11•1no1s T6412 TIO&S 
11/J/2016 T6412 T7"'4 
11/112016 1641:1 T6-4SO 
11'1"'016 T6412 16-4S7 
1111 2016 TG412 164Sl 
11/1/1016 T6412 T64S9 
111(2016 16'12 11150 
11 J/1016 Ti-412 , .... 
11/11016 16412 nm 
11 J/2016 T6412 ,...,, 
11 1ho16 T6412 Uil03 
11 1/2016 16412 , ... , 
U/1/2016 T64l2 ,., .. 
Ull 2016 T6412 T"4SS 
ll/1/2016 16412 mo, 
11/l/2016 T6412 T64!il 

I 
i - --

lt-61,r.Noviernt,,ir,1011 

Hclbby AIH ~"'Cffll«11t Dh ukt 
P.O. lotl1161 

Hou~ton., TII 711.11 

-...,J.illo'1!.N"~ 
7S1IIM0tf...,SttN:tAn1S DIN Vtnturu, llC 
AhaVl"rcll" F/1st Choke Mana frMnl 
kll~lont Ylllu Allnf"ult"M.,,1-ment 
~ll(ott(Hl CaptatnlnYNlfflHIICorn 
~llo,tPLua And Hern1ndet 
8 roadw1"CaU11 G,tc:sco 
Rm.tdwa" VI la•ft J,wdA.shral 
C.boSM1lucu Nov.1~1vM1nuet1"1Mt 
Ca~AnR.t H.trob Mana 1m1nl 
C.uCruz lndosM.11» ffl'Cf1tGroun 
tau Grande OCR Pr~ M,n.-.trntnt llC 
ChuOrleu11 klndl'l'dR~lt.tl 
OHl'WOIXI Vllln Am.s PkrmeOc!Yelo......;.nt 
CtC'SCC'nlOhl GPI Rt, 1 hlalt M,na•tment 
Odla o GWRlnltrC'Sll 
Oovrr Ccwe Anh DcNereovt>llC 
[uwr~nn OtRP,:=rt.:;-Mana f!mf!nlllC 
Globe cwo Jnttresu uc 
Cir,hamc,rstMano, Qto Pro'"'"" Advison 
lnPalnv\ Hr:rlla e Gulf CClul Pr .. 
lenno• Clfllaln lrrm.tmenl eo,;;-
l~no,a 1nnn111.mPr0 Mana-men1 
ll"()ll()f•c..uare lnlln/llM'nflto Mana-mf'nt 
lD1Arco1 Gu.trdt,n[ uJtv 
Pe!!bbloWt1k GJl~O 
Pec.anV1lbADt1 Pean vm, A " UC 
RedlordSn11are SalcedoPrc-r11u 
Slt11l""CCH.lrt.1,,tflcm~ GrratrrCou11IMana tll'IC'tl! CG 
l el"""'one~dA.nu T1r1nuno P,o~ .. •,es Inc 
Yi1taVC!t'de Monument RHI htate 
RlMIT THlSSTAT[MCNT W1llt PA't'MCNf 

, ... I~ cP '/ () ,.,. 
11 (1l p i (j 

0 
(/) 3 J (1 61 
'"1 I 

"':!l~"' s ;ill vi< vi< v'< i?o<:o ' 3: 
~oill~ 8 l :j I I I 
~gz 6 I> 
~~r\; .. . ti 

vi cJ (r ::f,;s;?,, u ·m 
~-46~ ~ !c 

~ ~ ~ r~!Jlz § lo 
~i~ 0 g 

~ =ii: 3: g g m~ ! m 

Y•• 
y., ,., 
y., 

'" Ttt , .. 
Tu , .. 
Ttt , .. 
ve.s , .. 
y,. , .. 
y., 
y,. , .. 
TOS 

'" , .. 
No 
No 
YH , .. , .. 
Y•• 
Ye, 

Yu 
YH 

!~ 
o~:iii g l~ 

\ I ~~g l o 
' '11 I;. ~ ! Ii ~ 

i 

~g;f ~~ II ~~§ E af • &;i' pipi ~ h, • ,: 1~1 u l<> 
I. i n ~ . . . n H ~ i;gj l ~~: ! 

RJ f HI~ H !1: 
Ir g • 

il' ~~~ 

f ~i~. n lg' d ii ~ ! t lit .. 
& ~ H p g I I ~ [ i "' I:;, 0 

§ a'§ ,., n ·• C ! ~ 
[ . r I 

. 
= · ~ l! s :a 

~ - .~} la n . !: - ~ 
R 1 " ~ "' 

B I • • J e 

H a 

11 ~ p f ~ ;: i t: iii .. 0 'f O;; 
ill ti 8 ;/ i 8 f 

11U\ech«l~1bl1to: 
Cou lo&lc S,t,lo AMI 

,.O. lot 401'51 
AUMt.t, GA XtJl4-Z.45J 

""' y,. 
Ytt 
Yo, 

'" T .. 

'" , .. , .. 
TH 
Ye> , .. 
Ttt 
y,. 

'" y,. , .. 
Y'1 
y., , .. 
Yu , .. , .. 
TU 
Ye, 

YH , .. 
YH , .. 
Yu 
y., 

o!!Hl 
§~~~ 
2rg ;il~ 
1.ij11 
1~ 
i; 

:!! 
=>m 
0.::, 

~Q. 
Q. =i an-g.:, "< 

~~~~ 
< ~~ 
~·" Q • . g !il 

8"~ 
6~ 
3 .. 
m":< 
"" 

..... IICltWt~ 

• SJ .SO 
UlO SJS7.!»0 

"' S!S.00 

" SU.SO 

"' Sll.50 

150 S37.S0 

210 SSBO 
106(; $2(.,(i.SO 

" S600 

"' Sfi) .~ 
65 Sl6.2S 
23 S5.7S ,,. $69,00 

m sum ,., S40.!IO 

" S8.00 

" S7.JS 

" $1S.25 

"' SIMO 

'" $35.00 

" $10,25 
61 SIS.SQ 

" SIJ.SO .. $16.CIJ 
12.8 SS7.00 

" ssoo 
61 StS.2S , .. sn.oo , .. SS0.00 .... S16G.OO 

6450 $ 1,610:00- .,.._ 

~ 
'ii 
0 .. 

, ... ,.,. 
(j 

~ 
Jg 
jf 
R, 
f 

i J.JJ :J 
"' 0 • 

: .. ~ § 

:: ti 
~ ~ 
~ 0 

-IJ/!/lOS6 
9 1/1016 

9/liZD16 
!)/1/2016 

9/1/1016 
9/1 2016 

9 I JOH~ 

9/1"016 
9/1/ZOlG 
9/1/2016 

9 l/2016 

9/1/1016 
9 J/1016 

9/lllOIG 

9/1/2016 

9/1/2016 
9/111016 

9/ino16 

9/I/J016 
•u1no16 

9 1noJ6 
911no1& 

9/1'1016 
9/1/lOlli 

9 11016 

9/11016 
,11no15 

9/tflOIG 
9/l/1016 
9/1/1016 

--1011no16 
10/ll'J016 

1011no16 
tOJtn016 

1n11no16 
JOll/1016 
10/1 2016 

1011no1s 
1011no1& 

IO/lll016 
10/1/2016 

IO/J/1016 
10/1/2016 
10 innu; 
Hlll/1016 

10/1/2016 
!Wl/2016 
1ru1no15 

10/1/2016 

10/1/2016 
IIQ/tn016 

10/1/2016 
1011no16 
ID 1 2016 
10 1/2016 

I I 

10/1 /2016 

IOJl/2016 
lOJl/2016 
1011/2016 

J0/1/1016 

t.4f•r: s.,t•lllbot H16 

Hobby Arr• ~ltwWfll Dhtrtct 
P.O. b22161 

ti111.1110n,TIC17227 

I -· ~~ 164\1 
16411 

T6412 

T6411 
T64U 
T64U 
T641) 

16412 
T64U 
16412 

T64U 

f6412 
16'12 
16412 

16412 

16411 
T6412 

16412 

16412 
T6A12 
T64U 

T6.U.2 

T602 
16412 

T6412 

l6U2 
16412 
T64t2 

T6412 
T64l2 

·-· 16412 

16411 

T64U 
16412 
T6412 

T6412 
T6'U 

T6412 

16411 
l6412 
TG,112 

16412 

16412 
16412 

1&412 

16411 
T6412 
TE,412 

T6412 

T6412 
T6U2 

T641.2 
TG,411 
16412 
T6U2 
T6U:Z 

T6412 
T641.2 

16412 
T&412 

16590 , ... , 
T64S2 

TUS2 
T)l9;l ,,,,.. 
TS099 

T6'S< 
T6'6l 
T6"6l 

TM!i l 

Tl316 
12631 
15778 
71061 
TI"'4 

""" T64S1 

T64Sl 
T6459 
11150 
T6'60 
157S9 
TG-480 
Tl40) , ... , 
T496' 
T645S 
moo 
1'6"6) 

7511Mor1-·SlrC'C'tAm .. 

AAaVt:rde 
Bl"Uesiooe Vlllu 
0•11tort[H t 

Bl"ll 0rt Plat• 

htdwt CHI 
l\ro,clwa VII.aft 
C,boS1nlua1 
Cu,Anlt, 
CuJC,uJ 

C.uGr,ndr 
O!n0fk,n1 
Clearwoodv~,,,;-.. u 
C,esunt(I"' 

~Lao 

ClroverC<m!~IS 
f5.;;:;:;,,,u 
Globe 
CirahMTc:tellM.tnor 
LHP,tm3' 

len/M711 
lC'OflOl'.t 

LPDnor•c..uare 
LosAlco, 
PtbbltWatk 

Ptun\.111.t-.:IS 
Rcdfotd~uart' 

St11!'1lln•CCM1•"tllomn 
ritlrL-1bdA a 
VJsto1Vetde 

lt(MrT lltlSSTATCMUIT WITH PAYMCNT 

Uds•r:01:tobtt2011 

HObbyAtta~,.-.-ilDlwkt 
P.O. Bo:. Z2Ui"1 

llo111ton.nn221 

DJNVtnlLl'C'S llC 

Fint Olok:t M,na f!'l'l'lltnl 

AUn ["ult Miln11em•nt 
ca"t.tlnln,t11Mir,.ICOf" 
AnlNIIMn.lndei 

C.tew:o 

lavrdA\hral 
Nov;ii ProoerewM;iif\i1rmen1 
fl.)toklMatu . , 
lndu1M1n1•ement G,,,..,, 

CU l't~rtv Mtn••C'ment UC 
ltind1ed RNkt,nUal 

Pl<erne Oevt-nt 

GPIRcalhUtrMana tmcnl 
GWRln1r1iuts 

OowrCO'AllC 
OCR Pro MaN .l'fflf'ntUC 

CWDlnt•r•stsllC 
QIOPr .., . .,.. 
He1lu•e Gult Coin Prontrtlrs 
C,ot1JnlnY~lri~ntCofn 

Infinitum Pro--rtv MIIIHt'tnrnl 
!ntlnlt\lffl Ptooertv M.tnH!cmmt 
Guauflan("-iJI"' 

G.atew:o 
PfQnVl!t.lAMt . llC 
s,1,edo ,-re, 
Greater cm,tal Mar.:i fmtnl Co 

T1unUnoPni...-le1lnc 
Monunwru Rt:il E\utn 

-•; 
1S11 Mor=~~ 

M 
16590 OJN lhntlHN LlC , ... , AftaVtrdl' FntOlolceM1n11el'l'lt'nl ,...., Belk>ttoncV,.ln Atlas [ 1111Y Min• C!fflt'nt 
TllS2 Bellforthtl c.an11lnlnvt1tmen1Co..., 
13294 Be:llfortPIU6 Andvf1C'rn1nde1 
1606' Rto.idWJVCu.1 Ci.tlt\CO 
TS0')9 broidwa-vi •• · n Javed Ashtif 

m" Co1boS,).n lUUS Nt:1¥aP1c M.tna.t•ment 
16462 CluAAlt.t 141rohM,na•!rnconl 
16'61 CH.l(rut lndut Mtna emt"nt Cirou~ 
T6'1St C.1uGrande OtA ProDt'rtv MIN nlllC 
T]376 Cht>10rlean1 Klndrt'dllnld•nt"I 
nr.:n Ourwocd\Mla,ant1 Pkem10....l0Dmt1nt 
TS778 CreJCitnlO"' CiP1Rul£1t11eManu:mu:!nt 
TI061 l>t'II.Po GWRlritC'te.,u. 
T1W4 Do,,,rCovf!~ts D<wt!r CovellC 
f61150 h"""n,a CXR Ptoocrl Man,J!cfflC'nt LLC 
T'4S7 Globe C\WlnitremllC 
T645l Ciniharnc:rHtM.inot CllO Pt01:111m AdvllOl"S 
T64S9 l.uPalrnH Hef'l!Jl'llGuUCo.l11Pr1:1~rtJH 
Tt150 l~nno• ~1:1uln lnv1rnmen1 , .... l f'Ol'lor.a 1nnn11um Proo"tv Mal\l C'MC'l'II 
TS7!ill l.eono,:t~u,t• lnhnimm Prt1P1111V Ma1'a O!fflOIIII 
1"6480 lmA,r.os Gwrdlanrnuln, 
Tl40l PobbleW,fk Ci.tlC'W:O 
16683 Pre.an Vilt.ADU Pec,riV111AolS, UC 
T<!l66 Rrdfo,d SQ\Ult' S.lcedoP1ooe1Ues 

""' ~erlln.11 Court Ant Homn Grul•r e.o,,111 Ma.U•ll'mMt Co 

"""' lele,;l'lonofl:DJdADll hunlk'lo Ptooerllr's Inc 

""' Visl• Vtrfk Monument Rt>alfllate 
R[MJT nos $1AY[MEtn WfTH PAYM[Nf 

MaltothKlfayable10: 
toror lotk S•fc iw,1 

P,O,lo'll,402UJ 
Atl•n~, CiAlOlM·ZtSJ - llal -10: .. ,-, .. 

Ye, , .. 
To, , .. 
Ve, 
YH 
TH 

"' Te, 
Vu 
Ye, 
Ye, 

Y•• 
YH 
To, , .. , .. , .. 
re, 
v.. 
No 
No , .. 
Y•• 
Ye, 

Y• • ,., 
, .. , .. 

... , .. 
Yo, 
TH 

Yu 
T .. 
Ye, 

Yu , .. 
TH 
Ye, 

T•• , .. 
y,. , .. , .. 
y., 
T .. , .. 
TH , .. 
Ye, 

No 
N o 
Te, 

v.. 
Yu 
y,. 
TU 
Tu , .. 

, .. , .. 
y,. 

'" "' '" , .. , .. 
, .. 
Ye, 
y,. , .. 
y., 

Y•• 
YH 

Yu 
Yc1 

"' , .. , .. 
'" '" "' Ve, 

T•• , .. 
y,. 

Yt'I , .. 
'" 

Ma,eclmlip,,ableto: 

Cor1toocSaloll1n1 
,.o.eo ... ou.n 

Albnla, GA IO)l4•HU 

1101 
Yr< 

Yn , .. , .. 
Tu 

Y•• , .. 
T .. 
re, , .. 
'" T .. ,., 
, .. 
'" T .. 
Tn 
Ye, 

T•• , .. , .. 
y,. , .. , .. , .. 
Ye, 

"' , .. 
"' ,., 

• suo 
mo 5157.50 

"' SlS.00 

" SU.SO 

"' S31.50 

"" S37.SO 

210 SSl.SO 
1066 $266.50 

" $6,00 
26] 56BO 

" Sl6.25 

" SS.75 

"' Sft9.00 

m S1 2.00 

162 S,40.SO 

12 ss.oo 

" S7,2S 

61 sis.n 
50 SU.SO 

l<O SlS.00 

" $10.25 ., SIS.SO 

" 59.~ .. S1&.00 
m $57.00 

20 ~5.00 
61 SlS.15 

140 S3S.OO 

"" SS0.00 , .. , SJ60.00 
6480 Sl,liZ0.00 ~ 

-- 1a1s.,, ... 
6 SI.SO 

1430 SJ57.5o 

"' Sn.oo 

"' S14.50 

"' S38.SO 
150 S37,SO 

210 SS2.SO 
1066 S266.SO 

" 56.00 ,., .sc.s.so ., St6.15 
u SS.75 

"' S69.00 

lll SB2.oo ,., S<l0.SO 

" .... 
" $725 
6 1 SJS.1S 
50 Sil.SO 

1'0 u s.oo 

" SlD.25 ., $IS.SO 

" .... .. $16,00 

m SS7.00 

" S5.00 

61 Sl~.25 
140 S35.00 
200 sso.oo ... , S160.00 

6450 SU.JO.CO V,... 



0111 To: 

~ , .. ,C-3Ch:~ 
P~ B.-:.t 7J167 
~ ·:,,,, rxn22; 

hello! you have an invoice from: 

Cracked Fox 
2815 ecnnuda Dunos Or. Missouri City, TX 77459 
Ro:W~Cr.KAc-:i!=o'l.ccM I 632.35,,:: 4!Jt!!. I _...,wC,a :-\ct:Fo, wn 

0 01, I 1ttvo.ceNc,. I ''""' t0.'1:1/16 l .. , I 1:.a1 :n 
P.nm,,entw./Ood.ta I 11.>bn«Due 

Yl.00 I St.200..00 

ltom Dnc.ription Ounn1l1y Rt1l1 I Amoun1 I 
tn:lBO'.Jng f IT\llke: ,"'IQ. at.lthc dc:1.:n~"ld ~ <.OJ~ . ,es,llUI. 

~ 1 ncs ~-,3 cll\t __ !er &.a m:,.tn oJ Octobo'r 
Pro:~i;"Y ~ Ct:r.rcc-s 
Del;.,gn -s cL~ol~tD::l"l:P'l'Vd.l,,.erat:il~s :~1.,bl,~bt• 

I 0,.,1~ 

' t EQJ\Qtl.1. !.li,t, ,.:.-n a ,..d RL':•;.-v, in~ b» 
c:..»:v .ISS\#:"Ce 6' USXO ~ TN::el: ~ 0 • f:):J'Jt 

~ ed "' ~tnet .,....,, .:clJtcnl 
E::ltflQ. c:ro.lf 1f!,<1Jd"IC. a M O'IACot""l fa, Y"cbf. ~•. 
W.::,om~'IOf\.'h--l CCl'f1l\ t,,1t7'JV 

, l..!~t~c>, Carc::11xn :lenc:e, Phone Co.ll!.,. ~ 
i hvoidn::t 

Ph:-.tocntt,v: e~tlrY.1~ w reCt lClf\ attnls!'w!Q. 
crac:on-, ( l~l f::,, IJClt ... \Iott, Sn.1 V ~'":! cc:ilbtt,;al. 
CU::&0\1":I aN1 Ke'Mv~ ot C.lte-'ie.."I'. fa d:str<! 
~QOGfwSC• l~UlrJIV'O""C'S lv;J .... ,nQcbtr•:1 
~ IOC>ll~:.i.l tun:.)"W't'S,"-r"OO"C'S, ~ [71.'DS 
IDtb!:h:o 
Prt:"IICJ'Q lct~lrq, Sloot V'C.l v.n.:tlv, ,\l'l:J l lol~"°'J 
,ec:U"'...sts&t\drr-,r-: rra.JC:S:.s. 
S.JC "4ru-0,3· F:,;~1,.~·!rt.l;:r.t~:r~u:r.in 
l..':'~ltt. f}',o(,oca"::ru . CICII~ :.>~ UUIO, d 
cc.'er D"Clt.- &c• t.Drrl)'l:,:,01-oar tt~~:'°', "' ~h 

! :sm,~==:11::,,r, y, Jh V.S.C:C'f'f 
Pont .1l'ld W~b rutll.:.-on e,~~<ll <J £t.:s L., '1c.'Crl 
·~:a for astti.:l.'..:n u C"Mer: •• ·:d:>C!, tlicoer:;, 
CD"U1tn &"I.Sstr.' .. 

Governmental 
Financial 

Reporting, LLC 

11/1/2016 

Hobby Arco Management District 
P.O. Box 22167 
Houston. TX 77227-2167 

fur Prof<SSiooal Services Rendered 

0.00 u, 

«:0.00 '""'-CO 
100.00 200.00 

100.00 0.00 

,oo.oo 0.(0 
I . 

1COOO I 100,('.,,'.) j 

1(000 100.CO 

100.00 

100.00 100.eol 

Total 51.200.00 

I S25 Lukc\'illc Drive. Suite 121 
Kingwood. TX 77339 

(28 1) 348-9151 
FAX (281) 348-9199 

i 

Bookka.'Pinli! scnices proyjdcd during Oc1obcr 2016 for 1hc month of 
September 2016 

850.00 

Postage and Dcli\·erics 

Milc,igc 

0.00 

41.40 

S891.40 "' 

Equi-Tax lnc. 
Sui1clOO 
17111 Rol liogendc:Ori\'e 
Houston Tcus 77090 
28 1-144-4866 

811.LTO 

HCIO No. 9 / Hobby Arc:, 
<lo Dniccwcll &: Giuliani 
71 1 LDui,iono SI, Ste 2300 
Housu,n TX n002·2770 

llESCRIPJ10N 

Roll Mamtgcmcnt 
MonlhJy fee per Contmct for Assessment Collea.ion 

e 
011 ,UII 
U.STIND 
DISUICT ~-~-

--En0-Dls""1 P.O. Ben 2300H 
Moi.ao,. TX 7722:3-000, 
71M2a-9i16 ---

INVOICE 
1"U. to 
H"1W'°"'Y 
Hobl:J,Are.aM.afla9tmont 

"""" P.0.BmZU67 
~ Tcus 771Z7·21Q 

.. ,. .A:TMrt 

10.0""2D115 --~~~~tc£ow. 
up~~IOln:6:aton.,e,por1.ng. 
M:l~abillfffllr'I.Sl! .. Al:l,at1Ct l3 

fOl'IQ,'2Dtg ~-~h*'llwis4a.Wwm'DOl«:lion.lollcw-
14)~ts,~1ii~,f"POl'Vl9. 
ww...,~ Sttn~, 

ICW111'2016 --Cor.st:ut:'IIYUlt:a. ..... c:d'.ec:ton.lcl.cw-
'4t wtMs. gra~ 11:Mnttccon. repon:na. 
and"1l"*abWttment Sitas,l,b,atect 4 

1CW1712016 ~-Const~ wwea...t,-~ ~ -
'°~-~!1:i~NpOrtng. 
and~~ SlleSAbactt 

1G.'2S'2016 --~Yllill.w»tS~. klllow-
1,Qri$1U.~lden:dcaton,rr.,ortllg, 
MCI grcf.t amll!ffltl'IL 51\nAbt:td: 13 

CTY 

ICIQll&..."'--0.4' 8AUHCEDUE 

Invoice 
DATE IHVOICEI 

11/112016 50?40 

AM0UHT 

Total 

- ·= DATE 10/31/2011 
DUEOATE 1100'2010 

TtAMSNIC3" 

.,, 
ll>JlO 

SO.DO 

ll>JlO 

.,,., 

&100 

300.00 -2,125.71 

S2,42S.7l I...._ 

Page I of I 

A,l'!)l.u,I ...... 
3'0.1'1 

l2CI.DO 

""'"' 
6'0.00 

$2,560.00 

https:/lcoMCCt intuit.comlponoUmodulc/pdllloc/1cmpl,ic/printfrwrn:.html 111412016 



ccra1 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Jeny l<111ry filowTy@hhdlp.com] 
Tuesday, Cldcber 25, 2016 3:46 PM 
ccra;g 

Cc; 
Subject 

Susan Hill 
fwd: 2017 Membership Dues Invoice 

Cindy. please proc..-ss rur payment al the November 10 board meeting. 

Thank you. 
Jmylo\\~· 

Begin forwnrded message: 

From: "Susan Asimakis" <Member.cngngcmcn11'ii.hou.c:1nn.org> 
Dot<: October 25, 2016 nl 3:35:17 PM CDT 
To: jlowrvllJ,Judistrjctorc 
Subjttt: 2017 l\tcmbcnbip Dues Invoice: 
Reply-To: Membcr.cng.o.gcmcnt'll'houS1nn.or5 

e:s:.:,\-t!:. j _ .., . . 

PARTNERSHIP. 

Thilllk you for being 3 m&mber cf the Gruter Houston Parinership. In early November. your 2017 
membership dues Invoice will tc malled to the person at the address listed beJow. PJease c:>nfJm 
this ir.form.ation is corrocL 

Contact Jerry Lowry 
Member Company I D : :303388 
2017 U.embersh p Due, SS,000 00 
Payment ScMdule: Annualty 
Company Hobby Area Manaaemen: O.slrlct 
Bi!Hng AdCt~$ P.O. Bo:11 22167 
City: Houston 
State TX 
Zip Code: 1n21 

Or. renew now aM pa)' your invoice onlrne ClicK ~ . Please no:e: we cannot accept online 
payments of s10.ooo or more. 

1r you have any questions or dlanges to your btlling rnformation. please contact us by Friday, 
Oel.:,ber 28, ,n mcmb.'.!r c09a9cment@hoµs1on .org, or c:l!I 713.-8-'4--3678, 

Invoice Number: 10 
Date: 10/31/2016 

Bill To: 

Mario N. Ramirez 
8111 Colgate St. 

Houston, Tx. 77061 
281-685-2810 

Invoice 
October -2016 

Ship To: 
Hobby Arca Management District 
P0Box 22 167 

Hobby Area Management District 
PO Box 22167 

Houston, Tx. 77221 Houston, Tx. 77221 

Description: Business Ambassador Contract 
Monthly duties required as Business Ambassador along with other duties as 
assigned. Mileage for October 2016 = $126.50 

September billing 2016- 80 hours = S1600.00 Total = S1726.50 

Amount Paid: 0.00 
Amount Due: S t 726,50 

0-30 da s 31-60da s 6 1-90 da s 

Shipping: 
Sub Total: 
Total: SI 726.50 i.-

>90 da s Total 
S l,726.50 

lm·oicc: Jerry Lowry 

Malone Sttategie's LLC 
2901 Ebtnmel Lane 
Apl39 
Houston TX 77098 

INVOICE 

Hobby Arca Mani,gement District 
Jeny Lowry 

lnvokal: 

9610 Long Point Road. Sui!e 150 
Houston TX 77055 

Tnk I TUN EAlry NotN 

(Kcttr,"Fesl2017)1st~Dmtnl 

[HAMOSta:eoflhoOUiricalunc:fteon)1atlnsbl'ment 

NetlO 

I 

P"gc I of l 

0000002 

<>=oarii,2016 

S7SO.IXI 

Ralit{S) I Houn I Una Tobi ISJ 

!,00.ID I 500.00 
250.00 I 2$0.00 

Sub1otal: 750.l)O 

Total: 710.l)O 

"1ncultPaid: 0.<10 

Ballra 0.CUSDI: 17$0.00 

huos://m1.-.rmalon,:.frcshbooks.com/showlovoicc?im•oiccid.,..--t66608S& nil domain cook... 10/26/2016 

PERDUE, BRANDON, FIELDER, COLLINS & MOTT LLP 
Attornoys at Law 
1235 North Loop West, Suit& 600 
Houston, Teua 7700B 

Bill to: 

H:arris County 10 Al {Hcbi;y Are:1 M.i~gemeru Oi1 
r:Jo Equt-Ta.ic. Inc 
PO Box 73t09 
Holls'.on, TX 77273 

~S.MCHNl'Cl.,., 1'10.~d~WM.~t.d.ai'd~ 
Sfi'll;!itel 

......... 
11, ll&UJ 

SUl84,"2 



Ecenw Houston 
sns Klrb'I Dtlw:. .SUik M s 
~ Taos 7700S 
7JUlU4IJ 

Bill To: 
Jerry Lowry 
HAMO 
PO Box 22167 
Houston 77227-2167 

DfSOlll'TION 

Conttlbu11on ta the e,oadw~ Redevelopment Pn:,ject 

ldenlity M.arkers on 8r0.i1dw.1y 

Plt,s.e .w?Nnll: ~' 10: 

Scenic: Houston 

S61S Kirby DtM', Sulle 64S 

Hou~on. TCUl noos 
A.tt•ntion: Bboc:a ones• 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
IS25 Ulol<><k Rood 
Wll'll'-'if.AL~tturity.com 
711-979-Dal 

li:i.!i::.A.L nt DI'S L;,. d Cll9'2 
~ ~!l'!.IITV 

BIii To 
I lobby ,-\rc.:i ~1:u111gcmcn1 Oi!ilrict 
9610 umg PoinL Ste. I SO 
Houston. TX 77055 

Camara LocaUon 

\Val·Mart/G:unc Stop 
100 12 Almeda GC1l03. 
I louston. Texas 

0ttObtT .20, 2016 

.,..,..., 
$101,000.00 

SlOU00.00 

Invoice 

Date Invoke# 
1011/2016 317S7 

I Terms 

I Net JO 

Doacrfption Amount 

Mobile Sccuri1y Unil • Sol.1r HO/IP Four (4) Camera System v.ith Ad\':inccd 2.000.00 
Ana.l)tics 

-t \\'cd:s Video Stor.tge 

Discount -500.00 

Moniloring Period from 10/01/2016 lhmugh !0131/2016 

Monitoring ln\'Oiccs 4J'C billed c,·cl)· month for the cnti~ month. 

This lm·oicc is billed in a.d\-.u,cc fo, the month. 

Sain Tu (1.25%) SO 00 

Thank you for 3Uowing us lo c:.un your business. 
Total Sl.500.00 ,_ 

Ect!Jc,ic, Houston 
S6UIC1lby~. SUI~ 6f5 
Houm,,r. Tum T100S 
7JUD<U81 

BIii To: 
Jerry Lowry 
HAMO 
PO Box 22167 
Houston 7n27-2167 

DfSalP110H 

Remove .tnd dts:posc eldstins Glenbrook Valley sign, 1ndud1ng wall. found,oon and 
bollards 
~umlsh and IMtall pl.anting around Glen brook VaUcyslgn lrntt'ad of planting .and 
ori$1:lnal contr.ict 

Furnish ind Install Glenbroo\ VaUpY slen. lndudina foundat ion :and btkk adding 

Furnish and irutall landsc..pe rd1e. including foundation and brid: caddin& 

Plcut-Jubmit~ymml to: 

Scenic Hounon 

S6151UrtJv0ftw,.Suitc64S 

How:ton, T~ 7700S 

A:ttntion: lb4iu0nrga 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 Bl,lock Rood 
www.SEALStturity.com 
113.q,79,.lJII 

i:i.i:.A.L TX DI'S u,. • C l59'2 
~ ~l!\'JTI( 

HOY'M'lbc,2, 2016 

... """" 
$3,289.00 

S201..2S 

$19,606.ZS 

S2S,40350 

.SU..500.00 

Invoice 

Date Invoice # 
1011/2016 3175& 

BIii To Camera Location 
llobb}· Arc.1 Man.agrmcnt Districc 
9610 tong PoinL S1e. ISO 
Hous1on, TX 77055 

DescrfpUon 

fad: Jn The Box 
8081 Airpon 
I louslon. T cxu 

Mobile Sccw-ity Unit · 1080 P IID Camc:r.i ·r1u1; and Pby"' Electric S)"$t1.'1Tl 
-i Ptz Cameras 
-I Wttks V-Kfco S!Oragc 

Discount 

Moni10ring Period from I 0/01/2016 lhrough 10:3 1/2016 

Monitoring Invoices 31'e billed .11:1 the beginning of c\'crymonlh forlhe entire 
month. 

The Invoice is billed in lld,·.rnce for the month. 

:-.OTE: A J, a rorm:nlmcc frc "ill bc~-aJon11ll J'O)'ffl('NJm::Mkby c:ndit C!N. 

r Terms 

I Nct30 

Amount 

1.500.00 

-300.00 

SaSn Tu (US-.r.) so oo 

Total Sl..200.00 ._ 



SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
I S2S Blalock Rood 

Bill To 

Houston. TX 77010-7311 
.,,.,...SEALSttarll)".COffl 
71J-Qi1J.2lU 
TXO l"SLlc.tC1)9-I:? 

Hobby Ara MruiJscmcnl District 
9610 Long Poin~ SIC. 150 
Houston. TX 77055 

Descriplloa 
Thm: Comml»ioncd omcc.rs with Vehicles and Occasiona.1 K·9 

Patrol Period 10/0312016 through 10/09/2016 

Pauots ArC billed C\"Cf)' Mond3Y fot the hours p31rollcd dte wed: 
pmxdina the lbo,·c in\'oicc date. 

This invoic.: is Monday throui;h Sund3y lndush·c. 

Thank you for allowing as 10 earn your bwln..._ 

Houn 

142 

Total 

Invoice 
°'" 

10110/2016 

Ratti Hoar 

27.00 

Sain Tt, (Lll%1 

31113 

"''"' 
Sc1JO 

Amoonc 

).8}4.00 

SO.OD 

SJ,Al,1.00 

Invoice 

I 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 81, lock ROJd 
www.SEALStcurity.com I Dato l Invoice # -i 

71)..c>79-!JII 
TXOPSLic.•C.:U9-&2 

BIii To 
lloob) Arc,1; ~1:in:.a~tmcnt Oisuin 
9610 Long Poin~ Ste. 150 
HOUS1011. TX 77055 

DescrlpUon 

Camera LocatJon 

BcscWcsccm 
1771 Airport Blvd 
Houston. Tens 77061 

Mobilt Security Unit .. 1080 PHO Camera ·v1ug:Md Plrly- Ekctric Syitan 
-4 Ptz c.m=s 
-4 Wctls Video S1or.1gc 

Discount 

Locotion: Bcsl Western Hobby 

Monitoring Period fmm 10/12120161hrough 11 /1112016 

Monitoring ln,·oiec:s an: billed m the beginning o( cnry month fo, the entin: 
month. 

The ln\·oicc is billed fn ad\'3.nc:c for the month. 

1011212016 I 31841 

I Tenns 

I Nct30 

Amount 

I.S00.00 

-300.00 

SalnTull..U'JC.) sooo 

Total Sl.200.00 ..-.. 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 Blalock Rood 
Houston. TX 77010 
""'·w.SEALStcurity.cona 
71).IJW.lllll 
TX ors Lie.. CIS~:? 

r 

BIii To Camera Loution 
I lobby At0 ~l~i:cmcn1 District 
9610 Loni: Point. Ste. ISO 
llouston. TX 77055 

Shell Sbtion 
8920 Dcllfon s,. 
HoU5ton. T cx.u 

Invoice 

Date Invoice# I 
10/1112016 I 31142 

[ Terms 

I Nd30 

DescrlpUon Amount 
~fobile Security Unit· 1080 P HD Camcr:a "Plus :ind Pl.:ay"' EIC"Ctric System 

-4 Pa.Cameras: 
-4 Weeks Video Storage 

Discount 

Location: She ll Stotion 8920 Bcnron S1. H nusion Tens 

Moniloring Period from 10/1 112016 throut:h 11/12/2016 

Moniloring lnvoicc:5 IN: billed :it the bc:J!.innirig of C\'Cf)' moc\lh (or the cntin:: 
monlh. 

The (nvotCC is billed in ldv:mcc for lhc month. 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 BIJ.lock ROJd 

DIii To 

Houston. TX 7708~73 18 
www.SEALS«:ortty.eom 
71J..979-2JD 
TXOPSL~tCI$~! 

I lobby Ara ~ fami;cmcnl Diwiet 
9610 Long Poinl. S1c. ISO 
Houston. TX 77055 

Descrip1ioo 

Three Commissionrd Officers with Vehicles :ind Occ:asional K·9 

l'otrol Period IOJI0/2016 through 10/16/2016 

P3uol.s :arc billed e\·cry Mond.1.y for the hours patrolled 1hc week 
prcccdin.: 1hc above invoice date. 

This invoice is Mond3y through Sund.Jy inclusi\·c. 

!\0Tt: ;\J%tM\...._..fn • ll k c. .. ,p,l•.U,.,•nll-.lf b)•trt4.llnl"L 

Thank you for a llowing us lo cam your business. 

Hoan 

141 

Total 

1.500.00 

-300.00 

Sa1nTu (US%l sor.o 

Total S 1.200.00 ;... 

Invoice 
I Ible -i IR\'OiC'C /# I 

10'1712016 31872 

~dJI 

Ralc/lloar Amouat 

27.00 3.838.00 

SO.DO 

SJ.888.00 "'--



Invoice 

Date Invoice t 
10120/2016 3 1911 

713-979-?JSS 
TX [>I'S l.ic. • CI S9-1:? 

BIii To Camera Location 
I lobby ,\T"Q M:in:i~cmcnt District 
9610 Wng Poinl. S1c:. 1 SO 
llouston. TX 170S5 

Descr1pUon 

GulfG:is Station 
Airport I Monroe 
Houston. Tc..x:as 

Mobile Security Unit - So131' HOl[p Four (4) C:1111¢1.1 System with t\d\':tnccd 
Ana1)1ics 

.o4 Weeks Video Stor.1se 

Discount 

Moni1oring Period from 10/20120 16 liuough 11119/2016 

Monitorini; ln\'oic:es U"C billed C\'CI)' monlh for lkc enlirc month. 

This Invoice is billed in :idvanc.c for the momh. 

Thank )'OU for 3.llowing us to cam )'OUr business. 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
I 525 Blalock Rood 

BIii To 

Houston, TX 77080-73 I 8 
1''WW'.S£ALStturiE)Uom 

713•979-!388 
TX DPS Lie. t CI ~~~ 

Hobb}' Are.1 MMngemcnt Distric1 
9610 Lons Point. S1c. ISO 
HouS!on, TX 770SS 

Dcscriplioa 

Three Commissioned Officers with Vehicles :ind O~ional K·9 

Po1rol Period 10/24/2016 lhn,ugh 10/3012016 

P..uruls nn: billed t'VCt)' Monday for the hours p.Urollcd the week 
preced ing lhe nbovc invoice dale. 

This invoice is Monday through Sunday indush•c. 

Tbaok you ror allowing us lo earn your business. 

Hours 

14-1 

Total 

I Tenns 

I Net JO 

Amount 

:?.000.00 

-S00.00 

'°"' 
Total Sl.500.00 ,-. 

Invoice 
ln\'oiccF' 

10131'2016 31989 

~,,JO 
R2tt/Hour Amount 

27.00 3,888.00 

5alaTntl.lSV.) S0.00 

SJ,888.no .__ 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
I 525 81.,lock Rood 

Bill To 

Houston. TX 77080-73 18 
1''1\'W.SEALSttarlry.~om 
713-910-UXI 
TX DJ'S Lie. IICUCJ.42 

ffobby Arra M3.n:i,ccmcnt District 
9610 LDng Poinl, Sic. ISO 
HouS1on, TX 77055 

Dacriptioa 

Three: Commissionctl Officcl"$ with Vehicles and Ott:uional K·9 

P:luol Period 10/ 1712016 lhruugh IOl'...112016 

P3trols :ire bi1Jcd C\'ct)' Monib}· for the hours p.1trnllcd the week 
pl't'Ceding the aho\•c invoice dtnc. 

This in\'oicc is Moncby through Sund.::ly inelusin. 

Thank you for ollowing us 10 c:im your business. 

71)-979,.2318 
TX OPS Lie. f CIS9"12 

Houn 

14-1 

Total 

Invoice 
D:ltc Jn,•nice # 

10/2412016 J193S 

Trra~ 

X rt~ 

natc/llour Amoaa1 

27.00 3,888.00 

Saln T1111.l!1%) S0.00 

SJ,888.00 ..,_ 

Invoice 

Date Invoice# 
11/1/2016 32066 

Camera Location 
Hobby Arc. M:u1:1gcmcn1 District 
9610 LDng Poin1, St<. ISO 
IIOl!Slon, TX 770SS 

Description 

Jllck In The Bo~ 
8081 Airpon 
Houston. Tc.us 

Mobile Security Unit- 1080 P HD C~cr.i · r1u1;: ::md Pby* Electri c S~cm 
-1 Plz C:uncms 
-I Wccl.:s Video Storage 

Discount 

Monitoring Period from f 1/1/2016 through 11/31/20 16 

MoniLorins l1woiccs arc billed ntlhc bC".; inning orc\·c:ry munlh for the cntin: 
fflOl'llh. 

The ln\'oicc is billed in ad, •ancc (or the month. 

I Tenns 

I Nct3U 

Amount 

1.S00.00 

-300.00 

Sain Tax Cl.25%) 

Total Sl.200.00 "'-



SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
I S25 Bblock Ro..t 
Houston, TX 77080 
wu,v.SEALS«urity.com 

711-979-:?JIS 
TXD1'S Llc, ;' CIS9-S? 

Invoice 

I Dato I Invoice# 

11/1/2016 j 3207S 

BIii To Camera LocaUon 
Hobby Arca M:inagcmc:nt District 
9610 Long Point. Ste. 150 
Houston. TX 770Sl 

DescrlpUon 

Wa(.~fort/G:unc S1op 
10012 Almeda Gcno.i 
Houston. Texas 

Mobile Security Unit· Sobr UD/IP Four (4) C.uncra System wilh Advanced 
An31}1iCS 

4 Weeks Video Stor.agc 

Discount 

Monitoring Period from I l/01/2016 through 11/30/2016 

Monitoring Invoices :uc billed every monlh for the entire monlh. 

This Invoice i~ billed in :idvancc for the month. 

I Tanna 

I Nct30 

Amount 

l,000.00 

-500.00 

Sale• Tu IL25%) .... 
Th.3nk you for 11.llowing us to c.im your business. 

Total Sl.500.00 .__ 

SMC Lcglob, U.C 
13107 James Ln. 
S..ttO<d. TX n,n us 
sonla@>smdog!sllcswol'<s.can 
smdogisticsworks.com 

INVOICE 
BILL TO 

Hobby Area M.lnagemer:t 
Distric:t 
PO Box22167 

Houston, TX n2v 

Stnootl.lghtliwvoy 
Survey ol b4.rned OU1 street lights 

October 2016 

OT" 

10 

BAU.NCEDUE 

slnc 
Logistics 

INVOICE I 1219 
DATE 11 /0312016 

DUE DAlE 1111812016 

R.\lc 

35.00 

0.00 

350.oo 

0.00 

$350.00 ,_, 

SMCl.oglstlca,UC 
13107 Jam.es Ln. 
Sta!'l'ord. TX n1,n us 
sonla@S1Tdoglstkswa1<s.eom 

sm~com 

INVOICE 
BIU. TO 
Hobby Alea M4nagemenl 
District 
PO Bo>c 22167 
How.Jon, TX 77227 

ACnVJTY 

Hol>by~-
Litter a.ba1ement of right-ol-way for Hobbf Ate.a M.lnagement 
Olma 
Odober2016 U:ter Abatement Services 

;)IV 

BALANCE DUE 

~ Tolunay-Wong 
')~Engineers, Inc. 

UJ710S. s.tmtto..\l.Oll "...,w. Sl,:,. JtlO 

~ DT70J1 
711, JlJ.l'OGA 

PROJECT NO, 111.11.321 jllANAGER I.Bcnjtmln Bynum 

I DATE 

07/31'2016 

sine 
Logistics 

WVOICE• 1218 
DATE 11/03/2016 

DUE DATE 11118/2016 

~,e 
9,166.67 

0.00 

9,166.67 

0.00 

$9,166.67 

INVOICE NO. I 
16--7095 

lm<MS INET ,. I 
ITEM QTY I UH1TDESC I RATE I A.IIOIJNT I 

Report Ho.001 - July 07, 201& 

Conswction ~.eriala Toc:hnitwt 4 .C:O hOln 44.00 ms.DO 
V~ldeCha~ t .CO day '5.00 55.00 
Ccm:,,Haive Strength (Ccnaet• C)·II) 4 0:, each 17.00 .. oo 

Repor1 No,002 • July 11, 2D1S 
Cooutrudion M.l~.,.:s Ted'lnloan 5,0hou,s ... 00 242.00 
VeNd<Cha,ve 100 doy 5500 "500 
~UM! Snt'l!th(Ccnal!te Cy!s) ,oo exh 17.00 ... 00 

Report No.003 - Juty 11, 2018 
Conr.n.ctionM.1:.itnab T~ 4_00 h(ua 4AOO 17000 
VehideCN,go UlOday "500 55.00 ~s-cec ...... c,,,, 4.00 Hd'I 17.00 M.00 

Report No.004-July 15, 2011 

Consiruaion M1".eN!S T ecnnia,n 1.00~'5 4400 30800 
VehideChatpe 

1.00~y .. oo 55.00 
~ s,,..,,.. (Concma C,,,) 4_00 e~ch 17,(X) M.00 

Repof'I No.005 - July 18, 2016 
ConiiM:tion M:i'.Cri41s T ect1;UQDn 4,00 hOuts 44,00 176.00 
VOhideCN,ge U)Odsy '5.00 '5.00 
~Strtng!h(Ccnc:relt- Cyb) 4 00 eKh 17.00 60.00 

Report No,006 • July 20, 201S 
ConltrUC:bonMrfflllsTechnlcian 4.00hDIQ 44.00 176.00 
VehideChar;e 1.0JIUy '5.00 5500 
~Nit Stnmg1ti (Concrete Cyb} 4.00e.ach 17.00 M.00 

Report Ho.007 - July 22, 2016 

ConstM:tion Ma:elieb T ed'lnlc:ian 7.50 hOUrJ '4.00 330,00 
VehideCha,;e 1.00 d.liy •~co '5.00 
Compmslve Sll'eflg"Jt (Ccncnte C)ts) 4.00 ud'I 17.00 .. 00 



~Tolunay-Wong 
'IWEngineers, Inc. 

:cno .._ s, ... ,,_,""' ..,.,., w. s.-.. ,oo 

·-·"'""" 11J.1>1-~· 

r,,;,nl<)'OO/orro,,,D~' 

DATE 

07/3112016 

INVOICE NO. 

16-7095 

Total s2,44S.ool 

A la/~ <:t'""Vf' of I 5¾pOrmonl'l MIi Ile-·~ ll'lo O>'l'O!l'111USIY,,,e.".I" not mac., ";/NI, JO day., of"""<!. ...... "'"'""""' 

~Tolunay-Wong 
'f WEngineers, Inc. 

'""''-""'""'""'""'""w,,,._,.., 
'"'"""""'"'"" 11,.,,,_,os, 

Hotltly An!a Del!>d i::o Oarl\ Coridce -~ Inc. 
Anthony Allende< 
tale<>w@Ol>dlp(:(Jm 
1low,y@tihd!p00m 

PROJECT HO. 1l.11,321 

Rtport No.OD! • August 114, 2016 
C,,,,.t,uc:fon Ma'.e<\als Tocllllician 
Veh;cle Cha,g& 

C~Wtl S,n,nglh (Concrw> Cyts) 

~port No.008A .AugUlt 05, 2016 
__ ,,, 
Vei'l.<:lect,a.,ge 

RlpOrt No.009 - August 08, 2016 
~Matena<STl!Cho.Qa:, 
V&hicle Cha,ge 
C~Stre<lglh(Ccru:rateC)-Ts) 

RepcrtNo.009A. August 09, 2016 
$.ffllple Pic:I< Up 

VotticleCria,ge 

Thanl<yooforyo<If-M' 

MANAGER Benjamin Bynum 

OATIS 

0813112016 

!NVOICENO. 

16-6113 

PROJECT OESCR!PT!ON 

A~• lllln1g,omont Dislrict. Broad'W1y St. 
...to.ca Im ..,i,, 

an ! UNlTDESC ! RATE j AIIOUtlT 

•oo- «oo rn,;.oo 
1.00 ~ ,soo ssoo 
4 00 ea<n 17.00 MOO 

rn- «oo 11000 
OSO day ssoo 27.W 

4.00 tw,;rs «oo ,rooo 
100 day ,soo 55.00 
400 eodl 17.00 MOO 

,oo- «oo 11000 
O&l day ssoo 27.SO 

Total w,.ooj 

A /,)Y, d>atpO of 1.5" p,,t monll, will be add<>d;, the QWl!f Illa/ pa;ment io POI ml/de mm>n 3D d"fJ d /ho t!Ne ofm~ 



HAWES HI LLCALDERON 
LLP 

P.O. Box 22167 
Houston TX 77227-2167 

.•• , 
·~~ . · .. 

• # ..... ,. . 

MD-Hobby Area Management District 
(HCID#9} 
P.O. Box 22167 
Houston, TX 77227 

L_ 

Invoice 

Invoice#: 43015501 

Date: 11/2/2016 

Professional consulting, admiistration and project management fee, October 2016 
In-house postage, photocopies, binding, etc., October 2016 

Terms: C.O.D. 

Cell phone, Mario Ramirez, 10/20-11/19/2016 
Cell phone, G. Larson, 10/20-11/19/2016, 25% of shared costs 
Reimbursable mileage, parking, tolls, related expenses, as follows: 

J . Lowry, October 2016 
G. Larson, September 2016 
L. Clayton, October 2016 

Owed As Of: 11/2/2016 

Sales Tax: 

Total Amount: 

Amount Applied: 

Balance Due: 

$3,444.24 
$214.92 
$25.92 

$0.00 

$28,907.53 

$0.00 

$28,907.53 

$28,907.53 



HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
In-house Postage, Photocopies, Binding, etc. 

Postage Amount 

10/17/2016 $ 2.83 

Total $ 2.83 

Photocopies @ $0.15 
Date 

10/6/2016 
10/10/2016 
10/14/2016 

Pages Amount 

Total 

112 $ 16.80 
4340 $ 651.00 

37 $ 5.55 

$ 656.55 

Color Photocopies @ $0.50 

10/4/2016 38 $ 19.00 

Total 

Binding sets @ $1.00 
Date Sets 

10/10/2016 

Total 

Total, all Items 
Postage 

Photocopies 

Color Photocopies 
Binding sets 

$ 19.00 

Amount 

28 $ 28.00 

$ 28.00 

$ 2.83 
$ 656.55 
$ 19.00 
$ 28.00 
$ 706.38 



verizon1 
Invoice Number Account Number Date Due Page 
97739568191 919181047-00001 11/14/16 26 of 30 

Summary for Mario Ramirez: 832-727-0511 

Your Plan 

Nationwide Business Talk 450 
$44.99 monthly charge 
450 monthly allowance minutes 
$.25 per minute after allowance 

Friends & Family 

Data Package/2GB 
$30.00 monthly charge 
2 monthly gigabyte allowance 
$10.00 per GB after allowance 

Beginning on 07/06/15: 
08% Access Discount 

Beginning on 07/06/15: 
8% - Feature Discount 

M2M National Unlimited 
Unlimited monthly Mobile to Mobile 

UNL Night & Weekend Min 
Unlimited monthly OFFPEAK 

Have more questions about your charges? 
Get details for usage charges at 
www .V"ZW.com/mybusinessaccount 

Monthly Charges 
Nationwide Business Talk 450 
08% Access Discount 
Data Package/2GB 
8% - Feature Discount 
Total Equipment Coverage - Asurlon 

Usage and Purchase Charges 
Voice Allowance 
Shared 

Mobile to Mobile 
Total Voice 

Data 

I 

minutes 450 
(shared) 

minutes unlimited 

Gigabyte Usage gigabytes! 2.000 
Total Data 

Total Usage and Purchase Charges 

Surcharges 
Fed Universal Service Charge 
Regulatory Charge 
Administrative Charge 
TX Franchise Surchg 
Texas Universal Service 

Taxes, Governmental Surcharges and Fees 
TX State 911 Fee 
TX Equalization Surcharge 
TX State Sales Tax 

Total Current Charges for 832-7'27-0511 

10/20 - 11/19 
10/20 - 11/19 
10/20-11/19 
10/20 - 11/19 
10/20 - 11/19 

Used Billable 
24 --
18 --

.045 

44.99 
-3.60 

30.00 
-2.40 
9.00 

$77.99 

Cost 
--

--
$.00 

$.00 

$.00 

1.89 
.21 

1.23 
.24 

1.12 

$4.69 

.50 

.06 
4.72 

$5.28 

$87.96 



verizon1 
Invoice Number Account Number Date Due Page 

I 
9773956819 919181047-00001 11/14/16 21 of30 

Summary for Gretchen Larson: 832-392-2546 

Your Plan 

Nationwide Email & Data 450 
$84.99 monthly charge 
450 monthly allowance minutes 
$.25 per minute after allowance 

Friends & Family 

M2M National Unlimited 
Unlimited Mobile to Mobile 

UNL Night & Weekend Min 
Unlimited OFFPEAK 

Data MHS CRP Email/4GB 
$20.00 monthly charge 
4 monthly gigabyte allowance 
$10.00 per GB after allowance 

Beginning on 01/07/09: 
08% Access Discount 

Have more questions about your charges? 
Get details for usage charges at 
www.V'M.com/mybusinessaccount 

Monthly Charges 
Nationwide Email & Data 450 
08% Access Discount 
Data MHS CAP Email/4GB 
Total Equipment Coverage -Asurion 

Usage and Purchase Charges 
Voice Allowance 
Shared 

Mobile to Mobile 
Night/Weekend 
Total Voice 

Messaging 
Text- Sent 
Text- Rcv'd 
Picture & Video - Sent 
Picture & Video - Rcv'd 
Total Messaging 

Data 

I 

! 

' 

minutes 450 
(shared) 

minutes unlimited 
minutes unlimited 

messages -
messages -
messages --
messages -

Gigabyte Usage gigabytes ! 4.000 
Total Data 

Total Usage and Purchase Charges 

Surcharges 
Fed Universal Service Charge 
Regulatory Charge 
Administrative Charge 
TX Franchise Surchg 
Texas Universal Service 

Taxes, Governmental Surcharges and Fees 
TX State 911 Fee 
TX Equalization Surcharge 
TX State Sales Tax 
Houston City Sales Tax 
Houston Mta Tax 

10/20 - 11/19 
10/20 -11/19 
10/20 - 11/19 
10/20 - 11/19 

Used BIiiabie 
997 --

175 -
119 -

87 87 
175 175 
42 42 
68 68 

1.615 

84.99 
-6.80 

20.00 
9.00 

$107.19 

Cost 

--

--
--

$.00 

17.40 
35.00 
10.50 

17.00 
$79.90 

$.00 

$79.90 

1.89 
.21 

1.23 
.24 

3.10 
$6.67 

.50 

.06 
11.66 
1.87 
.59 

$14.68 

Total Current Charges for 832-392-2546 a 



"""' Per10dEndng SeNlce/vea 

Jerry Lowry October 2016 Hobby Area MD 
Business Mileage other Exponses12) Bill to Dist. 

Date Destination Purpose Miles Driven Item Amount (YIN) 
1-0ct District Monthly Cellular Service Cellular $ 150.00 y 

1-0ct Several locations in District Gleanbrook Valley Home Tour 73 y 
3-0ct 8181 Airport and tour of Monroe HCFCD To tour the easement area for obtaining bid for maintenance 70 y 
5-0ct 8181 Airport, 10900 Kingspolnt Broadway enhancement project meeting, mtlng w/Gabby Dirden 75 Food/Supplles $ 43.04 y 
6-0ct 1525 Lakeville Rd, 8181 Airport Meeting W/Clndy C regarding budget; Livable Centers Workshop 72 y 
8-0ct Amegy Bank Kingwood Make District's VISA payment 4 y 
10-0ct 8181 Airport Catch up meeltng with Danny Perkins 67 food $ 38.00 y 
11-0ct 8181 Airport Meeting Joshua Chapin & Tony Allender re: broadway and budget 67 y 
13-0ct 4300 Blssonnett; 8181 Airport Blvd Tagging trees wlscenlc houston; HAMD board meeting 79 banquet $ 645.00 y 
18-0ct 10525 Gulf Freeway; 8181 Airport Coples/supplies; Apartment PIP; Board Meeting 73 banquet $1,336.87 y 
19-0ct 8181 Airport Committee Meetings 67 banquet $ 686.75 y 
20-0ct 8181 Airport, and tour of area Meeting w/Joshua Chapin, KHOU-Broadway Enhancement project 73 y 
25-0ct 8181 Airport Meeting with Danny Perkins and Clark Lord 67 food $ 17.00 y 
26-0ct 8800 Paul Koonce and 8181 Airport HobbyFest Meeting 71 y 
27-0ct 3031 FM 1960; 10755 North Freeway Meetings with Chris LaBode & Amber Ambrose respectively 40 V 
31-0ct 11623 Southwest Frwy Meeting with Roan Matthews 79 V 

1 977 $2,916.66 
I certify that the above expenses were Incurred and paid by me: 

~~~ Business MIies (1)@ 
10/31/2016 

0.54 S 527.58 
other Expenses (2) • Al!aeh 8\1~ of pu-chase S1gnntur<1 o,~ Expenses b!lled to District (Y) $2,916.66 

Expenses not bJ!fed to District ( $ 

Amount BIiied to District $3,444.24 ,.,,,,,.,., 
Dale Total Reimbursement S 3,444.24 



( Name & Address 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

8121 BROADWAY 
SUITE 135 
HOUSTON 77061 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

10118/2016 

DATE llEi:t:Rl:NCE 

10/13/2016 953637 "BANQUETS 
10/13/2016 953638 "BANQUETS 
10/18/2016 957188 vs "3701 

.. BALANCE .. 

.,ccou:-.1 ~CJ. 

C,\RO Mli),lDmt ~,\).IE 

4) 
DOUBLETREE 

"" 0111,.ro,.. 
HOUSTOZ.: nou,y AtRrORT 

8181 Airport Blvd.• Houston, TX 77061 
!'hone (713) 645-3000 • Fa, (713) 645-2251 

For reservations across the nation 
www.doubletrec.com or 1-800-122-TREE 

Room H 2607 

DESCRIPTION 

Arrival Date "418/2016 12:00 AM 
Departure Date 

AdulUChild 
Room Rate 

Rate Plan: 
HH# 
AL: 
Car. 

OATI::Ol'"OIARGli 

AUTIIOIU7.ATION 

AMOUNT 

5115.00 
$530.00 

(5645.00) 
SO.DO 

FOl.10 :--0 ICHF.CK t-O 

293520 B 

I INITIAL 

U HILTON 
n.HHONORS 

\\\_ 
, .. ;:.1tK)~r 
. :;::,.~~·. 

CONRAD 

·® 
Hilton 

., 
,j(amptm., 

l~\'T,\nl.lSIIMl:~~0.& I.OC,\110:": l:lol' .111~>111<1:-.-r ·""'""'," I~ ._,,u,n 'rol;.wl1M~JJIA , ... r.11·\:,_,,. PURCHASr:.S & SliR\'ICES 

HO.\lE\.\'COD 
,dSUITES 

CARD :O.U::Mlllil'.'S SIG~ATURE 

X . .. 

TA>fES 

Tif''SkMISC 

TOTAl,,\:,.IQU:\I -645.00 

l',\YMF.~IDUEUl'O:o; RECEIPT 

1i; 
lliltun 

G1,,mlV;,r.1tiom 



Group Name: 

PoslAs: 
Catering Mgr. 

DaV/Date 

Hobby Area Management District 

~ 
DOUBLETREE 

DV HILTON~ 

ttOIISTON HOBDY AIJI.POI\T 

8181 Airport Boulevard H0us1on, TX 77061 

PhOne: 713-64S.3000. Fax: 71J.a4S.140.9 

Banquet Check 

F&BAcct: 
Hobby Area Management District Board Meeting Site Contact: 
Maggie Del Rio 

Time Function Room 

Tax Exempt - Sales 

Page 1 of 1 

BEO#: 48695 

H2607 
Mr. Josh Hawes 

.. 
A¢lllal \ Gld 

Thursday, October 13, 2016 1:00 pm Business and Econorr Tamp/Mont/Cane 20 

ROOM RENTAL PRICE SUBTOTAL TQTAL 

Room~ Tamp!MonVCanc Function: MTG 500.00 500.00 

TOTAL 500,00 
SERVICE CHARGE % 23.00 115.00 

Room Rental Tax % 6.00 30.00 
Sales Tax•i(, 0.00 o.oo 

645.00 

Grand Total: 645.00 

Balance Due: 645.00 

.................................................................................................................................. ~!9.• .1. of 1 

Dale: 10/13/2016 Clienl Signature 



~ 
Name & Address 

DOUBLETREE 
8181 Airport Blvd.• Houston, TX 77061 

Phone (713) 645-3000 • Fax(713) 64S-225 I 
For reservations across the nalion 

www.doublctrcc.com or 1·800-222.'fREE 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

PO BOX 22167 

HOUSTON TX 77227 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

10/24/2016 

DATE REl'J::ltENCF. 

10/1812016 957266 "BANQUETS 
10/18/2016 957272 'BANQUETS 
10118/2016 957273 "BANQUETS 
10/19/2016 957978 "BANQUETS 
10/19/2016 957979 "BANQUETS 
10/2412016 961531 IVS "3701 

.. BALANCE-

ACCOIJ'.',tfXO 

C,\RD :i.ll!M\11!..lt :-.:A:\IE 

DESCRIPTION 

l~TAlll.lSmm:..T ~o & I.OCATIO:-: f.(f,\fUl<!t\l!.,;; ·":uu In"' ""'WTT<lf'\Onl>tU\I a,.,. r \\'!.UXI' 

CARI> ).IF.\lfil:R:S SIONATl!RE 

X 
" 

UV >tll.'rOH• 

Room H 2996 
Arrival Date 10/14/201612:00 AM 
Departure Date 

AdulVChild 
Room Rate 

Rate Plan: 
HH# 
AL: 
Car: 

AMOUNl' 

$1,079.94 ~ 
S106.00> 
$113.96 
$181.00 ' 
S505.75 . 

(51,986.65) 

S0.00 

DAl~OFCH,\RGit fOUO t.OJCIIECK NO 

296635 A 

AlmfORIZATIOX 11:-:ITIAI. 

PURC1lASt;.S & Sf~\.'ICF.S 

TAXF.S 

TIPS&MISC. 

TOTAl,A.\IOll~l ·1,986.65 

r,\\':\IENTDUE l:PON RECEIPT 

U HILTON 
n. HHONORS 

1014."I 
'It' t,'v ~ t. t 

'2..1''\.''l \\\ 

I)" (9~fo .1 
\':!.t.Y."•'1 
,·.;;a,;::: 

CONRAD 

'® 
Hilton 

H0.\1[\VOOD 
~sunes 

~, 
ililllln 

Gmnd \',,r,llluns 



Group Name: Hobby Area Management District 

Post As: Hobby Area Management Distrtcl 

Catering Mgr. Angie Thompson 

Day/Date Time 

~ 
DOUBLETREE 

av HU.TON· 

HOlUTON HORI\" All.l'ORT 

8181 Airport Bou/ev:ard Houston, TX no61 

Phon~: 713-6-4S-30DO .. Fax: 713-645-1-409 

Banquet Check 

F&BAcct: 

Si1e Contact: 

FUnction Room 

Not Tax Exempt 

Page 1 of1 

BEO#: 49876 

H2996 

Mr. Jerry Lowry 

. ;•.,·· 

Gtd . Actual 

Tuesday. October 18, 2016 2:00 pm Delta Room 6 

NO. FOOD PRICE SUBTOTAL TOTAL 

1 Pot(s) Freshly Brewed 100% Columbian Regular 25.00 25.00 

Coffee , Pot(s) Iced Tea 25.00 25.00 

1 Dozen Freshly Baked Assorted Cookies 23.95 23.95 

TOTAL FOOD 73.95 
SERVICE CHARGE% 23.00 17.01 

90.96 

ROOM RENTAL PRICE SUBTOTAL TOTAL 

Room: oe'1ta Room Function: MTG 100.00 100.00 

TOTAL 100.00 
SERVICE CHARGE •J. 23.00 23.00 

Room Rental Tax % 6.00 6.00 
. Sale-sTax •;. 0.00 0.00 

. . 129.00 

Grand Total: 219.96 

Balance Due: 219.S& 



Group Name: Hobby Area Management District 

~ 
DOUBLETREE 

llV tfll,."TO~· 

fiOU!iTON HOJl.11\' 1tlAl'ORT 

s1s1 Airport Boulevard H01.1.sWn, TX noe1 
Phol'!e: 713-64S.30DD• Fax: 713-645-1409 

Banquet Check 

F&BAcct; 

Post As: Hobby Area Apartment PIP Meeting Site Contact: 

Catering Mgr: Angie Thompson 

.Day/Date lime Function R~om 

Tuesday, October 18, 2016 11:00 am Moody 1 

Tuesday, October 18, 2016 11:30 am Moody 1 

Tuesday, Oclober 18, 2016 12:00 pm Moody 1 

NO. FOClD 

40 Hobby Deli 

TOTAL FOOD 

SERVICE CHARGE % 

ROOM RENTAL 

Room: Moody 1 Function: SET 

Room: Moody 1 Function: MTG 
Room: Moody 1 Function: LUN 

SERVICE CHARGE% 

Room Rental Tax•,(, 
Safes Tax% 

Not Tax Exempt 

Page1 of1 

BEO#: 49845 

H2996 

Mr. Jerry Lowry 

Gld. . Actual 

40 

40 

40 

;,,· ·---. 
PRICE SUBTOTAL . TC/:TA!i 

21.95 878.00 

878.00 
23.00 201.94 

1,079.94 

PRICE SUBTOTAL TQT.4;!-

23.00 0.00 
6.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

Grand TotaJ: 1,079.94 

Balance Due: 1,079,94 

Page 1 of 1 .......... 

Dale: 10/18/2016 



Group Name: Hobby Area Management District 

~ 
DOUBLETREE 

0'( t!H .. TON• 

HOUSTO!'l HOii'!\' AU!.POlT 

8181 Airport Boulevard Houston, TX 77051 

Phone: 713-645-3000 .. Fax: 713-645-1<409 

Banquet Check 

F&BAcct: 

Post As: Hobby Area Management District - Committee Meetings Site Contact: 
Catering Mgr. Maggie Del Rio 

Dav/Dale lime Function Room 
Wednesday, October 19, 2016 10:00 am Business and Econorr Moody 1 
Wednesday, October 19, 2016 11:00 am Visual Improvements i: Moody 1 
Wednesday, October 19, 2016 11:30 am Moody 1 
Wednesday, October 19, 2016 12:00 pm Public Safety Moody 1 

NO. FOOD 

15 Hobby Den-Working Lunch 

· TOTAL FOOD 

SERVICE CHARGE 'Y, 

NO. MISCELLANEOUS 

1 7' Tripod Screen 

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 

SERVICE CHARGE% 

ROOM RENTAL 

Room: Moody 1 Function: MTG 
Room: Moody 1 Function: MTG 
Room: Moody 1 Function: LUN 
Room: Moody 1 Function: MTG 

TOTAL 

SERVICE CHARGE% 

Room Rental Tax% 
Sales Tax o/, 

Tax Exempt - Sales 

Page 1 of 1 

BEO#: 48684 

H2996 
Mr. Josh Hawes 

Gld J>.ctual -
10 
10 
15 

10 

PRICE SUBTOTAL TQtAL 

21.95 329.25 

329.25 
23.00 75.73 

404,98 

PRICE SUBTOTAL TOTA~: 

50.00 50.00 

50.00 
23.00 11.50 

61.50 

PRICE SUBTOTAL TOTAL. 

170.75 170.75 

17D.75 
23.00 39.27 
6.00 10.25 
0.00 0.00 

220.27 

Grand Total: 686.75 

Balance Due: 686.75 

Page 1 of 1 ········-··········· ............................................................................ . 

Dale: 10/19/2016 



(713)9H-0360 
THAI JASMINE 

10900 KINGSPOINT RD 13 
HOUSTON, TX 77075 

10/05/2016 12:14:03 

Card# 
Chp Card: 
AID: 
ATC: 
TC: 
SEQ#: 
Batch #: 
INVOICE 
SERVER 
Approval Code: 
Er4ry Method: 
Mode: 

ffiE·TIP AMi 

CREDIT CARD 

VISASALE 

XXXXXXXXXXXX3701 
CHASE VISA 

A0000000031010 
0015 

3BE58ABB7BBFOB28 
11 
57 
11 

0000 
02101c 

Ch~ Read 
Issuer 

$16.76 
,s:t-y 

TIP 7-! 

TGiAL AMOUNT 5l-O__,... __ 

CUSTOMER COPY 

Double1ree by Hilton 
Houston Hobby Airport 

The Landing 
8181 Airport Boulevard 

Housten, TX 77061 
(712) 645-3000 

Date: Cct05'16 09:54AM 
Card Type: VISA 
Acct#: ~XXXXXXXXXXX3701 
Card Entry: SWIPED 
Trans Type: FURCHASE 
Auth Code: C3592C 
Check: 136 
Table: E0/1 
Server: 204 Silvia E 

Subtotal: 13.48 

For your ccnvenience we are 
providinG the following 
gratuity calculations: 

15~ is $2,02 
18~ is $2.43 
20~ is $2.70 

TIP______ /;)' S:? 
TOTAL. __ nSR 
SIG~~TURE: 

Office DEPOT 

OfficeMax· 
OFFICE OEPOT STOREtt 12 

10525 Gulf Free>1ay 
Houston, TX 77034 
(713) 947-7590 

10/05/2016 16. 7. 2 12:34 PM 

STR 12 REG 4 TRN 2221 EMP 651558 

------------------------------------------
SALE 
Product ID Descrlptlon Total 

75f095 SCANNING, DOC 
26 @ 0.25 6.50 

You PaY 6.SOSS 

Subtotal: 6.50 

Sales Tax: 
Total: 

Visa 3701: 

AUTH CODE 06l85C 
TDS Chip Read 
AID A0000000031010 CHASE VISA 

TVR 0080008000 
, CVS No Signature Req,ui_:ed 

0,54 
7.04 
7.04 

...... .,w ... v.v,txX,1Ul.,IPlf __ 

---------··- .. ·-·--·--· ·········-·---



Doublelree by Hilton 
Houston Hobby Airport 

The Landing 
8181 Airport Boulevard 

Housten, TX 77061 
(712) 645-3000 

Date: Cct10' 16 10:49AM 
Card Type: VISA 
Acct#: XXXXXXXXXXXX3701 
Card Entry: rnIPED 
Trans Type: FURCHASE 
Auth Code: C7385C 
Check: 278 
Table: E0/1 
Server: 204 Silvia E 

Subtota 1: 32.45 

For your ccnvenience vie are 
providin, the following 
gratuity calculations: 

15~ ,i~ $4,87 
18t is $5.84 
2or is $6,49 

TIP___ I f;, 5".$ 
3q.f,!Q_ 

Office DEPOT. 

OfficeMax· 
OFFICE DEPOT STORE# 12 

10525 Gulf Freewas 
Houston, TX 77034 
(713) 947-7590 

10/18/2016 16,8,2 10:49 AH 
STR 12 REG 4 TRN 3717 EHP 651558 
---------------------------
SALE 
Product ID Description 
163061 l•pression,BWS 

103@0,12 
You Pas 

167060 BW SS Letter 
6 @ 0, 14 

You Pas 
224111 Impresslon,Clr 

24@ 0.59 
You Pas 

420283 PPR,COPV,00,RE 

Subtotal: 
Sales Tax: 

Total: 
Visa 3701: 

AUTH CODE 00864C 
TDS Chip Read 

12.36 

0,84 

14, 16 

AID A0000000031010 CHASE VISA 
TVR 0080008000 

Total 

12,3655 

0,84SS 

14, 16SS 
6,79 S5 

34, 15 
2,82 

36,97 
36,97 

CVS Signature Verified 
****************************************** 

Doublelree by Hilton 
Houston Hobby Airport 

The Landing 
8181 Airport Boulevard 

Housten, TX 77061 
(712) 645-3000 

Date: Cct25' 16 09: 48AM 
Card Type: VISA 
Acct#: XXXXXXXXXXXX3701 
Card Entry: SWIPED 
Trans Type: FURCHASE 
Auth Code: C4116C 
Check: 1025 
Table: !:3/1 
Server: E04 Loretta 

Subtotal: 14.03 

For your ccnvenience we are 
providin, the following 
gratuity calculations: 

15~ is $2.10 
18~ is $2.53 
20~ is $2.81 

TIP______ L': 0<.'i 

SIGN.~TURE:y-0 J ~ 

THIS IS CUSTCMERS COPY 



Hawes Hill Calderon, LLP EXPENSE REPORT 

Narrijj-

I Period Ending 
Gretchen Larson September 30, 2016 

Service Area 

Hobby 
Business Mileaae Other Expensesc2i Bill to Dist. Date J- -~ Destination J Purpose Miles Driven Item___ . - JAmourif (Y/Nj 

1-Sep District Mats. 52 y 
8-Sep District MAIS, 60 y_ 
13-Sec District Mats. 56 y 
16-Sep District Mqts. 52 y 
21-Sep District Mats. 62 y 
22-Sen District Mots. 56 lrolls y 
28-Sep District Mgts. 60 

1 , 398 $ -
ere inc~aidby(Dme\f +I I 0 Busi;: Miles (1)@ 

1,-,_.,,_~--,--,--------l------_.:::.,.\--\~&.lfi'-"U"'-"--~-------;;;;;;;-IO!her Expenses (2) • Attach evidence of purchase I 
I ,j ~'"""'"'" uaie I Expenses billed to District (Y) 

Expenses no! billed to District (N) 

$ 214.92 

$ 

! 
Amount Billed to District $ 214.92 

Approval oate !Total Reimbursement $ 214.92 

C:\Users\Grelchen\Google Drive\S!aff Folders\Gre!chen\Expense Reports\2015 Expense Report. HobbySep 10/14/2016 



Namo 
Period Eodio11 Servie& Araa 

Linda Clayton October 31, 2016 Hobby Area MD 
Business Mileage Other Expenses(2l Bill to Dist. 

Date Destination Purpase Miles Driven Item Amount (YIN) 
13-0ct 8181 Airport Blvd Board mtg 48 y 

I 48 s -
I eertJfy that the above expenses were iocul!"ed aod paid by me, 

- /l /' <l-1 I Business M!les (1)@ 

{~:-11.f{ ( ' ~/;,:;_ ___ 1~ /21 )2o1:c, 
0.54 $ 25.92 

Other Expenses (2) • AHaeh evidence of purchase 
Signa1ur1,1 

, 
Date 

Expenses billed to District ('I' $ 

Expenses not bllled to Dlstri1 S 

Amount BIiied to District $ 25.92 
Approval oato Total Reimbursement $ 25,92 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

6. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 

HARRISCOUNTY,TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Receive, consider and adopt a Resolution Establishing the Authorized Depository 

Institutions and Adopting the List of Qualified Broker/Dealers with Whom the Authority 
May Engage in Investment Transactions. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUllIBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
P.O. Box22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX281-888-6314 



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DEPOSITORY INSTITUTIONS AND ADOPTING 
LIST OF QUALIFIED BROKER/DEALERS OF 

HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 

WHEREAS, Harris County Improvement District No. 9 (the "District"), has been legally 
created and operates pursuant to the general laws of the State applicable to municipal 
management districts; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Government Code, as 
amended from time to time, requires the Board of Directors of the District to, at least annually, 
review, revise, and adopt a list of qualified broker/dealers with whom the District may engage in 
investment transactions; and 

WHEREAS, the District's Investment Policy provides that the list of qualified 
broker/dealers shall be adopted by written resolution of the Board of Directors; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has convened on this date at a meeting open to the 
public and wishes to adopt the list of qualified broker/dealers with whom the District may 
engage in investment transactions; Now, Therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF HARRIS COUNTY 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 THAT: 

Section 1: The attached Exhibit "A" includes a list of the qualified broker/dealers 
with whom the District may engage in investment transactions. 

Section 2: The provisions of this Resolution shall be effective as of the date of 
adoption and shall remain in effect until modified by action of the Board of Directors. 

#5346259.1 



PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 10th day of November 2016. 

Chair 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 

#5346259.1 



CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF HARRIS § 

I, the undersigned officer of the Board of Directors of Harris County Improvement District No. 9, 
hereby certify as follows: 

1. The Board of Directors of Harris County Improvement District No. 9 convened in regular 
session on the 10th day ofNovember, 2016, at the regular meeting place thereof, inside the boundaries of 
the District, and the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and members of the Board to-wit: 

Danny R. Perkins President 
Helen Bonsall Vice President 
SueDeHaven Secretary 
Jesus H. Saenz, Jr. Director 
Ann Collum Director 
Marjorie Evans Director 
Joe Ed Nelson Director 
Darryl Bailey Director 
Todd Szilagyi Director 
Vic Zachary Director 
Alberto P. Cardenas Director 

and all of said persons were present, except Director(s) _____________ , thus 
constituting a quorum. Whereupon, among other business, the following was transacted at the meeting: a 
written 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DEPOSITORY INSTITUTIONS AND ADOPTING 
LIST OF QUALIFIED BROKER/DEALERS OF 

HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 

was introduced for the consideration of the Board. It was then duly moved and seconded that the 
Resolution be adopted, and, after due discussion, the motion, carrying with it the adoption of the 
Resolution, prevailed and carried unanimously. 

2. That a true, full and correct copy of the aforesaid Resolution adopted at the meeting described in 
the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this certificate; that the Resolution has been 
duly recorded in the Board's minutes of the meeting; that the persons named in the above and foregoing 
paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers and members of the Board as indicated 
therein; that each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified officially 
and personally, in advance, of the time, place and purpose of the aforesaid meeting, and that the 
Resolution would be introduced and considered for adoption at the meeting, and each of the officers and 
members consented, in advance, to the holding of the meeting for such purpose; that the meeting was 
open to the public as required by law; and that public notice of the time, place and subject of the meeting 
was given as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, and Section 49.063, Texas Water Code. 

#5346259.1 



SIGNED AND SEALED the 10th day of November, 2016. 

Secretary, Board of Directors 
(SEAL) 

#5346259.1 -2-



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF AUTHORIZED BROKER/DEALERS 

Allegiance Bank Texas 
Amegy Bank of Texas (Amegy Bank, N.A.) 
Bank of America Corporation 
Bank of America, N.A. 
Bank of Ozarks 
Bank of Texas (BOKF, NA) 
BBV A Compass Bank 
Beal Bank 
Capital Bank, N.A. 
Capital One, N.A. 
Capital Markets Group, Inc. 
Central Bank 
Chase Investments Services Corp. 
Chasewood Bank 
Coastal Securities Inc. 
Comerica Bank 
Commercial State Bank 
CommunityBank of Texas, N.A. 
Edward Jones 
Encore Bank, N.A. 
Enterprise Bank and Trust Company 
FirstBank & Trust 
First Bank of Conroe 
First Bank Texas 
First Choice Bank 
First Citizens Bank 
First Community Bank, N.A. 
First National Bank of Bastrop 
First National Bank Texas 
First Southwest 
First Texas Bank 
Fiserve, Inc. 
Frost Bank 
Green Bank, N.A. 
Herring Bank 
HomeTown Bank, N.A. 
Independent Bank 
International Bank of Commerce 
JPMorgan Chase & Co. 
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC 
Legacy Texas Bank 
Legg Mason 
LOOI C (Local Government Investment Cooperative) 
Lone Star Bank 
Lone Star Investment Pool 
LPL Financial Services 
Memorial City Bank 
Merchants Bank 
Midkiff & Stone Capital Group, Inc. 

#5346259.l 

MidSouth Bancorp, Inc. 
Moody National Bank 
Morgan Stanley 
Morgan Stanley Wealth Management 
New First National Bank 
Patriot Bank 
Plains State Bank 
Plus 4 Credit Union 
Post Oak Bank 
Preferred Bank 
Prosperity Bank 
Prudential Equity Group 
Raymond James & Associates, Inc. 
RBC Wealth Management USA 
Regions Bank 
Regions Financial Corporation 
Security State Bank 
Southwest Securities, Inc. 
Space City Credit Union 
State Bank of Texas 
State Street Bank & Trust Co. 
Sterling Bancshares, Inc. 
TexSTAR 
Texas Capital Bank, National Association 
Texas Citizens Bank 
Texas CLASS 
Texas Community Bank 
Texas First Bank 
TIB - The Independent BankersBank 
TexPool/TexPool Prime 
The Bank of River Oaks 
Tri Star Financial 
Trustmark National Bank 
U.S. Bank National Association 
UBS Financial Services, Inc. 
Unity National Bank 
Wallis State Bank 
Wells Fargo Advisors, LLC 
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 
Westbound Bank 
Whitney National Bank 
Woodforest National Bank 

A-1 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

7. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARR!SCOUNTY,TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Designate Danny Perkins, Helen Bonsall, Jeny Lowry, and Jack Roland as authorized 
signers for the new Plus 4 Credit Union investment account. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calder6n LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

8. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Receive and consider: 

a. Accept the Hearing Examiner's Report and Proposal for Decision for a Public 
Hearing regarding the Supplemental Assessment Roll. 

b. Approve the Order Supplementing the Assessment Roll and Levying 
Assessments of the Property on the Supplemental Assessment Roll 

c. Approve Oder Setting the Rate of Assessment for all Properties on the 
District's Assessment Roll for Year Four of the District's Service Plan 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calder6n LLP 
P.O:Box22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



HEARING EXAMINER'S REPORT AND PROPOSAL FOR DECISION 
on the public hearing held on November 2, 2016 

to be presented to the Board of Directors of 
Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

The Harris County Improvement District No. 9 was created by House Bill 4110, Act of 
the 80th Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, and is governed by Chapter 375, Texas Local 
Government Code, and Chapter 3859, Texas Special District Local Laws Code (together, as 
amended, the "Act"). 

Petitions were presented to the Board of Directors of the District (the "Board") requesting 
the services and improvements set forth in the Service and Improvement Plan and Assessment 
Plan (the "Service Plan") for the District. The Board held a public hearing on October 24, 2013. 
Thereafter, on November 14, 2013, the Board adopted its "Order Granting Petition; Approving a 
Service Plan and Improvement and Assessment Plan; Approving an Assessment Roll; Setting an 
Assessment Rate for Property within the District for Year One of the District's Service and 
Improvement and Assessment Plan; Levying Annual Assessments Against Property within the 
District for a Ten-year Period Specified in the Service and Improvement Plan; Specifying the 
Method of Payment and the Amount of Annual Installments of the Assessment; Providing 
Penalties and Interest on Delinquent Assessments; and Authorizing the Collection of 
Assessments" (collectively, the "Order"). 

The Order provides that in the years 2014-2023 the District may, after conducting a 
public hearing for which due notice has been given to owners of property in the District, 
supplement its assessment roll by adding the value of properties newly classified as commercial 
non-exempt or with new improvements or substantially rehabilitated improvements ( a 
rehabilitation is substantial if the costs of such rehabilitation equal or exceed 25% of the value of 
the original improvement) under construction on January 1, 2013, or constructed, remodeled or 
rehabilitated in the District after January 1, 2013, without the need to secure a new petition from 
property owners within the District, at the value shown on the rolls of the Harris County 
Appraisal District ("HCAD") for each year. The Order further provides that assessments on 
improvements under construction should be based on the value of the portion of the 
improvement that is complete, and improvements that have been completed should be based on 
the value of the completed improvement as shown on the rolls ofHCAD. On July 24, 2013, the 
Board adopted a resolution calling a public hearing for such purpose. 

The District held a public hearing on November 2, 2016, regarding the advisability of 
levying assessments against properties with new improvements or substantially rehabilitated 
improvements (the "Construction Improvements") at the value shown on the rolls of HCAD on 
January 1, 2016, which were not included in the original assessment roll; and regarding the 
advisability of using the 2016 HCAD certified values as the basis for the Year 4 assessment. 

Pursuant to the direction of the Board, Josh Hawes was appointed as the Chief Hearing 
Examiner. The Chief Hearing Examiner conducted an administrative hearing on November 2, 
2016, on the advisability of supplementing the assessment roll with Construction Improvements. 
Appropriate notice was given pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 375, Texas Local 
Government Code (the "Code"), by publishing a copy of the notice of hearing in The Houston 

#5347148.1 



Business Journal, a newspaper of general circulation within the District, in the September 30, 
2016 issue, and by mailing copies of the notice of the hearing to the owners of property with 
Construction Improvements by regular, first class, U.S. Mail, at the address shown on the tax roll 
ofHCAD, on September 29, 2016. The hearing was held at the Hobby Double Tree Hotel, 8181 
Airport Boulevard, Houston, Texas, at 2:00 p.m. 

TESTIMONY 

The Chief Hearing Examiner asked if any persons present desired to be designated as a 
party to this proceeding. The Harris County Improvement District No. 9 was granted party status 
and was represented by Clark Stockton Lord, attorney for the District. 

The following persons were called by the District and presented formal evidence and 
testimony: Jerry Lowry, Executive Director of the District, and Pat Hall of Equi-Tax. No other 
person requested to present formal evidence and testimony. 

Jerry Lowry, Executive Director of the District 

Mr. Lowry explained the District's Service Plan, the method and rate of assessment and 
the purpose for the supplemental assessment roll. He reviewed the history of the creation of the 
District and discussed accomplishments of the District. Mr. Lowry explained the composition of 
the Board and the qualifications for serving on the Board. He next explained that certain 
properties had Construction Improvements and that the values of those properties had increased 
by at least 25% from the value last year. Mr. Lowry identified and explained several documents 
relating to the authority of the District to levy assessments and provide services and 
improvements, copies of which are attached hereto entitled "Documentary Evidence", and such 
documents were admitted into evidence during the hearing. He testified in favor of 
supplementing the assessment roll with the Construction Improvements. Mr. Hawes stated that 
he believed that all properties in the District receive a benefit from the District's services and 
improvement projects that equals or exceeds the assessment paid by the property owner. 

Ms. Pat Hall, Egui-Tax Inc., Assessor/Collector for the District 

Next, Ms. Hall identified and explained additional documents that were admitted into 
evidence during the hearing. A list of those documents is attached hereto entitled "Documentary 
Evidence." Ms. Hall testified regarding the mechanics of the assessment, the calculation of 
assessment rates and the determination of property values, the method of collecting assessments 
and the penalties for late payment of assessments. Ms. Hall also explained the reason for 
supplementing the assessment roll and the method for determining which properties had 
Construction Improvements. 

TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE REQUIREMENTS 

The authority of the District to levy supplemental assessments is governed by the 
provisions of the Act and the Code. Sections 375.111 and 375.112 of the Code set forth the 
purposes for which the District may levy special assessments on property in an area based on 
benefit conferred by the improvements or services provided. Section 375.122 governs the 
authority of the District to make supplemental assessments. Section 375.113 of the Code 

#5347148.1 -2-



requires a hearing, after notice is given in accordance with the provisions of Section 375.115, on 
the advisability of the improvements and services proposed to be provided and the assessments 
proposed to be levied. 

The District now desires to supplement its current assessment roll with the Construction 
Improvements. The Order and the Code require that the Board hold a public hearing after due 
notice to property owners regarding such supplements to the assessment roll. The Act governs 
the procedure for the hearing to be held and the findings and determinations to be made by the 
Board in order to supplement the assessment roll. These provisions and the Order generally 
permit the Board to add properties to the assessment roll after making findings relating to the 
advisability of the improvements or services, the nature of the improvements or services, the 
estimated cost, the area benefitted, the method of assessment, and the method and time for 
payment of the assessment. 

The Act contains provisions for the apportionment of costs based on special benefits, 
permits the Board to allow the assessments to be paid in periodic installments, and authorizes the 
Board to provide that delinquent assessments will be subject to penalties and bear interest. 

ISSUES PRESENTED 

Major issues presented at the hearing are as follows: 

I. SHOULD THE ASSESSMENT ROLL BE SUPPLEMENTED WITH THE 
CONSTRUCTION IMPROVEMENTS AT THE VALUE SHOWN ON THE ROLLS 
OF HCAD ON JANUARY I, 2016 AND SHOULD THE ASSESSMENT BE BASED 
ON 2016 HCAD VALUES? 

Evidence was presented at the hearing showing that the properties with Construction 
Improvements will receive benefits from the services and improvements set forth in the Service 
Plan in excess of the assessment to be paid by property owners. Testimony was also given that it 
was fair, equitable and appropriate for the District to levy the Year 4 assessment against the 
Construction Improvements based on the 2016 HCAD certified appraised values. 

I, Josh Hawes, Chief Hearing Examiner, agree that each property with Construction 
Improvements will receive benefits from the services and improvements provided or to be 
provided by the District, which equal or exceed the assessment levied on each property during 
the term of the Service Plan. Further, I agree that the Year 4 assessment against the Construction 
Improvements should be based on 2016 HCAD certified appraised values. 

I, Josh Hawes, the Chief Hearing Examiner, recommend that the Board find from the 
preponderance of the evidence that: (a) the District's current assessment roll should be 
supplemented with the Construction Improvements shown on the supplemental assessment roll 
presented into evidence at the hearing (the "Supplemental Assessment Roll"), (b) the Board 
should levy its Year 4 assessment on the properties with Construction Improvements based on 
the 2016 HCAD certified appraised values in accordance with the Order, (c) all properties on the 
Supplemental Assessment Roll should be assessed at the same rate; ( d) all properties within the 
District will receive benefits from all of the existing and proposed programs and improvements, 
( e) the properties with Construction Improvements will receive benefits that are equal to or 

#5347148.1 -3-



greater than the amount assessed against such properties, and (f) HCAD values are the most 
appropriate and fair basis of assessment. 

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE CHIEF HEARING EXAMINER 

After review of the record and for the reasons given above, the Chief Hearing Examiner 
makes the following recommendations to the Board: 

#5347148.1 

(a) That the Board should supplement the assessment roll with the Construction 
Improvements; and 

(b) That the Board should levy assessments in accordance with the Service Plan and 
the Order on the Construction Improvements for Year 4 based on the value of 
such properties shown on the certified rolls ofHCAD on January I, 2016, which 
is the value shown on the proposed Supplemental Assessment Roll. 

( c) That in all other respects, the Board should continue to follow the Order. 

Presented this 10th day ofNovember, 2016. 

JoshH~ 
Chief Hearing Examiner 

-4-



DOCUMENT ARY EVIDENCE 

EXHIBIT DESCRIPTION 

A Order Granting Petition; Approving a Service Plan and Improvement and 
Assessment Plan; Approving an Assessment Roll; Setting an Assessment 
Rate for Property within the District for Year One of the District's 
Service and Improvement and Assessment Plan; Levying Annual 
Assessments Against Property within the District for a Ten-year Period 
Specified in the Service and Improvement Plan; Specifying the Method 
of Payment and the Amount of Annual Installments of the Assessment; 
Providing Penalties and Interest on Delinquent Assessments; and 
Authorizing the Collection of Assessments 

B 2014-2023 Service and Improvement and Assessment Plan 

C Notice of Hearing published in the Houston Business Journal and 
Affidavit of Publication 

D Affidavit of Mailing of the Notice of the Hearing by Regular, First Class 
U.S. Mail 

E Unclaimed and Returned Notices from the mailing of Notice to the 
property owners 

F Supplemental Assessment Roll for the District 

NOTE: See original Hearing Examiner's Report for Exhibits A - F. 

#5347148.1 



AMENDED INFORMATION FORM OF 
HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HARRIS 

§ 
§ 
§ 

We, the undersigned, constituting a majority of the members of the Board of Directors of 
Harris County Improvement District No. 9 (the "District"), do hereby make, execute and affirm 
this Information Form in compliance with TEXAS WATER CODE §49.452 and §49.455 and 30 
TEXAS ADMIN. CODE §293.92. We do hereby certify as follows: 

I. The most recent rate of assessment levied by the District is $0.15 per $100 of 
assessed valuation of all real property and improvements, as shown on the records of the Harris 
County Appraisal District. 

2. The form Notice to Purchasers required by § 49.452, Texas Water Code, as 
amended, to be furnished by a seller to a purchaser of real property in the District is attached 
hereto as Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

WITNESS OUR HANDS this 10th day of November, 2016. 

Danny Perkins Helen Bonsall 

Jesus H. Saenz, Jr. SueDeHaven 

Ann Collum Todd Szilagyi 

Marjorie Evans Joe Ed Nelson 

Darryl Bailey Vic Zachary 

Alberto P. Cardenas 

#5043269.1 



THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HARRIS 

§ 
§ 
§ 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned, a Notary Public, on this day personally appeared Danny 
Perkins, Helen Bonsall, Sue De Haven, Ann Collum, Jesus H. Saenz, Jr., Marjorie Evans, Joe Ed 
Nelson, Darryl Bailey, Todd Szilagyi, Vic Zachary and Alberto P. Cardenas, known to me to be 
the persons and officers whose names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument and affirmed 
and acknowledged that said instrument is correct and accurate to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, and that they executed the same for the purposes and in the capacity therein stated. 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this 10th day of November, 2016. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 
(SEAL) 

After recording, return to: 

HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 
c/o Bracewell LLP 
711 Louisiana, Suite 2300 
Houston, Texas 77002-6760 
Attn: Debbie J. Russell 

#5043269.1 



EXHIBIT "A" 

NOTICE TO PURCHASERS 

The real property, described below, that you are about to purchase is located in the Harris 
County Improvement District NO. 9 (the "District"). The District has taxing authority separate 
from any other taxing authority, and may, subject to voter approval, issue an unlimited amount of 
bonds and levy an unlimited rate of tax in payment of such bonds. The District has not yet levied 
taxes but the most recent projected tax rate is $0.00 on each $100 of assessed valuation. The 
total amount of bonds, excluding refunding bonds and any bonds or any portion of bonds issued 
that are payable solely from revenues received or expected to be received under a contract with a 
governmental entity, approved by the voters and which have been or may, at this date, be issued 
is $0.00, and the aggregate initial principal amounts of all bonds issued for one or more of the 
specified facilities of the District and payable in whole or in part from property taxes is $0.00. 

The District has the authority to adopt and impose a standby fee on property in the District 
that has water, sanitary sewer, or drainage facilities and services available but not connected and 
which does not have a house, building, or other improvement located thereon and does not 
substantially utilize the utility capacity available to the property. The District may exercise the 
authority without holding an election on the matter. As of this date, the most recent amount of 
the standby fee is $0.00. An unpaid standby fee is a personal obligation of the person that owned 
the property at the time of imposition and is secured by a lien on the property. Any person may 
request a certificate from the District stating the amount, if any, of unpaid standby fees on a tract 
of property in the District. 

The District has the authority to levy an assessment on property within the District. The 
District may exercise this authority without holding an election on the matter. As of this date, 
the amount of the assessment is $0.15 per $100 of valuation for the real property and any 
improvements thereon, as reflected on the tax rolls of the Harris County Appraisal District in the 
District. 

The District is located in whole or in part within the corporate boundaries of the City of 
Houston. The taxpayers of the District are subject to the taxes imposed by the municipality and 
assessments or taxes imposed by the District until the District is dissolved. By law, a district 
located within the corporate boundaries of a municipality may be dissolved by municipal 
ordinance without the consent of the district or the voters of the district. 

The purpose of this District is to promote, develop, encourage and maintain employment, 
commerce, transportation, housing, tourism, recreation, arts, entertainment, economic 
development, safety and public welfare. The cost of these services and improvements is not 
included in the purchase price of your property. 

The legal description of the property you are acquiring is as follows: ( description of 
property) 

SELLER: 

(Date) Signature of Seller 

#5043269.1 



PURCHASER IS ADVISED THAT THE INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS FORM 
IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE BY THE DISTRICT AT ANY TIME. THE DISTRICT 
ROUTINELY ESTABLISHES ASSESSMENT RATES DURING THE MONTHS OF 
SEPTEMBER THROUGH DECEMBER OF EACH YEAR, EFFECTIVE FOR THE 
UPCOMING YEAR. PURCHASER IS ADVISED TO CONTACT THE DISTRICT TO 
DETERMINE THE STATUS OF ANY CURRENT OR PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE 
INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS FORM. 

The undersigned purchaser hereby acknowledges receipt of the foregoing notice at or 
prior to execution of a binding contract for the purchase of the real property described in such 
notice or at closing of purchase of the real property. 

PURCHASER: 

Signature of Purchaser 
(Date) 

(APPROPRIATE ACKNOWLEDGMENTS) 

NOTE:After recording, please return to: 

#5043269.1 



ORDER SUPPLEMENTING THE ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR THE HARRIS COUNTY 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 AND LEVYING ASSESSMENTS AGAINST THE 

PROPERTY ON THE SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT ROLL 

WHEREAS, the Harris County Improvement District No. 9 (the "District") was created 
by House Bill 41 IO, Acts of the 80th Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, for the purpose of 
providing services and improvements in the Hobby Airport area of the City of Houston, and is 
governed by Chapter 375, Texas Local Government Code, as amended, and Chapter 3859, 
Special District Local Laws Code (collectively, the "Act"); and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Act, petitions (the "Petition") were presented to the 
Board of Directors of the District (the "Board") requesting the District to provide services and 
improvements as described in the Service and Improvement and Assessment Plan Through 2023 
(the "Service Plan"); and 

WHEREAS, after the issuance of proper notice pursuant to the Act, the District held a 
public hearing on the Petitions on October 24, 2013, to give property owners an opportunity to 
question and/or contest the granting of the Petitions; and 

WHEREAS, on November 14, 2013, the Board adopted its "Order Granting Petition; 
Approving a Service Plan; Approving an Assessment Roll; Setting an Assessment Rate for 
Property within the District For Year One of the District's Service and Improvement and 
Assessment Plan; Levying Annual Assessments Against Property within the District for a Ten
year Period; Specifying the Method of Payment and the Amount of Annual Installments of the 
Assessment; Providing Penalties and Interest on Delinquent Assessments; and Authorizing the 
Collection of Assessments" (the "Original Order"); and 

WHEREAS, the Act and the Original Order provides that the District may add to its 
assessment roll properties that are eligible for assessment that were not on the prior year's 
assessment roll, and properties with new improvements or substantially rehabilitated 
improvements ( a rehabilitation is substantial if the costs of such rehabilitation equal or exceed 
25% of the value of the original improvement) (the "Construction Improvements") at the value 
shown on the tax rolls of the Harris County Appraisal District ("HCAD") for each year; and 

WHEREAS, the District's Assessor/Collector prepared a supplemental assessment roll 
(the "Supplemental Assessment Roll") with the Construction Improvements at the value shown 
on the tax rolls ofHCAD on January 1, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, after giving notice in accordance with the requirements of the Act, the 
District held a public hearing (the "Hearing") on November 2, 2016, on the advisability of 
adding the Construction Improvements to the District's assessment roll at the value shown on the 
tax rolls ofHCAD on January I, 2016 and levying the Year 4 assessment against the properties 
with Construction Improvements based on the 2016 HCAD values; and 

WHEREAS, following the Hearing, the Chief Hearings Examiner presented his report to 
the Board; and 

#5346212.1 



WHEREAS, the Board desires to accept the Hearings Examiner's Report and Proposal 
for Decision (the "Hearings Examiner's Report"); and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to add to its assessment roll those properties with 
Construction Improvements at the value shown on the tax rolls of HCAD on January 1, 2016, 
and levy the Year 4 assessment against such properties based on the 2016 HCAD values; and 

OFFICIAL NOTICE OF CERTAIN MATTERS 

The Board hereby orders that official notice be taken and that all persons, entities, and 
parties be on notice of and that the official record of the proceedings of the Hearing includes: 

1. All memoranda and reports of the staff and of consultants to the District and 
documents of the District prepared and dated as of or prior to the date of such 
hearing and relating to the Petition, the District, the Service Plan, the levy of 
assessments, the Original Assessment Roll (as hereinafter defined) and 
supplementing the Original Assessment Roll with the Supplemental Assessment 
Roll, the basis of assessment and the subject matter of such hearing; 

2. The status of The Houston Business Journal as a newspaper of general circulation 
within the county in which the District is located; 

3. All petitions, certificates, orders, resolutions, reports, and related documents and 
data submitted to and on file with the District and Board relating to the hearing, 
the District's Service Plan, assessment roll and the proposed levy of assessments; 
and 

4. The tax rolls of the Harris County Appraisal District for the Year 2016, the value 
of property on the tax roll and the owners of property and their addresses on the 
tax roll. 

There was submitted for the record and as evidence of the matters therein contained, an 
affidavit of publication of notice of the hearing in The Houston Business Journal, with such 
publication occurring on September 30, 2016, which is at least thirty (30) days prior to the date 
of such hearing, as required by the Act. 

There was also submitted evidence that notice was mailed by first class certified mail, 
return receipt requested, on September 29, 2016, which is at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
date of such hearing, as required by the Act, to each owner of property with a 25% or more 
increase in the valuation of property subject to assessment or to each owner of property that had 
been reclassified as commercial, non-exempt property at the address of such property owner as 
reflected on the most recent tax rolls of Harris County, Texas, such evidence including certified 
mailing receipts, return receipts, and returned notices of those persons who failed to accept or 
receive the notice of hearing. 

2 
#5346212.1 



FINDINGS OF FACT 

In consideration of all issues of fact and law relative to the aforesaid hearing, the Board 
rules and makes the following Findings of Fact: 

#5346212.1 

I. All petitions, resolutions, orders, and related documents and data required 
pursuant to the Act and the Code, and of the District have been duly and timely 
submitted to and filed with the District. 

2. By motion of the Board at its meeting on October 13, 2016, the time, date, 
subject, and place of the hearing before the Hearings Examiners was set for 
November 2, 2016, at 1 :00 p.m. at the Hobby Airport Double Tree Hotel, 818 I 
Airport Boulevard, Houston, Texas. 

3. Notice of the Hearing (the "Notice") was given in accordance with the Act by 
publishing a copy of the Notice in The Houston Business Journal, a newspaper of 
general circulation in Harris County, Texas, on September 30, 2016, a date not 
later than thirty (30) days before the date of the hearing, and by mailing a copy of 
the Notice by first class mail, on September 29, 2016, which is not later than 
thirty (30) days before the date of the Hearing, to each owner of property with 
Construction Improvements in the District at the current address of such property 
owner as shown on the HCAD tax roll. 

4. The Service Plan and the Original Order authorize the District to supplement the 
assessment roll approved by the Original Order (the "Original Assessment Roll") 
without need for a further petition, provided that a public hearing is held in 
compliance with all requirements of the Act. 

5. The Original Assessment Roll, as supplemented by the Supplemental Assessment 
Roll (the "2016 Assessment Roll") should be approved as the assessment roll for 
the District. 

6. That there should be levied against all properties shown on the Supplemental 
Assessment Roll for Year 4 of the Service Plan, an assessment for services and 
improvements in accordance with the Petition, the Service Plan and the Original 
Order. 

7. All of the real property in the District, which is being assessed by the Board in the 
amount shown on the 2016 Assessment Roll, will be benefited by the services and 
improvements proposed to be provided by the District in the Service Plan, and 
each parcel of real property will receive special benefits in each year equal to or 
greater than the amount assessed, and will receive special benefits during the terrn 
of the Service Plan in an amount equal to or greater than the total amount assessed 
during the terrn of the Service Plan. 

8. The cost of providing services and improvements for the District, as shown in the 
Service Plan, on the basis of the value of property as shown on the tax rolls of the 
Harris County Appraisal District and as shown on the 2016 Assessment Roll 

3 



results in imposing equal shares of the cost on property similarly benefited, and 
results in a reasonable classification and formula for the apportionment of costs of 
the various classes of services and improvements proposed to be provided in the 
Service Plan to the benefited property within the District. 

9. The Board, pursuant to the Original Order, levied one annual assessment for the 
year 2013 against all properties shown on the District's assessment roll. The 
District now proposes to levy a subsequent annual assessment for the year 20 I 6 
against all properties shown on the District's assessment roll. 

I 0. The provisions relating to due and delinquency dates for assessments, interest, 
and penalties on delinquent assessments and procedures in connection with the 
Original Order with the imposition and collection of assessments as set forth in 
the Service Plan should be approved and continued and will expedite collection of 
the assessments in a timely manner in order to provide the services and 
improvements needed and required for the District as described with the Service 
Plan. 

11. That the recitations, objectives, goals, costs, programs, and conclusions set forth 
in the Service Plan are found to be true and correct and will benefit the District 
and the properties within the District, including the Construction Improvements, 
as determined and set forth in the Service Plan. 

12. The Board finds that it is advisable for the improvements and services set forth in 
the Service Plan be provided to properties within the District, including the 
Construction Improvements, during the term set forth in the Service Plan. 

13. That the matters, facts, and recommendations of the Hearings Examiner's Report 
and Proposal for Decision are found to be true and correct. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

The District has met all requirements of the Act necessary to supplement the Original 
Assessment Roll with the Supplemental Assessment Roll and levy assessments on the properties 
with Construction Improvements, and the Hearings Examiner's Report and the Supplemental 
Assessment Roll should be approved. 

I. The public hearing of the District on the advisability of the District supplementing 
the Original Assessment Roll with the Construction Improvements and levying an 
assessment against such properties based on the 20 I 6 HCAD certified appraised 
values, was held and all necessary and appropriate notice thereof was given under 
the authority of and in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

2. The Board is authorized to supplement the Original Assessment Roll, to conduct 
the Hearing, and to levy assessments for services and improvements in 
accordance with the Petition and the Original Order. 

4 
#5346212.1 



3. In order to accomplish and effectuate the purposes for which the District was 
created as set forth in the Act, the Hearings Examiner's Report should be 
approved in its entirety, the 2016 Assessment Roll should be approved and the 
assessment on properties with Construction Improvements should be levied by the 
Board for Year 4 based on the 2016 HCAD certified appraised values of such 
properties. 

4. The method of apportioning costs on the basis of valuation of property as shown 
on the tax rolls of the Harris County Appraisal District for services and 
improvements will result in the reasonable apportionment of the costs and in 
imposing equal shares of the costs of the Service Plan on properties similarly 
benefited and results in a reasonable classification and formula for the 
apportionment of the costs of the various classes of services and improvements 
proposed to be provided to the benefited property within the District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 THAT: 

Section I. Findings and Adoption of Hearings Examiner's Report. The recitals, 
findings of fact and conclusions of law in the preamble of this Order are hereby found and 
determined to be true and correct. The matters, facts, and recommendations of the Hearings 
Examiner's Report, which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, are hereby accepted and the Hearings 
Examiner's Report and Proposal for Decision is hereby approved. 

Section 2. Assessment Roll. The Original Assessment Roll is hereby supplemented 
with the Construction Improvements shown on the Supplemental Assessment Roll. The 2016 
Assessment Roll is hereby approved as the assessment roll ofthe District. The 2016 Assessment 
Roll as approved is incorporated in this Order by reference. 

Section 3. Levy of Assessments on Construction Improvements. The Board hereby 
levies upon the Construction Improvements shown on the Supplemental Assessment Roll an 
assessment for Year 4 at the rate of $0.15 per $ I 00 assessed valuation, which rate was adopted 
by the Board on November 10, 2016. 

Section 4. Collection of Assessments. Equi-Tax, Inc., the District's 
Assessor/Collector, is hereby authorized and directed to collect the assessments on behalf of the 
District and to take all necessary actions in connection therewith. The procedures for the 
collection of assessments, for the calculation and imposition of penalties and interest, and for the 
enforcement of assessments, penalties and interest through a lien against the property assessed, 
contained in the Original Order are hereby confirmed. 

Section 5. Severability. If any provision, section, subsection, sentence, clause, or 
phrase of this Order, or the application of same to any person or set of circumstances is for any 
reason held to be unconstitutional, void, or invalid, the validity of the remaining portions of this 
Order or their application to other persons or sets of circumstances shall not be affected thereby, 
it being the intent of the Board in adopting this Order that no portion hereof, or provision or 
regulation contained herein shall become inoperative or fail by reason of any unconstitutionality, 

5 
#5346212.1 



voidness, or invalidity of any other portion hereof, and all provisions of this Order are declared 
to be severable for that purpose. 

Section 6. Notice. The Board officially finds, determines, recites, and declares that 
sufficient written notices of the date, hour, place, and subject of this meeting of the Board were 
posted at places convenient to the public at the Harris County Clerk's Office and in the District 
for the time required by law preceding this meeting, as required by the Open Meetings Law, 
Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, and that this meeting has been open to the public as 
required by law at all times during which this Order and the subject matter thereof has been 
discussed, considered, and formally acted upon. The Board further ratifies, approves, and 
confirms such written notice and the contents and posting thereof. 

(Signature Page Follows) 

6 
#5346212.1 



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this I 0th day of November, 2016. 

Chairman, Board of Directors 
Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

ATTEST: 

Secretary, Board of Directors 
Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

7 
#5346212.1 



Exhibit A - Hearings Examiner's Report and Proposal for Decision 

8 
#5346212.1 



CERTIFICATE FOR ORDER 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF HARRIS § 

I, the undersigned officer of the Board of Directors of Harris County Improvement District No. 9, 
hereby certify as follows: 

1. The Board of Directors of Harris County Improvement District No. 9 convened in regular 
session on the 10th day of November, 2016, at the regular meeting place thereof, inside the boundaries of 
the District, and the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and members of the Board to-wit: 

Danny R. Perkins President 
Helen Bonsall Vice President 
Sue DeHaven Secretary 
Jesus H. Saenz, Jr. Director 
Ann Collum Director 
Marjorie Evans Director 
Joe Ed Nelson Director 
Darryl Bailey Director 
Todd Szilagyi Director 
Vic Zachary Director 
Alberto P. Cardenas Director 

and all of said persons were present, except Director(s) _________ , thus constituting a 
quorum. Whereupon, among other business, the following was transacted at the meeting: a written 

ORDER SUPPLEMENTING THE ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR THE HARRIS COUNTY 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 AND LEVYING ASSESSMENTS AGAINST THE 

PROPERTY ON THE SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT ROLL 

was introduced for the consideration of the Board. It was then duly moved and seconded that the order be 
adopted, and, after due discussion, the motion, carrying with it the adoption of the order, prevailed and 
carried unanimously. 

2. That a true, full and correct copy of the aforesaid Order adopted at the meeting described in the 
above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this certificate; that the Order has been duly 
recorded in the Board's minutes of the meeting; that the persons named in the above and foregoing 
paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers and members of the Board as indicated 
therein; that each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified officially 
and personally, in advance, of the time, place and purpose of the aforesaid meeting, and that the Order 
would be introduced and considered for adoption at the meeting, and each of the officers and members 
consented, in advance, to the holding of the meeting for such purpose; that the meeting was open to the 
public as required by law; and that public notice of the time, place and subject of the meeting was given 
as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, and Section 49.063, Texas Water Code. 

#5346212.1 



SIGNED AND SEALED the I 0th day of November, 2016. 

Secretary, Board of Directors 

10 
#5346212.1 



ORDER SETTING THE RATE OF ASSESSMENT FOR ALL 
PROPERTIES ON THE DISTRICT'S ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR YEAR 

FOUR OF THE DISTRICT'S SERVICE PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Harris County Improvement District No. 9 (the "District") was created 
by House Bill 4110, Acts of the 80th Legislature, Regular Session, 2007, for the purpose of 
providing services and improvements in the Hobby Airport area of the City of Houston, and is 
governed by Chapter 375, Texas Local Government Code, as amended, and Chapter 3859, 
Special District Local Laws Code ( collectively, the "Act"); and 

WHEREAS, after appropriate notice was given pursuant to the prov1s10ns of the 
Governing Laws, the Board of Directors of the District (the "Board"), held a public hearing (the 
"Hearing") on November 2, 2016, on the advisability of the District providing services and 
improvement projects (the "Projects") described in the Updated and Ongoing Service and 
Improvement and Assessment Plan Through 2023 (the "Service Plan"), the nature and cost of the 
Projects, the area and property to be benefited by the Projects, the amount of the benefit and the 
proposed time, method and amount of assessments to pay for the Projects; and 

WHEREAS, the Board, at a duly called meeting held on November 14, 2013, adopted an 
order (the "Original Order") approving the Service Plan, an assessment roll for the District, the 
levy of ten annual assessments, and other related matters; and 

WHEREAS, the Original Order provided that the Board may vary the rate of assessment 
for subsequent years from the rate adopted for Year One of the Service Plan, provided that in no 
year may the rate be more than $0.15 per $100 assessed valuation; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to set the rate of assessment for Year Four of the Service 
Plan for all properties on the District's assessment roll. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 THAT: 

Section 1. Assessment Rate for the Year Four. The rate of assessment for Year Four 
of the Service Plan for all properties shown on the assessment roll is hereby set at $0.15 per $ I 00 
of assessed valuation. 

Section 2. Method of Assessment; Caps. The District hereby assesses the properties 
shown on the District's assessment roll on the basis of the 2016 certified taxable values as shown 
on the appraisal rolls of the Harris County Appraisal District; and the total dollar assessment for 
each property is hereby capped at twice the total assessment on such property for the first year 
such property is assessed under the Service Plan. 

Section 3. Due Date. The fourth installment of the District's assessment shall be due 
and payable prior to February 1, 2017. Any assessment not paid by February I, 2017 will be 
delinquent. All delinquent assessments shall incur penalties and interest as provided in the 
Original Order. There will be no split payment of assessments or discounts for the early 
payment of assessments. 

#5346209.J 



Section 4. Collection of Assessments. Equi-Tax, Inc., the District's 
Assessor/Collector, is hereby authorized and directed to collect the assessments on behalf of the 
District and to take all necessary actions in connection therewith. The procedures for the 
collection of assessments, for the calculation and imposition of penalties and interest, and for the 
enforcement of assessments, penalties and interest through a lien against the property assessed 
contained in the Original Order are hereby confirmed and ratified. 

Section 5. Filing with Harris County and TCEO. The District's employees and legal 
counsel are hereby authorized to file all documents regarding the District's assessment rate that 
are required to be filed with Harris County and the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality. 

Section 6. Ratification of Prior Action. All action not inconsistent with this order 
previously taken by the Board, the District, or by the District's employees or Assessor/Collector 
in connection with the matters set forth herein is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. 

(Signature Page Fallows) 

5 
#5346209.I 



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of November, 2016. 

Chairman, Board of Directors 
Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

ATTEST: 

Secretary, Board of Directors 
Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

5 
#5346209.1 



CERTIFICATE FOR ORDER 

THE ST ATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF HARRIS § 

I, the undersigned officer of the Board of Directors of Harris County Improvement District No. 9, 
hereby certify as follows: 

I. The Board of Directors of Harris County Improvement District No. 9 convened in regular 
session on the I 0th day of November, 2016, at the regular meeting place thereof, inside the boundaries of 
the District, and the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and members of the Board to-wit: 

Danny R. Perkins President 
Helen Bonsall Vice President 
Sue DeHaven Secretary 
Jesus H. Saenz, Jr. Director 
Ann Collum Director 
Marjorie Evans Director 
Joe Ed Nelson Director 
Danyl Bailey Director 
Todd Szilagyi Director 
Vic Zachary Director 
Alberto P. Cardenas Director 

and all of said persons were present, except Director(s) --------~ thus constituting a 
quorum. Whereupon, among other business, the following was transacted at the meeting: a written 

ORDER SETTING THE RATE OF ASSESSMENT FOR ALL 
PROPERTIES ON THE DISTRICT'S ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR YEAR 

FOUR OF THE DISTRICT'S SERVICE PLAN 

was introduced for the consideration of the Board. It was then duly moved and seconded that the order be 
adopted, and, after due discussion, the motion, carrying with it the adoption of the order, prevailed and 
carried unanimously. 

2. That a true, full and correct copy of the aforesaid Order adopted at the meeting described in the 
above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this certificate; that the Order has been duly 
recorded in the Board's minutes of the meeting; that the persons named in the above and foregoing 
paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers and members of the Board as indicated 
therein; that each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified officially 
and personally, in advance, of the time, place and purpose of the aforesaid meeting, and that the Order 
would be introduced and considered for adoption at the meeting, and each of the officers and members 
consented, in advance, to the holding of the meeting for such purpose; that the meeting was open to the 
public as required by law; and that public notice of the time, place and subject of the meeting was given 
as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, and Section 49.063, Texas Water Code. 

#5346209.1 



SIGNED AND SEALED the 10th day ofNovember, 2016. 

Secretary, Board of Directors 

5 
#5346209.1 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

9. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRISCOUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Receive an update and recommendations from the Budget Committee. 

a. Consider and approve the FY 20 I 7 budget 

b. Consider and approve an Employee Handbook and a Staff Organizational 
Chart 

c. Authorize the Executive Committee (Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary) to 
finalize all necessary documents to hire staff per the Organizational Chart and 
within the approved budget, for a January I, 2017 start date 

d. Consider an administrative and project manager contract with Hawes Hill 
Calder6n LLP 

e. Consider and approve a contract with S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC, for a 
start date of January 1, 2017 

f. Consider and approve an office lease agreement with 8121 Broadway Interests 
LLC and authorize the Executive Director to expend funds for office equipment, 
furniture, and technology, within the approved budget, to occupy the office and 
equip staff 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

(HARRIS COUN1Y IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT Nur.IBER NINE) 
c/o Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 

P.O. Box 22167 
Houston TX 77227-2167 

713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



FY 2017 Budget Priorities 

Overview: 

Currently the HAMD is managed with contracted professional staff with an Executive Director 
assigned on a full-time basis. Other professional and administrative staff are provided 
incrementally to provide support activities and intergovernmental relations. 

The chair requested the executive director outline a draft budget that would allow for a small 
core of professional level district employees and to utilize contracted staff with Hawes Hill 
Calderon in various support functions to create the most effective and efficient team to move the 
district to the level in terms of organization, performance, and return on investment of the 
district's assessment payers. The budget should also identify areas for increased and/or 
decreased funding to align the budget with the highest priorities of the district. 

The draft budget outlined here, details spreadsheet attached, is aggressive in the funds allotted to 
Public safety, Clean and Green programs, Economic Development, and professionally managing 
the effort while leaving a surplus of $100,000. 

Proposed Draft Budget: 

Public Safety - net increase of $95,464 

• Keeps current level of SEAL Security patrol 
• Adds 32 hours of HPD police patrol by SEAL Security 
• Adds $40,000 for special operations to include super bowl, hot spots, joint task force, 

high concentration patrol, etc. 
• Adds two additional cameras monitored by SEAL Security 

• Eliminates the County Attorney program to return to the City Attorney program which is 
provided at no cost 

Mobility, Environmental Design, Mobility - net increase of $217,500 

• Adds vacuum street sweeping of all major corridors twice per month 
• Adds corridor maintenance for Broadway at required level as well as flood control 

easements along Monroe, Bellfort, and potentially Gulf Freeway at some level 

Business and Economic Development - net decrease of-$81,200 

• Several areas adjusted to reduce duplication of staff 

Administration and Staffing- net increase of $274,388 

• Adds three full time staff and 1.28 FTE w/HHC contract support 
• Adds office lease and equipping 



Projected Year FY 2017 +/-
FY 2016 End DRAFT 2017 to I Explanation 
Budget Expenditures Budget 2016 

Ordinary Income/Expense 

Income 

M&O SOURCES OF FUNDS 

4000 · District Assessments 1,708,786 0 1,825,614 116,828 
4010 · Penalty & Interest Revenue 36,000 0 36,000 0 
4020 · Overpayments 66,000 0 66,000 0 
4030 · Assessment Refunds -66,500 0 -66,500 0 

4050 · Grant and Donations 66,300 0 0 Orunds from closing chamber hobbyfest account deposited into HAIC 
4060 • Interest Revenue 500 4,438 4,500 4,000 Better rates than projected 

Total M&O SOURCES OF FUNDS 1,aH,oa6 4,438 1,86~,614 
Total Income 1,811 ,086 4,438 1,865,614 54,528 

1~744~786 -----" Expense 

M&O USES OF FUNDS 

Public Safety 

6010 · Contract Public Safety 202,180 202,180 219,024 16,884 1st increase of base contract. Adds 311 items and street light reporting at 
no additional costs. 

6012 · HPD Patrol 
I 

91,520 91 ,520 Adds 32 hrs of police patrol per week 

6014 · Special Operations 40,000 40,000 Special ops including Super Bowl, surveilance, high density patrol, etc. 
6015 • Apartment Life Initiatives 25,000 17,500 25,000 0 
6020 • Mobile Cameras 76,800 76,800 81 ,000 4,200 Adds coverage with two more cameras 
6025 • Nuisance Abatement Program 52,500 50,000 0 -52,500 Moved to SEAL contract for HPD Patrol 
6030 • Street Light Outage Survey 2,100 2,100 0 -2, 100 To be provided by SEAL 
6035 • Graffiti Abatement 40,000 35,000 35,000 -5,000 Less usage 
6040 · Project Management 0 0 0 

Total Public Safety 398,580 383,580 491 ,544 92,964 ----- -~,... - ~ -

- -- -
Mobility, Environ, Urban Design 

6050 · Porter Service 125,000 116,339 150,000 25,000rMas,d hea,y t,ash/d"mp;"!J c•a,-ups 
6052 · Corridor and ROW Maintenance 0 0 140,000 140,000 Broadway ($87k), Gulf Freeway, HCFCD 

6054 · Street Sweeping 0 0 75,000 75,000 Major corridors twice monthly 
6055 · Project Management 0 0 0 0 

Total Mobility, Environ, Urban Design 125,000 116,339 365,000 240,000 



-- ... - - .-:-, -- . .. l""' ... -- - --.--~~-.-- -.. ...-.----.··---- - - -- --·--------- ----
Business & Economic Development 

6060 · Economic Developmt Programs 106,000 

6065 · Events 20,000 

6070 · Creative ED Support 102,200 
6075 · Marketing Mtls & Promo Items 28,000 
6080 · Project Management 0 

Total Business & Economic Development 256,200 
--· - -·---· - -~ .... ~ --- -- - - . - ~ C 

Administration 

6110 · Administration & Management 
--

I 
Staff 

Estimated taxes 

Medical Allowance 

HCC Contract 292,512 --
6115 · Meeting Expense 15,000 
6120 · Reimbursable Expenses 6,000 
6125 · Postage 280 
6130 · Office Supplies 5,600 
6135 • Public Notices, Advertising 150 
6140 · Legal Services 45,000 
6145 · Audit Services 6,500 
6150 · Bookkeeping 7,200 

6155 · Assessment Billing 22,500 
6160 · Assessmt Database Mgmt 3,600 
6165 · Office Equipment =-:J 3,000 
6170 · Insurance 1,500 

6172 · Office Lease 0 
6172 · Communication & Technologies 

6175 · Other 250 
Total Administration 409,092 

Notes • contract management to staff w/contract comparison 2016 
Revenue 1,744,786 

-

82,818 

7,956 

77,831 
18,774 

0 

187,379 
:'>" - · .- -

-

164,951 

127,561 

14,185 
16,345 

492 
5,668 

1,494 
38,117 

6,550 
7,950 

32,500 
3,600 

0 
2,200 

0 

0 

421,613 

---....-.~----· 

90,000 

20,000 

45,000 

20,000 
0 

175,000 
~ -

307,000 

26,000 
18,000 

107,500 
16,500 
15,000 

280 
7,500 
1,500 

47,500 
7,550 
9,000 

32,500 

3,600 
30,000 

2,500 
25,800 
25,000 

750 

683,480 

l!UZ 
1,865,614 

-16,000 

1• 
01. 

Covers conferences, seminars, luncheons, outreach, etc 
(Domestic/International) 

-57,200 
-8,000 

-81,200 

142,049 

26,000 
18,000 

-185,012 

1,500 
9,000 

0 

I 

Adds two full lime staff - Eco Devo & Constituent Services Director, and 
Communications, Public Affairs, & Admin. Director 
FICA for three employees 

Three employees x $500 monthly each 
Reduced contracted staffing 

1,900. Accommodates new office start up 
1,350 
2,500 
1,050 
1,800, Adds payroll provision 

2016 amt of 22,500 was a typo. 10,000 : 

0 
27,000, Accommodates new office start up 
1,000 

25,800 IAccommodates new office start up 

Accommodates new office start up 25,000 1, 
500 

274,388 

People Cost contract staff w/contract support 

292,512 3.1 FTE 
351,000 
107,SOO Total 4.3 FTE 

Creative Services 113,700 45,000 
Business Ambassador ~ ~ 

Total costs 431,212 528,500 + 97,288 

People Cost as ¾ of Revenue 24.7% 28.3% +3.6¾ 



1- ~- -"" 
Community Development Fund (For FY2017 change to HAIC as a s ingle line item annual payment) 

Hobby Fest 

6205 · Project Management 0 0 5,000 5,000 
6210 · Committee Support and Supplies 4,000 1,750 5,000 1,000 
6220 · Marketing and Promotional Items 32,000 22,500 25,000 -7,000 
6230 · Creative Services 11 ,500 12,500 0 -11 ,500 

Total Hobby Fest 47,500 36,750 35,000 -12,500 
6250 · Other Community Projects 15,000 0 15,000 0 

Total Community Development Fund 62,500 36,750 ~Moo -12,500rnnual Payment of $50k to HAIC 

Total M&O USES OF FUNDS 1,251 ,372 1,145,661 1,765,024 
Total Projected Revenue 1,865,614 
FY 2017 Surplus Budget 100,590 

Estimated FY 2016 M&O Surplus 105,711 
Sub Total 206,301 

Estimated Capital Surplus 725,493 

General Fund Planned Reserves 931,794 

~ 
BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 

7005 • General Fund Planned Reserves 711,820 0 931,794 
7010 · Lighting Reimbursement 134,678 0 134,678 lexpected 2017 
7015 · Broadway Hardscape Reimbursement 557,432 0 557,432 expected 2017 
7020 · Gen Fund Trsf to Capital Budget -1,220,856 0 -1,557,500 

Total BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 183,074 0 66,404 



CAPITAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 
8001 • Transfer from General Fund 1,220,856 0 1,557,500 

Total CAPITAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 1,220,856 0 1,557,500 
CAPITAL USES OF FUNDS 

Design and Engineering Services 

8010 • General Engineering Services 60,000 20,000 60,000 
8012 • Esplanade Design 37,500 0 37,500 
8014 • Metro Engineering Design 22,500 60,000 20,000 
8016 · Signage and Identity Design 45,000 45,000 60,000 1Street signs, site furniture, bike racks 

Total Design and Engineering Services 165,000 125,000 177,500 
Mobility, Environ, Urban Design 

8048 • Livable Centers Grant Match 53,750 55,363 0 
#### Eco Devo Strategic Plan 25,000 Follows and Builds on Livable Centers study 

Builds on Livable Centers and Eco Deva Strategic Plan. Seek match from 
#### Placemaking Study 100,000 TIRZ for 1 OOk 
- Market Feasibility Study 50,000 Test various target industries 
#### Materials Prep 30,000 
8055 • Project/Contract Management 152,106 125,000 200,000 
8063 · Esplanade Enhancement 250,000 25,000 50,000 
8065 • METRO Bus Shelter Enhancement 150,000 0 400,000 I 14 major and 4 minor shelters 
8070 · Signage and/or Identity Install 300,000 125,000 200,000 
#### Gateway Monuments 0 
#### Streetscape Assessories 35,000 
#### Neighborhood Signs 40,000 40,000 
8090 • Fund Reserve ~ District Office 150,000 0 250,000 

Total Mobility, Environ, Urban Design 1,055,856 370,363 1,380,060 

Total CAPITAL USES OF FUNDS 1,220,856 495,363 1,557,500 



Salary Survey* 

Executive Directors** 

Greater East End - $ 185,000 

Memorial - $ 159,000 

Midtown - $ 139,050 (2011 salary) 

Other Senior staff members 

COO-$ $175,000 (Downtown) 

Compliance Director - $ 161,500 (Galleria) 

Planning Director - $ 150,000 (Greater East End) 

Operations Director - $ 148,500 (Downtown) 

Parks Director - $ 157,500 (Galleria) 

* Downtown, Galleria, Westchase, Energy Corridor, Upper Kirby executive 
directors make between $200,000 - $299,500 per year plus medical and various 
types of retirement plans. 

* *Current compensation for Jerry Lowry is $141,000 annually. 

Ranges of local management district base salary for similar positions 

Director of Eco Devo & Constituent Services - $70,000 - $94,500 annually 

Director of Communications, Public Affairs & Admin -$86,500- $116,000 annually 



Hobby Area Management District 

Staffing & Committee Responsibilities Chart 

Hobby Area 
Improvement Corp. 



JOB DESCRIPTION 

Position: Executive Director 

Reports to: Chair, Board of Directors 

FLSA Status: Exempt Updated: June 2016 

Summary: As Senior Staff Officer provide the overall vision to, and management of, the various district 
departments, personnel or consultants as well as developing relationships with regional, state and local 
community partners in collaborative efforts to improve the Hobby area. Additionally serves as the Executive 
Director of the Hobby Area Improvement Corporation (HAIC), a 50 I c3 non-profit foundation, created by the 
district to further its efforts to accomplish the vision of the District. 

Concentration Areas/Responsibilities: 

• Visioning/Planning/Implementing - Leading the Efforts 

• Project Identification and Direction 

• Identify Markets to Promote the Hobby Area in Business Recruitment and Expansion Opportunities 

• Relationships with Elected/ Appointed Officials and respective staffs 

• Representing Hobby at the Regional Level 

• Spokesperson for the District and HAIC 

Marketing the District to Prospective Developers, Investors, Tenants, and Residents 
Hearing the Concerns/Wishes of Area Employees/Residents 
Attracting Brokers/Investors 
Retaining Owners and Tenants 
Building a Consensus on Issues Affecting the Area 

• Board Development and Volunteer Recruitment for HAMD and HAIC 

• Administration and Compliance for HAMD and HAIC 

• Evaluating the Need for Additional Legislative Authority to Assist the District in Meeting its Objectives 

• Directing the Efforts and Ensuring that District Staff/Consultants are Provided the Tools Essential for 
Efficiency and Quality of Work 

• Work with the Board ofHAMD and/or HAIC and its committees to plan and then implement projects 

• Reports on a regular basis to the Board of Directors ofHAMD and HAIC regarding the status of 
operational activities and the district's finances. 

• Other duties may include, but not limited to, event support, special/temporary assignments due to various 
district/departmental needs, and other projects as assigned by the Chair. 



Position: 
Reports to: 
Updated: 

Job Description 

Director, Economic Development & Constituent Services 
Executive Director 
October 2016 

Position Summary: 
The Director, Economic Development & Constituent Services is responsible for managing various aspects of the District's 
Economic Development program, including the Business Retention and Expansion Program as well as providing research 
support and maintains demographic information for the District. Additionally, the position manages various field services 
related contracts, such as, but not limited to identity markers, way finding signage, landscaping, litter and graffiti 
abatement, and similar duties as directed by the Executive Director. 

Primary Duties & Responsibilities: 
• Manage the Business Retention and Expansion Program. Schedule and complete site interviews with companies 

and maintain a comprehensive database. 

• Identify challenges for specific businesses to develop strategies and facilitate solutions in order to retain Hobby 
businesses and attract those outside the area. 

• Provide research and reports needed to assist the District to respond to domestic and international leads. 

• Prepare packet submissions to Request for Information from Greater Houston Partnership, Office of Governor, or 
others providing leads to the district. 

• Provide follow up communication to lead responses as needed. 

• Develop a real estate broker program to keep them routinely apprised of opportunities as well as to offer 
assistance. 

• Conduct various research activities and generate reports and studies as needed for marketing purposes. 

• Maintain current demographic and other pertinent information and files for marketing purposes, such as City 
demographics, site-specific demographics, information on city and regional educational facilities, tax information, 
incentives, etc. 

• Manage District activities related to stakeholder groups in the Hobby area 

• Identifying local workforce issues and working with companies, colleges, local and state government entities to 
develop programs to meet workforce needs. 

• Develop information related to various incentives from local or federal agencies as well as prepare and submit 
grant applications for areas which impact the economic health of the Hobby Area to governmental agencies or 
other entities such as foundations, corporations, endowments. 

• Manage operations and maintenance contracts for the Hobby Clean and Green Program. 

• Develop relationships with city and state agencies to enhance the level of care provided to the Hobby Area and 
develop appropriate supplemental projects. 

• Maintain the District's contact database. 

• Staff lead for the Business & Economic Development Committee of which Marketing is a part as well as 
supervise the Business Ambassador program. 

Other Duties 
• May include, but not limited to, event support, special/temporary assignments due to various district/departmental 

needs, and other projects as assigned by the Executive Director. 

I 



POSITION REQUIREMENTS: 

I. Bachelor's degree in Economic Development, Business Administration, Public Administration, or other related field. 
A Master's Degree and/or a Certified Economic Developer designation is preferred. 

2. Five or more years of related experience, preferably with a demonstrated and quantifiable record of job retention 
and/or creation. 

3. Understanding oflegislative process and how to work with elected officials. 

4. Strong writing skills. Experience writing articles and press releases related to economic development. 

5. Must be a self-starter with strong oral communications, persuasion, and sales skills. Ability to multitask and be highly 
organized. 

6. Computer skills with proficiency in Microsoft Office (Excel, Word, PowerPoint, Outlook) and experience with 
Synchronist Business Information System, Constant Contact and other programs. 

7. Knowledge of available workforce and entrepreneurship programs is preferred. 

8. Understanding and experience with various incentive programs offered by local, state or federal agencies. 

9. Experience managing service contracts. 

2 



Job Description 

Position: Director, Communications, Public Affairs, & Administration 

Reports to: Executive Director 

FLSA Status: Exempt Updated: October 2016 

Position Summary: 
Under the direction of the Executive Director, the Director manages, supervises and directs the 
operations of the department to effectively support, market and communicate initiatives 
undertaken by all District departments; coordinates assigned office administration activities; 
cultivates positive relationships with the District Board of Directors and provides highly 
responsible and complex support to the Executive Director. 

Primary Duties & Responsibilities: 

Administration and Planning 
• Develop, implement and manage goals, objectives, and priorities for marketing and 

public affairs programs. 
• Implement, monitor and evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery 

methods and procedures. 
• Manage vendor contracts executed to support departmental activities. 
• Forecast, develop and manage the department's annual budget. 
• Plan, organize and direct the department's daily administrative activities. 
• Manage the District central contact database 

Marketing & Social Media 
• Develop and execute comprehensive marketing plans that effectively support and 

communicate activities and initiatives undertaken by the District. 
• Negotiate media buys 
• Create advertisements for target publications 
• Oversee creation and distribution of District newsletters 
• Oversee development, distribution and maintenance of District website, publications, e-

newsletters, social media sites and other online communication outlets 
• Oversee assembly and distribution of marketing packets and promotional materials 
• Oversee development and updating of PowerPoint presentations 
• Produce graphic elements of publications, presentations, Web sites and e-newsletters 
• Design flyers, promotional displays, brochures and forms for District departments 
• Ensure marketing and communications elements of District sponsorships and 

memberships are fulfilled 

Public Affairs 
• Foster positive working relationships with area media outlets 
• Manage writing and issuing press releases and media alerts 
• Prepare staff for interviews and inquiries, including developing message points 
• Serve as the District's Public Information Officer (PIO) by interacting with media or 

coordinating the appropriate staff or board member for interviews, meetings, etc. 

I 



Event Planning 
• Stage breakfasts, luncheons or other meetings to inform media, commercial real estate 

professionals, community leaders and/or the public about Greenspoint activities and 
development including: 

o District's annual Public Hearing 
o Annual Volunteer Appreciation event 
o District Economic Development events 
o Ribbon cuttings/grand openings/milestone celebrations 

• Solicit sponsorships for events 
• Negotiate room and meal rates on behalf of the District 
• Design invitations, programs, sponsor boards and other materials for events 

Board and Committee Relations 
• Manage District Marketing and Public Affairs Committee 
• Provide support to the President for quarterly meetings of the District Board of Directors 

and Executive Committee, including develop agendas, manage onsite meetings and 
prepare meeting minutes 

Office Administration 
• Oversee administrative aspects of the Hawes Hill Calderon contract, including but not 

limited to records management, bookkeeping, minutes, board or committee materials, etc. 
• Administer contracts and oversee purchase, service and maintenance of office systems 

and equipment 
• Manage purchase of office furniture, furnishings and supplies for the District office. 
• Oversee office lease agreement, parking, building access, office repairs and maintenance. 
• Ensure District office presents a professional atmosphere 

Other 
• Other duties as assigned may include, but not limited to, event support, special/temporary 

assignments due to various district/departmental needs, and other projects as assigned by 
the Executive Director or designee. 

2 



~--~ ~ T " 'i!f'), :- ~ 
'.I !' ., " ~ M ,J ; ; - (1, 
~ •\ 

~ ~ :i ~~J ii 

·, --:·\-. 
1
.-- -.-"";- : --··~ 7 -- : -.. \ - ·-- :-, ..... _,·--

1
---~-·-r, J,.-,..--/~ 

•1 j ..... "' ·{ • ·-' ...... .. / ! '\ T- • .1 .. ·-.. , ,I,; '. 
-· ~/ ~_·, · · ·- -· .. -·' --· - - _.:__,; _,_'_,] _, ___ ___ ,e_, _ _.;_ . -- · __ · .. _ ... '\_ . __ !,. _ .. 

This handbook and its contents are subject to modification, revision or omission at the discretion of the 
Hobby Area Management District at any time after its effective date; therefore, employees cannot and 

should not rely on its contents as a continuing right during their employment with the District. 

This handbook remains the property of Hobby Area Management District. 

IU.cfistricr.org 



Hobby Area Management District 

Staffing & Committee Responsibilities Chart 

.. ·. · .· · Hobby Area· · . 
: .... JmproyementCprp .. · . 

/1.lTh,m 



AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 

dba "HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT" 
AND HA WES HILL CALDERON LLP 

This Amended and Restated Agreement is made and entered into by and between Harris County 
Improvement District No. 9, dba "Hobby Area Management District, (the "District") a special purpose 
district created by the 80th Regular Texas Legislative Session, and Hawes Hill Calderon LLP, (the 
"Contractor"). This Agreement is effective as of January I, 2017, (the "Effective Date") and supersedes 
any previous agreements. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the District desires that the Contractor provide the District with certain professional 
and administrative services; 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has the employees, office operations, and knowledge to ably provide 
the professional and administrative services required by the District; 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants and 
agreements herein contained, it is agreed as follows: 

I. 
Engagement of Contractor 

The District hereby engages the Contractor, and the Contractor hereby agrees to provide, furnish, 
or perform certain professional and administrative services with respect to the District including the 
services described on Exhibit A, annexed hereto. Such services herein collectively referred to as the 
"Services." 

II. 
Compensation and Reimbursement to Contractor 

For and in consideration of the Professional Consnlting and District Management Services to 
be performed by the Contractor specified in Exhibit "A," Scope of Professional Consulting and 
Management Services, of this Agreement, the District agrees to pay the for professional consulting 
services performed in connection with the District's operations at the rate determined and established by 
the Board of Directors and adopted in the District's operating budget each fiscal year. 

Reimbursable out-of-pocket expenses and other expenses and charges incurred by the Contractor 
in performing the Services under this Agreement shall be made on a monthly basis upon submission by 
the Contractor of invoices and other documentation setting forth such expenses and charges; provided, 
however, all expenses and charges proposed to be incurred by the Contractor for the performance of the 
Services shall be subject to the District's prior written approval. The Schedule of Maximum Charges and 
Rates of Hawes Hill Calderon LLP for the performance of the Services by the Contractor under this 
Agreement as set forth on Exhibit "B" attached hereto for reference are hereby approved by the District. 
The District expressly disclaims any liability for reimbursement to the Contractor of any amounts in 
excess of those approved in writing by the District. 

- I -



Contractor shall tender to the District a detailed invoice of the services performed and the 
allowable reimbursable expenses incurred to the District each month during the term of this Agreement. 
Payments on account of services rendered and for reimbursable expenses incurred shall commence upon 
receipt of district funds and be made within fifteen (15) days after the District receives Contractor's 
detailed invoice therefore. In the event of a disputed or contested invoice, the District may withhold any 
such disputed or contested amount without penalty. 

III. 
Administrative Policies and Procedures 

The Contractor shall conduct the administrative activities of the District in accordance with the 
instructions and guidance of the District. 

IV. 
Accounts, Records, Accounting Reports and Audits 

The Contractor shall maintain the books of records and accounts of the District in order to 
establish the amount due by the District to the Contractor in accordance with this Agreement. All such 
records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall be 
clearly identified and readily accessible. The Contractor shall provide free access to the District and allow 
for inspection and audit of all work, data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to this 
Agreement. Such right of access and audit shall continue for a period three (3) years from the date of 
termination of this Agreement. 

V. 
Compliance With Applicable Laws Concerning Management Districts 

The Contractor, in performance of its duties under this Agreement for the District, will comply 
with all applicable provisions of Texas law concerning municipal management districts under which the 
District is created. 

VI. 
Right of Ownership 

All data, information, maps, books, reports, files, photography, artwork, software, equipment, and 
materials purchased, created or maintained by the District or purchased, created or maintained by the 
Contractor on behalf of the District shall remain the property of the District. It shall be clearly marked as 
property of the District in such manner that it may at any time be removed from the premises of the 
Contractor. 

-2-



VII. 
Laws to be Observed 

In performing its obligations under this Agreement, the Contractor at all times shall observe and 
comply with all federal and state laws, local laws, ordinances, orders, and regulations of the federal, state, 
county, or city governments. The federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, and regulations which affect 
those engaged or employed in the work, or the equipment used in the work, or which in any way affects 
the conduct of the work, shall be at all times in effect, and no pleas of misunderstanding will be 
considered on account of ignorance thereof. 

VIII. 
Successors and Assigns 

This Agreement shall bind and benefit the respective parties and their legal successors, and shall 
not be assignable, in whole or in part, by any party hereto without first obtaining the written consent of 
the other party. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any personal liability on the part of any 
officer or director of the District. 

IX. 
Character of Workers and Work 

Services provided for under this Agreement are being performed for the public benefit. The 
employees provided by the Contractor shall be competent and careful workers skilled in their respective 
trades. In performing its obligations under this Agreement, the Contractor shall not employ any person 
who engages in misconduct or is incompetent or negligent in the performance of his or her duties. The 
District retains the right to require the Contractor to remove from the performance of services provided 
for under this Agreement any employee who engages in (I) unethical or unprofessional conduct, (2) 
misconduct or other discourtesies toward the public, (3) conduct inconsistent with sound business 
practices or ( 4) other conduct inconsistent with the performance of work in an acceptable manner and at a 
satisfactory rate of progress to the District. Nothing herein is intended to, and the parties agree that this 
Agreement does not, create any third party beneficiary rights for any employee or other person. It is 
intended that any employee who engages in any services provided for under this Agreement is an 
employee-at-will of the Contractor. 

X. 
Conflict of Interest 

In keeping with Contractor's duties to the District, Contractor agrees that it shall not, directly or 
indirectly, become involved in any conflict of interest, or upon discovery thereof, allow such a conflict to 
continue. Moreover, Contractor agrees that it shall promptly disclose to the District any facts which might 
involve any reasonable possibility of a conflict of interest. 

-3-



XL 
Disclaimer of Political Support or Affiliation 

The District expressly disclaims any political support or affiliation with the Contractor. Further, 
the District prohibits the Contractor, and the Contractor hereby agrees to comply with such prohibition, 
from expending any District funds, directly or indirectly, including any funds to be reimbursed by the 
District, on any political candidate, cause, party, organization, or activity. 

XII. 
Term and Termination 

This Agreement shall become effective on the I st day of January, 2017, and shall continue in 
force until either party terminates the Agreement by giving a sixty- (60) day written notice to the other. If 
this Agreement is terminated, Contractor shall be paid for all reimbursable expenses and work performed 
up to the date of termination. 

XIII. 
Amendment or Modification 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, this Agreement shall be subject to change, 
amendment, or modification only upon the written consent of the parties hereto. 

DATED to be effective as of this ___ day of _______ __, 2017. 

HA WES HILL CALDERON LLP 

By:. ____________ _ 

Name: DAVID W. HA WES 
Title: SENIOR PARTNER 

-4-

HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
NO. 9 dba "HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT" 

By:. _____________ _ 

Name: DANNY J. PERKINS 
Title: CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF DIRECTORS 



Exhibit "A" 
Scope of Professional Consulting aud Management Services 

Hawes Hill Calderon LLP will provide the following services: 

General Administration aud Management 

• Assist Executive Director in the administer the day-to-day operations of the District 

• Employ, assign and supervise a qualified professional staff member to serve the District 
operations as prescribed by the Executive Director. 

• Oversee all accounting and financial administration procedures of the District, working closely 
with the District's bookkeeper and Investment Officer; monitor compliance with Public Funds 
Investment Act and Public Funds Collateral Act 

• Assist Executive Director to administer the District's budget, including tracking income and 
monthly expenses in reference to the annual budget, monitoring assessment collections and 
District expenses, preparing budget reports, and assisting with annual budget preparation 

• Arrange for the District's independent audit, providing necessary information and documentation 

• Establish District's Records Management Program, respond to routine requests for public 
information and monitor compliance with Public Information Act; maintain files on behalf of the 
District 

• Monitor changes and comply with all regulations and reporting requirements of Secretary of 
State, Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, Harris County, City of Houston and other 
regulatory bodies 

• Coordinate and work closely with District's executive director and legal counsel in all matters of 
law coming before the District, including public hearings, statutory filings, etc. 

• Coordinate and staff all meetings of the District's Board of Directors and its committees, if any, 
including the following 

• Assist in preparation of board meeting agendas and ensure proper notification is made in 
accordance with state statutes and such other governing documents as may apply 

• Take and prepare minutes of Board meetings; prepare resolutions; assemble reports and 
information packets for use at Board meetings 

• Make physical arrangements for meetings 

• Prepare requests for qualifications and requests for proposals for contract services as needed and 
as determined by the Board of Directors 

• Assist in providing administrative management oversight for all contractors, including public 
infrastructure construction contractors, security services, landscape services, and others 

-5-



Exhibit "B" 
Schedule of Maximum Charges and Rates 

of Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 

General Administration and Management 

Construction and Project management services 

GISMapping 

Special Events and/or other marketing assistance 

TPIA Requests 

as approved in HAMD's annual budget 

5% of total project Budget 

$150.00/Hour 

$85.00/Hour 

$130.00/Hour 

Out-of-pocket expenses including, without limitation, the following: 

• Prints, photocopies, reproductions, graphics, art supplies 
• Postage, deliveries 
• Posting, filing and submittal fees 
• Publication of public notices 
• Parking fees and tolls 
• Costs of food, beverage for district meetings 
• Travel, lodging and incidentals 

Automobile mileage directly attributable to this project shall be charged at the current rate allowable 
under Internal Revenue Service regulations. 

-6-



S.E .A.L. Security Solutions LLC TXPSB IIC15942-1525 Blalock Road • Houston. Texas 77080 
US: (713) 979-2388• Fax: (713) 583-9365 • Toll Free: (866) 949-0895, Email: Ashley@sealsecur ity.com 

SECURITY PROPOSAL/RECOMMENDATION 

Hobby Area Management District 

S.E.A.L. SECURITY PROPOSAL 

9/30/2016 Page 1 of6 
Prepared for: Jeny Low1y, Executive Director 
Phone: {713)-595-1214 

ABOUT US 

Experience 
Since day one, our knowledge and expertise in security solutions has been the lifeline of our business. When you work 
with Seal Security, you can rest assured that your security will be analyzed by one of the industry's most experienced and 
trusted sources. Most all of our officers are former military or police, our technology- "State of the Art", and our K-9 teams 
- top in the world 

Integrity 
Each project brings unique challenges and requires careful attention to detail. We work hand in hand with our clients to 
deliver best-in- class security services. Our team will work in concert with you to customize a competitively price plan to 
fit your unique security needs. SEAL Security is building confidence through experience, expertise, technology, and results 

Relationships 
At SEAL Security, our clients are the foundation for our success and fostering strong business in the future. As a client, 
our SEAL Security name lies in your hands. Our success is providing the best in security and safety for your community, 
district, business, property, residence, capitol, and construction project - it is job #1 

Prepared by Ashley M otes- * Proposals are good for 60 days I www. Sea1Secur ity.com IAshley@sealsecurity.com I 
1 



S.E.A.L. Securit v Solutions LLC TXPSB liC15942- 1525 Blalock Road • Houston, Texas 77080 
US: (713) 979- 2388• Fax: (713) 583-9365 - Toll Free: (866) 949-0895, Email : Ashley@sealsecurity.com 

SECU RITY PROPOSAL/RECOMMENDATION 

S.E.A.L. Security Services 

Commercial I Residential I School & Church I Event I Industrial I Utility Districts I Work Place 

Armed Officer Patrol Services : 

Uniformed, Fit, 
Commission & 
Armed Security 
Guards 
Authority to Arrest 
Marked & Visible 
Patrol Cars 

K-9 Patrol Units: 

Officers are on GPS 
patrol - every 4 
minutes 
Pro-Active, Vigilant 
Neighborhood -
Community 
Involvement 
Emergency 24/7 
Hotline 

Dual Purpose: Bomb, Tracking, or Drug Detection 

Camera Surveillance & Video Monitoring 

Dedicated 
Command Center 
Vacation Watch, Bank 
Deposit Pickup, 
Welfare Check Ins 
Safety Escort 
Safety Education 

Live Surveillance & Video Monitoring Technology that comes with Armed SEAL Officer 
Response or Law Enforcement. 24/7 dedicated hotline, Monitoring Analytics, Alerts, and 
Lights/ Back up power options 
Solar and Electric- "Plug and Play" standard models 
Standard to advance 5 HD/ Digital PTZs with Night Vision and Advanced Analytics 
Lights Only "Parking Lot "Security Units or Video Capture Only Mobile Units 
Fixed Camera Solutions- Integration 

Other Services: 
Security Planning, Design, and Implementation 
Executive, Work Place, Security Assessments, Consulting, Individual Protection 

Speaking Engagements: for communities & groups that want to learn more about living a 
more safe and secure life 
Piracy Protection 

Projects 
- Balfour Beatty Construction 
- Caldwell Companies 
- 5 Corners 
- Hobby 
- Kings Bridge MUD 
- Oak Forest 
- Spring Branch 
.... and over 100+ Districts, Communities, and Construction projects currently in and around Houston and 
Surrounding areas 

Prepared by Ashley Motes- *Proposals are good for 60 days I www.SealSecurity.com I Ashley@sealsecurity.com I 
2 



SECURiTY PROPOSAL /REC0fVll\i1Ei\iD1\T!Oi\i 

Jerry Lowry 
Executive Director 
Hobby Area Management District 
Phone: (713)-595-1214 
JLowry@HAdistrict.org 
www.hadistrict.org 

9/30/2016 

Mr.Lowry, 

Greetings. 

To follow are formalized 2017 budget proposals from SEAL Security for the Hobby district as 
discussed: 

1. 2017 Budget Proposal for SEAL Security Patrol with HPD services 
2. 2017 Budget Proposal for Special Operations 
3. 2017 Budget for Camera security and monitoring service. 

If you would like any changes to these proposals, please do not hesitate to let us know. I will follow up 
with you next week to see if you need anything additional from me or have any questions. 

As always, we thank you for your continued support and effort in building strong partnership between 
SEAL Security and the Hobby Area Management District. 

Respectfully, 

Benjamin Hatfield 
Benjamin@sealsecurity.com 
S.E.A.L. Security Solutions, LLC 
1525 Blalock Road, Houston, TX 77080 
Phone:713-979-2388 

Prepared by Ashley Motes- *Proposals are good for 60 days! www.Sea1Security.com I Ash!ey@sealsecurity.com J 

3 



S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC TXPSB IIC15942- 1525 Blalock Road • Houston, Texas 77080 
US: (713) 979-2388• Fax: (713) 583-9365 · Toll Free: (866) 949-0895, Email: Ashley@sealsecurlty.com 

SECURITY PROPOSAL/RECOMMENDATION 

S.E.A.L. Security Services Proposal 

SEAL SECURITY DISTRICT PATROL INFORMATION 

Prepared for: 

Project: 

Patrol: 

Jerry Lowry 

Executive Director 

Hobby Area Management District 

Phone: (713)-595-1214 

JLowry@HAdistrict.org 

WWW.hadistrict.org 

District Patrol 

Level III Commissioned Security Officers with K9 Unit and Highly 
Marked Vehicles coupled with contracted HPD Officers to patrol the 
Hobby Area District 

One (1) Commissioned Security Officer with K9 Units and Highly 
Marked Patrol Vehicles 

Weekly Hours: 144 

Hourly Rate: $29.25 

One ( 1) Contracted HPD Officer in Highly Marked Patrol Vehicle 

Weekly Hours: 32 

Hourly Rate: $55.00 

Weekly Estimated Net Cost: $5,972.00 

Monthly Estimated Net Cost: $25,878.67 

Annual Estimated Net Cost: $ 310,544.00 

END PATROL INFORMATION: 

Prepared by Ashley Motes- *Proposals are good for 60 days I www.SealSecur ity.com I Ashley@sealsecurity.com I 
4 



S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC TXPSB IIC15942- 1525 Blalock Road •Houston. Texas 77080 
US: (713) 979-2388• Fax: (71 3) 583-9365 - Toll Free : (866) 949-0895, Erna1<. Ashley@sealsecurity.com 

SECURITY PROPOSAL /RECOMM ENDATION 

S.E.A.L. Security Services Proposal 

SEAL SECURITY SPECIAL OPERATIONS INFORMATION 

Prepared for: 

Project: 

Special Operations: 

Jerry Lowry 

Executive Director 

Hobby Area Management District 

Phone: (713)-595-1214 

JLowry@HAdistrict.org 

WWW.hadistrict.org 

Special Operations 

Level III Commissioned Security Officers with K9 Unit and Highly 
Marked Vehicles coupled with contracted HPD Officers to patrol the 
Hobby Area District as needed for special events 

Contracted HPD Or Seal Officers as needed use for Super bowl Patrol 
Coverage, Holidays, Events, And other as needed incidence 

Weekly Estimated Net Cost: $769.23 

Monthly Estimated Net Cost: $3,333.33 

Annual Estimated Net Cost: $40,000.00 

END SPECIAL OPERATIONS INFORMATION: 

Prepared by Ashley Motes- * Proposals are good for 60 days I www. Sea/Security.com I Ashley@sealsecurity.com I 
5 



S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC TXPSB 1105942· 1525 Blalock Road • Houston, Texas 77080 
US: (713) 979-2388• Fax: (713) 583-9365 - Toll Free: (866) 949-0895, Email: Ashley@sealsecurity.com 

SECURITY PROPOSAL /RECOMMENDATION 

S.E.A.L. Security Services Proposal 
SEAL SECURITY CAMERA MONITORING SYSTEMS INFORMATION 
Prepared for: 

Project: 

Jerry Lowry 
Executive Director 
Hobby Area Management District 
Phone: (713)-595-1214 
TLowry@HAdistrict.org 
WWW.hadistrict.org 

Security Camera Monitoring Systems 
Security Type: 

A. Camera and monitoring security: 

7 Security Units / 28 Cameras 

2-Electric IP Camera Mobile Security Systems with Battery Backup 

Each Standard Electric MSU contains 4 PTZ Cameras 

$1.200.00/Month per MSU 

4-Pole Mounted Security Systems with Battery Backup -

Each Standard Pole Mount contains 2 Fixed/2 PTZ Cameras 

$685.00 /month per MSU- Initial installation included: each additional move 
within the contracted year will be $300.00 

1-Solar IP Camera Mobile Security Systems with Battery Backup 

Each Standard Solar MSU contains 4 PTZ Cameras 

$1.500.00/Month per MSU 

24/7 Video Capture (4 weeks), Alarms/ Alerts for Off Working Site Hours, Audio 
Security Announcements and Intervention 

Authorized Remote Viewing: WIFI Free, Cellular 15 GB free per month ($5.00 / GB per 
month thereafter) 

S.E.A.L. Armed officer Response or Contact of Law Enforcement for any Breaches to 
Alerts/ Alarms as set from Post Orders 

24/7 Dispatch Center Hotline 

B. All Equipment Available For Immediate Installation Pending Contract And 
Permission To Place 

Weekly Estimated Net Cost: $1,532.31 

Monthly Estimated Net Cost: $6,640.00 

Annual Estimated Net Cost: $79,680.00 

END CAMERA MONITORING SYSTEMS INFORMATION 

Prepared by Ashley Motes- * Proposals are good for 60 days I www. Sea1Securi ty.com I Ashley@sealsecurity.com I 
6 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
(OFFICE SPACE) 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (OFFICE SPACE) (this "Lease") is made and entered as ofthe.!_day of January, 2017 by 
and between 8121 BROADWAY INTERESTS L.L.C., ("Landlord"), a Texas limited liability company, whose address is 
5116 Bissonnet, Suite 154, Bellaire, TX 77401, and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 ("Tenant"), whose address 
is 8121 Broadway Houston TX 77061, (Suite# 135.) Subject to all of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of 
this Lease, and in consideration of the mutual covenants, obligations and agreements contained in this Lease, and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant 
agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. BASIC LEASE PROVISIONS 

BASE RENTAL shall be calculated on the basis of the price per square foot per year, multiplied by the total Net Ren table 
Area (hereinafter defined) of the Leased Premises (hereinafter defined) throughout the Term (hereinafter defined), 
payable as described in Section 3.0l(b) of this Lease. 

Period 
Months 1-12 
Months 13-24 
Months 25-36 
Months 36-48 
Months 48-60 

Monthly Base Rental 
$2,150.00 
$2,150.00 
$2,150.00 
$2,150.00 
$2,150.00 

TENANT BROKER N/A 

LANDLORD BROKER - Internal 

Period Base Rental 
$25,000.00 
$25.000.00 
$25,000.00 
$25,000.00 
$25,000.00 

BUILDING means the structure containing approximately 29,549 square feet of Net Rentable Area situated upon the 
Land (hereinafter defined), commonly known as 8121 Broadway, located in the City of Houston, County of Harris, State 
of Texas, as the same currently exists or as it may from time to time hereafter be expanded or modified. 

PROJECT means the Building, together with the Land, the parking area serving the Building, all other improvements 
situated on the Land or directly benefiting the Building, and all additional facilities or improvements directly benefiting 
the Building that may be constructed. 

COMMENCEMENT DATE shall mean January I, 2017. 

TERM means thirty-six (36) months, ending December 31, 2019. 

LAND shall mean that certain tract of land, legally describes as TR 32E ABST 27 J R HARRIS situated in Harris 
County, Texas. 

PARKING means zero (4) parking spaces per 1000 sf of occupancy or in the parking area serving the Building as more 
fully described in Section 2.04 hereof. Tenant shall have two (2) designated parking spots for parking police vehicles 

Security Deposit This lease requires a security deposit of $6,450 which must be paid in advance of lease commencement. 
This includes first month rents, last month rents and deposit 

TENANT'S PRO-RA TA SHARE for purposes of this Lease is 5.5% percent. 

BASE YEAR means 2017 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS 

Rent Concessions N/A 

TI Concessions: Install neutral colored laminate flooring, Build out kitchenette with counter and cabinets. 

ARTICLE 2. 

Section 2.01. Leased Premises. Landlord does hereby lease, demise and let to Tenant, and Tenant docs hereby lease and 
take from Landlord, those certain premises containing approximately (1,621) square feet of Net Rentable Area (as defined 
in Exhibit C, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof) located on the 1st floor, of the Building together with the 
nonexclusive use of all rights, privileges, easements, appurtenances and amenities belonging to or in any way pertaining to 
said premises (collectively, the "Leased Premises"). The Leased Premises are outlined on Exhibit B, which is attached 
hereto and made a part hereof. 

Section 2.02. Term. The Term of this Lease shall begin on the Commencement Date and shall continue in full force and 
effect for the Term of this Lease unless extended or sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Lease. 
The term of this lease is thirty-six (36) months. 

Section 2.04. Parking. Throughout the Term, Tenant shall be entitled to use the number of parking spaces specified in 
Article I of the Lease ("Allocated Spaces") in the parking area serving the Building at no additional cost to Tenant. So 
long as no default exists under the Lease, all such parking spaces shall be provided to Tenant for use on an assigned basis. 
Tenant agrees to use such parking spaces in accordance with any and all rules and regulations established by Landlord. 
Landlord shall use all reasonable efforts to insure that the Allocated Spaces (or substitutes therefore) are available to 
Tenant throughout the Term. 

ARTICLE 3. 

Section 3.01. Rental Payments. (a) Installments. Commencing on the Commencement Date and continuing thereafter 
throughout the Term, Tenant shall pay the Base Rental (starting with the first month of the Term for which the Base 
Rental is due and not abated, to which the Prepaid Rental shall be applied), which is due and payable each lease year 
during the Term hereof in twelve (12) equal installments on the first (1st) day of each calendar month of each lease year 
during the Term, and Tenant shall make such installments to Landlord at Landlord's address specified in this Lease (or 
such other address as may be designated by Landlord from time to time) monthly in advance. 

If the Commencement Date is other than the first (1st) day ofa calendar month, or if this Lease terminates on other than 
the last day of a calendar month, then the installments of Base Rental for such months shall be prorated, and the 
installments so prorated shall be paid in advance. The term "lease year" as used herein shall mean a period of twelve (12) 
consecutive full calendar months. The first lease year shall begin on the first day of the first calendar month following the 
Commencement Date (or, if the Commencement Date is the first day of a month, then beginning with such month) and 
each succeeding lease year shall commence upon the same day of each such year. 

(b) Payment; Past Due Rate. The Base Rental, the Additional Rental (hereinafter defined), any Prepaid Rental and any 
and all other payments which Tenant is obligated to make to Landlord under this Lease shall constitute, and are 
sometimes hereinafter collectively referred to as, "Rent". Tenant shall pay all Rent and other sums of money as shall 
become due from and payable by Tenant to Landlord in lawful money of the United States of America at the times and in 
the manner provided in this Lease, without demand, deduction, abatement, setoff, counterclaim or prior notice. All Rent 
under this Lease not paid within 10 days of its due date shall bear interest from the date due until paid at the lesser of 
eighteen percent (18%) or the maximum non-usurious rate of interest then permitted by the applicable laws of the State 
of Texas or the United States of America, whichever shall permit the higher non-usurious rate, and to the extent that such 
maximum non~usurious rate is determined by reference to the laws of the State of Texas, such rate shall be the indicated 
rate ceiling (as defined and described in the Texas Finance Code, as amended) at the applicable time in effect, until paid, 
such interest being in addition to and cumulative of any other rights and remedies which Landlord may have with regard 
to the failure of Tenant to make any such payments under this Lease. 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

Section 3.02. Additional Rental. (a) Definitions. 

(i) 0 Base Operating Expenses" means Operating Expenses (hereinafter defined) for the calendar year 
(the "Base Year"). 2017 

(ii) 0 Base Real Estate Taxes" means Real Estate Taxes (hereinafter defined) for the Base Year. 

(iii) "Real Estate Taxes" means all taxes, assessments and governmental charges, whether or not directly paid by 
Landlord, whether federal, state, county or municipal and whether they are imposed by taxing districts or authorities 
currently taxing the Project or by others subsequently created or otherwise, and any other taxes and assessments, 
assessed against or attributable to the Project or its operation, excluding, however, federal and state taxes on income, 
death taxes, franchise taxes and transfer taxes. 

(iv) "Operating Expenses" means all expenses, costs and disbursements relating to or incurred or paid in 
connection with the ownership and operation of the Project, computed on an accrual basis in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles consistently applied, including but not limited to the following: (a) wages and salaries of 
all persons, if any, engaged in the operation, maintenance, security or access control of the Project, including all taxes, 
insurance and benefits relating thereto; (b) the cost of all supplies, tools, equipment and materials used in the operation 
and maintenance of the Project, including rental fees for the same, if such items arc not purchased and amortized 
pursuant to Section 3.02(a)(iv)(fl below; (c) the cost of all utilities for the Project (excluding those costs billed to specific 
tenants); (d) the cost of all maintenance and service agreements for the Project; (e) the cost of repairs and general 
maintenance, excluding (y) repairs and general maintenance paid by proceeds of insurance, by Tenant or by other third 
parties, and (z) alterations attributable solely to tenants of the Building other than Tenant; (f) amortization of the cost of 
capital investment items which are installed for the purpose of reducing operating expenses, or complying with 
governmental requirements; (g) the cost of all insurance relating to the Project; (h) Landlord's accounting and audit costs 
and attorneys' fees applicable to the Project, but excluding attorneys' fees, accounting fees and expenditures incurred in 
connection with negotiations, disputes, claims of other tenants or occupants of the Project or with other third parties 
other than Tenant; and (i) property management fees for the ProjecL Notwithstanding the foregoing, the term Operating 
Expenses does not include: (1) franchise or income taxes imposed on Landlord's net income, (2) expenses for which 
Landlord is or will be reimbursed by another source (excluding tenant reimbursement for Operating Expenses), including 
but not limited to repair or replacement of any item to the extent covered by warranty; (3) depreciation and amortization 
of the Building and financing and refinancing costs, including interest and principal amortization of debts; (4) leasing 
commissions, advertising expenses and other costs incurred in leasing or procuring new tenants; (5) rental on ground 
leases or other underlying leases; (6) contributions to operating expense reserves or capital reserves; (7) costs of 
renovating or othenvise improving Leased Premises or the Land or vacant space in the Project; (8) costs included in 
Operating Expenses representing an amount paid to any entity related to Landlord which is in excess of the amount 
which would have been paid in the absence of such relationship; and (9) costs, items or amounts which are not reasonable 
in amount or not customarily included in operating expenses for similar type and class properties located in the vicinity of 
the Project. 

(v) "Adjustment Period" means each calendar year occurring during the Term beginning with calendar year 
which shall be the first Adjustment Period. 

vi) "Tenant's Pro Rata Share'' means the percentage calculated by dividing the Net Rentable Area of the Leased 
Premises (numerator) by the Net Rentable Area of the Building (denominator), and expressing the fraction as a 
percentage. 

(b) Gross-Up Adjustment. Operating Expenses shall be adjusted as follows: if occupancy during the Base Year or 
any Adjustment Period is less than ninety-i1Ve percent (95%), then Operating Expenses for that Base Year or Adjustment 
Period shall be "grossed up" to that amount of Operating Expenses that, using reasonable projections, would normally be 
expected to be incurred during the Base Year or Adjustment Period if the Building was ninety-five percent (95%) 
occupied during the Base Year or Adjustment Period, as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles consistently applied. Landlord shall provide in the Statement (hereinafter defined) a reasonably detailed 
description of how the Operating Expenses were grossed up. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, 
only those component expenses that are affected by variations in occupancy levels shall be grossed up (for example and 
not by way of limitation, expenses for insurance for the Project would not be grossed up). 

(c) Base Year Statement. On or before, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant an itemized statement of the Base Operating 
Expenses and Base Real Estate Taxes, and Landlord's calculation of the gross--up adjustment of Base Operating 
Expenses. 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

(d) Payment by Landlord. Subject to reimbursement under Section 3.02(e), Landlord shall pay the Project's Operating 
Expenses and Real Estate Taxes before delinquency. 

(e) Payment by Tenant. If the Operating Expenses and Real Estate Taxes when combined for any Adjustment Period 
exceed the combined total of Base Operating Expenses and Base Real Estate Taxes (any such excess being known 
collectively as the uExpense Increase"), then Tenant agrees to pay Landlord as additional rent (the '"Additional Rental") 
Tenant's Pro Rata Share of the Expense Increase. 

(f) Manner of Payment. 

(i) Landlord may give Tenant notice of Landlord's estimate of amounts payable under this Section 3.02 for each 
Adjustment Period. Landlord's estimate shall be reasonable and based upon generally accepted accounting principles 
consistently applied. If Tenant requests, Landlord shall give Tenant reasonably detailed documentation to support 
Landlord's estimate. By the first day of each month during the Adjustment Period, Tenant shall pay Landlord one
twelfth (1112th) of the estimated amount. If, however, the estimate is not given before the Adjustment Period begins, 
Tenant sha11 continue to pay on the basis of the previous year's estimate, if any, until the month after the new estimate is 
given. 

(ii) Within ninety (90) days after each Adjustment Period ends, or as soon as reasonably practical, Landlord shall 
give Tenant an itemized statement (the "Statement") of Operating Expenses and Real Estate Taxes, and if the Statement 
shows that the actual amount Tenant owes for the Adjustment Period is less than any estimated Expense Increase paid by 
Tenant during the Adjustment Period, Landlord shall return the difference (the "Overpayment"). If the Statement shows 
that the actual amount Tenant owes is more than any estimated Expense Increase paid by Tenant during the Adjustment 
Period, Tenant shall pay the difference (the "Underpayment"). The Overpayment or Underpayment shall be paid within 
thirty (30) days after the Statement is delivered to Tenant. During any Adjustment Period that this Lease is not in effect 
for a complete calendar year, unless it was ended due to Tenant's default, Tenant's obligation for Additional Rental for 
those Adjustment Periods shall be prorated. 

(g) Tenant's Audit Right. Within sixty (60) days (the "Audit Election Period") after Landlord furnishes to 
Tenant the Operating Expenses Statement for any calendar year (including the Base Year), Tenant may, at its expense, 
during Landlord's normal business hours at Landlord's office, elect to audit Landlord's Operating Expenses for such 
calendar year only. Tenant shall deliver a copy of such audit to Landlord within five (5) business days of receipt of the 
audit report by Tenant. This paragraph shall not be construed to limit, suspend, or abate Tenant's obligation to pay Rent 
when due, including estimated Operating Expenses. After verification of Tenant's audit report, Landlord shall credit any 
Overpayment determined by the audit report against the next Rent due and owing by Tenant or, ifno further Rent is due, 
refund such Overpayment directly to Tenant within thirty (30) days of the termination date of this Lease. In the event 
Tenant's audit report reveals that Landlord's calculation of Operating Expenses for the calendar year under inspection 
was overstated by more than five percent (5%) in the aggregate, and Landlord does not agree with the results of Tenant's 
audit report, then Landlord may, within thirty (30) days following receipt of Tenant's audit report, obtain an audit report 
(the "Verifying Audit") of Landlord's Operating Expenses for the calendar year in question by an independent certified 
public accountant selected by Landlord. lfthc Verifying Audit (or Tenant's audit, if not challenged by Landlord through 
a Verifying Audit) reveals an overstatement of Landlord's Operating Expenses in the Statement provided to Tenant by 
more than five percent (5%) for such calendar year, then, in addition to crediting or refunding the Overpayment, 
Landlord will pay the reasonable out-of-pocket costs of Tenant's audit report within thirty (30) days of Landlord's 
receipt of an invoice for same. However, if the Verifying Audit reveals that there is an overstatement in the Landlord's 
Operating Expenses of five percent (5%) or Jess for such calendar year, then Tenant shall pay its own costs incurred for 
the Tenant's audit report, as well as the reasonable out~of-pockct costs incurred by Landlord in obtaining the Verifying 
Audit within thirty (30) days after Landlord delivers an invoice for the Verifying Audit to Tenant. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, Landlord shall be obligated to refund any Overpayment by Tenant of Tenant's share of the Landlord's 
Operating Expenses. If Tenant does not give written notice of its election to audit during the Audit Election Period, 
Landlord's Operating Expenses for the applicable calendar year shall be deemed approved for all purposes, and Tenant 
shall have no further right to review or contest the same. The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of 
this Lease. 

(h) Cap on Controllable Costs. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Lease to the contrary, for 
purposes of computing Tenant's Pro-Ra ta Share of Operating Costs, Controllable Costs (as defined in this paragraph) for 
any calendar year shall not exceed the Cap Amount (as defined in this paragraph) for that calendar year. The "Cap 
Amount" for any given calendar year during the Lease Term shall be an amount determined by increasing the 
Controllable Costs for the calendar year in which the Commencement Date occurs by 7% per annum on a cumulative 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

basis. "Controllable Costs" shall mean all Operating Costs other than the costs of Real Estate Taxes, all insurance related 
costs, all utility and waste collection related costs, and all costs incurred in complying with changes in the law. In 
addition, the Cap Amount shall exclude increases in Controllable Costs resulting from any increases in minimum hourly 
wage rates in effect as of the Commencement Date. 

ARTICLE 4. 

Section 4.01. Services. (a) Services Provided. So long as no default by Tenant under this Lease has occurred and is 
continuing, Landlord shall furnish to Tenant while Tenant is occupying the Leased Premises: 

(i) Domestic water at those points of supply provided for general use of tenants in the Building. 

(ii) Central heat and air conditioning in season from 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, 7:00 a.m. to 
2:00pm on Saturday, subject to curtailment as required by governmental laws, rules or regulations, in such amounts as 
will provide comfortable occupancy of the Leased Premises as determined by Landlord in its reasonable discretion, but 
such service at times during weekdays other than the hours stated above, on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays to be 
furnished only upon request of Tenant, and for such service Tenant shall pay Landlord within 30 days of receipt of 
Landlord's invoice an amount equal to the rate Landlord at that time is charging for such service. Landlord's after-hour 
rate may be adjusted based upon increases in Landlord's actual cost to provide such service. 

(iii) Electric lighting service for all public areas and special service areas of the Building. 

(iv) Janitor service on a five (5) day week basis in a manner consistent with similar properties in the area. 

(v) Equipment and personnel to limit access to the Building after normal business hours; provided, however, 
Landlord shall have no responsibility to prevent, and shall not be liable to Tenant for and shall be indemnified by Tenant 
against liability or loss to Tenant or any of Tenant's Agents arising out of, losses due to theft, burglary or damage or 
injury to persons or property caused by persons obtaining access to the Leased Premises, and Tenant hereby releases 
Landlord from all liability relating thereto, except to the extent caused by Landlord's or any of Landlord's Agents' 
negligence or willful misconduct. 

(vi) Electrical facilities to furnish sufficient power to operate fluorescent lighting, typewriters, voice writers, 
calculating machines, copy machines, telecopy machines, personal computers and other machines of similar low electrical 
consumption in the Leased Premises (total consumption not to exceed six (6) watts per square foot of Net Rcntable Area 
in the Leased Premises); but not including electricity required for special lighting requiring power in excess of Building 
standard and any other item of electrical equipment which (singly) consumes more than O.S kilowatts at rated capacity or 
requires a voltage of more than 120 volts single phase (said equipment will be metered separately and the installation of 
the meter and operating costs will be the obligations of Tenant). If any electrical equipment requires air conditioning in 
excess of Building standard, the same shall be installed at Tenant's expense and Tenant shall pay all costs relating thereto. 
Tenant covenants and agrees that at all times its use of electric current shall never exceed the capacity of existing feeders 
to the Building. 

(vii) All fluorescent bulb and ballast replacement for Building standard lighting in all areas and all incandescent bulb 
replacement in public areas, toilet and restroom areas and stainvells. 

(b) Cessation of Services. To the extent the services described in Section 4.0l(a) of this Lease require electricity, gas and 
water supplied by public utilities, Landlord's covenants hereunder shall only impose on Landlord the obligation to use its 
best efforts to cause the applicable public utilities to furnish the same. Failure by Landlord to furnish the services 
described in this Section 4.01 to any extent, or any cessation thereof, shall not render Landlord in default hereunder or 
liable in any respect for damages to either person or property, or be construed as an eviction of Tenant, or work an 
abatement of Rent, or relieve Tenant from fulfillment of any covenant or agreement hereof, except to the extent caused by 
Landlord's failure to use best efforts to cause the applicable public utilities to furnish the same. In addition to the 
foregoing, should any of the equipment or machinery break down, cease to function properly for any cause, or be 
intentionally turned off for testing or maintenance purposes, Tenant shall have no claim for abatement or reduction of 
Rent or damages on account of an interruption in service occasioned thereby or resulting therefrom. 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

(c) Holidays. The following dates shall collectively be known as "Holidays" and individually known as a"~": New 
Year's Day; Memorial Day; Independence Day; Labor Day; Thanksgiving Day; Friday following Thanksgiving; 
Christmas Day; and any other holiday recognized and taken by tenants occupying at least one-half (1/2) of the Net 
Rentable Area of office space of the Building. If in the case of any Holiday, a different day shall be obsenred than the 
respective day above described, then that day which constitutes the day observed by national banks in the city or 
proximate area in which the Building is located, on account of such Holiday, shall constitute the Holiday under this Lease. 

Section 4.02. Keys and Locks. Landlord shall initially furnish Tenant with ten (10) keys for the standard corridor doors 
serving the Leased Premises and ten (10) key cards for the Building and ten (10) keys for the elevator. Additional keys 
will be furnished by Landlord upon an order signed by Tenant and at Tenant's expense. All such keys shall remain the 
property of Landlord. Without the prior written consent of Landlord, no additional locks shall be allowed on any door of 
the Leased Premises, and Tenant shall not make or permit to be made any duplicate keys, except those furnished by 
Landlord. Upon termination or expiration of this Lease or a surrender of possession of the Leased Premises by Tenant, 
Tenant shall surrender to Landlord all keys to any locks on doors entering or within the Leased Premises and all key 
cards for the Building. 

Section 4.03. Graphics and Building Directory. Landlord shall provide and install initially at Landlord's expense, and 
thereafter, at Tenant's expense, all letters or numerals at the entrance to the Leased Premises, and a strip containing a 
listing of Tenant's name on the Building directory board to be placed in the main lobby of the Building. All such letters 
and numerals shall be in Building standard graphics. No signs, numerals, letters or other graphics shall be used or 
permitted on the exterior of, or which may be visible from outside, the Leased Premises, unless approved in writing by 
Landlord. 

ARTICLE 5. 

Section 5.01. Occuuancv of Leased Premises. Tenant shall throughout the Term of this Lease, at its own expense, 
maintain the Leased Premises and all improvements thereon in the same condition as received on the Commencement 
Date and shall deliver up the Leased Premises in a clean and sanitary condition at the expiration or termination of this 
Lease or the termination of Tenant's right to occupy the Leased Premises by Tenant, in the same condition as received on 
the Commencement Date, reasonable wear and tear excepted. In the event Tenant should neglect to maintain the Leased 
Premises, Landlord shall have the right, but not the obligation, after ten (10) business days' prior written notice to Tenant 
(except for in the case of emergency repairs), to cause repairs or corrections to be made, and any reasonable costs 
therefore shall be payable by Tenant to Landlord on demand. Upon the expiration or termination of this Lease or the 
termination of Tenant's right to occupy the Leased Premises by Tenant, Tenant shall surrender all keys and key cards for 
the Leased Premises and Building to Landlord in accordance with Section 4.02 of this Lease and Landlord shall have the 
right to reenter and resume possession of the Leased Premises. No act or thing done by Landlord or any of Landlord's 
Agents (hereinafter defined) during the Term of the Lease shall be deemed an acceptance of a surrender of the Leased 
Premises, and no agreement to accept a surrender of the Leased Premises shall be valid unless the same be made in 
writing and executed by Landlord. Tenant shall notify Landlord at least fifteen (15) days prior to vacating the Leased 
Premises and shall arrange to meet with Landlord for a joint inspection of the Leased Premises. If Tenant fails to give 
such notice or to arrange for such inspection, then Landlord's inspection of the Leased Premises shall be deemed correct 
for the purpose of determining Tenant's responsibility for repair and restoration of the Leased Premises. 

Section 5.02. Light, Air and View. Neither the diminution nor the shutting off of any light, air or view nor any other 
effect on the Leased Premises by any structure or condition now or hereafter existing on property adjacent to the Leased 
Premises or the Project shall affect this Lease, abate Rent or othenvise impose any liability on Landlord. 

Section 5.03. Entry for Repairs and Inspection. Tenant shall permit Landlord and Landlord's Agents (hereinafter 
defined) to enter into and upon the Leased Premises at all reasonable times for the purposes of inspecting the same or 
showing the same to prospective purchasers or for the purpose of maintaining or making repairs, and the Rent shall in no 
way abate while such inspections, repairs, alterations, improvements or additions are being made, by reason of loss or 
intermption of business of Tenant. 

Section 5.04 Waste and Environmental Compliance. Tenant covenants and agrees to comply strictly and in all respects 
and to cause Tenant's Agents to comply strictly and in all respects with the requirements of any applicable law, statute, 
ordinance, permit, decree, guideline, rule, regulation or order pertaining to health or the environment (hereinafter 
sometimes collectively called "Applicable Environmental Laws"), including, without limitation, the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the 
Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act, the Texas Health and Safety Code, the 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway lnterests LLC and Harris County lmprovement District No. 9 

Texas Natural Resources Code, the Texas Water Code, and regulations promulgated under any of the preceding statutes, 
as each of the foregoing may be amended from time to time. Tenant shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Materials 
(hereinafter defined) to be brought to or generated, treated, stored, used, installed or disposed in, on, under or about the 
Leased Premises or the Project, except that Tenant shall be permitted to use and store small quantities of Hazardous 
Materials typically used in offices (e.g., toner, cleaning products, etc.) provided that such materials are used and stored in 
compliance with Applicable Environmental Laws. Tenant represents, warrants, covenants and agrees that Tenant and 
Tenant's Agents are not and will not become involved in operations at the Leased Premises or the Project locations which 
could lead to the imposition on Landlord or any of Landlord's Related Parties (hereinafter defined) of liability under any 
of the Applicable Environmental Laws or othenvise. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT ALLOWED BY LAW, TENANT 
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT CERTAIN HAZARDOUS MATERIALS MAY EXIST ON THE PROJECT, INCLUDING 
BUT NOT LIMITED TO ASBESTOS-CONTAINING MATERIALS. If Tenant knows, or has reasonable cause to 
believe, that a Hazardous Materials substance has come to be located in, on, under or about the Leased Premises, other 
than as previously consented by Landlord, Tenant shall immediately give written notice of such fact to Landlord, and 
provide Landlord with a copy of any report, notice, claim or other documentation which it has concerning the presence of 
such Hazardous Materials substance. Tenant shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Materials to be spilled or released 
in, on, under, or about the Leased Premises (including through the plumbing sanitary sewer system) and shall promptly, 
at Tenant's expense, take all investigatory and/or remedial action reasonably recommended whether or not formally 
ordered or required, for the cleanup of any contamination of, and for the maintenance, security and/or monitoring of the 
Leased Premises or neighboring properties that was caused or materially contributed to by Tenant, or pertaining to or 
involving any Hazardous Materials brought onto the Leased Premises during the Term by or for Tenant. Tenant shall 
indemnify, defend and hold Landlord, its agents, employees, lenders and ground lessor, if any, harmless from and against 
any and all loss of rents and/or damages, liabilities, judgments, claims, expenses, penalties, and attorneys' and 
consultant'i' fees arising out of or involving any Hazardous Materials brought onto the Leased Premises by or for Tenant, 
(provided, however, that Tenant shall have no liability under this Lease with respect to underground or overhead 
migration of any Hazardous Material in the Leased Premises from areas outside of the Project). Tenant's obligations 
shall include, but not be limited to, the effects of any contamination of injury to person, property or the environment 
created or suffered by Tenant, and the cost of investigation, removal, remediation, restoration and/or abatement, and 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Lease. No termination, cancellation or release agreement entered into 
by Landlord and Tenant shall release Tenant from its obligations under this Lease with respect to Hazardous Materials, 
unless specifically so agreed by Landlord in writing at the time of such agreement. Landlord's obligations, as and when 
required by Applicable Environmental Laws, shall include, but not be limited to, the cost of investigation, removal, 
remediation, restoration and/or abatement, and shall survive the expiration or termination of this Lease. Landlord shall 
retain the responsibility and pay for any investigations or remediation measures required by government entities having 
jurisdiction with respect to the existence of Hazardous Materials on the Leased Premises prior to the Commencement 
Date, unless such remediation measure is required as a result of Tenant's use of the Leased Premises after the 
Commencement Date, in which event Tenant shall be responsible for such payment. Tenant shall cooperate fully in any 
such activities at the request of Landlord, including allowing Landlord and Landlord's agents to have reasonable access 
to the Leased Premises at reasonable times in order to carry out Landlord's investigative and remedial responsibilities. 
The covenants and agreements of Tenant under this Section shall surrive the expiration or termination of this Lease. 
"Hazardous Materials" means any flammables, explosives, radioactive materials, asbestos-containing materials, solid 
wastes that pose imminent and substantial endangerment to health or the environment, formaldehyde, radon gas, lead, 
petroleum or any fraction thereof, polychlorinated biphenyls, and any other material, waste, or substance that could 
represent a threat to human health or safety or the environment, if it were improperly managed or disposed, including 
without limitation substances defined, listed or regulated as "hazardous substances," "hazardous materials/' "toxic 
substances," "hazardous waste," "extremely hazardous substance," ••regulated substance," "contaminant" or "Class I" or 
"Class II" waste pursuant to Applicable Environmental Laws. 

Section 5.05. Compliance with Laws Regarding Disabilities. Landlord covenants and agrees that the common areas of the 
Project and all alterations and improvements to the Leased Premises constructed by Landlord pursuant to the terms and 
provisions of this Lease shall be constructed substantially in accordance with the Americans With Disabilities Act and the 
Texas Architectural Barriers Act in effect as of the Commencement Date of this Lease (collectively, the "Act"), and 
Landlord shall attempt to reasonably comply with the Act in such construction. Tenant covenants and agrees that all 
alterations and improvements to the Leased Premises constructed by Tenant after the Commencement Date shall be 
constructed in accordance with the Act. In the event that, subsequent to the Commencement Date, Tenant requests 
Landlord to perform any alterations, additions or improvements to the Leased Premises, whether by virtue of expansion, 
extension or otherwise, Tenant agrees to and shall be responsible for all costs and expense incurred in connection with 
any improvements and alterations necessary to ensure compliance with the Act. It is the intent of this Section that any 
additional alterations, improvements or additions required by the Act with regard to the Leased Premises after the 
Commencement Date, whether resulting from amendments to the Act or othenvise, shall be the sole responsibility of 
Tenant. 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

ARTICLE 6. 

Section 6.01. Leasehold Improvements. (a) Acceptance of Leased Premises. Tenant has made a complete inspection of 
the Leased Premises and shall accept the Leased Premises and the Project in their "AS IS," "\VHERE IS," and "WITH 
ALL FAULTS" condition on the Commencement Date without recourse to Landlord, except for Landlord's 
Improvements described on Exhibit B hereto. Landlord shall have no obligation to furnish, equip or improve the Leased 
Premises or the Project, except for Landlord's Improvements described on Exhibit B hereto. The taking of possession of 
the Leased Premises by Tenant shall be conclusive evidence against Tenant that Tenant accepts the Leased Premises and 
the Project as being suitable for its intended purpose and in a good and satisfactory condition and acknowledges that the 
Leased Premises and the Project comply fully with Landlord's covenants and obligations under this Lease as of the 
Commencement Date. 

(b) Improvements and Alterations. Tenant shall not make or allow to be made (except as otherwise provided in this 
Lease) any improvements, alterations or physical additions (including fixtures) in or to the Leased Premises or the 
Project, without first obtaining the written consent of Landlord, including Landlord's written approval of Tenant's 
contractor(s) and of the plans, working drawings and specifications relating thereto, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Approval by Landlord of any of Tenant's drawings and plans and 
specifications prepared in connection with any alterations, improvements, modifications or additions to the Leased 
Premises or the Project shall not constitute a representation or warranty of Landlord as to the adequacy or sufficiency of 
such drawings, plans and specifications, or alterations, improvements, modifications or additions to which they relate, for 
any use, purpose or conditions, but such approval shall merely be the consent of Landlord as required hereunder. Any 
and all furnishing, equipping and improving of or other alteration and addition to the Leased Premises shall be (i) made 
at Tenant's sole cost, risk and expense, and Tenant shall pay for Landlord's actual costs incurred in connection with and 
as a result of such alterations or additions; (ii) performed in a prompt, good and workmanlike manner with labor and 
materials of such quality as Landlord may reasonably require; (iii) constructed in accordance with all plans and 
specifications approved in writing by Landlord prior to the commencement of any such work; (iv) prosecuted diligently 
and continuously to completion so as to minimize interference with the normal business operations of other tenants in the 
Building, the performance of Landlord's obligations under this Lease or any mortgage or ground lease covering or 
affecting all or any part of the Building or the Land, and any work being done by contractors engaged by Landlord with 
respect to or in connection with the Building; and (v) performed by contractors approved in writing by Landlord. Any 
and all alterations, improvements and additions to the Leased Premises shall at once become the property of Landlord. 
Tenant shall have no (and hereby waives all) rights to payment or compensation for any such item. Tenant sha11 notify 
Landlord upon completion of such alterations, improvements, modifications or additions and Landlord shall inspect same 
for workmanship and compliance with the approved plans and specifications. Tenant and its contractors shall comply 
with all reasonable requirements Landlord may impose on Tenant or its contractors with respect to such work (including 
but not limited to, insurance, indemnity and bonding requirements), and shall deliver to Landlord a complete copy of the 
"asbuilt" plans and specifications for all alterations or physical additions so made in or to the Leased Premises within 
thirty (30) days of completing the work. Tenant shall not place any items that would exceed load bearing limits of the 
floors, Notwithstanding herein anything to the contrary, Landlord agrees to perform improvements to the Leased 
Premises as specified in Exhibit Bat Landlord's sole cost and expense. 

(c) Title to Alterations. AU.alterations, physical additions, modifications or improvements in or to the Leased Premises 
(including fixtures) shall, when made, become the property of Landlord and shall be surrendered to Landlord upon 
termination or expiration of this Lease or termination of Tenant's right to occupy the Leased Premises, whether by lapse 
of time or othenvise without any payment, reimbursement or compensation therefore; the rights conferred to Landlord 
under this Section 6.0l(c) shall be in addition to (and not in conflict with) any other rights conferred on Landlord by this 
Lease, in equity or at law. 

(d) Personal Property Taxes, Tenant shall be responsible for ad valorem taxes and other taxes, assessments or charges 
levied upon or applicable to Tenant's personal property ("Tenant's Property") and all license fees and other fees or 
charges imposed on the business conducted by Tenant on the Leased Premises before such taxes, assessments, charges or 
fees become delinquent. 

Section 6.02. Repairs bv Landlord. All repairs, alterations or additions that affect the Project's structural components or 
major mechanical, electrical or plumbing systems shall be made by Landlord or its contractors only, and, in the case of 
any damage to such components or systems caused by Tenant or Tenant's Agents, shall be paid for by Tenant in an 
amount equal to Landlord's costs plus fifteen percent (15%) as an overhead expense. Unless othenvise provided herein, 
Landlord shall not be required to make any improvements to or repairs of any kind or character to the Leased Premises 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

during the Term, except such repairs as Landlord deems necessary for normal maintenance operations. Landlord shall 
be responsible for the removal of cabling, if required at the end of the Lease Term. 

Section 6.03. Repairs by Tenant. Subject to Section 6.02 of this Lease, Tenant shall, at its own cost and expense, repair or 
replace any damage or injury done to the leasehold improvements in the Leased Premises or any part thereof, the Leased 
Premises or any part thereof, or the Project or any part thereof, caused by Tenant or any of Tenant's Agents (hereinafter 
defined). If Tenant fails to make such repairs or replacements, Landlord may, at its option, after ten (10) business days' 
prior written notice to Tenant (except in the case of an emergency), make such repairs or replacements, and Tenant shall 
pay to Landlord on demand the cost thereof plus fifteen percent (15%) as an overhead expense. Except insofar as 
Landlord is expressly obligated under this Lease to maintain and repair the Leased Premises, in addition to the 
maintenance and repair obligations of Tenant otherwise expressly set forth in this Lease, Tenant is also obligated to 
perform, at Tenant's own cost and expense and risk, all other maintenance and repairs necessary or appropriate to cause 
the Leased Premises to be suitable for Tenant's intended commercial purpose. 

Section 6.04. Liens. Tenant shall not permit any mechanic's lien or any other liens, encumbrances, claims or charges to 
be placed on the Leased Premises or the Project, or any part thereof, on the improvements thereon, on Landlord's 
interest therein, or upon Tenant's leasehold interest therein, during the Term of this Lease, and in the event of the filing 
of any such lien, encumbrance, claim or charge, Tenant shall promptly have same removed. Tenant covenants and agrees 
that it will pay or cause to be paid all sums legally due and payable by it on account of labor performed or materials 
furnished in connection with any work performed on the Leased Premises and that it will save and hold Landlord 
harmless from and defend Landlord against any and all loss, claim, damage, cost and expense based on or arising out of 
any such asserted claims, liens, encumbrances or charges. Tenant agrees to give Landlord immediate written notice of 
the placing of any lien, charge, claim or encumbrarice against the Leased Premises or the Project. If Tenant fails to cancel 
or discharge any such lien within 30 days, Landlord may, at its sole option, cancel or discharge the same, and upon 
Landlord's demand, Tenant shall promptly reimburse Landlord for all costs incurred in canceling or discharging such 
lien or liens. 

Section 6.05. Indemnification. As additional consideration for Landlord entering into this Lease, Tenant does hereby for 
itself and its heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns, agree to and hereby does expressly indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless Landlord, and Landlord's manager of the Project and Landlord's and such manager's agents, principals, 
employees, heirs, legal representatives, successors, assigns, affiliates, officers, directors, shareholders, partners, ventures, 
trustees and representatives (collectively, "Landlord's Related Parties"), against and from any and all claims, actions, 
causes of action, demands, losses, assessments, suits, damages, liability, costs and expenses of whatever kind (including 
without limitation attorneys' fees), that Landlord or any of Landlord's Related Parties may at any time sustain or incur 
by reason of any and all claims asserted against any of them to the extent that such claims arise out of or are based upon 
(a) any breach of any of the agreements of Tenant under this Lease, (b) any occurrence in, upon or about the Leased 
Premises or the Project caused by the sole, contributory, partial, joint, comparative or concurrent negligence, but only to 
the extent of such negligence, of Tenant or Tenant's respective employees, agents, officers, directors, shareholders, 
partners, trustees, representatives, customers, guests, invitees, licensees, subtenants, concessionaires, contractors, 
servants, vendors, material men, suppliers, heirs, legal representatives, successors, assigns or any other person entering 
the Project under express or implied invitation of Tenant, claiming by, through or under Tenant or who may occupy or 
use the Leased Premises (collectively, "Tenant's Agents"), WHETHER OR NOT CAUSED BY THE CONTRIBUTORY, 
PARTIAL, JOINT, COMPARATIVE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF LANDLORD OR LANDLORD'S 
RESPECTIVE EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, SHAREHOLDERS, PARTNERS, TRUSTEES, 
REPRESENTATIVES, CUSTOMERS, GUESTS, INVITEES, LICENSEES, CONCESSIONAIRES, CONTRACTORS, 
SERVANTS, VENDORS, MATERIALMEN, SUPPLIERS, HEIRS, LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES, SUCCESSORS, 
ASSIGNS OR ANY OTHER PERSON ENTERING THE PROJECT UNDER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED INVITATION 
OF LANDLORD OR CLAIMING BY, THROUGH OR UNDER LANDLORD (COLLECTIVELY, "LANDLORD'S 
AGENTS"), but not including occurrences caused solely by reason of the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord or 
Landlord's Agents acting within the scope of their employment or authority, (c) the conduct of management of any work 
done by Tenant or any of Tenant's Agents in, upon or about the Leased Premises or the Project, (d) any occurrence in, 
upon or about the Leased Premises or the Project occasioned wholly or in part by any act, omission or neglect claimed to 
have been caused by Tenant or any of Tenant's Agents, or (e) any occurrence occasioned by the violation of any law, 
statute, permit, order, decree, guideline, rule, regulation or ordinance (including without limitation any Legal 
Requirements or Applicable Environmental Laws) by Tenant or any of Tenant's Agents. In any case in which Tenant has 
agreed to indemnify Landlord, Landlord's Related Parties or any other person, such indemnity shall be deemed to 
include an obligation on the part of Tenant to appear on behalf of the indemnified party in any and all proceedings 
involving a claim or cause of action covered by such indemnity and to defend the indemnified party against such claim or 
cause of action, all at Tenant's cost; provided, however, at the option of any party indemnified hereunder, such party 
shall have the right to 8ppear on its own behalf, employ its own legal counsel and defend any claim or cause of action 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

indemnified in this Section 6.05 at such party's cost. Landlord does hereby for itself and its heirs, legal representatives, 
successors and assigns, agree to and hereby docs expressly indemnify, defend and hold harmless Tenant and Tenant's 
agents, principals, employees, heirs, legal representatives, successors, assigns, affiliates, officers, directors, shareholders, 
partners, ventures, trustees and representatives (collectively, "Tenant's Related Parties"), against and from any and all 
claims, actions, causes of action, demands, losses, assessments, suits, damages, liability, costs and expenses of whatever 
kind (including without limitation attorneys' fees), that Tenant or any of Tenant's Related Parties may at any time 
sustain or incur by reason of any and all claims asserted against any of them to the extent that such claims arise out of or 
are based upon (v) any breach of any of the agreements of Landlord under this Lease, (w) any occurrence in, upon or 
about the Leased Premises or the Project caused by the sole, contributory, partial, joint, comparative or concurrent 
negligence, but only to the extent of such negligence, of Landlord or Landlord's Agents, WHETHER OR NOT CAUSED 
BY THE CONTRIBUTORY, PARTIAL, JOINT, COMPARATIVE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF TENANT 
OR TENANT'S AGENTS, but not including occurrences caused solely by reason of the negligence or willful misconduct 
of Tenant or Tenant's Agents acting within the scope of their employment or authority, (x) the conduct of management of 
any work done by Landlord or any of Landlord's Agents in, upon or about the Leased Premises or the Project, (y) any 
occurrence in, upon or about the Leased Premises or the Project occasioned wholly or in part by any act, omission or 
neglect claimed to have been caused by Landlord or any of Landlord's Agents, or (z) any occurrence occasioned by the 
violation of any law, statute, permit, order, decree, guideline, rule, regulation or ordinance (including without limitation 
any Legal Requirements or Applicable Environmental Laws) by Landlord or any of Landlord's Agents. The provisions 
of this Section 6.05 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Lease. 

ARTICLE 7. 

Section 7.01. Condemnation. (a) Total Taking. In the event of a taking or damage related to the exercise of the power of 
eminent domain, by any authority, person, corporation or entity empowered to condemn property (including without 
limitation a voluntary conveyance by Landlord in lieu of such taking or condemnation) (individually, a "Taking") of the 
entire Leased Premises, so much of the Leased Premises as to prevent or substantially impair its use by Tenant during the 
Term of this Lease or portions of the Building or Project required for reasonable access to, or reasonable use of, the 
Leased Premises (individually, a "Total Taking"), the rights of Tenant under this Lease shall cease and terminate as of 
the date upon which title to the property taken passes to and vests in the condemner or the effective date of any order for 
possession if issued prior to the date title vests in the condemner ('•Date of Taking"). 

(b) Partial Taking. In the event of a Taking of only a part of the Leased Premises or of a part of the Project which does 
not constitute a Total Taking during the Term of this Lease (individually, a "Partial Taking"), the rights of Tenant under 
this Lease and the leasehold estate of Tenant in and to the portion of the property taken shall cease and terminate as of 
the Date of Taking, and an adjustment to the Rent shall be made based upon the reduced value of the Leased Premises. 

(c) Termination by Landlord. In the event of a Taking of a portion of the Building or Project (other than the Leased 
Premises), and in Landlord's reasonable opinion, the Building or Project should be restored in a manner that materially 
alters the Leased Premises, Landlord may terminate this Lease by giving notice to Tenant within sixty (60) days following 
the date title vests in the condemner. This Lease shall terminate on the date specified in the termination notice, which 
date shall be at least thirty (30) days but not more than ninety (90) days after the date such notice is given. 

(d) Rent Adjustment. If this Lease is terminated pursuant to this Section 7.01, Landlord shall refund to Tenant any 
prepaid unMaccrued Rent and any other sums due and owing to Tenant (less any sums then due and owing Landlord by 
Tenant), and Tenant shall pay to Landlord any remaining sums due and owing Landlord under this Lease, each prorated 
as of the Date of Taking where applicable. 

(e) Repair. If this Lease is not terminated as provided for in this Section 7.01, then Landlord at its expense shall promptly 
repair and restore the Building, Project and/or the Leased Premises to approximately the same condition that existed at 
the time Tenant entered into possession of the Leased Premises, wear and tear excepted (and Landlord shall have no 
obligation to repair or restore Tenant's improvements to the Leased Premises or Tenant's Property), except for the part 
taken, to render the Building or Project a complete architectural unit, but only to the extent of the condemnation award 
received by Landlord for the damage. 

(t) Awards and Damages. Landlord reserves all rights to damages paid because of any Partial or Total Taking of the 
Leased Premises or the Project. Tenant assigns to Landlord any right Tenant may have to the damages or award. 
Further, Tenant shall not make claims against Landlord or the condemning authority for damages. Notwithstanding, 
Tenant may claim and recover from the condemning authority a separate award for Tenant's moving expenses, business 
dislocation damages, Tenant's Property and any other award that would not reduce the award payable to Landlord. 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

Section 7.02. Force Majeure. Neither Landlord nor Tenant shall be required to perform any term of this Lease (other 
than the obligations of Tenant to pay Rent as provided herein) so long as such performance is delayed or prevented by 
"Force Majeure"', which shall mean acts of God, strikes, injunctions, lockouts, material or labor restrictions by any 
governmental authority, civil riots, floods, fire, theft, public enemy, insurrection, war, court order, requisition or order of 
governmental body or authority, and any other cause not reasonably within the control of Landlord or Tenant and which 
by the exercise of due diligence Landlord or Tenant is unable, wholly or in part, to prevent or overcome. Neither 
Landlord nor any mortgagee shall be liable or responsible to Tenant for any loss or damage to any property or person 
occasioned by any Force Majeure, or for any damage or inconvenience which may arise through repair or alteration of 
any part of the Project as a result of any Force Majeure. 

Section 7.03. Fire or Other Casualty. (a) Damage. If any portion of the Leased Premises is destroyed or damaged by fire 
or any other casualty, Tenant shall immediately give notice thereof to Landlord. If any portion of the Leased Premises or 
Project is destroyed or damaged by fire or any other casualty then, at the option of Landlord, (i) Landlord may restore 
and repair the portion of the Leased Premises or Project damaged and, if the Leased Premises are rendered untenable in 
whole or in part by reason of such casualty as determined by Landlord in Landlord's reasonable discretion, Tenant shall 
be entitled to a fair diminution of the Rent hereunder until such time as the Leased Premises (exclusive of any of Tenant's 
Property) are made tenantable as determined by Landlord in Landlord's reasonable discretion by repair or restoration 
or (ii) Landlord may terminate this Lease whereupon all Rent accrued up to the time of such damage and any other sums 
due and owing shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord (less any sums then due and owing Tenant by Landlord) and any 
remaining sums due and owing by Landlord to Tenant shall be paid to Tenant. In no event shall Landlord have any 
obligation to repair or restore any such destruction or damage. 

(b) Repair. Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to give Tenant written notice of its decisions, estimates or elections 
under this Section 7.03 within sixty (60) days after any such damage or destruction. If Landlord elects to repair and 
restore the Leased Premises or other portion of the Project, this Lease shall continue in full force and effect, and the 
repairs will be made within a reasonable time thereafter (not to exceed 180 days), subject to the provisions of Section 7.02 
of this Lease. Should the repairs not be completed within that period, both Landlord and Tenant shall each have the 
option of terminating this Lease by written Jetter of termination. If this Lease is terminated as herein permitted, 
Landlord shall refund to Tenant any Prepaid Rental (on-accrued as of the date of damage or destruction) and any other 
sums due and owing by Landlord to Tenant (less any sums then due and owing Landlord by Tenant) and any remaining 
sums due and owing by Tenant to Landlord shall be paid to Landlord. If Landlord elects to rebuild the Leased Premises 
or other portion of the Project, Landlord shall (i) only be obligated to restore or rebuild the Leased Premises or other 
portion of the Project to approximately the same condition as existed at the time Tenant entered into possession of the 
Leased Premises, wear and tear excepted and (ii) not be required to rebuild, repair or replace any part of Tenant's 
Property. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Lease to the contrary, if Landlord elects to repair and restore the 
Leased Premises or other portion of the Project pursuant to this Section 7.03, in no event shall Landlord be required to 
expend under this Article VII any amount in excess of the proceeds actually received from the insurance carried by 
Landlord pursuant to Section 7.04{a) of this Lease. Landlord shall not be liable for any inconvenience or annoyance to 
Tenant or injury to the business of Tenant resulting in any way from such damage or destruction, except (i) for 
Landlord's breach of its obligations hereunder and (b) that Rent shall be abated from thirty (30) business days after 
Landlord's receipt of written notice, for any portion of the Leased Premises that is unusable by Tenant until Landlord's 
restoration work in the Leased Premises is substantially complete, which abatement shall be in the same proportion that 
the Net Rentable Square Footage of the Leased Premises that is unusable by Tenant bears to the total Net Rentable 
Square Footage of the Leased Premises; provided that Tenant shall not be entitled to any abatement of Rent if the 
damage or destruction in the Leased Premises is restored within sixty(60) business days after Landlord's receipt of 
written notice from Tenant of the occurrence of the damage or destruction. 

(c) Negligence of Tenant. Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 7.03{a) and 7.03(b) of this Lease, if the Leased 
Premises, the Project or any portion thereof, are damaged by fire or other casualty resulting from the fault or negligence 
of Tenant or any of Tenant's Agents, Tenant will be liable to Landlord for the cost and expense of the repair and 
restoration of the Leased Premises, the Project or any part thereof. 

Section 7.04. Insurance. (a) Landlord shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, a policy of insurance on the Building 
against loss or damage by any and all hazards covered by the standard Causes of Loss - Special Form insurance policy in 
such amount as will, from time to time, cover the full cost of reconstructing the destroyed or damaged portion of the 
Building and improvements in accordance with then applicable laws and regulations, without any deduction for 
depreciation (100% replacement cost coverage). In addition, Landlord shall maintain commercial general liability 
insurance in the amount of at least Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) combined single limit for bodily injury and property 
damage per occurrence. Such insurance shall be maintained with an insurance company authorized to do business in 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

Texas, at the expense of Landlord (but with the same to be included in the operating expenses of the Building as described 
in Section 3.02 of this Lease). The insurance required to be obtained by Landlord may be obtained by Landlord through 
blanket or master policies insuring other entities or properties owned or controlled by Landlord. 

(b) Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense, procure and maintain during the Term of this Lease commercial general 
liability insurance (including personal injury liability, premises/operation, property damage, independent contractors and 
broad form contractual in support of the indemnifications of Landlord by Tenant under this Lease) in amounts of not less 
than a combined single limit ofSl,000,000, comprehensive automobile liability insurance, property insurance with respect 
to Tenant's Property, leasehold improvements, alterations and additions written on an "all risk" basis for full 
replacement cost, and worker's compensation and employer's liability insurance, all maintained with companies 
authorized to do business in Texas and endorsed to include Landlord as an additional insured, with the premiums fully 
paid on or before the due dates. Tenant, and not Landlord, will be liable for any costs or damages in excess of the 
statutory limit for which Tenant would, in the absence of worker's compensation, be liable. In the event that Tenant fails 
to take out or maintain any policy required by this Section 7.04 to be maintained by Tenant, such failure shall be a 
defense to any claim asserted by Tenant against Landlord by reason of any loss sustained by Tenant that would have been 
covered by such policy, notwithstanding that such loss may have been proximately caused solely or partially by the 
negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord or any of Landlord's Related Parties. If Tenant does not procure insurance 
as required, Landlord may, upon advance written notice to Tenant, cause this insurance to be issued and Tenant shall pay 
to Landlord the premium for such insurance within ten (10) days of Landlord's demand, plus interest at the past due rate 
provided for in Section 3.0l(b) of this Lease until repaid by Tenant. All policies of insurance required to be maintained 
by Tenant shall specifically provide that Landlord shall be given at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice of any 
cancellation or non~renewal of any such policy. A certificate evidencing each such policy shall be deposited with 
Landlord by Tenant on or before the Commencement Date, and a replacement certificate for each subsequent policy shall 
be deposited with Landlord at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the preceding such policy. All insurance 
policies obtained by Tenant shall be written as primary policies (primary over any insurance carried by Landlord), not 
contributing with and not in excess of coverage which Landlord may carry, if any. The insurance required to be obtained 
by Tenant may be obtained by Tenant through blanket or master policies insuring other entities or properties owned or 
controlled by Tenant. 

Section 7.05. Waiver of Subrogation Rights. Each party hereto waives all rights of recovery, claims, actions or causes of 
actions arising in any manner in its (the "Injured Party's") favor and against the other party for loss or damage to the 
Injured Party's property located within or constituting a part or all of the Project, to the extent the loss or damage is 
covered by: (a) the Injured Party's insurance; or (b) the insurance the Injured Party is required to carry under this 
Lease, whichever is greater, regardless of the cause or origin, including the sole, contributory, partial, joint, comparative 
or concurrent negligence of the other party. This waiver also applies to each party's directors, officers, employees, 
shareholders, partners, representatives and agents. All insurance carried by either Landlord or Tenant covering the 
losses and damages described in this Section 7.05 shall provide for a waiver of rights of subrogation by the Injured 
Party's insurance carrier against the other party, to the maximum extent that the same is permitted under the laws and 
regulations governing the writing of insurance within the State of Texas. Both parties hereto are obligated to obtain such 
a waiver and provide evidence to the other party of such waiver. The waiver set forth in this Section 7.05 shall be in 
addition to, and not in substitution for, any other waivers, indemnities or exclusions of liability set forth in this Lease. 

ARTICLES. 

Section 8.01. Default by Tenant. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a default by 
Tenant under this Lease: 

(a) Tenant shall fail to perform, observe or comply with any of the terms, provisions, agreements, covenants or conditions 
of this Lease or any guaranty now or hereafter executed relating to this Lease (other than the failure specified in Section 
8.0l(b) hereof), such failure continuing for thirty (30) days after written notice from Landlord to Tenant of such failure; 
provided, however, that Landlord shall not be required to provide such notice with respect to any failure which is by its 
nature incurable; 

(b) Tenant shall fail to pay to Landlord any Rent or any other monetary charge due from Tenant hereunder as and when 
due and payable and such failure continues for ten (10) days after such payment is due and payable; 

(c) A Transfer (hereinafter defined) shall occur of all or a part of this Lease or the Leased Premises, without the prior 
written approval of Landlord (where such approval of Landlord is required); 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

(d) The interest of Tenant under this Lease shall be levied on under execution or other legal process; 

(e) Any petition in bankruptcy or other insolvency proceedings shall be filed by or against Tenant, or any petition shall be 
filed or other action taken to declare Tenant a bankrupt or to delay, reduce or modify Tenant's debts or obligations or to 
reorganize or modify Tenant's capital structure or indebtedness or to appoint a trustee, receiver or liquidator of Tenant 
or of any property of Tenant, or any proceeding or other action shall be commenced or taken by any governmental 
authority for the dissolution or liquidation of Tenant; 

(f) Tenant shall become insolvent, or Tenant shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or Tenant shall make a 
transfer in fraud of creditors, or a receiver or trustee shall be appointed for Tenant or any of its properties; 

(g) The admission by Tenant that it cannot meet its obligations as they become due; 

(h) Tenant shall do or permit to be done anything which creates a lien upon the Leased Premises or the Project, which 
lien is not discharged as required by Section 6.04; 

(i) The death or legal incapacity of Tenant, if Tenant is an individual person, or the termination, dissolution or liquidation 
of Tenant, if Tenant is a corporation, partnership or other entity; or 

(j) Tenant constructively or actually abandons the Leased Premises and/or discontinues normal business operations in the 
Leased Premises. 

The term "Tenant" as used in this Section 8.02 shall be deemed to include any guarantor of, or any other person or entity 
primarily or secondarily liable for, any of Tenant's obligations under this Lease. 

Non-payment of any monetary charge by Tenant is an immediate default and any notice period, which may be provided 
in this Lease will be a period during which Tenant can cure the default. It is further understood that any notice of non
payment of a monetary charge, which may be required under this Lease, will be deemed the same notice required by any 
applicable Texas statute, if any, and shall not be deemed an additional or extra notice to any statutory notice. 

Section 8.02. Landlord's Remedies. Upon the occurrence of any default by Tenant under this Lease, Landlord may, at its 
sole option, have the option to pursue any one or more of the following remedies without any notice or demand 
whatsoever, other than any notice expressly provided in this Lease: 

(a) Terminate this Lease, and Landlord may forthwith repossess the Leased Premises and be entitled to recover as 
damages a sum of money equal to the total of: the cost of recovering the Leased Premises, the cost of removing and 
storing Tenant's or any other occupant's property, the unpaid Rent and any other sums accrued hereunder at the date of 
termination, a sum equal to the amount, if any, by which the present value of the total Rent and other benefits which 
would have accrued to Landlord under this Lease for the remainder of the Term, if the terms of this Lease had been fully 
complied with by Tenant, exceeds the total fair market value of the Leased Premises for the balance of the Term (it being 
the agreement of the parties hereto that Landlord shall receive the benefit of its bargain), the reasonable cost of restoring 
the Leased Premises to the condition necessary to rent the Leased Premises at the prevailing market rental rate, normal 
wear and tear excepted, any increase in insurance premiums caused by the vacancy of the Leased Premises, the amount of 
any unamortized improvements to the Leased Premises paid for by Landlord, the amount of any unamortized brokerage 
commission paid by Landlord in connection with the leasing of the Leased Premises and any other sum of money or 
damages owed by Tenant to Landlord. The fair market value of the Leased Premises shall be the prevailing market 
rental rate for similar space of similar size in a similar building in the city where the Leased Premises is located for a lease 
term equal to the remaining Term. 

(b) Terminate Tenant's right of occupancy of the Leased Premises and reenter and repossess the Leased Premises by 
entry, forcible entry or detainer suit or otherwise, without demand or notice of any kind to Tenant and without 
terminating this Lease, without acceptance of surrender of possession of the Leased Premises, and without becoming 
liable for damages or guilty of trespass, in which event Landlord may, but shall be under no obligation to relet the Leased 
Premises or any part thereof for the account of Tenant (nor shall Landlord be under any obligation to relet the Leased 
Premises before Landlord relets or leases any other portion of the Project or any other property under the ownership or 
control of Landlord) for a period equal to or lesser or greater than the remainder of the Term of the Lease on whate,·er 
terms and conditions Landlord, at Landlord's sole discretion, deems advisable. Tenant shall be liable for and shall pay to 
Landlord all Rent payable by Tenant under this Lease (plus interest at the past due rate provided in Section 3.0l(b) of 
this Lease if in arrears) plus an amount equal to: the cost of recovering possession of the Leased Premises, the cost of 
removing and storing any of Tenant's or any other occupant's property left on the Leased Premises or the Project after 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

reentry, the cost of reasonable decorations, repairs, changes, alterations and additions to the Leased Premises and the 
Project, the cost of any attempted reletting or reletting and the collection of the rent accruing from such reletting, the cost 
of any brokerage fees or commissions payable by Landlord in connection with any reletting or attempted reletting, any 
other costs incurred by Landlord in connection with any such reletting or attempted reletting, the cost of any increase in 
insurance premiums caused by the termination of possession of the Leased Premises, the amount of any unamortized 
improvements to the Leased Premises paid for by Landlord, the amount of any unamortized brokerage commission paid 
by Landlord in connection with the leasing of the Leased Premises and any other sum of money or damages owed by 
Tenant to Landlord, all reduced by any sums received by Landlord through any reletting of the Leased Premises; 
provided, however, that in no event shall Tenant be entitled to any excess of any sums obtained by reletting over and 
above Rent provided in this Lease to be paid by Tenant to Landlord. For the purpose of such reletting Landlord is 
authorized to decorate or to make any repairs, changes, alterations or additions in or to the Leased Premises that may be 
necessary as determined by Landlord in its reasonable discretion. Landlord may file suit to recover any sums falling due 
under the terms of this Section 8.03(b) from time to time, and no delivery to or recovery by Landlord of any portion due 
Landlord hereunder shall be any defense in any action to recover any amount not theretofore reduced to judgment in 
favor of Landlord. No reletting shall be construed as an election on the part of Landlord to terminate this Lease unless a 
written notice of such intention is given to Tenant by Landlord. Notwithstanding any such reletting without termination, 
Landlord may at any time thereafter elect to terminate this Lease for such previous default and/or exercise its rights 
under Section 8.03(a) of this Lease. 

(c) Enter upon the Leased Premises and do whatever Tenant is obligated to do under the terms on this Lease; and Tenant 
agrees to reimburse Landlord on demand for any expenses which Landlord may incur in effecting compliance with 
Tenant's obligations under this Lease plus fifteen percent (15%) of such cost to cover overhead plus interest at the past 
due rate provided in this Lease, and Tenant further agrees that Landlord shall not be liable for any damages resulting to 
Tenant from such action. No action taken by Landlord under this Section 8.03(c) shall relieve Tenant from any of its 
obligations under this Lease or from any consequences or liabilities arising from the failure to perform such obligations. 

(d) \Vithout waiving such default, apply all or any part of the Security Deposit and/or any Prepaid Rental to cure the 
default or to any damages suffered as a result of the default to the extent of the amount of damages suffered. Tenant shall 
reimburse Landlord for the amount of such depletion of the Security Deposit and/or any Prepaid Rental on demand. 

(e) Disconnect, discontinue, interrupt or cause the interruption of any utility or service currently being furnished to 
Tenant including without limitation gas, water, electricity, air conditioning and heating. 

(f) Change all door locks and other security devices of Tenant at the Leased Premises and/or the Project, provided, 
however, that Landlord shall provide a new key to Tenant during Tenant's regular business hours upon the condition 
that Tenant has cured any and all defaults hereunder and, reimbursed or paid Landlord for all Rent and other sums due 
Landlord hereunder. Landlord, on terms and conditions satisfactory to Landlord in its sole discretion, may upon request 
from Tenant's employees, enter the Leased Premises for the purpose of retrieving therefrom personal property of such 
employees, provided, Landlord shall have no obligation to do so. 

(g) Exercise any of the following remedies: enforcement of Landlord's statutory lien, suit on the contract, suit for 
anticipatory breach and injunctive relief of all varieties. 

(h) Exercise any or all other remedies available to Landlord in this Lease, at law or in equity. 

Section 8.03. Reentry. If Tenant fails to allow Landlord to reenter and repossess the Leased Premises, Landlord shall 
have full and free license to enter into and upon the Leased Premises with or without process of law for the purpose of 
repossessing the Leased Premises, expelling or removing Tenant and any others who may be occupying or within the 
Leased Premises, removing any and all property therefrom and changing all door locks of the Leased Premises. Landlord 
may take these actions without being deemed in any manner guilty of trespass, eviction or forcible entry or detainer, 
without accepting surrender of possession of the Leased Premises by Tenant, and without incurring any liability for any 
damage resulting therefrom, including without limitation any liability arising under Sections 93.002 and 93.003 of the 
Texas Property Code, as amended or superseded from time to time, and without relinquishing Landlord's right to Rent 
or any other right given to Landlord hereunder or by operation of Jaw or in equity, Tenant hereby waiving any right to 
claim damage for such reentry and expulsion, including without limitation any rights granted to Tenant by Sections 
93.002 and 93.003 of the Texas Property Code, as amended or superseded from time to time. 

Section 8.04. No Duty to Relet or Mitigate. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, to the full extent 
permitted under applicable law, Tenant hereby (a) releases Landlord from any and all duty to relet the Leased Premises 
or othenvise mitigate damages and (b) waives its right to require Landlord to relet the Leased Premises or othenvise 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

mitigate damages. Landlord shall not be liable, nor shall Tenant's obligations hereunder be diminished, because of 
Landlord's failure to relet the Leased Premises or collect rent due with respect to such reletting. In no event shall Tenant 
be entitled to any excess rents received by Landlord. In the event, and only in the event and to the extent (but no further) 
that (despite such waiver) Texas law requires Landlord to mitigate damages, or to use efforts or make attempts to do so, 
and such requirement cannot be lawfully and effectively waived, Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to relet the Leased 
Premises on such terms and conditions as Landlord in its good faith judgment may determine; provided, however, that 
Landlord shall not be obligated to relet the Leased Premises before leasing any other unoccupied portions of the Project 
and any other property under the ownership or control of Landlord. 

Section 8.05. Non Waiver. Failure on the part of either party hereto to complain of any action or non-action on the part 
of the other party, no matter how long the same may continue, shall not be deemed to be a waiver by such party of any of 
its rights under this Lease. Further, it is covenanted and agreed that no waiver at any time of any of the provisions hereof 
by either party shall be construed as a waiver of any of the other provisions hereof and that a waiver at any time ofany of 
the provisions hereof shall not be construed as a waiver at any subsequent time of the same provisions. The consent or 
approval by Landlord to or of any action by Tenant requiring Landlord's consent or approval shall not be deemed to 
waive or render unnecessary Landlord's consent or approval to or of any subsequent similar act by Tenant. 

Section 8.06. Holding Over. In the event Tenant remains in possession of the Leased Premises after the expiration or 
termination of this Lease without the execution of a new lease or Landlord's written approval, then Tenant, at Landlord's 
option, shall be deemed to be occupying the Leased Premises as a tenant at will at a base rental equal to 200% of the Base 
Rental, and shall otherwise remain subject to all the conditions, provisions and obligations of this Lease insofar as the 
same are applicable to a tenancy at will, including without limitation the payment of all other Rent. No holding oYCr by 
Tenant after the expiration or termination of this Lease shall be construed to extend the Term or in any other manner be 
construed as permission by Landlord to hold over. Tenant shall indemnify Landlord (y) against all claims for damages 
by any other tenant to whom Landlord may have leased all or any part of the Leased Premises effective upon the 
termination or expiration of this Lease, and (z) for all other losses, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' 
fees, incurred by reason of such holding over. 

Section 8.07. Abandonment of Personal Property. Any personal property left in the Leased Premises or any personal 
property of Tenant left about the Project at the expiration or termination of this Lease, the termination of Tenant's right 
to occupy the Leased Premises shall be deemed abandoned by Tenant and may, at the option of Landlord, be immediately 
removed from the Leased Premises or such other space by Landlord and stored by Landlord at the full risk, cost and 
expense of Tenant. Landlord shall in no event be responsible for the value, preservation or safekeeping thereof. In the 
event Tenant does not reclaim any such personal property and pay all costs for any storage and moving thereof within 
thirty (30) days after the expiration or termination of this Lease, the termination of Tenant's right to occupy the Leased 
Premises or the abandonment, desertion or vacating of the Leased Premises by Tenant, Landlord may dispose of such 
personal property in any way that it deems proper. If Landlord shall sell any such personal property, it shall be entitled 
to retain from the proceeds the amount of any Rent or other expenses due Landlord, together with the cost of storage and 
moving and the expense of the sale. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, in addition to the rights 
provided herein with respect to any such property, Landlord shall have the option of exercising any of its other rights or 
remedies provided in the Lease or exercising any rights or remedies available to Landlord in the Texas Property Code, as 
amended from time to time, or othenvise at law or in equity. 

ARTICLE 9. 

Section 9.01. Transfers. Tenant shall not, by operation of law or otherwise (a) assign, transfer, mortgage or otherwise 
encumber all or any part of this Lease or the Leased Premises, (b) grant any concession or license within the Leased 
Premises, (c) grant or transfer any management privileges or rights with respect to the Leased Premises, (d) sublet all or 
any part of the Leased Premises or any right or privilege appurtenant to the Leased Premises, (e) permit any other party 
to occupy or use all or any part of the Leased Premises or (t) advertise for any of the foregoing (collectively, a 
"Transfer"), without the prior written consent of Landlord, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned or delayed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant shall have the right to assign the Lease in its entirety or 
sublet all or any portion of the Leased Premises without obtaining Landlord's consent to any parent, subsidiary, or 
affiliate of Tenant, or any entity purchasing substantially all of the stock or assets of Tenant, or into which or with which 
Tenant is merged or consolidated. If Tenant desires the consent of Landlord to a Transfer, Tenant shall submit to 
Landlord, at least sixty (60) days prior to the proposed effective date of the Transfer, a written notice which includes the 
following information: the name of the proposed assignee or subtenant and the nature and character of the business of the 
proposed assignee or subtenant, the term, use, rental rate and all other material terms and conditions of the proposed 
assignment or sublease, and evidence reasonably satisfactory to Landlord that any proposed assignee is financially 
responsible. Landlord's consent shall be granted or withheld within thirty (30) days of receipt of Tenant's notice. Tenant 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

shall reimburse Landlord for its reasonable attorneys' fees and other expenses incurred in connection with considering 
any request for its consent to a Transfer. Landlord's consent to a Transfer shall not release Tenant from performing its 
obligations under this Lease, but rather Tenant's transferee shall assume all of Tenant's obligations under this Lease in a 
writing satisfactory to Landlord, and Tenant and its transferee shall be jointly and severally liable therefore. Landlord's 
consent to any Transfer shall not waive Landlord's rights as to any subsequent Transfer. Upon Tenant's uncured 
default, Tenant authorizes its transferees to make payments of rent and any other sums due and payable, directly to 
Landlord upon receipt of notice from Landlord to do so. Any attempted Transfer by Tenant in violation of the terms and 
covenants of this Article IX shall be void and shall constitute a default by Tenant under this Lease. 

Section 9.02. Assignment by Landlord. Landlord shall have the right at any time to sell, transfer or assign, in whole or in 
part, by operation of law or othenvise, its interests in any part of this Lease or the Project, without the prior consent of 
Tenant, and such sale, transfer or assignment shall be binding on Tenant. After such sale, transfer or assignment, 
provided such purchaser, transferee or assignee assumes all of Landlord's obligations hereunder, Tenant shall attorn to 
such purchaser, transferee or assignee, and Landlord shall be released from all liability and obligations under this Lease 
arising after the effective date of such sale, transfer or assignment. 

Section 9.03. Limitation of Landlord's Liability. Any provisions of this Lease to the contrary notwithstanding, Tenant 
hereby agrees that no personal, partnership or corporate liability of any kind or character whatsoever now attaches or at 
any time hereafter under any condition shall attach to Landlord or any of Landlord's Related Parties or any mortgagee 
for payment of any amounts payable under this Lease or for the performance of any obligation under this Lease. The 
exclusive remedies of Tenant for the failure of Landlord to perform any of its obligations under this Lease shall be to 
proceed against the interest of Landlord in and to the Project. The provision contained in the foregoing sentence is not 
intended to, and shall not, limit any right that Tenant might otherwise have to obtain injunctive relief against Landlord or 
Landlord's successors in interest or any suit or action in connection with enforcement or collection of amounts which may 
become owing or payable under or on account of insurance maintained by Landlord. In no event shall either Landlord or 
Tenant be liable to the other for any indirect, special, consequential or punitive damages. 

ARTICLE JO. 

Section 10.01. Subordination. This Lease shall be subject and subordinated at all times to all ground leases and all liens 
of all mortgages and deeds of trust in any amount or amounts whatsoever now or hereafter placed on the Project or 
Landlord's interest or estate therein or on or against such ground or underlying leases and to all modifications thereof. 
Within ten (10) business days after Landlord's written request, Tenant shall execute and deliver any instruments, releases 
or other documents requested by any lessor or mortgagee for the purpose of subjecting and subordinating this Lease to 
such ground leases, mortgages or deeds of trust; provided, that, Landlord procures from any such mortgagees an 
agreement in writing which shall be delivered to Tenant, providing in substance that so long as Tenant shall discharge the 
obligations on its part to be kept and performed under the terms of this Lease, its tenancy will not be disturbed nor this 
Lease affected by any default under such mortgage, and mortgagee agrees that this Lease shall remain in full force and 
effect even though default on the mortgage may occur. Furthermore, Landlord agrees to provide Tenant with such a 
nonwdisturbance agreement from each current lender simultaneously with the execution of this Lease. Tenant shall attorn 
to any party succeeding to Landlord's interest in the Leased Premises, whether by purchase, foreclosure, deed in lieu of 
foreclosure, power of sale, termination of lease or othenvise, and shall execute such agreements confirming such 
attornment as such party may reasonably request. Tenant shall not seek to enforce any remedy it may have for any 
default on the part of Landlord without first giving written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, specifying 
the default in reasonable detail, to any mortgagee or lessor under a lien instrument or lease covering the Leased Premises 
whose address has been given to Tenant, and affording such mortgagee or lessor a reasonable opportunity to perform 
Landlord's obligations hereunder. Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, any mortgagee or ground lessor may 
at any time subordinate any such deeds of trust, mortgages, other security instruments or ground leases to this Lease on 
such terms and conditions as such mortgagee or ground lessor may deem appropriate. 

Section 10.02. Estoppel Certificate or Three-party Agreement. Landlord and Tenant each agree within ten (10) business 
days following written request by the other to execute, acknowledge and deliver to the other party, and any other persons 
specified by such party, a certificate certifying such matters as are reasonably acceptable to all parties. Any such 
statement provided by Tenant may be relied upon by a purchaser, assignee or lender. The requested party's failure to 
execute and deliver such statement within the time required shall be conclusive upon the requested party that: (1) this 
Lease is in full force and effect and has not been modified except as represented by the requesting party; (2) there are no 
uncured defaults in the requesting party's performance and, if Landlord is the requesting party, that Tenant has no right 
to offset, counterclaim or deduction against Rent; and (3) not more than one month's Rent has been paid in advance. 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

Section 10.03. Notices. Any notice, request, approval, consent or other communication required or contemplated by this 
Lease must be in writing, and may, unless otherwise in this Lease expressly provided, be given or be served by depositing 
the same in the United States Postal Service, postpaid and certified and addressed to the party to be notified, with return 
receipt requested, or by delivering the same in person to such party (or, in case of a corporate party, to an officer of such 
party), or by express overnight mail service, when appropriate, addressed to the party to be notified. Notice deposited in 
the mail in the manner hereinabove described shall be effective from and after three (3) days (exclusive of Saturdays, 
Sundays and postal holidays) after such deposit. Notice given in any other manner shall be effective only if and when 
delivered to the party to be notified or at such party's address for purposes of notice as set forth herein. For purposes of 
notice the addresses of the parties shall, until changed as herein provided, be as provided on the first page of this Lease. 
However, the parties hereto shall have the right from time to time to change their respective addresses by giving at least 
fifteen (15) days' written notice to the other party in the manner set forth in this Section 10.03. Notice may be given by a 
party's attorney or other representative. 

ARTICLE 11. MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 11.01. Attorneys' Fees and Other Expenses. In the event either party hereto defaults in the faithful performance 
or observance of any of the terms, covenants, provisions, agreements or conditions contained in this Lease, the party in 
default shall be liable for and shall pay to the non-defaulting party all expenses incurred by such party in enforcing any of 
its remedies for any such default, and if the non-defaulting party places the enforcement of all or any part of this Lease in 
the hands of an attorney, the party in default agrees to pay the non-defaulting party's reasonable attorneys' fees in such 
connection. 

Section 11.02. Successors; Gender; Time. Subject to the provisions of this Lease, and except as otherwise provided in this 
Lease, all covenants and obligations as contained within this Lease shall bind and extend and inure to the benefit of the 
parties hereto and their heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns. The pronouns of any gender shall include the 
other genders, and either the singular or the plural shall include the other. Time is of the essence with respect to this 
Lease. 

Section 11.03. Rights and Remedies Cumulative. The rights and remedies of Landlord under this Lease shall be 
nonexclusive and each right or remedy shall be in addition to and cumulative of all other rights and remedies available to 
Landlord under this Lease or at law or in equity. Pursuit of any right or remedy shall not preclude pursuit of any other 
rights or remedies provided in this Lease or at law or in equity, nor shall pursuit of any right or remedy constitute a 
forfeiture or waiver of any Rent due to Landlord or of any damages accruing to Landlord by reason of the violation of 
any of the terms of this Lease. 

Section 11.04. Legal Interpretation. This Lease and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be interpreted, 
construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas and the United States. All obligations of the 
parties hereto shall be performable in, and all legal actions to enforce or construe this Lease shall be instituted in the 
courts of the county in which the Leased Premises are located. The determination that one or more provisions of this 
Lease is invalid, void, illegal or unenforceable shall not affect or invalidate any other provision of this Lease, and this 
Lease shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained in this Lease, and, 
so far as is reasonable and possible, effect shall be given to the intent manifested by the portion held invalid or 
inoperative. All obligations of either party hereunder not fully performed after the expiration or termination of the Term 
of this Lease shall survive the expiration or termination of the Term of this Lease and shall be fully enforceable in 
accordance with those provisions pertaining thereto. Article and section titles and captions appearing in this Lease are 
for convenient reference only and shall not be used to interpret or limit the meaning of any provision of this Lease. No 
custom or practice which may evolve between the parties in the administration of the terms of this Lease shall waive or 
diminish the right of Landlord to insist upon the performance by Tenant in strict accordance with the terms of this Lease. 
This Lease is for the sole benefit of Landlord and Tenant, and, without the express written consent thereto, no third party 
shall be deemed a third party beneficiary hereof. Tenant agrees that this Lease supersedes and cancels any and all 
previous statements, negotiations, arrangements, brochures, agreements and understandings, if any, between Landlord 
and Tenant with respect to the subject matter of this Lease or the Leased Premises and that this Lease, including written 
extrinsic documents referred to herein, is the entire agreement of the parties, and that there are no representations, 
understandings, stipulations, agreements, warranties or promises (express or implied, oral or written) between Landlord 
and Tenant with respect to the subject matter of this Lease or the Leased Premises. It is likewise agreed that this Lease 
may not be altered, amended or extended except by an instrument in writing signed by both Landlord and Tenant. The 
terms and provisions of this Lease shall not be construed against or in favor of a party hereto merely because such party 
is the "Landlord" or the "Tenant" hereunder or because such party or its counsel is the draftsman of this Lease. All 
references to days in this Lease and any Exhibits or Addenda hereto mean calendar days, not working or business days, 
unless otherwise stated. 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

Section 11.05. Tenant's Authorify. Tenant warrants and represents unto Landlord that: Tenant is a duly organized and 
legal entity, in good standing and qualified to do business in the State of Texas, Tenant has full right, power and authority 
to execute, deliver and perform this Lease, and that the person executing this Lease on behalf of Tenant was authorized to 
do so. 

Section l 1.06. No Brokers. Landlord and Tenant warrant and represent to the other that it has not dealt with any real 
estate broker and/or salesman (other than the Broker, if any, described in this Lease) in connection with the negotiation 
or execution of this Lease and no such broker or salesman has been involved in connection with this Lease, and each 
party agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other party from and against any and all costs, expenses, 
attorneys' fees or liability for any compensation, commission and charges claimed by any real estate broker and/or 
salesman (other than the Broker) due to acts of such party or such party's representatives. 

Section l 1.07. Other Leases and Tenants. Landlord reserves the absolute right to affect such other tenancies in the 
Building as Landlord, in the exercise of its sole business judgment, shall determine to best promote the interest of the 
Building. Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, Tenant does not rely on the fact, and Landlord does not 
represent, that any specific tenant or number of tenants shall during the Term occupy any space or any particular space 
in the Building, and Landlord does not represent or warrant that any particular space will be used for any particular 
purpose during the Term. 

Section 11.08. Joint and Several Liability. If there is more than one Tenant, then the obligations hereunder imposed upon 
Tenant shall be joint and several. If there is a guarantor of Tenant's obligations hereunder, then the obligations 
hereunder imposed upon Tenant shall be the joint and several obligations of Tenant and such guarantor, and Landlord 
need not first proceed against Tenant before proceeding against such guarantor nor shall any such guarantor be released 
from its guaranty for any reason whatsoever. 

Section 11.09. Independent Covenants. The obligation of Tenant to pay Rent and other monetary obligations provided to 
be paid by Tenant under this Lease and the obligation of Tenant to perform Tenant's other covenants and duties under 
this Lease constitute independent, unconditional obligations of Tenant to be performed at all times provided for under 
this Lease, save and except only when an abatement thereof or reduction therein is expressly provided for in this Lease 
and not otherwise. Notwithstanding any of the other terms or provisions of this Lease and notwithstanding any other 
circumstances whatsoever, it is the intent and agreement of Landlord and Tenant that so long as Tenant has not been 
wrongfully evicted from the Leased Premises, the doctrine of independent covenants shall apply in all matters relating to 
this Lease including, without limitation, the obligation of Landlord to perform Landlord's covenants under this Lease, as 
well as the obligation of Tenant to pay Rent and all other monetary obligations of Tenant and perform Tenant's other 
covenants, duties and obligations under this Lease. 

Section 11.10. Recording. This Lease (and any Exhibits or Addenda hereto or Memorandum hereof) shall not be 
recorded without the prior written consent of Landlord. 

Section 11.11. Addendum and Exhibits. The terms and provisions of the Exhibits and Addenda (if any) attached to this 
Lease are hereby incorporated herein and hereby made a part hereof for all purposes. 

LANDLORD AND TENANT EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE, AS A MOVING AND MATERIAL PART 
OF THE CONSIDERATION FOR LANDLORD'S ENTERING INTO THIS LEASE WITH TENANT, THAT 
LANDLORD HAS MADE NO WARRANTIES TO TENANT AS TO THE USE OR CONDITION OF THE LEASED 
PREMISES OR THE PROJECT, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND LANDLORD AND TENANT EXPRESSLY 
DISCLAIM ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY THAT THE LEASED PREMISES OR THE PROJECT ARE SUITABLE 
FOR TENANT'S INTENDED COMMERCIAL PURPOSE OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY (EXPRESS OR IMPLIED) 
REGARDING THE LEASED PREMISES OR THE PROJECT AND ALSO EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGE AND 
AGREE THAT TENANT'S OBLIGATION TO PAY RENT HEREUNDER IS NOT DEPENDENT UPON THE 
CONDITION OF THE LEASED PREMISES OR THE PROJECT OR THE PERFORMANCE BY LANDLORD OF ITS 
OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, AND THAT TENANT WILL CONTINUE TO PAY THE RENT PROVIDED FOR 
HEREIN WITHOUT ABATEMENT, SETOFF OR DEDUCTION, NOTIVITHSTANDING ANY BREACH BY 
LANDLORD OF ITS DUTIES OR OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. TENANT EXPRESSLY 
WAIVES (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW) ANY CLAIMS UNDER FEDERAL, 
STATE OR OTHER LAW THAT TENANT MIGHT OTHERWISE HAVE AGAINST LANDLORD RELATING TO 
THE USE, CHARACTERISTICS OR CONDITION OF THE LEASED PREMISES OR THE PROJECT. LANDLORD 
AND TENANT EXPRESSLY AGREE THAT THERE ARE NO, AND SHALL NOT BE ANY, IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, HABITABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR ANY 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

OTHER KIND ARISING OUT OF THIS LEASE AND THAT ALL EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES II'. 
CONNECTION HEREWITH ARE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED AND WAIVED. 

IN TESTIMONY \VHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Lease as of the day and year first above written. 

LANDLORD: TENANT: 

8121 Broadway Interests, L.L.C. Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

By:. ___________ _ By: ___________ _ 

Name:. _____________ _ Name:. _____________ _ 

Title:. ____________ _ Title:. ____________ _ 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 



Lease Agreement for 812 I Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
(OFFICE SPACE) 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (OFFICE SPACE) (this "Lease") is made and entered as ofthe.!._day of January
7 
2017 by 

and between 8121 BROADWAY INTERESTS L.L.C., ("Landlord"), a Texas limited liability company, whose address is 
5116 Bissonnet, Suite 154, Bellaire, TX 77401, and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 ("Tenant"), whose address 

is 8121 Broadway Houston TX 77061, (Suite# 135,) Subject to all of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of 
this Lease, and in consideration of the mutual covenants, obligations and agreements contained in this Lease, and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant 
agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. BASIC LEASE PROVISIONS 

BASE RENTAL shall be calculated on the basis of the price per square foot per year, multiplied by the total Net Rentable 
Area (hereinafter defined) of the Leased Premises (hereinafter defined) throughout the Term (hereinafter defined), 
payable as described in Section 3.01(b) of this Lease. 

Period 
Months 1-12 
Months 13-24 
Months 25-36 

Monthly Base Rental 
$2,150.00 
$2,150.00 
$2,150.00 

TENANT BROKER NIA 

LANDLORD BROKER - Internal 

Period Base Rental 
$25,000.00 
$25.000.00 
$25,000.00 

BUILDING means the structure containing approximately 29,549 square feet of Net Rentable Area situated upon the 
Land (hereinafter defined), commonly known as 8121 Broadway, located in the City of Houston, County of Harris, State 
of Texas, as the same currently exists or as it may from time to time hereafter be expanded or modified. 

PROJECT means the Building, together with the Land, the parking area serving the Building, all other improvements 
situated on the Land or directly benefiting the Building, and all additional facilities or improvements directly benefiting 
the Building that may be constructed. 

COMMENCEMENT DATE shall mean January 1, 2017. 

TERM means thirty-six (36) months, ending December 31, 2019. 

LAND shall mean that certain tract of land, legally describes as TR 32E ABST 27 J R HARRIS situated in Harris 
County, Texas. 

PARKING means zero (4) parking spaces per 1000 sf of occupancy or in the parking area serving the Building as more 
fully described in Section 2.04 hereof. Tenant shall have two (2) designated parking spots for parking police vehicles 

Security Deposit This lease requires a security deposit of $6,450 which must be paid in advance of lease commencement. 
This includes first month rents, last month rents and deposit 

TENANT'S PRO-RAT A SHARE for purposes of this Lease is 5.5% percent. 

BASE YEAR means 2017 

LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

Rent Concessions N/A 

TI Concessions: Install neutral colored laminate flooring, Build out kitchenette with counter and cabinets. 

ARTICLE 2. 

Section 2,01. Leased Premises. Landlord does hereby lease, demise and let to Tenant, and Tenant does hereby lease and 
take from Landlord, those certain premises containing approximately (1,621) square feet of Net Rentable Area (as defined 
in Exhibit C, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof) located on the 1st floor, of the Building together with the 
nonexclusive use of all rights, privileges, easements, appurtenances and amenities belonging to or in any way pertaining to 
said premises (collectively, the "Leased Premises"). The Leased Premises are outlined on Exhibit B, which is attached 
hereto and made a part hereof. 

Section 2.02. Term. The Term of this Lease shall begin on the Commencement Date and shall continue in full force and 
effect for the Term of this Lease unless extended or sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Lease. 
The term of this lease is thirty~six (36) months. 

Section 2.04. Parking. Throughout the Term, Tenant shall be entitled to use the number of parking spaces specified in 
Article I of the Lease ("Allocated Spaces") in the parking area serving the Building at no additional cost to Tenant. So 
long as no default exists under the Lease, all such parking spaces shall be provided to Tenant for use on an assigned basis. 
Tenant agrees to use such parking spaces in accordance with any and all rules and regulations established by Landlord. 
Landlord shall use all reasonable efforts to in.sure that the Allocated Spaces (or substitutes therefore) are available to 
Tenant throughout the Term. 

ARTICLE 3. 

Section 3.01. Rental Payments. (a) Installments. Commencing on the Commencement Date and continuing thereafter 
throughout the Term, Tenant shall pay the Base Rental (starting with the first month of the Term for which the Base 
Rental is due and not abated, to which the Prepaid Rental shall be applied), which is due and payable each lease year 
during the Term hereof in twelve (12) equal installments on the first (1st) day of each calendar month of each lease year 
during the Term, and Tenant shall make such installments to Landlord at Landlord's address specified in this Lease (or 
such other address as may be designated by Landlord from time to time) monthly in advance. 

If the Commencement Date is other than the first (1st) day of a calendar month, or if this Lease terminates on other than 
the last day of a calendar month, then the installments of Base Rental for such months shall be prorated, and the 
installments so prorated shall be paid in advance. The term "lease year" as used herein shall mean a period of twelve (12) 
consecutive full calendar months. The first lease year shall begin on the first day of the first calendar month following the 
Commencement Date (or, if the Commencement Date is the first day of a month, then beginning with such month) and 
each succeeding lease year shall commence upon the same day of each such year. 

(b) Payment; Past Due Rate. The Base Rental, the Additional Rental (hereinafter defined), any Prepaid Rental and any 
and all other payments which Tenant is obligated to make to Landlord under this Lease shall constitute, and are 
sometimes hereinafter collectively referred to as, "Rent". Tenant shall pay all Rent and other sums of money as shall 
become due from and payable by Tenant to Landlord in lawful money of the United States of America at the times and in 
the manner provided in this Lease, without demand, deduction, abatement, setoff, counterclaim or prior notice. All Rent 
under this Lease not paid within 10 days of its due date shall bear interest from the date due until paid at the lesser of 
eighteen percent (18%) or the maximum non-usurious rate of interest then permitted by the applicable laws of the State 
of Texas or the United States of America, whichever shall permit the higher non-usurious rate, and to the extent that such 
maximum non-usurious rate is determined by reference to the laws of the State of Texas, such rate shall be the indicated 
rate ceiling (as defined and described in the Texas Finance Code, as amended) at the applicable time in effect, until paid, 
such interest being in addition to and cumulative of any other rights and remedies which Landlord may have with regard 
to the failure of Tenant to make any such payments under this Lease. 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

Section 3.02. Additional Rental. (a) Definitions. 

(i) "Base Operating Expenses" means Operating Expenses (hereinafter defined) for the calendar year 
(the "Base Year"). 2017 

(ii) "Base Real Estate Taxes" means Real Estate Taxes (hereinafter defined) for the Base Year. 

(iii) "Real Estate Taxes" means all taxes, assessments and governmental charges, whether or not directly paid by 
Landlord, whether federal, state, county or municipal and whether they are imposed by taxing districts or authorities 
currently taxing the Project or by others subsequently created or otherwise, and any other taxes and assessments, 
assessed against or attributable to the Project or its operation, excluding, however, federal and state taxes on income, 
death taxes, franchise taxes and transfer taxes. 

(iv) "Operating Expenses" means all expenses, costs and disbursements relating to or incurred or paid in 
connection with the ownership and operation of the Project, computed on an accrual basis in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles consistently applied, including but not limited to the following: (a) wages and salaries of 
all persons, if any, engaged in the operation, maintenance, security or access control of the Project, including all taxes, 
insurance and benefits relating thereto; (b) the cost of all supplies, tools, equipment and materials used in the operation 
and maintenance of the Project, including rental fees for tbe same, if such items are not purchased and amortized 
pursuant to Section 3.02(a)(iv)(f) below; (c) the cost of all utilities for the Project (excluding those costs billed to specific 
tenants); (d) the cost of all maintenance and service agreements for the Project; (e) the cost of repairs and general 
maintenance, excluding (y) repairs and general maintenance paid by proceeds of insurance, by Tenant or by other third 
parties, and (z) alterations attributable solely to tenants of the Building other than Tenant; (f) amortization of the cost of 
capital investment items which are installed for the purpose of reducing operating expenses, or complying with 
governmental requirements; (g) the cost of all insurance relating to the Project; (h) Landlord's accounting and audit costs 
and attorneys' fees applicable to the Project, but excluding attorneys' fees, accounting fees and expenditures incurred in 
connection with negotiations, disputes, claims of other tenants or occupants of the Project or with other third parties 
other than Tenant; and (i) property management fees for the Project. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the term Operating 
Expenses does not include: (1) franchise or income taxes imposed on Landlord's net income, (2) expenses for which 
Landlord is or will be reimbursed by another source (excluding tenant reimbursement for Operating Expenses), including 
but not limited to repair or replacement of any item to the extent covered by warrantyj (3) depreciation and amortization 
of the Building and financing and refinancing costs, including interest and principal amortization of debts; (4) leasing 
commissions, advertising expenses and other costs incurred in leasing or procuring new tenants; (5) rental on ground 
leases or other underlying leases; (6) contributions to operating expense reserves or capital reserves; (7) costs of 
renovating or otherwise improving Leased Premises or the Land or vacant space in the Project; (8) costs included in 
Operating Expenses representing an amount paid to any entity related to Landlord which is in excess of the amount 
which would have been paid in the absence of such relationship; and (9) costs, items or amounts which are not reasonable 
in amount or not customarily included in operating expenses for similar type and class properties located in the vicinity of 
the Project. 

(v) "Adjustment Period" means each calendar year occurring during the Term beginning with calendar year 
which shall be the first Adjustment Period. 

vi) "Tenant's Pro Rata Share'' means the percentage calculated by dividing the Net Rentable Area of the Leased 
Premises (numerator) by the Net Rentable Area of the Building (denominator), and expressing the fraction as a 
percentage. 

(b) Gross-Up Adjustment. Operating Expenses shall be adjusted as follows: if occupancy during the Base Year or 
any Adjustment Period is less than ninety-five percent (95%), then Operating Expenses for that Base Year or Adjustment 
Period shall be "grossed up" to that amount of Operating Expenses that, using reasonable projections, would normally be 
expected to be incurred during the Base Year or Adjustment Period if the Building was ninety-five percent (95%) 
occupied during the Base Year or Adjustment Period, as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles consistently applied. Landlord shall provide in the Statement (hereinafter defined) a reasonably detailed 
description of how the Operating Expenses were grossed up. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, 
only those component expenses that are affected by variations in occupancy levels shall be grossed up (for example and 
not by way of limitation, expenses for insurance for the Project would not be grossed up). 

(c) Base Year Statement. On or before, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant an itemized statement of the Base Operating 
Expenses and Base Real Estate Taxes, and Landlord's calculation of the gross-up adjustment of Base Operating 
Expenses. 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

(d) Payment by Landlord. Subject to reimbursement under Section 3.02(e), Landlord shall pay the Project's Operating 
Expenses and Real Estate Taxes before delinquency. 

(e) Payment by Tenant. If the Operating Expenses and Real Estate Taxes when combined for any Adjustment Period 
exceed the combined total of Base Operating Expenses and Base Real Estate Taxes (any such excess being known 
collectively as the "Expense Increase"), then Tenant agrees to pay Landlord as additional rent (the "Additional Rental") 
Tenant's Pro Rata Share of the Expense Increase. 

(f) Manner of Payment. 

(i) Landlord may give Tenant notice of Landlord's estimate of amounts payable under this Section 3.02 for each 
Adjustment Period. Landlord's estimate shall be reasonable and based upon generally accepted accounting principles 
consistently applied. If Tenant requests, Landlord shall give Tenant reasonably detailed documentation to support 
Landlord's estimate. By the first day of each month during the Adjustment Period, Tenant shall pay Landlord one
twelfth (1112th) of the estimated amount. If, however, the estimate is not given before the Adjustment Period begins, 
Tenant shall continue to pay on the basis of the previous year's estimate, if any, until the month after the new estimate is 
given. 

(ii) Within ninety (90) days after each Adjustment Period ends, or as soon as reasonably practical, Landlord shall 
give Tenant an itemized statement (the "Statement") of Operating Expenses and Real Estate Taxes, and if the Statement 
shows that the actual amount Tenant owes for the Adjustment Period is less than any estimated Expense Increase paid by 
Tenant during the Adjustment Period, Landlord shall return the difference (the "Overpayment"). If the Statement shows 
that the actual amount Tenant owes is more than any estimated Expense Increase paid by Tenant during the Adjustment 
Period, Tenant shall pay the difference (the "Underpayment"). The Overpayment or Underpayment shall be paid within 
thirty (30) days after the Statement is delivered to Tenant. During any Adjustment Period that this Lease is not in effect 
for a complete calendar year, unless it was ended due to Tenant's default, Tenant's obligation for Additional Rental for 
those Adjustment Periods shall be prorated. 

(g) Tenant's Audit Right. Within sixty (60) days (the "Audit Election Period") after Landlord furnishes to 
Tenant the Operating Expenses Statement for any calendar year (including the Base Year), Tenant may, at its expense, 
during Landlord's normal business hours at Landlord's office, elect to audit Landlord's Operating Expenses for such 
calendar year only. Tenant shall deliver a copy of such audit to Landlord within five (5) business days of receipt of the 
audit report by Tenant. This paragraph shall not be construed to limit, suspend, or abate Tenant's obligation to pay Rent 
when due, including estimated Operating Expenses. After verification of Tenant's audit report, Landlord shall credit any 
Overpayment determined by the audit report against the next Rent due and owing by Tenant or, if no further Rent is due, 
refund such Overpayment directly to Tenant within thirty (30) days of the termination date of this Lease. In the event 
Tenant's audit report reveals that Landlord's calculation of Operating Expenses for the calendar year under inspection 
was o,•erstated by more than five percent (5%) in the aggregate, and Landlord does not agree with the results of Tenant's 
audit report, then Landlord may, within thirty (30) days following receipt of Tenant's audit report, obtain an audit report 
(the "Verifying Audit") of Landlord's Operating Expenses for the calendar year in question by an independent certified 
public accountant selected by Landlord. If the Verifying Audit (or Tenant's audit, if not challenged by Landlord through 
a Verifying Audit) reveals an overstatement of Landlord's Operating Expenses in the Statement provided to Tenant by 
more than five percent (5%) for such calendar year, then, in addition to crediting or refunding the Overpayment, 
Landlord will pay the reasonable out~of-pocket costs of Tenant's audit report within thirty (30) days of Landlord's 
receipt of an invoice for same. However, if the Verifying Audit reveals that there is an overstatement in the Landlord's 
Operating Expenses of five percent (5%) or less for such calendar year, then Tenant shall pay its own costs incurred for 
the Tenant's audit report, as well as the reasonable out-of-pocket costs incurred by Landlord in obtaining the Verifying 
Audit within thirty (30) days after Landlord delivers an invoice for the Verifying Audit to Tenant. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, Landlord shall be obligated to refund any Overpayment by Tenant of Tenant's share of the Landlord's 
Operating Expenses. If Tenant does not give written notice of its election to audit during the Audit Election Period, 
Landlord's Operating Expenses for the applicable calendar year shall be deemed approved for all purposes, and Tenant 
shall have no further right to review or contest the same. The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of 
this Lease. 

(h) Cap on Controllable Costs. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Lease to the contrary, for 
purposes of computing Tenant's Pro-Rata Share of Operating Costs, Controllable Costs (as defined in this paragraph) for 
any calendar year shall not exceed the Cap Amount (as defined in this paragraph) for that calendar year. The "Cap 
Amount" for any given calendar year during the Lease Term shall be an amount determined by increasing the 
Controllable Costs for the calendar year in which the Commencement Date occurs by 7% per annum on a cumulative 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

basis. "Controllable Costs" shall mean all Operating Costs other than the costs of Real Estate Taxes, all insurance related 
costs, all utility and waste collection related costs, and all costs incurred in complying with changes in the law. In 
addition, the Cap Amount shall exclude increases in Controllable Costs resulting from any increases in minimum hourly 
wage rates in effect as of the Commencement Date. 

ARTICLE 4. 

Section 4.01. Services. (a) Services Provided. So long as no default by Tenant under this Lease has occurred and is 
continuing, Landlord shall furnish to Tenant while Tenant is occupying the Leased Premises: 

(i) Domestic water at those points of supply provided for general use of tenants in the Building. 

(ii) Central heat and air conditioning in season from 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, 7:00 a.m. to 
2:00pm on Saturday, subject to curtailment as required by governmental laws, rules or regulations, in such amounts as 
will provide comfortable occupancy of the Leased Premises as determined by Landlord in its reasonable discretion, but 
such service at times during weekdays other than the hours stated above, on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays to be 
furnished only upon request of Tenant, and for such service Tenant shall pay Landlord within 30 days of receipt of 
Landlord's invoice an amount equal to the rate Landlord at that time is charging for such service. Landlord's afterMhour 
rate may be adjusted based upon increases in Landlord's actual cost to provide such service. 

(iii) Electric lighting service for all public areas and special service areas of the Building. 

(iv) Janitor service on a five (5) day week basis in a manner consistent with similar properties in the area. 

(v) Equipment and personnel to limit access to the Building after normal business hours; provided, however, 
Landlord shall have no responsibility to prevent, and shall not be liable to Tenant for and shall be indemnified by Tenant 
against liability or loss to Tenant or any of Tenant's Agents arising out of, losses due to theft, burglary or damage or 
injury to persons or property caused by persons obtaining access to the Leased Premises, and Tenant hereby releases 
Landlord from all liability relating thereto, except to the extent caused by Landlord's or any of Landlord's Agents' 
negligence or willful misconduct. 

(vi) Electrical facilities to furnish sufficient power to operate fluorescent lighting, typewriters, voice writers, 
calculating machines, copy machines, telecopy machines, personal computers and other machines of similar low electrical 
consumption in the Leased Premises (total consumption not to exceed six (6) watts per square foot of Net Rentable Area 
in the Leased Premises); but not including electricity required for special lighting requiring power in excess of Building 
standard and any other item of electrical equipment which (singly) consumes more than 0.5 kilowatts at rated capacity or 
requires a voltage of more than 120 volts single phase (said equipment will be metered separately and the installation of 
the meter and operating costs will be the obligations of Tenant). If any electrical equipment requires air conditioning in 
excess of Building standard, the same shall be installed at Tenant's expense and Tenant shall pay all costs relating thereto. 
Tenant covenants and agrees that at all times its use of electric current shall never exceed the capacity of existing feeders 
to the Building. 

(vii) All fluorescent bulb and ballast replacement for Building standard lighting in all areas and all incandescent bulb 
replacement in public areas, toilet and restroom areas and stairwells. 

(b) Cessation of Services. To the extent the services described in Section 4.0l(a) of this Lease require electricity, gas and 
water supplied by public utilities, Landlord's covenants hereunder shall only impose on Landlord the obligation to use its 
best efforts to cause the applicable public utilities to furnish the same. Failure by Landlord to furnish the services 
described in this Section 4.01 to any extent, or any cessation thereof, shall not render Landlord in default hereunder or 
liable in any respect for damages to either person or property, or be construed as an eviction of Tenant, or work an 
abatement of Rent, or relieve Tenant from fulfillment of any covenant or agreement hereof, except to the extent caused by 
Landlord's failure to use best efforts to cause the applicable public utilities to furnish the same. In addition to the 
foregoing, should any of the equipment or machinery break down, cease to function properly for any cause, or be 
intentionally turned off for testing or maintenance purposes, Tenant shall have no claim for abatement or reduction of 
Rent or damages on account of an interruption in service occasioned thereby or resulting therefrom. 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

(c) Holidays. The following dates shall collectively be known as "Holidays" and individually known as a "Holidav": New 
Year's Day; Memorial Day; Independence Day; Labor Day; Thanksgiving Day; Friday following Thanksgiving; 
Christmas Day; and any other holiday recognized and taken by tenants occupying at least one-half (1/2) of the Net 
Rentable Area of office space of the Building. If in the case of any Holiday, a different day shall be observed than the 
respective day above described, then that day which constitutes the day observed by national banks in the city or 
proximate area in which the Building is located, on account of such Holiday, shall constitute the Holiday under this Lease. 

Section 4.02. Keys and Locks. Landlord shall initially furnish Tenant with ten (10) keys for the standard corridor doors 
serving the Leased Premises and ten (10) key cards for the Building and ten (10) keys for the elevator. Additional keys 
will be furnished by Landlord upon an order signed by Tenant and at Tenant's expense. All such keys shall remain the 
property of Landlord. Without the prior written consent of Landlord, no additional locks shall be allowed on any door of 
the Leased Premises, and Tenant shall not make or permit to be made any duplicate keys, except those furnished by 
Landlord. Upon termination or expiration of this Lease or a surrender of possession of the Leased Premises by Tenant, 
Tenant shall surrender to Landlord all keys to any locks on doors entering or within the Leased Premises and all key 
cards for the Building. 

Section 4.03. Graohics and Building Directorv. Landlord shall provide and install initially at Landlord's expense, and 
thereafter, at Tenant's expense, all letters or numerals at the entrance to the Leased Premises, and a strip containing a 
listing of Tenant's name on the Building directory board to be placed in the main lobby of the Building. All such letters 
and numerals shall be in Building standard graphics. No signs, numerals, letters or other graphics shall be used or 
permitted on the exterior of, or which may be visible from outside, the Leased Premises, unless approved in writing by 
Landlord. 

ARTICLES. 

Section 5.01. Occuoancv of Leased Premises. Tenant shall throughout the Term of this Lease, at its own expense, 
maintain the Leased Premises and all improvements thereon in the same condition as received on the Commencement 
Date and shall deliver up the Leased Premises in a clean and sanitary condition at the expiration or termination of this 
Lease or the termination of Tenant's right to occupy the Leased Premises by Tenant, in the same condition as received on 
the Commencement Date, reasonable wear and tear excepted. In the event Tenant should neglect to maintain the Leased 
Premises, Landlord shall have the right, but not the obligation, after ten (10) business days' prior written notice to Tenant 
(except for in the case of emergency repairs), to cause repairs or corrections to be made, and any reasonable costs 
therefore shall be payable by Tenant to Landlord on demand. Upon the expiration or termination of this Lease or the 
termination of Tenant's right to occupy the Leased Premises by Tenant, Tenant shall surrender all keys and key cards for 
the Leased Premises and Building to Landlord in accordance with Section 4.02 of this Lease and Landlord shall have the 
right to reenter and resume possession of the Leased Premises. No act or thing done by Landlord or any of Landlord's 
Agents (hereinafter defined) during the Term of the Lease shall be deemed an acceptance of a surrender of the Leased 
Premises, and no agreement to accept a surrender of the Leased Premises shall be valid unless the same be made in 
writing and executed by Landlord. Tenant shall notify Landlord at least fifteen (15) days prior to vacating the Leased 
Premises and shall arrange to meet with Landlord for a joint inspection of the Leased Premises. If Tenant fails to give 
such notice or to arrange for such inspection, then Landlord's inspection of the Leased Premises shall be deemed correct 
for the purpose of determining Tenant's responsibility for repair and restoration of the Leased Premises. 

Section 5.02. Light, Air and View. Neither the diminution nor the shutting off of any light, air or view nor any other 
effect on the Leased Premises by any structure or condition now or hereafter existing on property adjacent to the Leased 
Premises or the Project shall affect this Lease, abate Rent or otherwise impose any liability on Landlord. 

Section 5.03. Entry for Repairs and Inspection. Tenant shall permit Landlord and Landlord's Agents (hereinafter 
defined) to enter into and upon the Leased Premises at all reasonable times for the purposes of inspecting the same or 
showing the same to prospective purchasers or for the purpose of maintaining or making repairs, and the Rent shall in no 
way abate while such inspections, repairs, alterations, improvements or additions are being made, by reason of loss or 
interruption of business of Tenant. 

Section 5.04 Waste and Environmental Compliance. Tenant covenants and agrees to comply strictly and in all respects 
and to cause Tenant's Agents to comply strictly and in all respects with the requirements of any applicable law, statute, 
ordinance, permit, decree, guideline, rule, regulation or order pertaining to health or the environment (hereinafter 
sometimes collectively called "Applicable Environmental Laws"), including, without limitation, the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the 
Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act, the Texas Health and Safety Code, the 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

Texas Natural Resources Code, the Texas Water Code, and regulations promulgated under any of the preceding statutes, 
as each of the foregoing may be amended from time to time, Tenant shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Materials 
(hereinafter defined) to be brought to or generated, treated, stored, used, installed or disposed in, on, under or about the 
Leased Premises or the Project, except that Tenant shall be permitted to use and store small quantities of Hazardous 
Materials typically used in offices (e.g., toner, cleaning products, etc.) provided that such materials are used and stored in 
compliance with Applicable Environmental Laws. Tenant represents, warrants, covenants and agrees that Tenant and 
Tenant's Agents are not and will not become involved in operations at the Leased Premises or the Project locations which 
could lead to the imposition on Landlord or any of Landlord's Related Parties (hereinafter defined) of liability under any 
of the Applicable Environmental Laws or otherwise. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT ALLOWED BY LA \V, TENANT 
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT CERTAIN HAZARDOUS MATERIALS MAY EXIST ON THE PROJECT, INCLUDING 
BUT NOT LIMITED TO ASBESTOS-CONTAINING MATERIALS. If Tenant knows, or has reasonable cause to 
believe, that a Hazardous Materials substance has come to he located in, on, under or about the Leased Premises, other 
than as previously consented by Landlord, Tenant shall immediately give written notice of such fact to Landlord, and 
provide Landlord with a copy of any report, notice, claim or other documentation which it has concerning the presence of 
such Hazardous Materials substance. Tenant shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Materials to be spilled or released 
in, on, under, or about the Leased Premises (including through the plumbing sanitary sewer system) and shall promptly, 
at Tenant's expense, take all investigatory and/or remedial action reasonably recommended whether or not formally 
ordered or required, for the cleanup of_any contamination of, and for the maintenance, security and/or monitoring of the 
Leased Premises or neighboring properties that was caused or materially contributed to by Tenant, or pertaining to or 
involving any Hazardous Materials brought onto the Leased Premises during the Term by or for Tenant. Tenant shall 
indemnify, defend and hold Landlord, its agents, employees, lenders and ground lessor, if any, harmless from and against 
any and all loss of rents and/or damages, liabilities, judgments, claims, expenses, penalties, and attorneys' and 
consultants' fees arising out of or involving any Hazardous Materials brought onto the Leased Premises by or for Tenant, 
(provided, however, that Tenant shall have no liability under this Lease with respect to underground or overhead 
migration of any Hazardous Material in the Leased Premises from areas outside of the Project). Tenant's obligations 
shall include, but not be limited to, the effects of any contamination of injury to person, property or the environment 
created or suffered by Tenant, and the cost of investigation, removal, remediation, restoration and/or abatement, and 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Lease. No termination, cancellation or release agreement entered into 
by Landlord and Tenant shall release Tenant from its obligations under this Lease with respect to Hazardous Materials, 
unless specifically so agreed by Landlord in writing at the time of such agreement. Landlord's obligations, as and when 
required by Applicable Environmental Laws, shall include, but not be limited to, the cost of investigation, removal, 
remediation, restoration and/or abatement, and shall survive the expiration or termination of this Lease. Landlord shall 
retain the responsibility and pay for any investigations or remediation measures required by government entities having 
jurisdiction with respect to the existence of Hazardous Materials on the Leased Premises prior to the Commencement 
Date, unless such remediation measure is required as a result of Tenant's use of the Leased Premises after the 
Commencement Date, in which event Tenant shall be responsible for such payment. Tenant shall cooperate fully in any 
such activities at the request of Landlord, including allowing Landlord and Landlord's agents to have reasonable access 
to the Leased Premises at reasonable times in order to carry out Landlord's investigative and remedial responsibilities. 
The covenants and agreements of Tenant under this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Lease. 
"Hazardous Materials" means any flammables, explosives, radioactive materials, asbestos-containing materials, solid 
wastes that pose imminent and substantial endangerment to health or the environment, formaldehyde, radon gas, lead, 
petroleum or any fraction thereof, polychlorinated biphenyls, and any other material, waste, or substance that could 
represent a threat to human health or safety or the environment, if it were improperly managed or disposed, including 
without limitation substances defined, listed or regulated as "hazardous substances," "hazardous materials," "toxic 
substances," "hazardous waste," "extremely hazardous substance," "regulated substance," "contaminant" or "Class I" or 
"Class II'' waste pursuant to Applicable Environmental Laws. 

Section 5.05. Compliance with Laws Regarding Disabilities. Landlord covenants and agrees that the common areas of the 
Project and all alterations and improvements to the Leased Premises constructed by Landlord pursuant to the terms and 
provisions of this Lease shall be constructed substantially in accordance with the Americans \Vith Disabilities Act and the 
Texas Architectural Barriers Act in effect as of the Commencement Date of this Lease (collectively, the "Act"), and 
Landlord shall attempt to reasonably comply with the Act in such construction. Tenant covenants and agrees that all 
alterations and improvements to the Leased Premises constructed by Tenant after the Commencement Date shall be 
constructed in accordance with the Act. In the event that, subsequent to the Commencement Date, Tenant requests 
Landlord to perform any alterations, additions or improvements to the Leased Premises, whether by virtue of expansion, 
extension or othenvise, Tenant agrees to and shall be responsible for all costs and expense incurred in connection with 
any improvements and alterations necessary to ensure compliance with the Act. It is the intent of this Section that any 
additional alterations, improvements or additions required by the Act with regard to the Leased Premises after the 
Commencement Date, whether resulting from amendments to the Act or othenvise, shall be the sole responsibility of 
Tenant. 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

ARTICLE 6. 

Section 6.01. Leasehold Improvements. (a) Acceptance of Leased Premises. Tenant has made a complete inspection of 
the Leased Premises and shall accept the Leased Premises and the Project in their "AS IS," "WHERE IS," and "\VITH 
ALL FAULTS" condition on the Commencement Date without recourse to Landlord, except for Landlord's 
Improvements described on Exhibit B hereto. Landlord shall have no obligation to furnish, equip or improve the Leased 
Premises or the Project, except for Landlord's Improvements described on Exhibit B hereto. The taking of possession of 
the Leased Premises by Tenant shall be conclusive evidence against Tenant that Tenant accepts the Leased Premises and 
the Project as being suitable for its intended purpose and in a good and satisfactory condition and acknowledges that the 
Leased Premises and the Project comply fully with Landlord's covenants and obligations under this Lease as of the 
Commencement Date. 

(b) Improvements and Alterations. Tenant shall not make or allow to be made (except as otherwise provided in this 
Lease) any improvements, alterations or physical additions (including fixtures) in or to the Leased Premises or the 
Project, without first obtaining the written consent of Landlord, including Landlord's written approval of Tenant's 
contractor(s) and of the plans, working drawings and specifications relating thereto, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Approval by Landlord of any of Tenant's drawings and plans and 
specifications prepared in connection with any alterations, improvements, modifications or additions to the Leased 
Premises or the Project shall not constitute a representation or warranty of Landlord as to the adequacy or sufficiency of 
such drawings, plans and specifications, or alterations, improvements, modifications or additions to which they relate, for 
any use, purpose or conditions, but such approval shall merely be the consent of Landlord as required hereunder. Any 
and all furnishing, equipping and improving of or other alteration and addition to the Leased Premises shall be (i) made 
at Tenant's sole cost, risk and expense, and Tenant shall pay for Landlord's actual costs incurred in connection with and 
as a result of such alterations or additions; (ii) performed in a prompt, good and workmanlike manner with labor and 
materials of such quality as Landlord may reasonably require; (iii) constructed in accordance with all plans and 
specifications approved in writing by Landlord prior to the commencement of any such work; (iv) prosecuted diligently 
and continuously to completion so as to minimize interference with the normal business operations of other tenants in the 
Building, the performance of Landlord's obligations under this Lease or any mortgage or ground lease covering or 
affecting all or any part of the Building or the Land, and any work being done by contractors engaged by Landlord with 
respect to or in connection with the Building; and (v) performed by contractors approved in writing by Landlord. Any 
and all alterations, improvements and additions to the Leased Premises shall at once become the property of Landlord. 
Tenant shall have no (and hereby waives all) rights to payment or compensation for any such item. Tenant shall notify 
Landlord upon completion of such alterations, improvements, modifications or additions and Landlord shall inspect same 
for workmanship and compliance with the approved plans and specifications. Tenant and its contractors shall comply 
with all reasonable requirements Landlord may impose on Tenant or its contractors with respect to such work (including 
but not limited to, insurance, indemnity and bonding requirements), and shall deliver to Landlord a complete copy of the 
"asbuilt" plans and specifications for all alterations or physical additions so made in or to the Leased Premises within 
thirty (30) days of completing the work. Tenant shall not place any items that would exceed load bearing limits of the 
floors. Notwithstanding herein anything to the contrary, Landlord agrees to perform improvements to the Leased 
Premises as specified in Exhibit B at Landlord's sole cost and expense. 

(c) Title to Alterations. All alterations, physical additions, modifications or improvements in or to the Leased Premises 
(including fixtures) shall, when made, become the property of Landlord and shall be surrendered to Landlord upon 
termination or expiration of this Lease or termination of Tenant's right to occupy the Leased Premises, whether by lapse 
of time or otherwise without any payment, reimbursement or compensation therefore; the rights conferred to Landlord 
under this Section 6.0l(c) shall be in addition to (and not in conflict with) any other rights conferred on Landlord by this 
Lease, in equity or at law. 

(d) Personal Property Taxes. Tenant shall be responsible for ad valorem taxes and other taxes, assessments or charges 
levied upon or applicable to Tenant's personal property ("Tenant's Property") and all license fees and other fees or 
charges imposed on the business conducted by Tenant on the Leased Premises before such taxes, assessments, charges or 
fees become delinquent. 

Section 6.02. Repairs by Landlord. AU repairs, alterations or additions that affect the Project's structural components or 
major mechanical, electrical or plumbing systems shall be made by Landlord or its contractors only, and, in the case of 
any damage to such components or systems caused by Tenant or Tenant's Agents, shall be paid for by Tenant in an 
amount equal to Landlord's costs plus fifteen percent (15%) as an overhead expense. Unless otherwise provided herein, 
Landlord shall not be required to make any improvements to or repairs of any kind or character to the Leased Premises 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

during the Term, except such repairs as Landlord deems necessary for normal maintenance operations. Landlord shall 
be responsible for the removal of cabling, if required at the end of the Lease Term. 

Section 6.03. Repairs by Tenant. Subject to Section 6.02 of this Lease, Tenant shall, at its own cost and expense, repair or 
replace any damage or injury done to the leasehold improvements in the Leased Premises or any part thereof, the Leased 
Premises or any part thereof, or the Project or any part thereof, caused by Tenant or any of Tenant's Agents (hereinafter 
defined). If Tenant fails to make such repairs or replacements, Landlord may, at its option, after ten (10) business days' 
prior written notice to Tenant (except in the case of an emergency), make such repairs or replacements, and Tenant shall 
pay to Landlord on demand the cost thereof plus fifteen percent (15%) as an overhead expense. Except insofar as 
Landlord is expressly obligated under this Lease to maintain and repair the Leased Premises, in addition to the 
maintenance and repair obligations of Tenant othenvise expressly set forth in this Lease, Tenant is also obligated to 
perform, at Tenant's own cost and expense and risk, all other maintenance and repairs necessary or appropriate to cause 
the Leased Premises to be suitable for Tenant's intended commercial purpose. 

Section 6.04. Liens. Tenant shall not permit any mechanic's lien or any other liens, encumbrances, claims or charges to 
be placed on the Leased Premises or the Project, or any part thereof, on the improvements thereon, on Landlord's 
interest therein, or upon Tenant's leasehold interest therein, during the Term of this Lease, and in the event of the filing 
of any such lien, encumbrance, claim or charge, Tenant shall promptly have same removed. Tenant covenants and agrees 
that it will pay or cause to be paid all sums legally due and payable by it on account of labor performed or materials 
furnished in connection with any work performed on the Leased Premises and that it will save and hold Landlord 
harmless from and defend Landlord against any and all loss, claim, damage, cost and expense based on or arising out of 
any such asserted claims, liens, encumbrances or charges. Tenant agrees to give Landlord immediate written notice of 
the placing of any lien, charge, claim or encumbrance against the Leased Premises or the Project. If Tenant fails to cancel 
or discharge any such lien within 30 days, Landlord may, at its sole option, cancel or discharge the same, and upon 
Landlord's demand, Tenant shall promptly reimburse Landlord for all costs incurred in canceling or discharging such 
lien or liens. 

Section 6.05. Indemnification. As additional consideration for Landlord entering into this Lease, Tenant does hereby for 
itself and its heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns, agree to and hereby does expressly indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless Landlord, and Landlord's manager of the Project and Landlord's and such manager's agents, principals, 
employees, heirs, legal representatives, successors, assigns, affiliates, officers, directors, shareholders, partners, ventures, 
trustees and representatives (collectively, "Landlord's Related Parties"), against and from any and all claims, actions

1 

causes of action, demands, losses, assessments, suits, damages, liability, costs and expenses of whatever kind (including 
without limitation attorneys' fees), that Landlord or any of Landlord's Related Parties may at any time sustain or incur 
by reason of any and all claims asserted against any of them to the extent that such claims arise out of or are based upon 
(a) any breach of any of the agreements of Tenant under this Lease, (b) any occurrence in, upon or about the Leased 
Premises or the Project caused by the sole, contributory, partial, joint, comparative or concurrent negligence, but only to 
the extent of such negligence, of Tenant or Tenant's respective employees, agents, officers, directors, shareholders, 
partners, trustees, representatives, customers, guests, invitees, licensees, subtenants, concessionaires, contractors, 
servants, vendors, material men, suppliers, heirs, legal representatives, successors, assigns or any other person entering 
the Project under express or implied invitation of Tenant, claiming by, through or under Tenant or who may occupy or 
use the Leased Premises (collectively, '"Tenant's Agents"), WHETHER OR NOT CAUSED BY THE CONTRIBUTORY, 
PARTIAL, JOINT, COMPARATIVE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF LANDLORD OR LANDLORD'S 
RESPECTIVE EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, SHAREHOLDERS, PARTNERS, TRUSTEES, 
REPRESENTATIVES, CUSTOMERS, GUESTS, INVITEES, LICENSEES, CONCESSIONAIRES, CONTRACTORS, 
SERVANTS, VENDORS, MATERIALMEN, SUPPLIERS, HEIRS, LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES, SUCCESSORS, 
ASSIGNS OR ANY OTHER PERSON ENTERING THE PROJECT UNDER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED INVITATION 
OF LANDLORD OR CLAIMING BY, THROUGH OR UNDER LANDLORD (COLLECTIVELY, "LANDLORD'S 
AGENTS"), but not including occurrences caused solely by reason of the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord or 
Landlord's Agents acting within the scope of their employment or authority, (c) the conduct of management of any work 
done by Tenant or any of Tenant's Agents in, upon or about the Leased Premises or the Project, (d) any occurrence in, 
upon or about the Leased Premises or the Project occasioned wholly or in part by any act, omission or neglect claimed to 
have been caused by Tenant or any of Tenant's Agents, or (e) any occurrence occasioned by the violation of any law, 
statute, permit, order, decree, guideline, rule, regulation or ordinance (including without limitation any Legal 
Requirements or Applicable Environmental Laws) by Tenant or any of Tenant's Agents. In any case in which Tenant has 
agreed to indemnify Landlord, Landlord's Related Parties or any other person, such indemnity shall be deemed to 
include an obligation on the part of Tenant to appear on behalf of the indemnified party in any and all proceedings 
involving a claim or cause of action covered by such indemnity and to defend the indemnified party against such claim or 
cause of action, all at Tenant's cost; provided, however, at the option of any party indemnified hereunder, such party 
shall have the right to appear on its own behalf, employ its own legal counsel and defend any claim or cause of action 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

indemnified in this Section 6.05 at such party's cost. Landlord does hereby for itself and its heirs, legal representatives, 
successors and assigns, agree to and hereby does expressly indemnify, defend and hold harmless Tenant and Tenant's 
agents, principals, employees, heirs, legal representatives, successors, assigns, affiliates, officers, directors, shareholders, 
partners, ventures, trustees and representatives (collectively, "Tenant's Related Parties"), against and from any and all 
claims, actions, causes of action, demands, losses, assessments, suits, damages, liability, costs and expenses of whatever 
kind (including without limitation attorneys' fees), that Tenant or any of Tenant's Related Parties may at any time 
sustain or incur by reason of any and all claims asserted against any of them to the extent that such claims arise out of or 
are based upon (v) any breach of any of the agreements of Landlord under this Lease, (w) any occurrence in, upon or 
about the Leased Premises or the Project caused by the sole, contributory, partial, joint, comparative or concurrent 
negligence, but only to the extent of such negligence, of Landlord or Landlord's Agents, WHETHER OR NOT CAUSED 
BY THE CONTRIBUTORY, PARTIAL, JOINT, COMPARATIVE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF TENANT 
OR TENANT'S AGENTS, but not including occurrences caused solely by reason of the negligence or willful misconduct 
of Tenant or Tenant's Agents acting within the scope of their employment or authority, (x) the conduct of management of 
any work done by Landlord or any of Landlord's Agents in, upon or about the Leased Premises or the Project, (y) any 
occurrence in, upon or about the Leased Premises or the Project occasioned wholly or in part by any act, omission or 
neglect claimed to have been caused by Landlord or any of Landlord's Agents, or (z) any occurrence occasioned by the 
violation of any law, statute, permit, order, decree, guideline, rule, regulation or ordinance (including without limitation 
any Legal Requirements or Applicable Environmental Laws) by Landlord or any of Landlord's Agents. The provisions 
of this Section 6.05 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Lease. 

ARTICLE 7. 

Section 7.01. Condemnation. (a) Total Taking. In the event ofa taking or damage related to the exercise of the power of 
eminent domain, by any authority, person, corporation or entity empowered to condemn property (including without 
limitation a voluntary conveyance by Landlord in lieu of such taking or condemnation) (individually, a "Taking") of the 
entire Leased Premises, so much of the Leased Premises as to prevent or substantially impair its use by Tenant during the 
Term of this Lease or portions of the Building or Project required for reasonable access to, or reasonable use of, the 
Leased Premises (individually, a "Total Taking"), the rights of Tenant under this Lease shall cease and terminate as of 
the date upon which title to the property taken passes to and vests in the condemner or the effective date of any order for 
possession if issued prior to the date title vests in the condemner ("Date of Taking"). 

(b) Partial Taking. In the event of a Taking of only a part of the Leased Premises or of a part of the Project which does 
not constitute a Total Taking during the Term of this Lease (individually, a "Partial Taking"), the rights of Tenant under 
this Lease and the leasehold estate of Tenant in and to the portion of the property taken shall cease and terminate as of 
the Date of Taking, and an adjustment to the Rent shall be made based upon the reduced value of the Leased Premises. 

(c) Termination by Landlord. In the event of a Taking of a portion of the Building or Project (other than the Leased 
Premises), and in Landlord's reasonable opinion, the Building or Project should be restored in a manner that materially 
alters the Leased Premises, Landlord may terminate this Lease by giving notice to Tenant within sixty (60) days following 
the date title vests in the condemner. This Lease shall terminate on the date specified in the termination notice, which 
date shall be at least thirty (30) days but not more than ninety (90) days after the date such notice is given. 

(d) Rent Adjustment. If this Lease is terminated pursuant to this Section 7.01, Landlord shall refund to Tenant any 
prepaid on-accrued Rent and any other sums due and owing to Tenant (less any sums then due and owing Landlord by 
Tenant), and Tenant shall pay to Landlord any remaining sums due and owing Landlord under this Lease, each prorated 
as of the Date of Taking where applicable. 

(e) Repair. If this Lease is not terminated as provided for in this Section 7.01, then Landlord at its expense shall promptly 
repair and restore the Building, Project and/or the Leased Premises to approximately the same condition that existed at 
the time Tenant entered into possession of the Leased Premises, wear and tear excepted (and Landlord shall have no 
obligation to repair or restore Tenant's improvements to the Leased Premises or Tenant's Property), except for the part 
taken, to render the Building or Project a complete architectural unit, but only to the extent of the condemnation award 
received by Landlord for the damage. 

(f) Awards and Damages. Landlord reserves all rights to damages paid because of any Partial or Total Taking of the 
Leased Premises or the Project. Tenant assigns to Landlord any right Tenant may have to the damages or award. 
Further, Tenant shall not make claims against Landlord or the condemning authority for damages. Notwithstanding, 
Tenant may claim and recover from the condemning authority a separate award for Tenant's moving expenses, business 
dislocation damages, Tenant's Property and any other award that would not reduce the award payable to Landlord. 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

Section 7.02. Force Majeure. Neither Landlord nor Tenant shall be required to perform any term of this Lease (other 
than the obligations of Tenant to pay Rent as provided herein) so long as such performance is delayed or prevented by 
"Force Majeurc", which shall mean acts of God, strikes, injunctions, lockouts, material or labor restrictions by any 
governmental authority, civil riots, floods, fire, theft, public enemy, insurrection, war, court order, requisition or order of 
governmental body or authority, and any other cause not reasonably within the control of Landlord or Tenant and which 
by the exercise of due diligence Landlord or Tenant is unable, wholly or in part, to prevent or overcome. Neither 
Landlord nor any mortgagee shall be liable or responsible to Tenant for any loss or damage to any property or person 
occasioned by any Force Majeure, or for any damage or inconvenience which may arise through repair or alteration of 
any part of the Project as a result of any Force Majeure. 

Section 7.03. Fire or Other Casualty. (a) Damage. If any portion of the Leased Premises is destroyed or damaged by fire 
or any other casualty, Tenant shall immediately give notice thereof to Landlord. If any portion of the Leased Premises or 
Project is destroyed or damaged by fire or any other casualty then, at the option of Landlord, (i) Landlord may restore 
and repair the portion of the Leased Premises or Project damaged and, if the Leased Premises are rendered untenable in 
whole or in part by reason of such casualty as determined by Landlord in Landlord's reasonable discretion, Tenant shall 
be entitled to a fair diminution of the Rent hereunder until such time as the Leased Premises (exclusive of any of Tenant's 
Property) are made tenantable as determined by Landlord in Landlord's reasonable discretion by repair or restoration 
or (ii) Landlord may terminate this Lease whereupon all Rent accrued up to the time of such damage and any other sums 
due and owing shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord (less any sums then due and owing Tenant by Landlord) and any 
remaining sums due and owing by Landlord to Tenant shall be paid to Tenant. In no event shall Landlord have any 
obligation to repair or restore any such destruction or damage. 

(b) Repair. Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to give Tenant written notice of its decisions, estimates or elections 
under this Section 7.03 within sixty (60) days after any such damage or destruction. If Landlord elects to repair and 
restore the Leased Premises or other portion of the Project, this Lease shall continue in full force and effect, and the 
repairs will be made within a reasonable time thereafter (not to exceed 180 days), subject to the provisions of Section 7.02 
of this Lease. Should the repairs not be completed within that period, both Landlord and Tenant shall each have the 
option of terminating this Lease by written letter of termination. If this Lease is terminated as herein permitted, 
Landlord shall refund to Tenant any Prepaid Rental (un~accrued as of the date of damage or destruction) and any other 
sums due and owing by Landlord to Tenant (less any sums then due and owing Landlord by Tenant) and any remaining 
sums due and owing by Tenant to Landlord shall be paid to Landlord. If Landlord elects to rebuild the Leased Premises 
or other portion of the Project, Landlord shall (i) only be obligated to restore or rebuild the Leased Premises or other 
portion of the Project to approximately the same condition as existed at the time Tenant entered into possession of the 
Leased Premises, wear and tear excepted and (ii) not be required to rebuild, repair or replace any part of Tenant's 
Property. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Lease to the contrary, if Landlord elects to repair and restore the 
Leased Premises or other portion of the Project pursuant to this Section 7.03, in no event shall Landlord be required to 
expend under this Article VII any amount in excess of the proceeds actually received from the insurance carried by 
Landlord pursuant to Section 7.04(a) of this Lease. Landlord shall not be liable for any inconvenience or annoyance to 
Tenant or injury to the business of Tenant resulting in any way from such damage or destruction, except (i) for 
Landlord's breach of its obligations hereunder and (b) that Rent shall be abated from thirty (30) business days after 
Landlord's receipt of written notice, for any portion of the Leased Premises that is unusable by Tenant until Landlord's 
restoration work in the Leased Premises is substantially complete, which abatement shall be in the same proportion that 
the Net Rentable Square Footage of the Leased Premises that is unusable by Tenant bears to the total Net Rentable 
Square Footage of the Leased Premises; provided that Tenant shall not be entitled to any abatement of Rent if the 
damage or destruction in the Leased Premises is restored within sixty(60) business days after Landlord's receipt of 
written notice from Tenant of the occurrence of the damage or destruction. 

(c) Negligence of Tenant. Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 7.03(a) and 7.03(b) of this Lease, if the Leased 
Premises, the Project or any portion thereof, are damaged by fire or other casualty resulting from the fault or negligence 
of Tenant or any of Tenant's Agents, Tenant will be liable to Landlord for the cost and expense of the repair and 
restoration of the Leased Premises, the Project or any part thereof. 

Section 7.04. Insurance. (a) Landlord shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, a policy of insurance on the Building 
against loss or damage by any and all hazards covered by the standard Causes of Loss- Special Form insurance policy in 
such amount as will, from time to time, cover the full cost of reconstructing the destroyed or damaged portion of the 
Building and improvements in accordance with then applicable laws and regulations, without any deduction for 
depreciation (100% replacement cost coverage). In addition, Landlord shall maintain commercial general liability 
insurance in the amount of at least Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) combined single limit for bodily injury and property 
damage per occurrence. Such insurance shall be maintained with an insurance company authorized to do business in 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

Texas, at the expense of Landlord (but with the same to be included in the operating expenses of the Building as described 
in Section 3.02 of this Lease). The insurance required to be obtained by Landlord may be obtained by Landlord through 
blanket or master policies insuring other entities or properties owned or controlled by Landlord. 

(b) Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense, procure and maintain during the Term of this Lease commercial general 
liability insurance (including personal injury liability, premises/operation, property damage, independent contractors and 
broad form contractual in support of the indemnifications of Landlord by Tenant under this Lease) in amounts of not less 
than a combined single limit of $1,000,000, comprehensive automobile liability insurance, property insurance with respect 
to Tenant's Property, leasehold improvements, alterations and additions written on an "all risk" basis for full 
replacement cost, and worker's compensation and employer's liability insurance, all maintained with companies 
authorized to do business in Texas and endorsed to include Landlord as an additional insured, with the premiums fully 
paid on or before the due dates. Tenant, and not Landlord, will be liable for any costs or damages in excess of the 
statutory limit for which Tenant would, in the absence of worker's compensation, be liable. In the event that Tenant fails 
to take out or maintain any policy required by this Section 7.04 to be maintained by Tenant, such failure shall be a 
defense to any claim asserted by Tenant against Landlord by reason of any loss sustained by Tenant that would have been 
covered by such policy, notwithstanding that such Joss may have been proximately caused solely or partially by the 
negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord or any of Landlord's Related Parties. If Tenant does not procure insurance 
as required, Landlord may, upon advance written notice to Tenant, cause this insurance to be issued and Tenant shall pay 
to Landlord the premium for such insurance within ten (10) days of Landlord's demand, plus interest at the past due rate 
provided for in Section 3.01(b) of this Lease until repaid by Tenant. All policies of insurance required to be maintained 
by Tenant shall specifically provide that Landlord shall be given at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice of any 
cancellation or non-renewal of any such policy. A certificate evidencing each such policy shall be deposited with 
Landlord by Tenant on or before the Commencement Date, and a replacement certificate for each subsequent policy shall 
be deposited with Landlord at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the preceding such policy. All insurance 
policies obtained by Tenant shall be written as primary policies (primary over any insurance carried by Landlord), not 
contributing with and not in excess of coverage which Landlord may carry, if any. The insurance required to be obtained 
by Tenant may be obtained by Tenant through blanket or master policies insuring other entities or properties owned or 
controlled by Tenant. 

Section 7.05. Waiver of Subroeation Riehts. Each party hereto waives all rights of recovery, claims, actions or causes of 
actions arising in any manner in its (the "Injured Party's") favor and against the other party for loss or damage to the 
Injured Party's property located within or constituting a part or all of the Project, to the extent the loss or damage is 
covered by: (a) the Injured Party's insurance; or (b) the insurance the Injured Party is required to carry under this 
Lease, whichever is greater, regardless of the cause or origin, including the sole, contributory, partial, joint, comparative 
or concurrent negligence of the other party. This waiver also applies to each party's directors, officers, employees, 
shareholders, partners, representatives and agents. All insurance carried by either Landlord or Tenant covering the 
losses and damages described in this Section 7.05 shall provide for a waiver of rights of subrogation by the Injured 
Party's insurance carrier against the other party, to the maximum extent that the same is permitted under the laws and 
regulations governing the writing of insurance within the State of Texas. Both parties hereto arc obligated to obtain such 
a waiver and provide evidence to the other party of such waiver. The waiver set forth in this Section 7.05 shall be in 
addition to, and not in substitution for, any other waivers, indemnities or exclusions of liability set forth in this Lease. 

ARTICLE 8. 

Section 8.01. Default by Tenant. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a default by 
Tenant under this Lease: 

(a) Tenant shall fail to perform, observe or comply with any of the terms, provisions, agreements, covenants or conditions 
of this Lease or any guaranty now or hereafter executed relating to this Lease (other than the failure specified in Section 
8.0l(b) hereof), such failure continuing for thirty (30) days after written notice from Landlord to Tenant of such failure; 
provided, however, that Landlord shall not be required to provide such notice with respect to any failure which is by its 
nature incurable; 

(b) Tenant shall fail to pay to Landlord any Rent or any other monetary charge due from Tenant hereunder as and when 
due and payable and such failure continues for ten (10) days after such payment is due and payable; 

(c) A Transfer (hereinafter defined) shall occur of all or a part of this Lease or the Leased Premises, without the prior 
written approval of Landlord (where such approval of Landlord is required); 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

(d) The interest of Tenant under this Lease shall be levied on under execution or other legal process; 

(e) Any petition in bankruptcy or other insolvency proceedings shall be filed by or against Tenant, or any petition shall be 
filed or other action taken to declare Tenant a bankrupt or to delay, reduce or modify Tenant's debts or obligations or to 
reorganize or modify Tenant's capital structure or indebtedness or to appoint a trustee, receiver or liquidator of Tenant 
or of any property of Tenant, or any proceeding or other action shall be commenced or taken by any governmental 
authority for the dissolution or liquidation of Tenant; 

(f) Tenant shall become insolvent, or Tenant shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or Tenant shall make a 
transfer in fraud of creditors, or a receiver or trustee shall be appointed for Tenant or any of its properties; 

(g) The admission by Tenant that it cannot meet its obligations as they become due; 

(h) Tenant shall do or permit to be done anything which creates a lien upon the Leased Premises or the Project, which 
lien is not discharged as required by Section 6.04; 

(i) The death or legal incapacity of Tenant, if Tenant is an individual person, or the termination, dissolution or liquidation 
of Tenant, if Tenant is a corporation, partnership or other entity; or 

(j) Tenant constructively or actua11y abandons the Leased Premises and/or discontinues normal business operations in the 
Leased Premises. 

The term "Tenant" as used in this Section 8.02 shall be deemed to include any guarantor of, or any other person or entity 
primarily or secondarily liable for, any of Tenant's obligations under this Lease. 

Non-payment of any monetary charge by Tenant is an immediate default and any notice period, which may be provided 
in this Lease will be a period during which Tenant can cure the default. It is further understood that any notice of non
payment of a monetary charge, which may be required under this Lease, will be deemed the same notice required by any 
applicable Texas statute, if any, and shall not be deemed an additional or extra notice to any statutory notice. 

Section 8.02. Landlord's Remedies. Upon the occurrence of any default by Tenant under this Lease, Landlord may, at its 
sole option, have the option to pursue any one or more of the following remedies without any notice or demand 
whatsoever, other than any notice expressly provided in this Lease: 

(a) Terminate this Lease, and Landlord may forthwith repossess the Leased Premises and be entitled to reco\'Cr as 
damages a sum of money equal to the total of: the cost of recovering the Leased Premises, the cost of removing and 
storing Tenant's or any other occupant's property, the unpaid Rent and any other sums accrued hereunder at the date of 
termination, a sum equal to the amount, if any, by which the present value of the total Rent and other benefits which 
would have accrued to Landlord under this Lease for the remainder of the Tenn, if the terms of this Lease had been fully 
complied with by Tenant, exceeds the total fair market value of the Leased Premises for the balance of the Term (it being 
the agreement of the parties hereto that Landlord shall receive the benefit of its bargain), the reasonable cost of restoring 
the Leased Premises to the condition necessary to rent the Leased Premises at the prevailing market rental rate, normal 
wear and tear excepted, any increase in insurance premiums caused by the vacancy of the Leased Premises, the amount of 
any unamortized improvements to the Leased Premises paid for by Landlord, the amount of any unamortized brokerage 
commission paid by Landlord in connection with the leasing of the Leased Premises and any other sum of money or 
damages owed by Tenant to Landlord. The fair market value of the Leased Premises shall he the prevailing market 
rental rate for similar space of similar size in a similar building in the city where the Leased Premises is located for a lease 
term equal to the remaining Term. 

(b) Terminate Tenant's right of occupancy of the Leased Premises and reenter and repossess the Leased Premises by 
entry, forcible entry or detainer suit or otherwise, without demand or notice of any kind to Tenant and without 
terminating this Lease, without acceptance of surrender of possession of the Leased Premises, and without becoming 
liable for damages or guilty of trespass, in which event Landlord may, but shall be under no obligation to relet the Leased 
Premises or any part thereof for the account of Tenant (nor shall Landlord be under any obligation to relet the Leased 
Premises before Landlord relets or leases any other portion of the Project or any other property under the ownership or 
control of Landlord) for a period equal to or lesser or greater than the remainder of the Term of the Lease on whatever 
terms and conditions Landlord, at Landlord's sole discretion, deems advisable. Tenant shall be liable for and shall pay to 
Landlord all Rent payable by Tenant under this Lease (plus interest at the past due rate provided in Section 3.0l(b) of 
this Lease if in arrears) plus an amount equal to: the cost of recovering possession of the Leased Premises, the cost of 
removing and storing any of Tenant's or any other occupant's property left on the Leased Premises or the Project after 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

reentry, the cost of reasonable decorations, repairs, changes, alterations and additions to the Leased Premises and the 
Project, the cost of any attempted reletting or reletting and the collection of the rent accruing from such reletting, the cost 
of any brokerage fees or commissions payable by Landlord in connection with any reletting or attempted reletting, any 
other costs incurred by Landlord in connection with any such relctting or attempted reletting, the cost of any increase in 
insurance premiums caused by the termination of possession of the Leased Premises, the amount of any unamortized 
improvements to the Leased Premises paid for by Landlord, the amount of any unamortized brokerage commission paid 
by Landlord in connection with the leasing of the Leased Premises and any other sum of money or damages owed by 
Tenant to Landlord, all reduced by any sums received by Landlord through any reletting of the Leased Premises; 
provided, however, that in no event shall Tenant be entitled to any excess of any sums obtained by reletting over and 
above Rent provided in this Lease to be paid by Tenant to Landlord. For the purpose of such reletting Landlord is 
authorized to decorate or to make any repairs, changes, alterations or additions in or to the Leased Premises that may be 
necessary as determined by Landlord in its reasonable discretion. Landlord may file suit to recover any sums falling due 
under the terms of this Section 8.03(b) from time to time, and no delivery to or recovery by Landlord of any portion due 
Landlord hereunder shall be any defense in any action to recover any amount not theretofore reduced to judgment in 
favor of Landlord. No reletting shall be construed as an election on the part of Landlord to terminate this Lease unless a 
written notice of such intention is given to Tenant by Landlord. Notwithstanding any such reletting without termination, 
Landlord may at any time thereafter elect to terminate this Lease for such previous default and/or exercise its rights 
under Section 8.03(a) of this Lease. 

(c) Enter upon the Leased Premises and do whatever Tenant is obligated to do under the terms on this Lease; and Tenant 
agrees to reimburse Landlord on demand for any expenses which Landlord may incur in effecting compliance with 
Tenant's obligations under this Lease plus fifteen percent (15%) of such cost to cover overhead plus interest at the past 
due rate provided in this Lease, and Tenant further agrees that Landlord shall not be liable for any damages resulting to 
Tenant from such action. No action taken by Landlord under this Section 8.03(e) shall relieve Tenant from any of its 
obligations under this Lease or from any consequences or liabilities arising from the failure to perform such obligations. 

(d) \Vithout waiving such default, apply all or any part of the Security Deposit and/or any Prepaid Rental to cure the 
default or to any damages suffered as a result of the default to the extent of the amount of damages suffered. Tenant shall 
reimburse Landlord for the amount of such depletion of the Security Deposit and/or any Prepaid Rental on demand. 

(e) Disconnect, discontinue, interrupt or cause the interruption of any utility or service currently being furnished to 
Tenant including without limitation gas, water, electricity, air conditioning and heating. 

(f) Change all door locks and other security devices of Tenant at the Leased Premises and/or the Project, provided, 
however, that Landlord shall provide a new key to Tenant during Tenant's regular business hours upon the condition 
that Tenant has cured any and all defaults hereunder and, reimbursed or paid Landlord for all Rent and other sums due 
Landlord hereunder. Landlord, on terms and conditions satisfactory to Landlord in its sole discretion, may upon request 
from Tenant's employees, enter the Leased Premises for the purpose of retrieving therefrom personal property of such 
employees, provided, Landlord shall have no obligation to do so. 

(g) Exercise any of the following remedies: enforcement of Landlord's statutory lien, suit on the contract, suit for 
anticipatory breach and injunctive relief of all varieties. 

(h) Exercise any or all other remedies available to Landlord in this Lease, at law or in equity. 

Section 8.03. Reentry. If Tenant fails to allow Landlord to reenter and repossess the Leased Premises, Landlord shall 
have full and free license to enter into and upon the Leased Premises with or without process of law for the purpose of 
repossessing the Leased Premises, expelling or removing Tenant and any others who may be occupying or within the 
Leased Premises, removing any and all property therefrom and changing all door locks of the Leased Premises. Landlord 
may take these actions without being deemed in any manner guilty of trespass, eviction or forcible entry or detainer, 
without accepting surrender of possession of the Leased Premises by Tenant, and without incurring any liability for any 
damage resulting therefrom, including without limitation any liability arising under Sections 93.002 and 93.003 of the 
Texas Property Code, as amended or superseded from time to time, and without relinquishing Landlord's right to Rent 
or any other right given to Landlord hereunder or by operation of law or in equity, Tenant hereby waiving any right to 
claim damage for such reentry and expulsion, including without limitation any rights granted to Tenant by Sections 
93.002 and 93.003 of the Texas Property Code, as amended or superseded from time to time. 

Section 8.04. No Duty to Relet or Mitigate. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, to the full extent 
permitted under applicable law, Tenant hereby (a) releases Landlord from any and all duty to relet the Leased Premises 
or otherwise mitigate damages and (b) waives its right to require Landlord to relet the Leased Premises or othenvise 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

mitigate damages. Landlord shall not be liable, nor shall Tenant's obligations hereunder be diminished, because of 
Landlord's failure to relet the Leased Premises or collect rent due with respect to such reletting. In no event shall Tenant 
be entitled to any excess rents received by Landlord. In the event, and only in the event and to the extent (but no further) 
that (despite such waiver) Texas law requires Landlord to mitigate damages, or to use efforts or make attempts to do so, 
and such requirement cannot be lawfully and effectively waived, Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to relet the Leased 
Premises on such terms and conditions as Landlord in its good faith judgment may determine; provided, however, that 
Landlord shall not be obligated to relet the Leased Premises before leasing any other unoccupied portions of the Project 
and any other property under the ownership or control of Landlord. 

Section 8.05. Non Waiver. Failure on the part of either party hereto to complain of any action or non-action on the part 
of the other party, no matter how long the same may continue, shall not be deemed to be a waiver by such party of any of 
its rights under this Lease. Further, it is covenanted and agreed that no waiver at any time of any of the provisions hereof 
by either party shall be construed as a waiver of any of the other provisions hereof and that a waiver at any time of any of 
the provisions hereof shall not be construed as a waiver at any subsequent time of the same provisions. The consent or 
approval by Landlord to or of any action by Tenant requiring Landlord's consent or approval shall not be deemed to 
waive or render unnecessary Landlord's consent or approval to or of any subsequent similar act by Tenant. 

Section 8.06. Holding Over. In the event Tenant remains in possession of the Leased Premises after the expiration or 
termination of this Lease without the execution of a new lease or Landlord's written approval, then Tenant, at Landlord's 
option, shall be deemed to be occupying the Leased Premises as a tenant at will at a base rental equal to 200¾ of the Base 
Rental, and shall otherwise remain subject to all the conditions, provisions and obligations of this Lease insofar as the 
same are applicable to a tenancy at will, including without limitation the payment of all other Rent. No holding over by 
Tenant after the expiration or termination of this Lease shall be construed to extend the Term or in any other manner be 
construed as permission by Landlord to hold over. Tenant shall indemnify Landlord (y) against all claims for damages 
by any other tenant to whom Landlord may have leased all or any part of the Leased Premises effective upon the 
termination or expiration of this Lease, and (z) for all other losses, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys• 
fees, incurred by reason of such holding over. 

Section 8.07. Abandonment of Personal Property. Any personal property left in the Leased Premises or any personal 
property of Tenant left about the Project at the expiration or termination of this Lease, the termination of Tenant's right 
to occupy the Leased Premises shall be deemed abandoned by Tenant and may, at the option of Landlord, be immediately 
removed from the Leased Premises or such other space by Landlord and stored by Landlord at the full risk, cost and 
expense of Tenant. Landlord shall in no event be responsible for the value, preservation or safekeeping thereof. In the 
event Tenant does not reclaim any such personal property and pay all costs for any storage and moving thereof within 
thirty (30) days after the expiration or termination of this Lease, the termination of Tenant's right to occupy the Leased 
Premises or the abandonment, desertion or vacating of the Leased Premises by Tenant, Landlord may dispose of such 
personal property in any way that it deems proper. If Landlord shall sell any such personal property, it shall be entitled 
to retain from the proceeds the amount of any Rent or other expenses due Landlord, together with the cost of storage and 
moving and the expense of the sale. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, in addition to the rights 
provided herein with respect to any such property, Landlord shall have the option of exercising any of its other rights or 
remedies provided in the Lease or exercising any rights or remedies available to Landlord in the Texas Property Code, as 
amended from time to time, or otherwise at law or in equity. 

ARTICLE 9. 

Section 9.01. Transfers. Tenant shall not, by operation of law or otherwise (a) assign, transfer, mortgage or otherwise 
encumber all or any part of this Lease or the Leased Premises, (b) grant any concession or license within the Leased 
Premises, (c) grant or transfer any management privileges or rights with respect to the Leased Premises, (d) sublet all or 
any part of the Leased Premises or any right or privilege a()purtenant to the Leased Premises, (e) permit any other party 
to occupy or use all or any part of the Leased Premises or (f) advertise for any of the foregoing (collectively, a 
"Transfer"), without the prior written consent of Landlord, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned or delayed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant shall have the right to assign the Lease in its entirety or 
sublet all or any portion of the Leased Premises without obtaining Landlord's consent to any parent, subsidiary, or 
affiliate of Tenant, or any entity purchasing substantially all of the stock or assets of Tenant, or into which or with which 
Tenant is merged or consolidated. If Tenant desires the consent of Landlord to a Transfer, Tenant shall submit to 
Landlord, at least sixty (60) days prior to the proposed effective date of the Transfer, a written notice which includes the 
following information: the name of the proposed assignee or subtenant and the nature and character of the business of the 
proposed assignee or subtenant, the term, use, rental rate and all other material terms and conditions of the proposed 
assignment or sublease, and evidence reasonably satisfactory to Landlord that any proposed assignee is financially 
responsible. Landlord's consent shall be granted or withheld within thirty (30) days of receipt of Tenant's notice. Tenant 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway lnterests LLC and Harris County lmprovement District No. 9 

shall reimburse Landlord for its reasonable attorneys' fees and other expenses incurred in connection with considering 
any request for its consent to a Transfer. Landlord's consent to a Transfer shall not release Tenant from performing its 
obligations under this Lease, but rather Tenant's transferee shall assume all of Tenant's obligations under this Lease in a 
writing satisfactory to Landlord, and Tenant and its transferee shall be jointly and severally liable therefore. Landlord's 
consent to any Transfer shall not waive Landlord's rights as to any subsequent Transfer. Upon Tenant's uncured 
default, Tenant authorizes its transferees to make payments of rent and any other sums due and payable, directly to 
Landlord upon receipt of notice from Landlord to do so. Any attempted Transfer by Tenant in violation of the terms and 
covenants of this Article IX shall be void and shall constitute a default by Tenant under this Lease. 

Section 9.02. Assignment by Landlord. Landlord shall have the right at any time to sell, transfer or assign, in whole or in 
part, by operation of law or othenvise, its interests in any part of this Lease or the Project, without the prior consent of 
Tenant, and such sale, transfer or assignment shall be binding on Tenant After such sale, transfer or assignment, 
provided such purchaser, transferee or assignee assumes all of Landlord's obligations hereunder, Tenant shall attorn to 
such purchaser, transferee or assignee, and Landlord shall be released from all liability and obligations under this Lease 
arising after the effective date of such sale, transfer or assignment. 

Section 9.03. Limitation of Landlord's Liability. Any provisions of this Lease to the contrary notwithstanding, Tenant 
hereby agrees that no personal, partnership or corporate liability of any kind or character whatsoever now attaches or at 
any time hereafter under any condition shall attach to Landlord or any of Landlord's Related Parties or any mortgagee 
for payment of any amounts payable under this Lease or for the performance of any obligation under this Lease. The 
exclusive remedies of Tenant for the failure of Landlord to perform any of its obligations under this Lease shall be to 
proceed against the interest of Landlord in and to the Project. The provision contained in the foregoing sentence is not 
intended to, and shall not, limit any right that Tenant might otherwise have to obtain injunctive relief against Landlord or 
Landlord's successors in interest or any suit or action in connection with enforcement or collection of amounts which may 
become owing or payable under or on account of insurance maintained by Landlord. In no event shall either Landlord or 
Tenant be liable to the other for any indirect, special, consequential or punitive damages. 

ARTICLE 10. 

Section 10.01. Subordination. This Lease shall be subject and subordinated at all times to all ground leases and all liens 
of all mortgages and deeds of trust in any amount or amounts whatsoever now or hereafter placed on the Project or 
Landlord's interest or estate therein or on or against such ground or underlying leases and to all modifications thereof. 
Within ten (10) business days after Landlord's written request, Tenant shall execute and deliver any instruments, releases 
or other documents requested by any lessor or mortgagee for the purpose of subjecting and subordinating this Lease to 
such ground leases, mortgages or deeds of trust; provided, that, Landlord procures from any such mortgagees an 
agreement in writing which shall be delivered to Tenant, providing in substance that so long as Tenant shall discharge the 
obligations on its part to be kept and performed under the terms of this Lease, its tenancy will not be disturbed nor this 
Lease affected by any default under such mortgage, and mortgagee agrees that this Lease shall remain in full force and 
effect even though default on the mortgage may occur. Furthermore, Landlord agrees to provide Tenant with such a 
non-disturbance agreement from each current lender simultaneously with the execution of this Lease. Tenant shall attorn 
to any party succeeding to Landlord's interest in the Leased Premises, whether by purchase, foreclosure, deed in lieu of 
foreclosure, power of sale, termination of lease or othenvise, and shall execute such agreements confirming such 
attornment as such party may reasonably request. Tenant shall not seek to enforce any remedy it may have for any 
default on the part of Landlord without first giving written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, specifying 
the default in reasonable detail, to any mortgagee or lessor under a lien instrument or lease covering the Leased Premises 
whose address has been given to Tenant, and affording such mortgagee or lessor a reasonable opportunity to perform 
Landlord's obligations hereunder. Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, any mortgagee or ground lessor may 
at any time subordinate any such deeds of trust, mortgages, other security instruments or ground leases to this Lease on 
such terms and conditions as such mortgagee or ground lessor may deem appropriate. 

Section 10.02. Estoppel Certificate or Three-party Agreement. Landlord and Tenant each agree within ten (10) business 
days following written request by the other to execute, acknowledge and deliver to the other party, and any other persons 
specified by such party, a certificate certifying such matters as are reasonably acceptable to all parties. Any such 
statement provided by Tenant may be relied upon by a purchaser, assignee or lender. The requested party's failure to 
execute and deliver such statement within the time required shall be conclusive upon the requested party that: (1) this 
Lease is in full force and effect and has not been modified except as represented by the requesting party; (2) there are no 
uncured defaults in the requesting party's performance and, if Landlord is the requesting party, that Tenant has no right 
to offset, counterclaim or deduction against Rent; and (3) not more than one month's Rent has been paid in advance. 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

Section 10.03. Notices. Any notice, request, approval, consent or other communication required or contemplated by this 
Lease must be in writing, and may, unless otherwise in this Lease expressly provided, be given or be served by depositing 
the same in the United States Postal Service, postpaid and certified and addressed to the party to be notified, with return 
receipt requested, or by delivering the same in person to such party (or, in case of a corporate party, to an officer of such 
party), or by express overnight mail service, when appropriate, addressed to the party to be notified. Notice deposited in 
the mail in the manner hereinabove described shall be effective from and after three (3) days (exclusive of Saturdays, 
Sundays and postal holidays) after such deposit. Notice given in any other manner shall be effective only if and when 
delivered to the party to be notified or at such party's address for purposes of notice as set forth herein. For purposes of 
notice the addresses of the parties shall, until changed as herein provided, be as provided on the first page of this Lease. 
However, the parties hereto shall have the right from time to time to change their respective addresses by giving at )east 
fifteen (15) days' written notice to the other party in the manner set forth in this Section 10.03. Notice may be given by a 
party's attorney or other representative. 

ARTICLE II. MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 11.01. Attorneys' Fees and Other Expenses. In the event either party hereto defaults in the faithful performance 
or observance of any of the terms, covenants, provisions, agreements or conditions contained in this Lease, the party in 
default shall be liable for and shall pay to the non-defaulting party all expenses incurred by such party in enforcing any of 
its remedies for any such default, and if the non-defaulting party places the enforcement of all or any part of this Lease in 
the hands of an attorney, the party in default agrees to pay the non-defaulting party's reasonable attorneys' fees in such 
connection. 

Section 11.02. Successors; Gender; Time. Subject to the provisions of this Lease, and except as otherwise provided in this 
Lease, all covenants and obligations as contained within this Lease shall bind and extend and inure to the benefit of the 
parties hereto and their heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns. The pronouns of any gender shall include the 
other genders, and either the singular or the plural shall include the other. Time is of the essence with respect to this 
Lease. 

Section 11.03. Rights and Remedies Cumulative. The rights and remedies of Landlord under this Lease shall be 
nonexclusive and each right or remedy shall be in addition to and cumulative of all other rights and remedies available to 
Landlord under this Lease or at law or in equity. Pursuit of any right or remedy shall not preclude pursuit of any other 
rights or remedies provided in this Lease or at law or in equity, nor shall pursuit of any right or remedy constitute a 
forfeiture or waiver of any Rent due to Landlord or of any damages accruing to Landlord by reason of the violation of 
any of the terms of this Lease. 

Section 11.04. Legal Interpretation. This Lease and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be interpreted, 
construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas and the United States. All obligations of the 
parties hereto shall be performable in, and all legal actions to enforce or construe this Lease shall be instituted in the 
courts of the county in which the Leased Premises are located. The determination that one or more provisions of this 
Lease is invalid, void, illegal or unenforceable shall not affect or invalidate any other provision of this Lease, and this 
Lease shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained in this Lease, and, 
so far as is reasonable and possible, effect shall be given to the intent manifested by the portion held invalid or 
inoperative. All obligations of either party hereunder not fully performed after the expiration or termination of the Term 
of this Lease shall survive the expiration or termination of the Term of this Lease and shall be fully enforceable in 
accordance with those provisions pertaining thereto. Article and section titles and captions appearing in this Lease are 
for convenient reference only and shall not be used to interpret or limit the meaning of any provision of this Lease. No 
custom or practice which may evolve between the parties in the administration of the terms of this Lease shall waive or 
diminish the right of Landlord to insist upon the performance by Tenant in strict accordance with the terms of this Lease. 
This Lease is for the sole benefit of Landlord and Tenant, and, without the express written consent thereto, no third party 
shall be deemed a third party beneficiary hereof. Tenant agrees that this Lease supersedes and cancels any and all 
previous statements, negotiations, arrangements, brochures, agreements and understandings, if any, between Landlord 
and Tenant with respect to the subject matter of this Lease or the Leased Premises and that this Lease, including written 
extrinsic documents referred to herein, is the entire agreement of the parties, and that there are no representations, 
understandings, stipulations, agreements, warranties or promises (express or implied, oral or written) between Landlord 
and Tenant with respect to the subject matter of this Lease or the Leased Premises. It is likewise agreed that this Lease 
may not be altered, amended or extended except by an instrument in writing signed by both Landlord and Tenant. The 
terms and provisions of this Lease shall not be construed against or in favor of a party hereto merely because such party 
is the "Landlord" or the "Tenant" hereunder or because such party or its counsel is the draftsman of this Lease. All 
references to days in this Lease and any Exhibits or Addenda hereto mean calendar days, not working or business days, 
unless othenvise stated. 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

Section 11.05. Tenant's Authority. Tenant warrants and represents unto Landlord that: Tenant is a duly organized and 
legal entity, in good standing and qualified to do business in the State of Texas, Tenant has full right, power and authority 
to execute, deliver and perform this Lease, and that the person executing this Lease on behalf of Tenant was authorized to 
do so. 

Section 11.06. No Brokers. Landlord and Tenant warrant and represent to the other that it has not dealt with any real 
estate broker and/or salesman (other than the Broker, if any, described in this Lease) in connection with the negotiation 
or execution of this Lease and no such broker or salesman has been involved in connection with this Lease, and each 
party agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other party from and against any and all costs, expenses, 
attorneys' fees or liability for any compensation, commission and charges claimed by any real estate broker and/or 
salesman (other than the Broker) due to acts of such party or such party's representatives. 

Section 11.07. Other Leases and Tenants. Landlord reserves the absolute right to affect such other tenancies in the 
Building as Landlord, in the exercise of its sole business judgment, shall determine to best promote the interest of the 
Building. Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, Tenant does not rely on the fact, and Landlord does not 
represent, that any specific tenant or number of tenants shall during the Term occupy any space or any particular space 
in the Building, and Landlord does not represent or warrant that any particular space will be used for any particular 
purpose during the Term. 

Section 11.08. Joint and Several Liability. If there is more than one Tenant, then the obligations hereunder imposed upon 
Tenant shall be joint and several. If there is a guarantor of Tenant's obligations hereunder, then the obligations 
hereunder imposed upon Tenant shall be the joint and several obligations of Tenant and such guarantor, and Landlord 
need not first proceed against Tenant before proceeding against such guarantor nor shall any such guarantor be released 
from its guaranty for any reason whatsoever. 

Section 11.09. Independent Covenants. The obligation of Tenant to pay Rent and other monetary obligations provided to 
be paid by Tenant under this Lease and the obligation of Tenant to perform Tenant's other covenants and duties under 
this Lease constitute independent, unconditional obligations of Tenant to be performed at all times provided for under 
this Lease, save and except only when an abatement thereof or reduction therein is expressly provided for in this Lease 
and not otherwise. Notwithstanding any of the other terms or provisions of this Lease and notwithstanding any other 
circumstances whatsoever, it is the intent and agreement of Landlord and Tenant that so long as Tenant has not been 
wrongfully evicted from the Leased Premises, the doctrine of independent covenants shall apply in all matters relating to 
this Lease including, without limitation, the obligation of Landlord to perform Landlord's covenants under this Lease, as 
well as the obligation of Tenant to pay Rent and all other monetary obligations of Tenant and perform Tenant's other 
covenants, duties and obligations under this Lease. 

Section 11.10. Recording. This Lease (and any Exhibits or Addenda hereto or Memorandum hereof) shall not be 
recorded without the prior written consent of Landlord. 

Section 11.11. Addendum and Exhibits. The terms and provisions of the Exhibits and Addenda (if any) attached to this 
Lease are hereby incorporated herein and hereby made a part hereof for all purposes. 

LANDLORD AND TENANT EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE, AS A MOVING AND MATERIAL PART 
OF THE CONSIDERATION FOR LANDLORD'S ENTERING INTO THIS LEASE WITH TENANT, THAT 
LANDLORD HAS MADE NO WARRANTIES TO TENANT AS TO THE USE OR CONDITION OF THE LEASED 
PREMISES OR THE PROJECT, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND LANDLORD AND TENANT EXPRESSLY 
DISCLAIM ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY THAT THE LEASED PREMISES OR THE PROJECT ARE SUITABLE 
FOR TENANT'S INTENDED COMMERCIAL PURPOSE OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY (EXPRESS OR IMPLIED) 
REGARDING THE LEASED PREMISES OR THE PROJECT AND ALSO EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGE AND 
AGREE THAT TENANT'S OBLIGATION TO PAY RENT HEREUNDER IS NOT DEPENDENT UPON THE 
CONDITION OF THE LEASED PREMISES OR THE PROJECT OR THE PERFORMANCE BY LANDLORD OF ITS 
OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, AND THAT TENANT WILL CONTINUE TO PAY THE RENT PROVIDED FOR 
lIEREIN WITHOUT ABATEMENT, SETOFF OR DEDUCTION, NOTIYITHSTANDING ANY BREACH BY 
LANDLORD OF ITS DUTIES OR OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. TENANT EXPRESSLY 
WAIVES (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW) ANY CLAIMS UNDER FEDERAL, 
STATE OR OTHER LAW THAT TENANT MIGHT OTHERWISE HAVE AGAINST LANDLORD RELATING TO 
THE USE, CHARACTERISTICS OR CONDITION OF THE LEASED PREMISES OR THE PROJECT. LANDLORD 
AND TENANT EXPRESSLY AGREE THAT THERE ARE NO, AND SHALL NOT BE ANY, IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, HABITABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR ANY 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

OTHER KIND ARISING OUT OF THIS LEASE AND THAT ALL EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES IJli 
CONNECTION HEREWITH ARE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED AND WAIVED. 

IN TESTIMONY \VHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Lease as of the day and year first above written. 

LANDLORD: TENANT: 

8121 Broadway Interests, L.L.C. Harris County Improvement District No. 9 

By: ___________ _ By: ___________ _ 

Name: _____________ _ Name: _____________ _ 

Title:. ____________ _ Title:. _____________ _ 



Lease Agreement for 8121 Broadway Interests LLC and Harris County Improvement District No. 9 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

10. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRISCOUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Receive an update and recommendations from the Environmental, Urban Design, and 
Mobility Committee. 

a. Consider and approve Broadway Enhancement Project Payment Applications 
and/or required Change Orders 

b. Consider and approve a proposal from Clark Condon & Associates for 
detailed design and construction documents for METRO bus shelters along and 
adjacent to Broadway Street 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRJCT 
(HARRIS COUNTY .l.111PROVE.111ENT DISTRICT NU?tfflER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calder6n LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



JERDON ENTERPRISE, LP. 
13403 Redfish 
Stafford, TX 77477 
Phone (281)261-5000 Fax (281)261-5500 

TO: Clark Condon Associates 
10401 Stella Link Rd. 
Houston, TX 77025 
713-871-1414 

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 
Date: 11/01/2016 Job No. 5382 
Attn: Brandon Whittaker 
Re: Hobby Area Management District 

Broadway Landscape Enhancement Project 

WE ARE SENDING YOU []]Attached ,__ _ __,JUnder separate cover via __ _ the following items: 

0Shop drawings 

Ocopy of Letter 

NO. COPIES DATE 

0Prints 

Ochange Order 

,__ _ __,!Plans Osamples c:=Jspecificafions 

[TI Documents 

1 4 11/01/2016 G702 & G703 Application for Payment 5382-04 October 2016 
2 4 11/01/2016 Back up spreadsheet with quanities 
3 4 11/01/2016 Waiver of Mechanic's Lien 

THESE ARE TRANSMITTED as checked below: 

0For approval 

0Foryouruse 

[}]As requested 

0Approved as submitted 

0Approved as noted 

0Retumed for corrections 

0For review and response 

0FOR BIDS DUE: 

REMARKS: 

Thank OU, 

COPY TO: File 

D Resubmit copies for approval 

D Submit __ copies for distribution 

0Retum __ corrected prints 

0PRINTS RETURNED AFTER LOAN TO US 

By: Jerdon Holding, L.L.C., General Partner 
SIGNED: Jeff Grzybowski, Senior Vice President 



APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT 
TO OWNER: 

Hobby Area Management District 

FROM CONTRACTOR: 
JERDON ENTERPRISE, L.P. 
13403 REDFISH LANE 
STAFFORD, TX 77477 

PROJECT: 

Broadway Boulevard 

VIA ARC!IlTECT: Brandon Whittaker 
Clark Condon 
10401 Stella Link Rd 
Houston, TX 77025 

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT Application is made for payment, as shown below, in connection with the Contract. 
Continuation Sheet, AIA Document G703, is attached. 

I. ORIGINAL CONTRACT SUM $ 4,934,820.70 2. Net change by Change Orders $ (1,232.059.50) 3. CONTRACTSUMTODATE(I.ine I ±2) $ 3,702,761.20 4. TOTAL COMPLETED & STORED TO $ 1,907.729.02 DATE (ColumnGonG703) 
5. RETAINAGE; 

a. 10 ¾ofComplctedWork $ 190,772.90 
(Column D +Eon G703) 

b. % of Stored Material $ 
(Column Fon G703) --------

Total Retainagc (Lines Sa+ Sb or 

Total in Column I ofG70J) 
6. TOTAL EARNED LESS RETAINAGE 

(Line 4 Less Line S Total) 
7. LESS PREVIOUS CERTIFICATES FOR 

PAYMENT (Linc 6 from prior Certificate) 
8. CURRENT PAYMENT DUE 
9, BALANCE TO FINISH, INCLUDING RETAINAGE 

(Line 3 less Line 6) 

NGCO 'RSUMMAKY 
Total changes approved 
in orevious months bv Owner 

Total aPoroved this Month - ch.a ord #3-5 
TOTALS 

NET CHANGES by Change Order 

$ 190,772.90 
$ 1,716,956.12 

$ 1.062.296.30 
$ 654,659.82 

$ 1,985,805.08 

ADDliIONS DEDUCTIONS 

$1,400.00 ($1,237,509.35) 

$4,049.85 

$5,449.85 ($1,237,509.35 

($1,232,059.50) 

AJA DOCUMENT G702 PAGE ONE OF PAGES 5 

APPLICATION NO: 5382-04 Distribution to: 

PERIOD T0:10/1/2016 to 10/31/2016 

G]OWNER 

~ARCHITECT 

LJcoNTRACTOR 

PROJECT NOS:CCA 113-098 

CONTRACT DATE: June I. 2016 

B 
The undersigned Contrnctor certifies that to lhc best of the Contractor's knowledge, 
information and belief the Work covered by this Applica1ion for Payment hns been 
complclcd in accordance with the Comract Documcnls, that all amounts have been paid by the Contrnclor for Work for which previous Ccrlificatcs for Payment were is:mcd and payments received from the Owner, and that current payment shown herein is now due. 

CONTRACTOR; 

By: \ Date; 
JcffG 

11/1/16 

State of: Texas County of: Fort Bend 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day of October 
Notary Public: Sandra Savage Farrow 
My Commiss(og expires: J)2/19n02, 

~ctu..._ 

! ·!::"'-~~; 
.,,,,\~~'~:,,,,. SANORA SAVAGE FAit 1{0\'•J .... •,.'·,····., ~ 

ff:'~._:, ··.'.t,iNotory Public, State 01 l'.'!.!'CO!i \;,.: .. ,1~./Jj Comm Explres 02~ 19· ?rl;!CJ .,,.,.,..,, • .,,"t .. ,,,,,t:r~J,,,,.... Nolary ID 1178901 ~-

ARCHITECT'S CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT 
In accordance with the Contract Documents, based on on-site observations and the data comprising the application, the Architect certifies to the Owner that lo the best of the Architect's knowledge, infom1ation and belief the Work has progressed as indicated, the quality ot'the Work is in accordance with the Conlract Documents, and the Contractor is cn1i1lcd to payment oflhc AMOUNT CERTIFIED. 

AMOUNT CERTIFIED . . . . .... $ 

(Aaach explanation if amount certified differs from the amou11t appUed. Initial alf figures on this Application and onthe Conlinualion Sheet that are changed Jo cmiform with the amount certified.) ARCHITECT; 

By; Date: 
This Certificate is not negotiable. The AMOUNT CERTIFIED is paynble only to the Contractor named herein. Issuance, payment and acceptance ot payment are without 
prejudice to any rights of the Owner or Contractor under this Contract. 

AIA DOCUMENT G702 • APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT· 1992 EDITION· AJA • (11992 THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, 1735 NEW YORK AVE., N.W,. WASHINGTON, DC 20006-52S2 Users may obtain validation of this document by requesting a completed AIA Document D401 ~ Certification of Document's Authenticity from the Licensee. 



CONTINUATION SHEET 
AIA Document G702, APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT, oontallling 
Contractor's signed certification is attached. 
In tabulations below, arnotutts arc slated lo the nearest dollar. 
Use Column I on Contracts where variable rctainage for line ilt:ms may apply. 

A B C 
ITEM DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED 
NO. VALUE 

1 Site Preo and Mobilization $ 417,708.05 
2 Construction oem,its $ 16,300.00 
3 Pavment & Performance Bond $ 50,000.00 
4 Maintenance Bond $ 500.00 
5 SWPPP -Filter fabric fence $ 17,961.40 
6 SWPPP - Inlet Protection Barrier $ 9,940.00 
7 SWPPP Stabilized Construction Exit $ 38,900.00 
8 Traffic Control Measures $ 100,000.00 
9 FlaQmen $ 25,000.00 

10 Tree Protection and Fenclni:i; $ 13,520.00 
11 Tree Planklna $ 40,595.00 
12 Tree Prunino $ 1,000.00 
13 Tree Removal $ 31,600.00 
14 Shrub and oroundcover removal $ 2,720.00 
15 Elec Serv., panels and controls $ 45,000.00 
16 Elec Condlut, boxes and wlrlna $ 175,000.00 
17 Landscaoe Uahlina fixtures $ 271,950.00 
18 Remove 41n TvnA D HMAC for oaver Installation $ 17,512.50 
19 Street llohl foundation $ 137,600.00 
20 41n Dia PVC SCH 80 pipe wllh borlna $ 40,443.00 
21 Gin Dia PVC SCH 80 pipe with borlno $ 45,050.00 
22 1 in Dia water taps and copper service line with new 

$ 26,100.00 meter box short side 
1 Inch diameter water taps and copper serv line with 

$ 46,800.00 23 new meter box lono side 
1 In dla water taps copper serv line new meter box extra 

$ 17,600.00 24 Iona side 
25 Granite gravel $ 237,600.00 
26 Saw cutuna existing concrete $ 19,232.00 
27 Clav brick Davers $ 972,000.00 
28 Concrete subbase for oavers in median $ 374,050.00 
29 61n concrete edae $ 180,615.00 
30 Live Oak • 65 aal $ 102,240.00 
31 Lacebark Elm - 65 aal $ 2,130.00 
32 Mexican Sycamore - 65 gal $ 3,550.00 
33 Water Oak - 65 oal $ 2,130.00 
34 Monterev Oak - 65 aal $ 1,775.00 
35 Natchez Crc"" Mwtlc - 65 1ml $ 15,620.00 

AIACOCUMENT G703 · CONTINVATION SHEET FOR G7D2 · 11192 EDlT/ON AIA, c1s;2 
THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, 113S NEWYORKAYENUE, NW WASHINGTON, 0 C, 20006-6232 

AJA DOCUMENTG703 

D B F 
WORK COMPLETED MAT>=.<ALS 

FROM PREVIOUS IH1SPER10D PRESENTLY 
APPLICATION STORED 

(D+E) (NOTIN 
DORE) 

$ 417,708.05 
$ 16,300.00 
$ 50,000.00 
$ 500.00 

$ -
$ -
$ 38,900.00 

$ 51,000.00 $ 17,000.00 
$ 12,750.00 $ 4,250.00 
$ 3,200.00 $ 10,130.00 
$ 8,395.00 $ 1,380.00 
$ 1,000.00 
$ 10,400.00 
$ 2,720.00 

$ 45,000.00 
$ 175,000.00 
$ 271,950.00 

$ 56.67 $ 600.00 
$ . 

$ 8,385.00 $ 4.212.00 
$ 20,100.00 $ -

$ . 

$ 15,600.00 $ 7,800.00 

$ . 
$ 104,544.00 
$ -

$ 189,774.00 $ 140,760.00 
$ 251,608.00 $ 64,650.00 
$ 59,032.50 $ 59,216.25 

$ 16,685.00 
$ 710.00 
$ 1,065.00 
$ 710.00 
$ 710.00 
$ 7,100.00 

PAGE "2,... OF PAGES 5 

APPLICATION NO: 5382-04 
APPLICATION DATE: 11101/2016 

PERIOD TO: 1011/2016 °10131/2016 
ARCHITECT'S PROJECT NO: CCA 113-098 

G H I 
TOTAL o/, BALANCE RETAJNAOE 

COMPLETED (O+C) TOFtNJSH (IF VARIABLE 
AND STORED (C-0) RATE) 

TO DATE 
(D+E+F) 

$ 417 708.05 100.00% $ 41,770.81 
$ 16,300.00 100.00% $ 1,630.00 
$ 50,000.00 100.00% $ 5,000.00 
$ 600.00 100.00% $ 50.00 

$ 17,961.40 $ . 
$ 9,940.00 $ . 

$ 38,900.00 100.00% $ 3,890.00 
$ 68,000.00 68.00% $ 32,000.00 $ 6,800.00 
$ 17,000.00 68.00% $ 8,000.00 $ 1,700.00 
$ 13,330.00 98.59% $ 190.00 $ 1,333.00 
$ 9,775.00 24.08% $ 30,820.00 $ 977.50 
$ 1,000.00 100.00% $ 100.00 
$ 10,400.00 32.91% $ 21,200.00 $ 1,040.00 
$ 2,720.00 100.00% $ 272.00 
$ 45,000.00 100.00% $ 4,500.00 
$ 175,000.00 100.00% $ 17,500.00 
$ 271,950.00 100.00% $ 27,195.00 
$ 656.67 3.75% $ 16,855.83 $ 65.67 

$ 137,600.00 $ -
$ 12,597.00 31.15% $ 27,846.00 $ 1,259.70 
$ 20,100.00 44.62% $ 24,950.00 $ 2,010.00 

$ 26,100.00 $ . 

$ 23,400.00 50.00% $ 23,400.00 $ 2,340.00 

$ 17,600.00 $ . 
$ 104,544.00 44.00% $ 133,056.00 $ 10.454.40 

$ 19,232.00 $ . 
$ 330,534.00 34.01% $ 641,466.00 $ 33,053.40 
$ 316,258.00 84.55% $ 57,792.00 $ 31,625.80 
$ 118,248.75 65.47% $ 62,366.25 $ 11,824.88 
$ 16,685.00 16.32% $ 85,555.00 $ 1,668.50 
$ 710.00 33.33% $ 1,420.00 $ 71.00 
$ 1,065.00 30.00% $ 2,485.00 $ 106.50 
$ 710.00 33.33% $ 1,420.00 $ 71.00 
$ 710.00 40.00% $ 1,065.00 $ 71.00 
$ 7,100.00 45.45% $ 8,520.00 $ 710.00 

0703-1992 



CONTINUATION SHEET 
AIA Document G702, APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT, containing 
Contractor's signed certification is attached, 
In tabulations below, amounts are slated to the nearest dollar, 
Use Colwnn I on Conlracts wltere variable rctainage for line items may apply. 

A B C 
ITEM DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULHD 
NO. VAUJE 

36 Clara Indian Hawthorne - 5 cu:il $ 79,742.00 
37 Azalea - 5 aal $ 4.960.00 
38 Lily of the NIie. 3 gal $ 29,767.00 
39 Blcolor Iris - 3 gal $ 239,280.00 
40 Gulf Muhlv • 3 aal $ 33.600.00 
41 Maiden Grass - 3 aal $ 6.681.00 
42 Bloblue Lriooe • 1 gal $ 203.544.00 
43 Flo Ivy 1 oal $ 1,362.90 
44 Monkey Grass - 4" pot $ 63,304.00 
45 Asian Jasmine - 4" pot $ 195,353.60 
46 Seasonal Color - 4" pot $ 41,434.25 
47 St. Augustine Sod $ 1,500.00 
48 lrrigallon Svslems Comolete & Oper. $ 675,000.00 
49 One year landscape maintenance $ 195,000.00 
1.1 Deduct landscaoe lloht fixtures $ (271,950.00 
12 Deduct elec conduit boxes and wirlng $ (60,000.00 
1.3 Deduct borina & sleevino $ {3,500.00 

Chanae Order No. 1 
3 Pavment & Performance Bond $ (8,900.00 
5 SWPPP -Filter fabric fence $ (8,661.40 

11 Tree Plankin!l $ 30,820.00) 
13 Tree Removal $ 16,800.00 
16 Elec Condlut, boxes and wiring $ 11,000.00) 
19 Street light foundation $ [137,600.00 
20 4in Dia PVC SCH 80 pipe with boring $ (20,943.00 
21 Bin Dia PVC SCH 80 pipe with borlna $ 120,050.00 

AIA00CUMEITTG703, CONTINUATION SHEET FOR 0702, 11Xl2 EOITION, A!A, <:)1992 
THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, 173S NEW VORK AVENUE, N W WASHINGTON. D C 20000.5232 

AJA DOCUMENTG703 

D E F 
WORK COMl'LEIED MATERIALS 

FROM PREVIOUS THIS PERIOD PRESENTLY 
APPLICATION STORED 

(D+E) (NOTIN 
DORE) 

$ 32,916.00 
$ . 
$ . 
$ 51.220.00 
$ . 
$ . 
$ 44.193,60 
$ . 
$ 17,701.75 
$ 4,211.20 
$ . 
$ . 

$ 141,750.00 $ 195,750.00 
$ . 
$ (271,950.00 
$ (60,000.00 
$ (3,500.00 

$ (8,900.00 
$ . 
$ . 
$ . 
$ 111,000,00 
$ 
$ . 
$ . 

PAGE J OF PAGES 5 

APPLICATION NO: 5382-04 
APPLICATION DATE: 11/01/2016 

PERIOD TO: 10/1/2016 • 10/31/2016 
ARCHITECT'S PROJECT NO: CCA 113-098 

G H I 
TOTAL % BALANCE RETAINAOE 

COMPLETED (G+C} TOFINISfl (IF V ARIADLE 
AND STORED (C-G) RATE) 

TO DATE 
(D+E+F) 

$ 32,916.00 41.28% $ 46,826.00 $ 3.291.60 
$ 4,960.00 $ . 
$ 29,767.00 $ . 

$ 51,220.00 21.41% $ 188.060.00 $ 5,122.00 
$ 33,600.00 $ . 
$ 6,681.00 $ . 

$ 44,193.60 21.71% $ 159,350.40 $ 4,419.36 
$ 1,362.90 $ . 

$ 17,701.75 27.96% $ 45,602.25 $ 1,770.18 
$ 4,211.20 2.16% $ 191.142,40 $ 421.12 

$ 41,434.25 $ . 
$ 1,500.00 $ . 

$ 337,500.00 50.00% $ 337,500.00 $ 33.750,00 
$ 195,000.00 $ 

$ (271,950,00 100.00% $ (27,195.00 
$ (60,000.00 100.00% $ {6,000.00 
$ 13,500.00 100.00% $ 1350.00 

$ (8,900.00) 100.00% $ (890.00 
$ (8,661.40 $ . 
$ 130,820.00 $ . 
$ 116,800.00 $ . 

$ {11,000.00 100.00% $ {1,100.00 
$ (137,600.00 $ . 
$ (20,943.00 $ . 
$ /20,050.00 $ . 

G703-1992 



CONTINUATION SHEET 
AJA Document 0702, APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT, containing 
Contractor's signed certification is attached. 
In tabulations below, amounts are stated to the nearest dollar. 
Use Colwnn I on Contracts where varioble rctainage for line items may apply, 

A • C 
ITEM DESCRD'TION OF WORK SCHEDUL .... ~ 
NO. VALUE 

1 in Dia water taps and copper service line with new 
22 meter box short side $ {26,100.00 

1 In dla water taps copper serv line new meter box extra 
24 Iona side $ (17,600.00 
35 Natchez Crepe Mvrtle -65 aal $ (2,840.00 
36 Clara Indian Hawthorne - 5 aal $ 3,692.00 
38 LIiy of the NIie - 3 gal $ (714.00 
39 Blcolor Iris - 3 gal $ (123,800.00 
40 Gulf Muhlv - 3 oal $ (33,600.00 
41 Malden Grass - 3 aal $ (6,681.00 
42 Bloblue Lrlope - 1 oal $ (108,870.30 
44 Monkey Grass - 4" pot $ (20,094.10 
45 Asian Jasmine -4" oot $ (176,288.00 
46 Seasonal Color- 4" pot $ (2,839.55 
48 lrrlaation Svstems Comolete & Ooer. $ (345,000.00 
49 One vear landsca~ maintenance $ (165,000.00 

Hand watering for 151 llve oads In setback through 
50 maintenance period $ 39,500.00 

1.30 Deduct borlna & sleevlna $ 3,500.00 
Chanae Order No, 2 
Remove Monumental Slan at Sanat Elena $ 1,400.00 
Change Order No, 3 

10 10.Tree Protection and Fencing $ (298.00 
26 26,Saw cultlno exlstlna concrete $ 5,600.00 
27 27.Clav brick pavers $ 15,282.00 
28 26.Concrete subbase for pavers In median $ 8,490.00 
29 29.Bfn concrete edQe $ 5,122.50 
30 30.Uve Oak - 65 gal $ (3,905.00 
36 36.Clara Indian Hawthorne - 5 gal $ 2,444.00 
38 38.LIIV of the NIie - 3 aal $ 595.00 
39 39.Blcolor lrls - 3 aal $ 115,800.00 
42 42.Bii:1blue Llriope - 1 aal $ 5,445.00 
44 44.Monkey Grass - 4" pot $ (4,266.05 
46 46.Seasonal Color - 4" oat $ 1,305.40 

Chanae Order No. 4 
4 ID Marker Sign and FoundaUon $ 132,000.00 

AIA DOCUMENT G103 • CONTINUATION SHEET FOR G70i, 1992 EDITION· J.JA • i:,19~ 
THE AMER!CAN IN&TITUTE: OF ARCUITECTS, 1735 NEW YORK AV!:NVE, NW. WASHINGTON, 0 C 200Cle-52l2 

AIA DOCUMENTG703 

D fi F 
WORK COMl'l,ETiil> MATERIALS 

FROM PREVIOUS THISl'ERIOD PRESENTI,Y 
APPLICATION STORED 

(D+E) (Naf!N 
DORE) 

$ -

$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -

$ 172,450.00 $ 1100,050.00 
$ . 

$ -
$ 3,500.00 

$ 1,400.00 

PAGE ,,_ OF PAGES $ 

APPLICATION NO: 5382-04 
APPLICATION DATE: 11/01/2016 

PERIOD TO: 10/1/2016 -10/31/2016 
ARCHITECTS PROJECT NO: CCA 113-098 

0 H I 
TOTAL 'I, BA.LANCE RETAINAOE 

COMPl.f-:IF.D (G+C) TO FINISH (IF VARIABLE 
AND STORED (C-0) RATE) 

TO DATE 
(DTE+F) 

$ (26,100.00' $ -

$ (17,600.00' $ -
$ (2,840.00 $ -
$ 3,692.00 $ -
$ 1714.00 $ -
$ 1123,800.00 $ -
$ (33,600.00 $ 
$ (6,881.00 $ -
$ (108,870.30 $ -
$ (20,094.10 $ -
$ (176,288.00 $ -
$ (2,839.55 $ 

$ (172,500.00 50.00% $ (172,500.00 $ (17,250.00 
$ (165,000.00 $ -

$ 39,500.00 $ -
$ 3,500.00 100.00% $ 350.00 

$ -
$ 1,400.00 100.00% $ 140.00 

$ -
$ (298.00 $ -
$ 5,600.00 $ -
$ 15,282.00 $ -
$ 8.490.00 $ -
$ 5,122.50 $ -
$ (3,905.00 $ . 
$ 2.444.00 $ -
$ 595.00 $ -
$ (15,800.00 $ -
$ 5,445.00 $ -
$ (4,266.05 $ -
$ 1,305.40 $ -

$ 
$ -
$ 

$ 132,000.00 $ -

0703-1992 



CONTINUATION SHEET 
AJA Docwncnt 0702, APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT, containing 
Contractor's signed certification is attached. 
In tabulations below. amounts are stated to the nearest dollar. 
Use Column I on Contracts where variable retainage for line items may apply. 

A B C 
ITEM DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED 
NO. VALUE 

Chanoe Order No. 5 
5 Deduct Electrical Services, Panels and Controls $ (45,000.00 
5 Deduct All Eleclrlcal Conduit, Boxes and Wirlno $ 1104,000,00 
5 1 O Hours of Electrical Proiect Manaaement $ 1,035.00 

GRAND TOTALS $ 3,702,761.20 

AJA DOCUMENTG703 

D E F 
WORK COMPLETED MATERIALS 

FROM PREVIOUS THIS PERIOD PRESENTLY 
APPLICATfON STORED 

(D+E) (NOTIN 
DORE) 

$ (45,000.00 
$ 1104.000.00 
$ 1,035.00 

$ 1, 180,329.22 $ 727,399.80 $ . 

Users may obtain valldatlon of I his document by requesting of the license a completed AIA Document 0401 - Certification of Document's Authenticity 

AIADOCUMENT G703 · CONTINUATION SHEET FOR G702 1UQ2 EDITION -AIA · 01992 
THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, 1735 NEW YORK AVENUE, NW. WASHINGTON, 0 C 20CIIG-5232 

PAGE $_ OF PAGES \!i 

APPLICATION NO: 5382-04 
APPLICATION DATE: 11/01/2016 

PERIOD TO: 10/1/2016 • 10/31/2016 
ARCHITECTS PROJECTNO: CCA 113-098 

G H I 
TOTAL % BALANCE RJ:.'TAINAGE 

COMPl.P.TED {G+C) TO FINISH (IF VARIABLE 
AND STORED (C-G) RATE) 

TO DATE 
(D+E-tF) 

$ . 
$ . 
$ . 

$ (45,000.00 100.00% $ (4,500.00 
$ 1104,000.00 100.00% $ (10,400.00 
$ 1,035.00 100.00% $ 103.50 

$ . 
$ 1,907,729.02 $ 1,795,032.18 $ 190,n2.9D 

0703-1992 



Broadway Street Landscape Improvements 
JERDON ENTERPRISE, L.P. Job# 5382 
PAY ESTIMATE #0_4 October_ 2016 
ITEM 
NO. DESCRIPTION 

Base Bid 
1 Site Prep and Mobilization 
2 Construction permits 
3 Pavment & Performance Bond 
4 Maintenance Bond 
5 SWPPP -Filter fabric fence 
6 SWPPP - Inlet Proteclion Barrier 
7 SWPPP Slabllized Construction Exit 
B Traffic Control Measures 
9 Flaamen 
10 Tree Protection and Fencing 
11 Tree Planklna 
12 Tree Prunina 
13 Tree Removal 
14 Shrub and aroundcover removal 
15 Elec Serv .. panels and controls 
16 Elec Condiut. boxes and wlrina 
17 Landscace liahtlna fixtures 
16 Remove 41n Type D HMAC for paver lnstallalion 
19 Street lioht foundation 
20 4in Dia PVC SCH BO nipe with borino 
21 6in Dia PVC SCH 80 oloe with borlna 

22 
1 in Dia water taps and copper service line with new 
meter box short side 
1 inch diameter water taps and copper seiv line with new 

23 meter box Iona side 
1 in dia water taps copper serv line new meter box extra 

24 Iona side 
25 Granile gravel 
26 Saw cuUinQ existina concrete 
27 Clav brick pavers 
28 Concrele subbase for cavers In median 
29 6in concrete edoe 
30 Live Oak - 65 aal 
31 Lacebark Elm - 65 oal 
32 Mexican svcamore - 65 aal 
33 Water Oak - 65 aal 
34 Monterev Oak - 65 aal 
35 Natchez Crepe Myrtle - 65 gal 
36 Clara Indian Hawthorne - 5 aal 
37 Azalea - 5 aal 
38 LilY of the Nile - 3 aal 
39 Blcolor Iris - 3 Aal 
40 Gulf Muhlv - 3 aal 
41 Maiden Grass - 3 aal 
42 Blablue Lrlope - 1 aal 

CONTRACT CONTRACT 
UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE 

LS 1.00 S 417 708.05 
LS 1.00 $ 16 300.00 
LS 1.00 $ 50 000.00 
LS 1.00 $ 500.00 
LF 11588.00 $ 1.55 
LF 994.00 $ 10.00 
SY 1556.00 $ 25.00 
LS 1.00 $ 100 000.00 
LS 1.00 $ 25,000.00 
LF 6760.00 $ 2.00 
EA 353.00 $ 115.00 
LS 1.00 $ 1 000.00 
EA 79.00 $ 400.00 
SF 34000.00 $ 0.08 
LS 1.00 $ 45 coo.co 
LS 1.00 $ 175.000.00 
EA 111.00 $ 2,450.00 
SY 2335.00 $ 7.50 
EA 86.00 $ 1,600.00 
SF 1037.00 $ 39.00 
SF 901.00 $ 50.00 

EA 9.00 $ 2,900.00 

EA 12.00 $ 3,900.00 

EA 4.00 $ 4,400.00 

SF 72000.00 $ 3.30 
LF 4808.00 $ 4.00 
SF 54000.00 $ 18.00 
SF 37405.00 $ 10.00 
LF 24082.00 $ 7.50 
EA 288.00 $ 355.00 
EA 6.00 $ 355.00 
EA 10.00 $ 355.00 
EA 6.00 $ 355.00 
EA 5.00 $ 355.00 
EA 44.00 $ 355.00 
EA 3067.00 $ 26.00 
EA 160.00 s 31.00 
EA 1751.00 $ 17.00 
EA 11964.00 $ 20.00 
EA 1344.00 $ 25.00 
EA 262.00 $ 25.50 
EA 20560.00 $ 9.90 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PREVIOUS CURRENT CURRENT QUANTITY TOTAL COMPLETE 
CONTRACT VALUE MONTH QUANTITY EXTENSION IN PLACE TO DATE 

$ 417 708.05 1.00 0.00 $ . 1.00 $ 417 708.05 
$ 16,300.00 1.00 0.00 $ - 1.00 $ 16 300.00 
$ 50 000.00 1.00 0.00 $ . 1.00 • 50.000.00 
$ 500.00 1.00 0.00 $ - 1.00 s 500.00 
$ 17.961.40 0.00 0.00 $ - 0.00 $ -
$ 9 940.00 0.00 0.00 $ - 0.00 $ . 
$ 36 900.00 0.00 1 556.00 $ 36,900.00 1 556.00 $ 38 900.00 
$ 100,000.00 0.51 0.17 $ 17,000.00 0.68 $ 68 000.00 
$ 25,000.00 0.51 0.17 $ 4,250.00 0.66 $ 17,000.00 
$ 13,520.00 1 600.00 5.065.00 $ 10 130.00 6,665.00 $ 13 330.00 
$ 40 595.00 73.00 12.00 $ 1,380.00 85.00 $ 9775.00 
$ 1 000.00 1.00 0.00 s - 1.00 $ 1 000.00 
$ 31.600.00 26.00 0.00 $ - 26.00 $ 10 400.00 
$ 2,720.00 34,000.00 0.00 $ - 34 000.00 s 2,720.00 
$ 45.000.00 0.00 1.00 $ 45 000.00 1.00 $ 45,000.00 
$ 175 000.00 0.00 1.00 $ 175 000.00 1.00 $ 175,000.00 
$ 271,950.00 0,00 111.DD $ 271,950.00 111.DD $ 271,950.00 
$ 17.512.50 7.58 BO.CO $ 600.00 87.56 $ 656.67 
$ 137 600.00 0.00 0.00 $ - 0.00 $ . 
$ 40.443.00 215.00 108.00 $ 4 212.00 323.00 $ 12 597.00 s 45 050.00 402.00 0.00 $ - 402.00 $ 20,100.00 
$ 26,100.00 0.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ -
$ 46,800.00 4.00 2.00 $ 7,800.00 6.00 $ 23,400.00 

$ 17,600.00 0.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 237 600.00 0.00 31.680.00 $ 104 544.00 31,680.00 $ 104 544.00 
$ 19,232.00 0.00 0.00 $ - 0.00 $ . 
$ 972.000.00 10,543.00 7 820.00 $ 140 760.00 18 363.00 $ 330 534.00 
$ 374,050.00 25,160.80 6.465.00 s 64 650.00 31 625.80 $ 316.258.00 
$ 180 615.00 7 871.00 7895.50 $ 59 216.25 15 766.50 $ 118 248.75 
$ 102.240.00 0.00 47.00 $ 16 685.00 47.00 $ 16 685.00 
$ 2130.00 0.00 2.00 $ 710.00 2.00 $ 710.00 
$ 3,550.00 0.00 3.00 $ 1 065.00 3.00 $ 1,065.00 
$ 2,130.00 0.00 2.00 s 710.00 2.00 $ 710.00 
$ 1,775.00 0.00 2.00 s 710.00 2.00 $ 710.00 
$ 15,620.00 0.00 20.00 $ 7100.00 20.00 $ 7100.00 s 79,742.00 0.00 1 266.00 $ 32 916.00 1.266.00 $ 32,916.00 
$ 4 960.00 0.00 0.00 $ - 0.00 $ . 
$ 29 767.00 0.00 0.00 $ - 0.00 $ -$ 239 280.00 0.00 2.561.00 $ 51,220.00 2 561.00 $ 51.220.00 
$ 33 600.00 0.00 0.00 $ - 0.00 $ -s 6,681.00 0.00 0.00 $ - 0.00 $ -$ 203 544.00 0.00 4,464.00 $ 44193.60 4,464.00 $ 44,193.60 



Broadway Street Landscape Improvements 
JERDON ENTERPRISE, LP. Job# 5382 
PAY E5_TIMATE #114 October 2016 
ITEM 
NO. DESCRIPTION 
43 Fig IVY 1 gal 
44 Monkev Grass· 4" oot 
45 Asian Jasmine· 4" pot 
46 Seasonal Color - 4" oot 
47 St. Augusllne Sod 
48 lrriaation Svstems Comolele & Ooer. 
49 One vear landscape maintenance 
1.1 Deduct landscaoe lioht fixtures 
1.2 Deduct elec conduit boxes and wiring 
1.3 Deduct borlna & sleevina 

Chanoe Order No. 1 
3 Pavment & Performance Bond 
5 SWPPP -Filter fabric fence 
11 Tree Planklna 
13 Tree Removal 
16 Elec Condlut. boxes and wirlna 
19 Street light foundation 
20 4in Dia PVC SCH 80 oioe with borina 
21 Sin Dia PVC SCH 80 pipe with borlno 

1 In Dia water taps and copper service line with new 
22 meter box short side 

1in dia water taps copper serv line new meter box extra 
24 long side 
35 Natchez Creoe Mvrtle - 65 aal 
36 Clara Indian Hawthorne • 5 Qal 
38 Liiv of lhe Nile • 3 aal 
39 Bicolor Iris· 3 gal 
40 Gulf Muhlv • 3 aal 
41 Maiden Grass - 3 gal 
42 Biablue Lriooe • 1 oal 
44 Monkey Grass -4" pot 
45 Asian Jasmine • 411 oat 
46 Seasonal Color· 4" pot 
48 lrrlaetlon Svstems Comolete & Oaer. 
49 One veer landscape maintenance 

50 
Hand watering for 151 Uve cads in setback through 
maintenance period 

1.3 Deduct borina & sleevina 

Chanae Order No. 2 
Remove Monumental Sign at Santa Elena 

CONTRACT CONTRACT 
UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE 
EA 231.00 $ 5.90 
EA 30880.00 $ 2.05 
EA 30524.00 $ 6.40 
EA 13585.00 $ 3.05 
SF 1000.00 $ 1.50 
LS 1.00 $ 675000.00 
LS 1.00 $ 195 000.00 
EA 111.00 $ 12,450.00 
LS 1.00 $ 160 000.00 
LS 1.00 $ (3 500.00 

LS 1.00 $ cs 900.00 
LF -5.588.00 $ 1.55 
EA -268.00 $ 115.00 
EA -42.00 $ 400.00 
LS 1.00 $ (11 000.00 
EA -86.00 $ 1,600.00 
SF -537.00 $ 39.00 
SF -401.00 $ 50.00 

EA -9.00 $ 2,900.00 

EA -4.00 $ 4,400.00 

EA -8.00 $ 355.00 
EA 142.00 $ 26.00 
EA -42.00 $ 17.00 
EA -6.190.00 $ 20.00 
EA -1344.00 $ 25.00 
EA -262.00 $ 25.50 
EA -10 997.00 $ 9.90 
EA -9802.00 $ · 2.05 
EA -27545.00 $ 6.40 
EA -931.00 $ 3.05 
LS 1.00 $ (345 000.00 
LS 1.00 $ 1165 000.00 

LS 1.00 $ 39,500.00 

LS 1.00 $ 3,500.00 

LS 1.00 $ 1 400.00 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PREVIOUS CURRENT CURRENT QUANTITY TOTAL COMPLETE 
CONTRACT VALUE MONTH QUANTITY EXTENSION IN PLACE TO DATE 
$ 1 362.90 0.00 0.00 $ . o.oo $ . 
$ 63304.00 0.00 8635.00 $ 17701.75 8 635.00 $ 17 701.75 
$ 195 353.60 0.00 658.00 $ 4 211.20 658.00 $ 4 211.20 s 41,434.25 o.oo 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ -
$ 1 500.00 0.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 675000.00 0.21 0.29 $ 195 750.00 0.50 $ 337 500.00 
$ 195 000.00 0.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 1271 950.00 0.00 111.00 $ 1271.950.00 111.00 s 1271 950.0 
$ /60 000.00 0.00 1.00 $ 160,000.00 1.00 $ 160 000.00 
$ 13 500.00 0.00 1.00 $ 13,500.00 1.00 $ 13 500.00 
$ 4.934 820.70 $ 982,914.80 $ 2 243194.02 

$ 18 900.00 1.00 $ . 1.00 $ 18 900.00 
$ /8 661.40 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ -$ 30 820.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ -
$ 16 800.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 11 000.00 0.00 1.00 $ 111 000.00 1.00 $ (11 000.00 
$ 1137 600.00 0.00 $ . o.oo $ . 
$ (20 943.00 0.00 $ - 0.00 $ -
$ 120 050.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ (26,100.00) 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ -
$ (17,600.00) 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 12 840.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 s -
$ 3692.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ -s (714.00 0.00 $ - 0.00 $ -s 1123 800.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ -s (33 600.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ -
$ 16 681.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ (108 870.30 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 120 094.10 0.00 s . 0.00 $ -
$ r176 2ss.oo 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ (2 839.55 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ -$ (345000.00 0.21 0.29 $ (100,050.00 0.50 s (172 500.00 
$ 1165 000.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ -
$ 39,500.00 0.00 $ - 0.00 $ -
$ 3 500.00 0.00 1.00 $ 3,500.00 1.00 $ 3500.00 
$ (1 237 509.35 $ (107 550.00 $ 1188 900.00 

$ 1.400.00 1.00 $ . 1.00 $ 1400.00 
$ 1400.00 $ . $ 1.400.00 



Broadway Street Landscape Improvements 
JERDON ENTERPRISE, L.P, Job # 5382 
PAY ESTIMATE #04 October 2018 
ITEM 
NO. DESCRIPTION 

Chanao Order No. 3 
10 10.Tree Proteclion and Fencing 
26 26.Saw cultina existina concrete 
27 27.Clav brick cavers 
28 28.Concrete subbase for a avers in median 
29 29.6/n concrete edoe 
30 30.Livo Oak - 65 aal 
36 36.Clara Indian Hawthorne - 5 aal 
38 38.Lllvofthe Nlle-3 aal 
39 39.B/color Iris - 3 aal 
42 42.Blablue Liriooe -1 cal 
44 44.Monkev Grass -4" oot 
46 46.Seasonal Color-4" t 

Channe Order No. 4 
4.1 ID Marker Sian and Foundation 

Chanoe Order No. 5 
5.1 Deduct Electrical Services, Panels and Controls 
5.2 Deduct All Electrical Conduit. Boxes and Wirinn 
5.3 1 O Hours of Efectrlcal Pro le ct Management 

TOTAL ITEMS 

'--
'--

GRAND TOTAL 
Less 10% Retainage: 
Less Previous Payments: 
Material On Hand 
DUE THIS MONTH 
Percentaae Comolete 

CONTRACT CONTRACT 
UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE 

LF -149.00 $ 2.00 
LF 1,400.00 $ 4.00 
SF 849.00 $ 18.00 
SF 849.00 $ 10.00 
LF 683.00 $ 7.50 
EA -11.00 $ 355.00 
EA 94.00 $ 26.00 
EA 35.00 $ 17.00 
EA -790.00 $ 20.00 
EA 550,00 $ 9.90 
EA -2 081.00 $ 2.05 
EA 428.00 $ 3.05 

EA 30.00 $4,400.00 

LS 1.00 ($45 000.001 
LS 1.00 1$104,000.00\ 
LS 1.00 $1 035.00 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PREVIOUS CURRENT CURRENT QUANTITY TOTAL COMPLETE 
CONTRACT VALUE MONTH QUANTITY EXTENSION IN PLACE TO DATE 

$ 1298.00 0.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 5 600.00 0.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 15 282.00 0.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 8 490.00 0.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 5122.50 0,00 0,00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 13 905.00 0.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 2444.00 0.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 595.00 0.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ (15 800.00 0.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 5 445.00 0.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ (4,266.05 0.00 0.00 $ . o.oo $ . 
$ 1 305.40 0.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 20.014.85 $ . $ . 

$ 132 000.00 0.00 0.00 $ . 0.00 $ . 
$ 132.000.00 $ . $ . 

$ 145 000.00 0.00 1.00 $ 145,000.00 1.00 $ (45 000.00 
$ 1104,000.00 0.00 1.00 $ 1104 000.00 1.00 $ (104 000.00 
$ 1 035,00 0.00 1.00 $ 1 035.00 1.00 $ 1,035.00 
$ 1147 985.00 $ 1147.965.00 $ 1147,965,00 

$ 3 702 761.20 $ 727 399.80 $ 1.907 729.02 

$ 727,399.80 $ 1 907.729.02 
$ 190.n2.9D 
$ 1,062,296.30 
$ . 
$ 654.659.82 

61.52% 



COUNTY OF Fort Bend § 

[Jerdon Enterprises, LP), located at 13403 Redfish Ln, Stafford, TX 77477 (hereinafter "Contrator"), 

in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract dated June I, 2016 for described improvements (as more 
fully described therein) between Contractor and the Hobby Area Management District ("Owner") and 

any amendments thereto (the '1Contract'' and capitalized words used herein shall have the meaning set forth in the 
Contract), hereby acknowledges the receipt and sufficiency of the sum of$654,659.82, Six Hundred Fifty Four 

Thousand Six I:Iund!cd Fifty Nine Dollars and Eighty Two Cents and other good and valuable consideration, in 
partial payment for furnishing the Work as defined in the Agreement, including all labor, materials and services, for 
improvements known as Broadwav Landscape Improvements. 

Contractor hereby acknowledges and certifies that Owner has made partial payment to Contractor on all 

sums owing and that it has no further claims against Owner or the above referenced property to the extent of 
such partial payment and upon the further payment of$ 654.659.82 

Six Hundred Fiftv Pour Thousand Six Hundred Fifty Njne Dollars and Eighty Two Cents. 

will have no further claims against Owner or the above referenced property to the extent of such further payment 

In consideration for such partial and further payment, Contractor, on behalf of itself and its predecessors, 
employees, agents, officers, directors, shareholders, representatives, attorneys, affiliates, successors, insurers and 
assigns, and on behalf of any other persons claiming by, through or under Contractor, does hereby waive, release, 
and relinquish its rights to and discharge, release and acquit the project site and Owner and its agents, 

representatives, consultants, attorneys, affiliates, successors, insurers and assigns, and all other Indemnitees as 
defined in the Contract, from any and all causes of action, claims, demands, debts, liabilities, expenses or costs of 
any kind and every character and nature whatsoever, including but not limited to any lien claims or rights, whether 
known or unknown, contingent or fixed, either in or arising out of the law of contracts, torts or property rights, 
whether arising under statutory law or common law, at law or in equity, with respect to the above-referenced 
property and arising out of the Work for which such partial and further payment was and is made. Furthermore, 

Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Owner and all other persons or entities released by Contractor 

above against the full amount of any liability, loss, claim, damage, or expense (inc1uding attorneys' fees and any 
judgment required to be paid) in connection with any of the matters it has released in the event any person should 
assert against such released person or entity a cJaim under assignment or title derivative from Contractor and in 
connection with any claims made in connection with or relating to Contractor's provision of the Work on the above
referenced property. Contractor represents and warrants that all bills and claims against Contractor of every nature 

and kind whatsoever arising out of]abor performed or material or equipment supplied or because of the perfonnance 
of the Work by Contractor have been or will be paid and satisfied, and that this Partial Affidavit and Release is made 
for the purpose of inducing payment under the Contract. 

PROJECT NO. 
CCA 113-098 



BROADWAY LANDSCAPE ENHANCEMENT PROJECT 

THE STATE OF TEXAS§ 

PARTIAL AFFIDAVIT AND RELEASE 

FOR CONTRACTOR 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 



EXECUTED this _!st __ day of_ November_ 2016. 

CONTRACTOR: Jerdon Enterprises, LP 

By:~~ /2'. Name:~-<Zez, 
Print or Type: Jeff Grzybowsi<i 

Title: Senior Vice President 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME, under my official hand and seal of office on this ....ilL_ 
day of November 20 ..!& • 

,. .. ,,\,,~•;,,,,,... SANDRA SAVAGE FARROW 
-::t~~ ... $1h_·,;. 

/f/~:,~\Notory Publle, State of TeMas 
i.:..:.)'-'1/0:E Comm Expires 02-19-2020 ~:-;~;·····~~$ .,,,,,,,~.~.~\,:,.'" Nolary ID 11799013 

(SEAL) 

AFFIDAVIT 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND § 

~~/~ 
Notary Public in and~ 

the State of _,,T~ex~as~-----------

My Commission Expires: 2/19/2020 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned Notary Public, on this day personally came and appeared 
Jeff Grzybowski known to me to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the foregoing 

PARTIAL AFFIDAVIT AND RELEASE and being duly sworn, did state and acknowledge on his oath 
that lie/she is the Senior Vice President of Jerdon Enterprises, LP and is authorized to execute and deliver the 

foregoing on behalfofJerdon Entemrises, LP as an act and deed of that entity for the purposes and 
consideration therein expressed. 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this 1st day of November , 20 _J§_. 

s"~;!'.~t;'½, SANDRA SAVAGE FARROW 
ft·~..,.:·.~\Notory Publlc, State of Texas 
:;~.··.l\.:_:§ Comm Expires 02-19-2020 
~ l''""•••t, ...... 

(S . , 't,,,,f,~.1\,\,~ Notary ID 11789013 

PROJECT NO. 
CCA 113-098 

(bu~~~~ 
Notary Public in and for fueS 
of Texas 

My Commission Expires: 2/19/2020 



Change Order 
PROJECT (Name and address): 

Broadway Street 

Document G701'" - 2001 

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 006 

DATE: November I, 2016 

TO CONTRACTOR (Nome and address): ARCHITECT'S PROJECT NUMBER: 113-098 

CONTRACT DATE: May 12, 2016 

CONTRACT FOR: Landscape Improvements 

Jerdon Enterprise 
13403 Redfish 
Stafford, TX 77477 

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS: 

OWNER: [gj 

ARCHITECT: [gj 

CONTRACTOR: [gj 

FIELD: 0 
OTHER:0 

(Include, where applicable, any undiSputed amount attributable to previously executed Construction Change Directives) 
Glenbrook Valley Sign 

The original Contract Sum was 
The net change by previously authorized Change Orders 
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 
The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of 
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be 

The Contract Time will be increased by Zero (0) days. 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

4,934,820, 70 
-1,232,059.50 
3,702,761.20 

48,500.00 
3,751,261.20 

The date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is unchanged. 

NOTE: This Change Order does not include changes in the Contracl Sum, Contract Time or Guaranteed Maximum Price which have 
been authorized by Construction Change Directive until the cost and time have been agreed upon by both the Owner and 
Contractor, in which case a Change Order is executed to supersede the Construction Change Directive. 

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR AND OWNER. 

Clark Condon Associates Jerdon Enterprise 
ARCHITECT (Firm name) CONTRACTOR (Firm name) 

77025 13403 Redfish, Staflord, TX 77477 

ADDRESS 

:.:JZ:V A. ,#/,t..,t.,eJL 
BY (Signature) 

{Typed name) / J 
II /J _I&, 

DATE t• 

(Typed name) 

DATE 

Hobby Area Management District 
OWNER (Firm name) 

do Hawes Hill Calderon, 9610 Long Point 
Road, Suite 150, Houston, TX 77055, 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed name) 

DATE 

Scenic Houston 
OWNER 
5615 Kirby Dr. #645 
Houston, TX 77005 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed Name) 

DATE 

AIA Document G701 no - 2001. Copyright© 1979. 1987. 2000 and 2001 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA~1 

Documentis protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA~; Document, or any 1 
portion of it, may result In severe civil and criminal penaltles, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the raw. This document was 
produced by AIA software at 13:37:30 on 11!01/2016 under Order No.6916820298_1 which expires on 12/02/2016, and is notfor resale. 
User Notes: (1935947885) 



Change Order 
PROJECT (Name and address): 

Broadway Street 

Document G701'" - 2001 

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 007 

DATE: November 1, 2016 

TO CONTRACTOR (Name and address): ARCHITECT'S PROJECT NUMBER: 113-098 

CONTRACT DATE: May 12, 2016 

CONTRACT FOR: Landscape Improvements 

Jerdon Enterprise 
13403 Redfish 
Stafiord, TX 77477 

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS: 

OWNER:~ 

ARCHITECT: ~ 

CONTRACTOR: ~ 

FIELD:0 

OTHER: 0 

(Include, where applicable, any undisputed amount alfributab!e to previously e:cecuted Construction Change Directives) 
Addition of 12 Solar Panel Kits to controllers. 

The original Contract Sum was 
The net change by previously authorized Change Orders 
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 
The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of 
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be 

The Contract Time will be increased by Zero (0) days. 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

4,934,820.70 
-1,183,559.50 
3,751,261.20 

4,500.00 
3,755,761.20 

The date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is unchanged. 

NOTE: This Change Order does not include changes in the Contract Sum, Contract Time or Guaranteed Ma-..imum Price which have 
been authorized by Construction Change Directive until the cost and time have been agreed upon by both the Own~r and 
Contractor, in which case a Change Order is executed to supersede the Construction Change Directive. 

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR AND OWNER. 

Clark Condon Associates 
ARCHITECT (Firm name) 

Jerdon Enterprise 
CONTRACTOR (Firm name) 

13403 Redfish, Stafiord. TX 77477 

ADDRESS 

(Signature) 

jt'GQI\) ,A, 
BY (Signature) 

(Typed name) I } 
/(_J_/& 

DATE I I 

(Typed name) 

DATE 

Hobby Area Management District 
OWNER (Firm name) 

do Hawes 1-lill Calderon, 96 IO Long Point 
Road, Suite 150, Houston, TX 77055, 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed name) 

DATE 

Scenic Houston 
OWNER 
5615 Kirby Dr. #645 
Houslon, TX 77005 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

(Typed Name) 

DATE 

AlA Document G701 '"' - 2001. Copyright© 1979. 1987, 2000 and 2001 by The American Institute of Archilecls. All rights reseived. WARNING: Tht5 AIA'~ 
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AJA'1 Document, or any 1 
portion of it, may result in sev!He civil i'!m! criminal pe1ialties. and will be prosecuted lo the maximum extent possible under !he law. This document was 
produced by AIA software al 13:41 :02 on 11/01/2016 under Order No.6916820298_ 1 which expires on 12/02/2016. and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (2019192641) 



November 4, 2016 

Tony Allender 
Hawes Hill Calderon 
9610 Long Point Rd. #150 
Houston, TX 77055 

Re: Hobby Area Bus Shelters CDs through CA 

Dear Tony, 

CLARK CONDON 
10401 STELLA LINK ROAD 
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77025 

j,honc 713.871.1414 jiu 713.871.0888 

CLARKCONDON.COM 

We are pleased to make this proposal for professional services associated with the Bus Shelters. For the purposes of this 
proposal, you will be referred to as the Client, and Clark Condon Associates, Inc. as the Landscape Architect. 

SCOPE OF WORK - The Landscape Architect will prepare Construction Documents for the bus shelters based on previously 
approved concept plan. 

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS • The Construction Documents will be based on the previously approved concept plan dated 
10/19/16. The Design Team will prepare the Construction Documents and Technical Specifications for pricing of the project. 
Services to be provided in this phase include: 

1. Finalize design drawings for fabrication. 
2. Finalization of specifications. 
3. Review documents with Client. 
4. Locate bus shelters along Broadway Street within the District. 
5. Coordinate with District and METRO for approval. 
6. Coordinate with fabricator to provide structural and foundation requirements. 
7. Coordinate with Owner (HAMD) to provide artwork for graphics to be applied to shelters. 
8. Specifications in MasterSpec format. 

PRICING • After completion and approval of the Construction Documents, the Landscape Architect will assist the Client in 
coordinating with METRO fabricators to price and install the bus shelters. Services shall include the following: 

1. Coordinate with Owner to price the shelters with a fabricator and installer. 
2. Review pricing and provide recommendations. 

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION • The Landscape Architect will provide Construction Administration for the project. 
Services to be provided in this phase include: 

1. Periodic visits to the site to observe the progress and quality of construction and to insure the integrity of the design 
as indicated on the drawings. 

2. Review shop drawings and material suppliers' products. 
3. Review fabrication with supplier. 
4. Review payment requests. 
5. Conduct substantial completion and final walk throughs and prepare punch lists. 

landscajJe architecture 



CLARK CONDON 
FEE • The total fee for this project is a lump sum based upon the estimated time for professional services, plus reimbursable 
expenses. 

Construction Documents 
Pricing 
Construction Administration 

TOTAL 

$35,000.00 
$3,000.00 

$15,000.00 

$53,000.00 

We consider chargeable revisions to include changes made after a phase of work has been accepted and we have been 
authorized by the Client to proceed to the next phase. 

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES • The Client shall pay the Landscape Architect for the cost of out-of-town travel expenses, 
mileage, printing, and other directly related costs. All expenses will be billed at cost plus 15%. 

EXCLUSIONS TO THE CONTRACT 

1. Topographic and boundary surveys. 
2. Existing site engineering and utility base information. 
3. Soil engineering, geotechnical consultant services or related testing, if required. 
4. Civil engineering (plan and profiles). 

EXTRA SERVICES • Additional services, if requested by the Client, will be considered as extra services and be billed hourly 
at the rates listed below. 

Principal/Owner 
Principal 
Senior Associate 
Project Manager 
Assistant Project Manager 
Project Staff 
Administrative 

$350.00/hour 
$225.00/hour 
$150.00/hour 
$125.00/hour 
$100.00/hour 
$90.00/hour 
$75.00/hour 

Hourly rates will be reviewed annually and may be increased in accordance with annual salary and cost-of-living reviews. 

BILLING • Billing shall be monthly based on the portion of the total estimated fee. Invoices shall be due upon receipt. Clark 
Condon Associates, Inc. reserves the right to charge the amount of interest allowable under the current laws of the State of 
Texas on any invoices not paid within thirty (30) days. 

JURISDICTION - The Texas Board of Architectural Examiners has jurisdiction over complaints regarding the professional 
practices of persons registered as landscape architects in Texas. The Board may be reached at the following address: 

Texas Board of Architectural Examiners 
P.O. Box 12337 Austin, TX 78711-2337 
(512) 305-9000-Phone / (512) 305-8900 

TERMINATION • If the Client should decide to terminate this Agreement, he shall give Clark Condon Associates, Inc. seven 
(7) days written notice and shall pay for all services rendered to the date of termination. Clark Condon Associates, Inc. 
reserves the right to terminate this contract upon fifteen (15) days notice if any amount billed to client is sixty days past due. 

londsrnj>e architecture 



CLARK CONDON 
If this Agreement meets with your approval, please sign in the appropriate place below and return one copy to us. I appreciate 
the opportunity to submit this proposal to you and look forward to working with you. 

Sincerely, 

Sheila M. Condon FASLA 
President / Landscape Archttect 

APPROVED ________ .DATE _______ _ 

landsca/Je orchitecture 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

11. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRISCOUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Receive an update from the Business and Economic Development Committee. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
{HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUl\fBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
P.O. Box22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 orFAX281-888-6314 



Hobby Area Management District 
Social Media Report 

October 3 - 16 



Facebook 
Total number of likes: 1835 
Total Reach (for last 28 days): 10,030 

1. Live video feed on Facebook: Tree 
tagging event for Broadway project 
with Scenic Houston, Robert Gallegos, 
Trees For Houston and CenterPoint 
Energy. 
650 Reached, 19 Reactions, 
Comments & Shares, 218 Video 
Views 

Top 5 Posts 

2. Join us next Thursday for a tree tagging event! 
"Scenic Houston has been very fortunate to partner with Trees for Houston which will be 
providing all of the live oaks being used to create a signature 'classic Houston boulevard' along 
Broadway." - with Scenic Houston and Trees For Houston. 
401 Reached, 7 Reactions, Comments & Shares 

3. From Scenic Houston, an update on the Broadway project. 
"We are thrilled to report Scenic Houston's Broadway/Hobby Corridor Redevelopment Project is 
progressing well and scheduled for completion by year's end. Enhancements to the corridor will 
include distinctive pedestrian crosswalks, featuring red brick inlays, extensive landscaping, 
state-of-the-art LED streetlights (currently being installed!), and 410 large new trees." 
355 Reached, 7 Reactions, Comments & Shares 

4. Hobby District executive director 
Jerry Lowry tagged one of the live oaks 
that will be planted this week on 
Broadway. It's all happening! 
348 Reached, 6 Reactions, 
Comments & Shares 

5. Super excited to pick out some trees for the Broadway project today. [Panoramic photo] 
347 Reached, 5 Reactions, Comments & Shares 



Twitter 
Total number of tweets & retweets for the time period: 12 
Total number of impressions for the last 28 days: 5276 
Total number of profile visits for the last 28 days: 193 
Total number of followers: 221 

Top Tweet earned 17s impressions 

Trees! Special event to select trees to plant for the 
@ScenicHouston Broadway project. pie.twitter.com/ 
HMGCmWoNeG 

Top media Tweet earned 16s impressions 

We <3 Trees. We also <3 @TreesForHouston & @ScenicHouston. 
Come see what all the <3 is about, tomorrow. (But please RSVP.) 
Media welcome! pic.twitter.com/pNPkfT4Moi 



Hobby Area Management District 
Social Media Report 

October 17 - November 1 



Facebook 
Total number of likes: 1840 
Total Reach (for last 28 days): 10,138 

Top 4 Posts 

1. We love the #MiniMuralsHou project so much 
(especially here in the Hobby District), we made 
a video about it. (Don't forget to turn on the 
sound!) Special thanks to UP Art Studio for 
pioneering this Mini Murals project. [Ihis is the 
video if you'd like to watch it.] 
2,085 Reached, 104 Reactions, Comments & 
Shares, 551 Video Views - so far.* 
*We plan to promote to reach more people for 
the next few weeks. 

3. Watch out, Houston, Hobby's got a brand new 
bag. [Link to KHOU story about Beautification 
around Hobby Airport.] 

1133 Reached, 65 Reactions, Comments & 
Shares 

2. So, it's official. This is coming soon. 
Very, very soon. We1II have more 
information on our grant program to help 
Hobby neighborhoods with identity 
markers and signage. Congratulations to 
G lenbrook Valley. 

1537 Reached, 166 Reactions, 
Comments & Shares 

4. Not only do you get to exercise your right to vote, but you get a free 
ride to do it! How's that for deal? [Flyer for METRO offering free rides 
for voters.] 

...... ...... .• ....... .. ... 
Saturday, October 29th 
Friday, November 41h 

Tuesdov. November Rlh 

418 Reached, 3 Reactions, Comments & Shares 



Twitter 
Total number of tweets & retweets for the time period: 11 
Total number of impressions for the last 28 days: 4811 
Total number of profile visits for the last 28 days: 201 
Total number of followers: 222 

Top Tweet earned 316 impressions 

We <3 Trees. We also <3 @TreesForHouston & @ScenicHouston. 
Come see what all the <3 is about, tomorrow. (But please RSVP.) 
Media welcome! pic.twitter.com/pNPkfT4Moi 

Top media Tweet earned 31s impressions 

Trees! Special event to select trees to plant for the 
@ScenicHouston Broadway project. pie.twitter.com/ 
HMGCmWoNeG 

Other notable Tweets: 

Hobby Area District @HADistrict Oct 31 

Fun fact: A lot of electrical boxes in Hobby District are dressed up like murals for 
Halloween. #MiniMuralsHOU 
vimeo.com/188919933 
132 Impressions 

Hobby Area District @HADistrict 

Hey friends, we would love it if you could help us out! https://twitter.com/HADistrict/ 
status/789467001852792832 ... 
228 Impressions 



Engineering News-Record, a weekly trade magazine for architects, engineers, and builders, 

has named the international terminal expansion at Houston's William P. Hobby Airport a "2016 

Project of the Year." 

The 280,000-square-foot terminal, which features five gates and a U.S. Customs and Border 

Protection station, opened in October 2015 and came in $10 million under budget at $146 

million. Southwest Airlines funded the project. 

The publication lauded the project's cost management and collaboration between the airline, 

general contractor Hensel Phelps Construction Co., subcontractors and the Houston Airport 

System. 

RELATED: Hiat us over, international flights resume at Hobby 

"We appreciate this honor from Engineering News-Record, and the recognition for both the 

impact of this project has had on the traveling public, and the value we were able to create 

through successful partnerships with our airline partners," said Mario Diaz, the city's aviation 

director, in a statement. 

"Because of that effective teamwork, Hobby Airport was completely transformed to become a 

four-star air transportation center, and now stands as a testimony to all that can come from a 

successful public-private partnership," Diaz continued. 

More than 800,000 passengers have used the new terminal since it opened a year ago, 

according to a city news release. 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

12. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Receive an update from the Public Safety Committee. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
{HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calder6n LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



Hobby Area Management District 
Public Safety Committee 

October 19, 2016 

MINUTES 

The Public Safety Committee of the Hobby Area Management District met on, October 19, 2016, at 12:00 p.m., the 
Doubletree Hilton Hobby- 8181 Airport Blvd, 77061, within the boundaries of the District and open to the public, to 
consider, discuss, and make recommendations, and take direct actions as may be necessary, desirable, or convenient: 

District Board and Committee members present: Danny Perkins, Helen Bonsall, Ann Collum, and Joe Ed Nelson 

Staff Present: Jerry Lowry 

Public present: Julius Levine, Julie Countiss, S.E.A.L. Staff, Off. Harris, HPD 

1. The meeting was called to order by committee chair, Helen Bonsall. 

2. Public Safety Initiatives and Reports 

Receive update from S.E.A.L. Security on Public Safety initiatives in the District. Report from SE.A.L. was 
presented by Lt. O'Brian McFadden. The report, attached by reference, provides the details. 

3. An update on RCR program was provided by Tina Defiore, HAA, RCR Director. The numbers of users are 
relatively the same as last report with over 7,000. 

4. An update was provided by Staff and Ms. Defiore concerning the first Apartment PIP hosted by HAMD. Twelve 
communities were represented with a total of 40 attending. Everyone agreed it was a wonderful start. The 
Houston Apartment Association will host the next meeting on November I 5th• 

5. The meeting was adjourned at 1 :20 pm. 

yw~ 
Jerry Lowry ' 
Executive Director 



~ ~ 0 n 
eJ o L.5o~o l=::Jo 
~8@(1:JJ~OLJW 

HOBBY AREA DISTRICT 

~ \1/0' 
~~~~ 

INCIDENT REPORT 
October 2016 

(Redacted) 

TX PSB #C15942 



HOBBY DISTRICT 

INCIDENT REPORT 

October 2016 (Redacted) 

Prepared for Hobby Area Management District 

About Incident Reports 

PAGE 2 of 14 

This is an incident report prepared by S.E.A.L. Security Solutions, LLC each month for the Hobby Area 
Management District. Throughout the month S.E.A.L.'s dispatch center receives calls from residents and 
S.E.A.L. officers concerning dangerous or potentially threatening situations or activity, and observations of 
incidents that occurred in the area. S.E.A.L.'s 24-hour dispatch center also received calls from clients 
inquiring about information on our services. These calls have been recorded to provide Hobby Area 
Management District information that impacts the community. 

About S.E.A.L. Security 
S.E.A.L. Security is contracted to safeguard your community and be on call during high risk situations. All 
S.E.A.L. officers are armed and patrol in marked patrol units. S.E.A.L. Security takes a proactive position on 
patrolling and securing the Hobby District. S.E.A.L.'s expanded canine (K-9) division includes foot patrol in 
your community. In addition to patrol services, most K-9s are dual purposed in either narcotics or explosive 
detection, or tracking. S.E.A.L.'s specially-trained Officers and their K-9 partners can be one of the most 
effective and productive security tools available to dissuade, discourage, and prevent crime. In the interest of 
safety, we ask that clients and residents do not approach the K-9 or attempt to pet them. We appreciate 
everyone's support. 

Disclaimer 
Information contained in this report is based on the information at the time of reporting, from sources 
believed to be reliable, and is true to the best of S.E.A.L.'s knowledge. S.E.A.L. provides the Board 
information in the report for the Board's sole use and purpose in its management and execution of its 
authorized duties. S.E.A.L. does not intend that the information contained in this report be disclosed to, 
relied on, or otherwise used by, anyone other than those authorized to receive such information. The 
information and the reports may contain personal, private, or othenvise identifying information and may 
compromise the safety and security of others. As such, the publication, dissemination, or disclosure of the 
report or information therein of any kind to anyone not authorized to receive such information shall be at the 
sole risk and liability of the Board, its members, and those authorized to receive such information, and each 
shall hold S.E.A.L. harmless and indemnify S.E.A.L. for any and all liability arising from any publication or 
disclosure. 

S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC I Texas Security Services & Officer Training Company 

1525 Blalock Road I Houston, TX 77080 
Toll Free: 1.866.949.0895 I US: 713.979.2388 I Fax: 713.583.9365 

Email: info@sealsecurity.com I TX PSB #Cl5942 



HOBBY DISTRICT 

INCIDENT REPORT 

October 2016 (Redacted) 

SUMMARY PAGE 
October 2016 

Alarm 

Animal 

Assault 

Assistance 

Burglary of Business/Habitation 

Burglary of Motor Vehicle 

Calls to Call Center 

CTW 

Damage/Defacing of Property 

Disturbance/Noise 

Emergency Medical Services 

Solicitor 

Suspicious Activity 

Suspicious Person 

Suspicious Vehicle 

Theft 

Vehicle Collision 

0 

0 

0 

8 

2 

11 

67 

2 

1 

3 

1 

0 

0 

15 

44 

2 

0 

Hobby Area Management HOTLINE: 713.489.6300 

PAGE 3 of 14 

Please call S.E.A.L. Security for any suspicious activity or anything that seems out of place. 

S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC I Texas Security Services & Officer Training Company 
1525 Blalock Road I Houston, TX 77080 

Toll Free: 1.866.949.0895 I US: 713.979.2388 I Fax: 713.583.9365 
Email: info@sealsecurity.com I TX PSB #C15942 



HOBBY DISTRICT 
INCIDENT REPORT 

October 2016 (Redacted) 

Saturday, October 1 

PAGE4 of 14 

12:23 A.M. Officer responded to Best Western, 8778 Airport, regarding a suspicious vehicle in the 

parking lot out of view of the surveillance camera . Officer found the occupants were renting a room and 

waiting for friends to arrive. 

Sunday, October 2 

8:49 P .M . Officer responded to Best Western, 8778 Airport, regarding a suspicious person who came in 

and tried to use their computers, and then went out and left something in the bushes. Officer was 

unable to locate the subject, but found what he had left in the bushes was a soda can. 

Tuesday, October 4 

9:01 A.M. Officer responded to Hampton Inn, 8620 Airport, on two BMVs and one attempted BMV. One 

of the vehicles had been burglarized and a radio stolen. Nothing was taken from the other. 

11:02 A.M . Officer on patrol was flagged down on Hanson and advised there were two black males 

attempting a break-in on the 8500 block of Mosley. The suspects were gone on the officer's arrival, and 

HPD had just finished clearing the building. 

11:15 A.M. Officer responded to Central Texas Bar B Que, 8101 Airport, to remove Uber drivers loitering 

on the property. Upon arrival, the officer made contact with those loitering and removed them, also 

noting their license plates: 2XXX; XXX-5514; XXX-9437; XXX-4653; XXX-2655; XXX-1866; and XXX-7913. 

1:49 P.M. Officer responded to Best Western, 8778 Airport, regarding a disturbance: management asked 

a suspected prostitute to leave, at which time she became belligerent and refused. The female subject 

was gone on arrival, having headed west on Airport towards the Shell station. Officer found her there, 

and she advised she was leaving the area, and would cause no further incident. 

Wednesday, October 5 

1:01 P.M. Officer on patrol at the Shell station, 8902 Gulf Fwy, found a person sleeping in a car. Subject 

advised he was just very tired, and was leaving. 

S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC I Texas Security Services & Officer Training Company 

1525 Blalock Road I Houston, TX 77080 

Toll Free: 1.866.949.0895 I US: 713.979.2388 I Fax: 713.583.9365 
Email: info@sealsecurity.com I TX PSB #(15942 



HOBBY DISTRICT 
INCIDENT REPORT 

October 2016 (Redacted) 

PAGE 5 of 14 

1:20 P.M. Officer responded to Central Texas BBQ, 28101 Airport, on a complaint of Uber drivers 

loitering. Officer found them parked in the fire lane, and one such vehicle, a white Hyundai Tucson, 

license plate XXX-7373, was also unattended. Officer issued a CTW to the operator, EXXX OXXX (TXDL# 

XXXXXXXXX). Other plates recorded were: XXX-329; XXX-7219; XXX-2448; and XXX-4616. 

Thursday, October 6 

12:01 P.M . Officer on patrol at 8101 Airport noted several license plates: XXX-3972; XXX-2590; XXX-

8827; XXX-1419; XXX-5969; and XXX-7445. 

S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC I Texas Security Services & Officer Training Company 

1525 Blalock Road I Houston, TX 77080 

Toll Free: 1.866.949.0895 I US: 713.979.2388 I Fax: 713.583.9365 

Email : info@sealsecurity.com I TX PSB #C15942 



HOBBY DISTRICT 
INCIDENT REPORT 

October 2016 (Redacted) 

PAGE 6 of 14 

2:01 P.M. Officer on patrol at the Hong Kong market, 9820 Gulf Fwy, found two subjects sleeping on the 

second floor of the parking garage. Officer advised them that that was not allowed, and they complied 

with requests to leave the property immediately. 

t r 

£,,.12/21/2021 

a. E.tp 01/27/2018 
.................. L.;..12 

4:10 P.M. Officer on patrol spotted a loiterer in front of the Hobby Market Beer and Wine, 8542 

Broadway. Officer confirmed with management that the subject was not allowed on the property, and 

issued a verbal warning and escorted him off the property. 

Friday, October 7 

10:40 A.M. Officer responded to Central Texas BBQ, 8101 Airport, regarding loitering Uber drivers. 

Officer told the drivers with the following license plates to leave (and they complied): XXX-6572; XXX-

8172; XXX-9245; XXX-2640; XXX-0952; XXX-6748; and XXX-5219. 

3:01 P.M. Officer on patrol in the area of Lockheed noted a large grass fire in the area of Mykawa and 

Dixie, but HFD was already on the scene. 

Saturday, October 8 

1:00 P.M. Officer responded to Broadway Belfort shopping center, 8300 Broadway, regarding a 

suspicious male. The officer was unable to locate the described subject, but did find a found semi

conscious male (WXXX SXXX, DOB XX/XX/XXX) on the north end of the shopping center requesting help 

S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC I Texas Security Services & Officer Training Company 

1525 Blalock Road I Houston, TX 77080 

Toll Free: 1.866.949.0895 I US: 713.979.2388 I Fax: 713.583.9365 
Email: info@sealsecurity.com I TX PSB #C15942 



HOBBY DISTRICT 
INCIDENT REPORT 

October 2016 (Redacted) 

PAGE 7 of 14 

and EMS. The subject, who had previously been verbally trespassed from the property, was determined 

to be intoxicated. HPD transported him. 

Sunday, October 9 

1:40 A.M. Officer responded to Crawfish Pot and Oyster Bar, 9820 Gulf Fwy., regarding a burglary in 

progress - the owner was watching two individuals via a surveillance camera. HPD had also responded, 

reporting that two males ran off when they arrived. S.E.A.L. officers remained on scene while employees 

reset the alarm and boarded up the damage. 

S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC I Texas Security Services & Officer Training Company 

1525 Blalock Road I Houston, TX 77080 
Toll Free: 1.866.949.0895 I US: 713.979.2388 I Fax: 713.583.9365 

Email: info@sealsecurity.com I TX PSB #Cl5942 



HOBBY DISTRICT 
INCIDENT REPORT 

October 2016 (Redacted) 

Monday, October 10 

PAGES of 14 

6:05 P .M . Officer responded to Best Western, 8778 Airport, regarding a BMV. Management told both 

SEAL and HPD that a blue Dodge Avenger was spotted in the parking lot at the time that another vehicle 

had been broken in to. Officers determined that several vehicles had been broken into at both the Best 

Western and at the La Quinta, 8776 Airport: a blue Chevrolet Silverado; a blue Dodge Ram 2500 crew 

cab; A white GMC Yukon XL; a maroon Ford F150 crew cab; and a black Ford F250. At 6:41, the officer 

was called to Springhill Suites, 7922 Mosley, regarding two more BMVs: a black Ford F150, and a blue 

Dodge Ram 2500 crew cab . 

. - -
• 

I 

Tuesday, October 11 

10:01 A.M . Officer reviewed photos with HPD at Hobby Airport regarding suspects in the recent BMVs. 

7:46 P.M. Officer responded to Stop and Drive, 8318 Broadway, regarding a panhandler who refused to 

leave. Officer found the subject to be gone on arrival. 

Wednesday, October 12 

10:23 a.m. Officer responded to Doubletree Inn, 8181 Airport, regarding an Uber driver sitting in the 

lobby. Officer determined the driver was there to pick up a customer. 

S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC I Texas Security Services & Officer Training Company 
1525 Blalock Road I Houston, TX 77080 

Toll Free: 1.866.949.0895 I US: 713.979.2388 I Fax: 713.583.9365 
Email: info@sealsecurity.com I TX PSB #Cl5942 



HOBBY DISTRICT 
INCIDENT REPORT 
October 2016 (Redacted) 

PAGE 9 of 14 

1:01 P.M. Officer stood by for the safety of Animal Control in the area of Telephone and Almeda Genoa 

and South Santa Fe as they confiscated dogs from residences. 

5:01 P.M. Officer responded to a BMV complaint at Stay Express Inn, 9902 Gulf Fwy. The victim's vehicle 

was a black Dodge Charger, and the suspect was driving a black Chevrolet Silverado Texas Edition. The 

officer noted there was already a BOLO for the vehicle. 

Friday, October 14 

5:30 P .M. Officer on patrol spotted two vehicles standing in the fire lane and blocking the driveway. 

Officer explained to the operators that the lot was for customers and tenants only, and they agreed to 

leave. 

Saturday, October 15 

12:48 P.M . Officer responded to Best Western, 8778 Airport, regarding suspicious activity: two people 

apparently attempting to gain access to a storage conta iner belonging to La Quinta, as seen through a 

surveillance camera. Officer found the subjects gone on arrival, and the storage container remained 

secure. 

Wednesday, October 19 

11:56 A.M. Officer responded to Flight Safety International, 7525 Fauna, regarding a phoned-in threat to 

the entire staff from an employee's ex-husband. A subject identified as QXXX WXXX (DOB XX/XX/XXXX) 

had allegedly called in approximately 20 times and hung up, and the final time he spoke with the 

manager and threatened to come to the office and implied that he would commit violence. HPD was 

alerted and said they would make contact with the subject. HPD case number 133632516-T. S.E.A.L. 

officers were provided the subject and vehicle's descriptions and agreed to conduct heavy patrols in the 

area. 

12:25 P.M . Officer attended the Hobby area management public safety meeting. 

S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC I Texas Security Services & Officer Training Company 
1525 Blalock Road I Houston, TX 77080 

Toll Free: 1.866.949.0895 I US: 713.979.2388 I Fax: 713.583.9365 
Email: info@sealsecurity.com I TX PSB #C15942 



HOBBY DISTRICT 
INCIDENT REPORT 

October 2016 (Redacted) 

Thursday, October 20 

PAGE 10 of 14 

9:01 A.M. Officer on patrol found graffiti on the sides of buildings in the area of 6614 Dixie and at the 

intersection of Lindbergh and Nunn. 

WB~F~L 
p~~"u 
\··r$~tt, 

9:38 A.M. Officer responded to Central Texas BBQ, 8101 Airport, for Uber drivers loitering on the 

property. Officer made contact with the subjects and told them to leave. They complied. Texas license 

plates recorded were: XXX-8246; XXX-9593; and XXX-1500. 

S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC I Texas Security Services & Officer Training Company 
1525 Blalock Road I Houston, TX 77080 

Toll Free: 1.866.949.0895 I US: 713.979.2388 I Fax: 713.583.9365 

Email: info@sealsecurity.com I TX PSB #Cl5942 



HOBBY DISTRICT 

INCIDENT REPORT 
October 2016 (Redacted) 

Friday, October 21 

PAGE 11 of 14 

5:01 P .M. Officer on patrol at the Best Western, 8778 Airport, observed a subject he recognized as 

having been banned from the property and also as having an outstanding felony warrant from Ft. Bend 

County. Officer made contact with KXXX FXXX SXXX (DOB. XX/XX/XXXX) and called for HPD regarding the 

warrant. While the officer was confirming the status of the warrant, Simmonds ran from the property to 

Hobby Airport Inn, 8800 Airport. HPD Officer Hood verified she had an active warrant for possession of a 

controlled substance (heroin) with intent to distribute and told the S.E.A.L. officer to arrest her. Officer 

found her at the Hobby Airport Inn when she exited a room. Officer apprehended her, and while waiting 

for HPD to take her into custody, the officer said she attempted to bribe him with money "and other 

supposed enticements." As HPD prepared to transport her she requested they go to her room to collect 

her money and phone. While there, HPD alleged, they also found approx. 15 hypodermic needles and 

other paraphernalia. 

8:07 P.M. Officer on patrol at Hobby Market Beer and Wine, 8542 Broadway, was informed by store 

management of a male who had been observed on closed-circuit video stealing candy. Store 

management told the individual that he was not allowed back. Officer told management to contact SEAL 

Dispatch if the individual returned. 

Tuesday, October 25 

10:34 A.M. Officer responded to Central Texas BBQ, 8101 Airport, regarding Uber drivers loitering. On 

arrival, officer noted the drivers had already left. 

3:30 P.M. Officer on patrol at Hampton Inn, 8620 Airport, was flagged down by hotel management who 

complained of a female loiterer at the front door. Officer eventually found the subject and escorted her 

from the property. 

9:40 P.M. Officer responded to Best Western where the clerk thought a female was bleeding. Officer 

found the woman and determined that the wound was old. 

S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC I Texas Security Services & Officer Training Company 

1525 Blalock Road I Houston, TX 77080 

Toll Free: 1.866.949.0895 I US: 713.979.2388 I Fax: 713.583.9365 

Email : info@sealsecurity.com I TX PSB #C15942 



HOBBY DISTRICT 
INCIDENT REPORT 
October 2016 (Redacted) 

Wednesday, October 26 

PAGE 12 of 14 

9:26 A.M. Officer responded to CIM Industries, 6900 Nelms, regarding a parked and occupied tractor

trailer unit blocking the gate, with the operator possibly sleeping. The vehicle left before the officer 

could make contact. 

4:28 P.M. Officer responded to Party City, 10065 Almeda Genoa, regarding a disturbance inside the 

store. On arrival, the officer noted HPO was there and the subject had already left. HPO was onsite to 

take a report regarding a strong-arm robbery earlier in the day. The manager asked the S.E.A.L. officer to 

escort him to the bank and back. 

Thursday, October 27 

10:55 A.M. Officer responded to Central Texas BBQ, 8101 Airport, regarding Uber drivers loitering. On 

arrival, officer noted the drivers had already left. 

12:01 P.M. Officer responded to Central Texas BBQ, 8101 Airport, to remove Uber drivers from the 
parking lot. Subjects left the area upon officer's arrival. 

3:04 P.M. Officer responded to Party City, 10065 Almeda Genoa, to do a courtesy escort with the 
manager to the bank. 

Friday, October 28 

3:04 P.M. Officer responded to Party City, 10065 Almeda Genoa, to do a courtesy escort with the 

manager to the bank. 

Sunday, October 30 

3:19 A.M. Officer responded to Best Western, 8778 Airport, regarding several vehicles "hanging out" in 

the back of the property. Upon officer's arrival, the vehicles had already dispersed. 

Monday, October 31 

12:42 A.M. Officer responded to Best Western, 8778 Airport, regarding several individuals casing the 

parking lot. Officer spoke with management and patrolled the parking lot and found no one outside. 

2:20 P.M. Officer responded to Best Western, 8778 Airport, regarding a suspicious, parked and occupied 

vehicle in the parking lot. When the officer arrived, he was told by management that the occupant 

turned out to be visiting a friend who was staying at the motel. 

S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC I Texas Security Services & Officer Training Company 
1525 Blalock Road I Houston, TX 77080 

Toll Free: 1.866.949.0895 I US: 713.979.2388 I Fax: 713.583.9365 
Email: info@sealsecurity.com I TX PSB #C15942 



HOBBY DISTRICT 
INCIDENT REPORT 
October 2016 (Redacted) 

Hobby Area Management HOTLINE: 713.489.6300 

Calls Received During the Month: 

8 

6-------

"' § 4 
0 

(.) 

2 

r.- ·1 rl ~n -rl I 1: 

0 1 II 
"<o "<o "<o ro"<o "<o ~ R} ~ p} 

~~ ~';;J ~ .... ~'1, "-:,{C .... .... "';;J .... 
~ 'I>' ~ 0'1>' ~ c-,; 0 c-,; c-,; 

Hobby Oislricl 

Call Center 

PAGE 13 of 14 

Hobby Area Management Hotline received 67 calls from the district with information and tips. 

Criminal Trespass Warnings 

There were 2 total criminal trespass warnings issued. 

S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC I Texas Security Services & Officer Training Company 
1525 Blalock Road I Houston, TX 77080 

Toll Free: 1.866.949.0895 I US: 713.979.2388 I Fax: 713.583.9365 
Email: info@sealsecurity.com I TX PSB #C15942 



HOBBY DISTRICT 

INCIDENT REPORT 

October 2016 (Redacted) 

PAGE 14of 14 

Hobby Year-to-Date Summary 

Incident: Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. YTD 
i!\tarni •; 

Animal 

Assistance 

s,ur~lary of Vehicle 
Calls ~b C.ill 
CTW 
Darnage/Qefjctifo~~t;••.· 

1 

5 

27 

5 
3 

0 0 0 1 

11 1 1 4 

1 0 1 0 

2 2 3 3 
·>1 

0 0 1 2 0 s 

2 1 7 1 8 41 

0 1 0 7 11 48 

3 2 0 4 2 26 

54 
· 11• 

4 
Y·<xc>C. ·.·· 28 

Suspicious Person 17 21 7 3 9 12 8 5 14 15 111 
· s1.1s~ic191.1s\ftib1c:Itif ·· •3 < F 1 • I ./f ·2. 7 ·o 3 23• c,44 ,: ·. • .!. • 19• 
Theft 1 2 2 5 0 3 3 6 2 2 26 
ve11ic:1eCc>ilisio~ 1 o .ii oi .,foi ?f < o> . 1 · i< o.r \Gr 

During our daily patrols, we made contact with several businesses to introduce S.E.A.L. 
Security to the district and offer our assistance to the owners and employees, as well as 
support to other security companies working inside the district. 

END OF REPORT 

S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC I Texas Security Services & Officer Training Company 

1525 Blalock Road I Houston, TX 77080 

Toll Free: 1.866.949.0895 I US: 713.979.2388 I Fax: 713.583.9365 

Email: info@sealsecurity.com I TX PSS #C15942 



sln 
Logistics 

' •, 

~ ,' 

10/3 
10/4 
10/5 
10/6 
10/10 
10/11 
10/12 
10/13 
10/17 
10/18 
10/19 
10/20 

10/24 

10/25 

10/26 

10/27 

Total 

Hobby Area Management District 
Litter Abatement and Special Projects Crew 

October 2016 

> :· ... :_::.:_··->::.:. :·: /"'<·'.,· :. · ... • (r:}:'. . . ~ .. :,_ 

:.~:~ :~,} -~~ :~~ '.: 
. ·~· .,.· 

,-.~- 1~··; ·m ~ · ·.=.:.~~--~':.Jr,~'t ·:,·:·.~n~~t •~ 
• _ I . • 'j• • 

.. nm!l)~.- -~ • :' _.. i : l:.r· • • ~ • I , ~- .. ~· ' ~ 

Almeda Genoa, Clearwood, Airport 6.2 4 
Broadway, Bellfort, Telephone 3.75 4 
Telephone, Airport, Bellfort 6.6 5 
Airport, Bellfort 0 1 0 
Almeda Genoa, Clearwood, Airport 5.2 4 
Broadway, Bellfort, Telephone 6.6 4 
Telephone, Airport, Bellfort 3.9 3 
Telephone, Almeda 0 1.5 0 
Almeda Genoa, Clearwood, Airport 5.2 4 
Broadway, Bellfort, Telephone 6.6 5 
Telephone, Airport, Bellfort 3.9 3 
Almeda Genoa, Monroe 0 2 0 
Almeda Genoa, Clearwood, Airport 5.2 0 
Broadway, Bellfort, Telephone 6.6 4 
Telephone, Airport, Bellfort 3.9 4 
Monroe, Bellfort 0 2 3 

40 63.65 6.5 47 

. J :t;Tirim .. -tmttm:m . . ' 

(/\-~ :~,;- :~ '. ,~-~~,]~.: -~ 
·m,wdb -~-~m~ ·- [;'.tj ~ z:i. 

200 30 
200 40 
250 15 
0 0 12 

200 40 
200 25 
150 30 
0 0 18 

200 30 
250 35 
150 25 
0 0 22 

0 0 

200 35 

200 35 
150 40 22 

2350 380 74 0 



sln 
Logistics Hobby Area Management District 

Litter Abatement and Special Projects Crew 

January to December 2016 

.E :; '.}> ·.-:-;· ._'.:'=}<( =~ ... - ~: ~ ·,:{~·_.,.\ .. ,· '.1··: :'c\: ~~._,:i,;. =;,,:._::'=: :c':~·.;.{ ~~:> ·~<-. . ~-,~ .~ ,~;~ .. ~~N·tt,1\ . ··.·.· - . .... ., .. · ., . -~ffm, -~~ '" ·, ,; (, :,·· ' . •' ... -·~ ' ·;• ~ --.:': ~ -. 
;: '_ ·1 : •. :: .. ;;~i'·< ... ·-·,:.{-:··:.· 1 

~~.-•,.:~·

1

·,:,;:-}-t -~ . ·." :!, ·,• ~ l ... · .•• -~ .... " . _ ~--"\:.__~::;·~·-~-1:, ,•. _ , ,: .:--~ ~ ;" ... __ •. • ·.-: '..,; 

ri'tJf.rk1h· ... ). ~-~~mmna®·mmmr.. · ... fll§1JUM'aa -,-~1 ~7, ·. ~ - :.~ .. ©mti~ ~ ~ , ,~ 

January 36 55 14.5 48 2,400 255 66 

February 43 50.5 50.5 50.5 2,525 435 78 

March 52 65 .15 50 63 3,150 320 156 

April 34 54.15 8 75 3,750 310 78 

May 38 66.7 10 52 2,600 347 92 

June 51 77.6 17 81 4,100 420 109 

July 47 81.66 13.5 54.23 2,200 325 85 

August 54 90.8 12 64.5 3,225 343 86 

September 54 64.8 11 44 2,200 415 105 

October 40 63.65 6.5 47 2,350 380 74 

Total 449 670.01 193 579.23 28,500 3550 929 

2016 Totals 

~ 

fimfta.m 
0 

2 

0 

3 

0 

2 

0 

0 

0 

7 

i 



Hobby Area Management District 
Streetlights Reported To Date 

Date Description 

2/28/2014 Street Light Survey 
4/17/2014 Street Light Survey 
6/2/2014 Street Light Survey 
8/24/2014 Street Light Survey 
10/28/2014 Street Light Survey 
12/23/2014 Street Light Survey 
2/19/2015 Street Light Survey 
4/27/2015 Street Light Survey 
6/24/2015 Street Light Survey 
8/23/2015 Street Light Survey 
10/24/2015 Street Light Survey 
12/14/2015 Street Light Survey 
2/16/2016 Street Light Survey 
4/29/2016 Street Light Survey 
6/16/2016 Street Light Survey 
8/26/2016 Street Light Survey 
10/28/2016 Street Light Survey 

Total Lights Reported to Date 

updated 11/3/2016 

Number 
Reported 

128 
145 
127 
100 
125 
145 
66 
63 
90 
97 
82 
42 
60 
65 
83 
60 
63 

Hobby Area Management District 

Invoice Total Lights 

302 128 
328 145 
348 127 
383 100 
414 125 
443 145 
470 66 
531 63 
566 90 
651 97 
690 82 
728 42 
782 60 
1046 65 
1104 83 
1162 60 
1219 63 

1,541 

-~~-e 
'-"' I I g 
Logistics 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

13. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRISCOUNTY,TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Receive the Executive Director's monthly report on actions and initiatives in support of 
the District's Service Plan. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUJ\IBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
P.O. Box22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

SERVICE PLAN 

MONTHLY REPORT 

OCTOBER 13, 2016 - NOVEMBER 9, 2016 



COMMITTEE ACTIVITY 

Business and Economic Development Committee 

The Business and Economic Development Committee did not meet in October. 

Environmental, Urban Design and Mobility Committee 
The Environmental and Urban Design Committee met October 19th • 

Public Safety Committee 
The Public Safety Committee met on October 19th • 

STAFF ACTIVITY 

SEPTEMBER 8 - OCTOBER 13, 2016 

>" The business ambassador made 60 visits during the month. The BA reports that businesses are generally 
pleased to learn about the District and our services and regularly share information/issues with him. The 
BA passes along all reports of issues to the Executive Director for follow up. 

>" Staff made regular updates to the District website and distributed e-news and e-blasts for area partner 
events. 

>" Staff continues to work with area partners to promote their events as well as businesses who provide 
information to the team. See social media reports attached to this report. 

>" Staff is assisting new event planner with needed information for the planned transition. 

>" Staff assisted the press, Joshua Chapin with KHOU and Mihir Zaveri with the Houston Chronicle, with 
information related to the Broadway redevelopment project. 

>" The mini-mural video project has been completed and can be viewed at the website. This was a pilot 
project to increase engagement and we will be boosting the video via FB to gage interest and as a 
benchmark for future videos. 

>" Broadway Street Visual Enhancement Project - Signs of improvements are clearly visible along nearly 

the full length of the Broadway Street corridor, including installation of trees, plants and finish material 

on several of the medians. All CenterPoint poles are now installed along the roadway. The project 

remains on track for completion in January 2017. 

>" ID markers along Broadway Street have been approved by the City of Houston and work is underway to 

prepare for their placement. Clark Condon Associates is coordinating with staff and EUDM Committee 

membership regarding design of HAMD markers. Staff is coordinating with the Super Bowl Host 

Committee regarding their design content. 



:Ja, The Glen brook Valley neighborhood sign has been resized and approved by the City of Houston. The sign 

is intended to be complete before Super Bowl LI. 

:Ja, Clark Condon Associates has presented final conceptual designs of bus shelters along Broadway Street, 
including a potential mini-bus shelter to be placed at bus stop locations. Next steps include a follow-up 
meeting with METRO and HAMD approval for detailed design and construction documents for the 
shelters. 

:Ja, Mini-Mural Project - Phase 1 was completed. Phase 2 idea development is underway 

:Ja, Public Safety Initiatives and Reports 

o Received update from S.E.A.l. Security on Public Safety initiatives in the District. Copy included 

in board book. Discussion of the District's Mobile Security Camera program was presented by 

Rhedonda Cox. 

o Sgt. Charles Landrum, HPD, DRT, is coordinating efforts in developing historical crime statistics 

for the HAMD. Due to required training Sgt. Landrum was unable to attend the meeting and 

report one his activities. 

o An update on RCR program was provided by Tina DeFiore, HAA, RCR Director. She and the HAMD 

Executive Director worked with Sgt. Young, Community Service, HPD to re-start the Apartment 

PIP meeting and base it in the Hobby Area District. The first meeting was held on October 13th 

with 40 attending from 12 properties. 



~ffii§.~ 

!!1~ 

:~aarmsrn, !?erlkatrn~ tr~pn"e~eITTl'fi:§ fH@LO)b'tf Arcea [)u~trroct a{c 
fefl(~Jta B ~ ,r ir a1 co1 e § l\JJ mm uu: a !iu@ ~xrP)o i n11 rsse ~ o :l<e: 

:hairman Danny Perkins recently attended the retail trade summit and . 

ixpo in Belize. The expo organizers are dedicated to promoting U.S. 

>roducts, services and investments in Belize. We believe there are 

nany advantages to doing business in Belize. In terms of proximity, 

:ulture, language, and currency, Belizeans already have strong 

inkages in the United States and we are their top trading partner in 

erms of imports (31 %), exports (35%), tourism, and other service related industries. 



\ 



·he CAF Wings Over Houston Airshow this October 22nd and 23rd at Ellington Airport is presented by 

he volunteer efforts of the Houston Wing, Gulf Coast Wing , and Tora! Tora! Tora! of the 

:ommemorative Air Force, with support from the Lone Star Flight Museum in Galveston, the Texas 

:lying Legends Museum, Collings Foundation-~ouston based at Ellington Airport, and the Vietnam War 

:light Museum. 

·he Houston Parks and Recreation Department was created in 1916 to 

•versee the fledg ling park system of 750 acres of land and a handful 

,f parks. The system has since grown to over 37,800 acres and 350 

•arks serving neighborhoods all across the City. In celebration of its 

.OOth anniversary, HPARD held a Citywide Celebration at Gragg Park 

,n October 1st. 

?. r ecre~~ion 
cle oar trnen c 

:' r·:1 .) P.,.~ ..:, ,· - -.:.:t11r· ;::, I '-l'1P··1 ·, ,- ._, 
.""\ ....... 1, ,. , ..... \... ..... ~ .- .... · : ... .... - · / 

-!!PD Seeks to Raise Awareness of 

>omestic Vio~ence 

>omestic Violence Awareness Month provides an 

,pportunity for the Houston Police Department 

o bring additional attention to an underreported 

rime. 

'ictims are usually, but not always, women, with 

,ne in four women experiencing domestic 

•iolence in 'her lifetime. It affects people of all 

1ges and all ethnic, racial and socioeconomic ... 

Jones HaBi Turns 50 

In October 1966, Jones Hall was dedicated as 

our city's first performing arts center, designed 

to be home to the Symphony, the Opera, the 

Ballet, and the Society for the Performing Arts 

(SPA). 

Given as a single gift to the city by Houston 

Endowment, Jones Hall put Houston's performinc 

arts on the national and international map and 
transformed downtown in a way that no other 

building has in the past fifty years. 


